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ALLEGATION OR SUBJECT

APPLICATION OF KMC DATA, LLC FOR APPROVAL TO OFFER, RENDER, FURNISH OR SUPPLY
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES AS A RESELLER OF TOLL SERVICES TO THE PUBLIC IN
THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA.
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for approval to offer, render, furnish or supply telecommunications services to the public in the Commonwealth
of Pennsylvania.

KMC DATA, LLC, t/a N/A,

1. IDENTITY OF THE APPLICANT: The name, address, telephone number, and fax number of the
Applicant.

KMC DATA, LLC
1545 Route 206

gig:n?:scier, New Jersey 07921-2567 D O C U M E N T
Telephone (908) 470-2100 F '
Facsimile (908) 719-8775 O L D E R

Please identify any predecessors of the Applicant and provide other names under which
the Applicant has operated within the preceding five years, including name, address,
and telephone number.

Not applicable. There have been no predecessors of the Applicant and Applicant
has operated under no other names.

2. ATTORNEY: The name, address, telephone number, and fax number of the Applicant’s attorney.

Genevieve Morelli

Eric D. Jenkins

M. Nicole Oden

KELLEY DRYE & WARREN LLP
1200 19th Street, N.W.

Suite 500

Washington, D.C. 20036
Telephone: (202) 955-9600
Facsimile: (202) 955-9792

DCO01/ODENM/137902.1 1
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3. CONTACTS:

A) APPLICATION: The name, title, address, telephone number, and fax number of
the person to whom questions about this application should be addressed.

Tricia Breckenridge

Executive Vice-President, Business Development
KMC TELECOM, INC.

1755 North Brown Road

Lawrenceville, Georgia 30043

Telephone (678) 985-7900

Facsimile (678) 985-6213

B) PENNSYLVANIA EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (PEMA): The name, title,
address, telephone number and FAX number of the person with whom contact should
be made by PEMA.

Michael Duke

Director -~ Governmental Affairs
KMC TELECOM, INC.

1755 North Brown Road
Lawrenceville, Georgia 30043
Telephone (678) 985-7900
Facsimile (678) 985-6213

C) RESOLVING COMPLAINTS: Name, address, telephone number, and FAX number of
the person and an alternate person responsible for addressing customer complaints.
These persons will ordinarily be the initial point(s) of contact for resolving complaints and
queries filed with the Public Utility Commission or other agencies.

Michael Duke

Or

John McLaughlin

KMC TELECOM, INC.

1755 North Brown Road
Lawrenceville, Georgia 30043
Telephone (678) 985-7900
Facsimile (678) 985-6213

4, FICTITIOUS NAME:

X The Applicant will not be using a fictitious name.

U The Applicant will be using a fictitious name. Attach to the Application a copy of the Applicant's
filing with the Commonwealth’s Department of State pursuant to 54 Pa. C.S. §311, Form PA-953.

DCO1/ODENM/137902.1 2
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5. BUSINESS ENTITY AND DEPARTMENT OF STATE FILINGS:

U The Applicant is a sole proprietor.

Q The Applicant is a:
Q) General partnership
(] Domestic limited partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8511)
[ *Foreign limited partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8582)
O Domestic registered limited liability partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8201)
Q *Foreign registered limited liability general partnership (15 Pa. C.S. §8211)

*Provide name and address of Corporate Registered Office Provider or Registered Office within PA.

Attach to the application the name and address of partners. If any partner is not an individual,
identify the business nature of the partner entity and identify its partners or officers.

Attach to the application proof of compliance with appropriate Department of State filing
requirements as indicated above.

O The Applicant is a:
U Domestic corporation (15 Pa. C.S. §1306)
QO *Foreign corporation (15 Pa. C.S. §4124)

) Domestic limited liability company (15 Pa. C.S. §8913)
X *Foreign limited liability company (15 Pa. C.S. §8981)

*Provide name and address of Corporate Registered Office Provider or Registered Office within PA.

Commercial Registered Office Provider:
CT Corporation System

1635 Market Street

Philadelphia, PA 19103

Attach to the application proof of compliance with appropriate Department of State filing
requirements as indicated above. Additionally, provide a copy of the Applicant’s Articles
of Incorporation or a Certificate of Organization.

The Applicant is incorporated in the State of Delaware.

DCO1/ODENM/137902.1 3
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5. (Continued)

Give name and address of officers:
Harold N. Kamine, Chairman
Roscoc C. Young, II

William H. Stewart

All of the above-referenced officers and managers may be reached at the following address:

1545 Route 206

Suite 300

Bedminster, New Jersey 07921
Telephone (908} 470-2100

6. AFFILIATES AND PREDECESSORS WITHIN PENNSYLVANIA:

O The Applicant has no affiliates doing business in Pennsylvania or predecessors which have done
business in Pennsylvania.

X The Applicant has affiliates doing business in Pennsylvania or predecessors which have done
business in Pennsylvania. Name and address of the affiliates. State whether they are jurisdictional
public utilities. Give docket numbers for the authority of such affiliates.

KMC Telecom V, Inc. [Affiliate of Applicant]
1545 Route 206

Suite 300

Bedminster, New Jersey 07921-2567

Docket No. A-310957

Docket No. A-310937F0002

If the Applicant or an affiliates has a predecessor who has done business within Pennsylvania, give
name and address of the predecessors and state whether they were jurisdictional public utilities.
Give the docket numbers for the authority of such predecessors.

Not Applicable. The Applicant does not have any predecessors who have done business within the State of
Pennsylvania.

DCO1/ODENM/137902.1 4
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7. AFFILIATES AND PREDECESSORS RENDERING PUBLIC UTILITY SERVICE OUTSIDE
PENNSYLVANIA:

O The Applicant has no affiliates rendering or predecessors which rendered public utility service
outside Pennsylvania.

X The Applicant has affiliates rendering or predecessors which rendered public utility service outside
Pennsylvania. Name and address of the affiliates. Name and address of the predecessors (please
specify which).

The Applicant does not have any predecessors who have rendered public utility service outside of the State of
Pennsylvama.

The Applicant has Affiliates that are currently rendering public utility service outside of the Statc of
Pennsylvania. They are as follows:

KMC Telecom Inc. (“KMC I}, KMC Telecom II, Inc. (“KMC II'"), KMC Telecom IlI, Inc. (“KMC III"), KMC
Telecom IV, Inc. (“KMC IV™), KMC Telecom V, Inc. (“KMC V"), and KMC Telecom of Virginia, Inc. (“KMC
V A"} are authorized by virtue of certification, registration, or (where appropriate) on an unrcgulated basis to
provide local exchange and/or interexchange telccommunications services in Alabama, Arkansas, Arizona,
California, Colorado, Connecticut, Delaware, Florida, Georgia, ldaho, [llinois, Indiana, lowa, Kansas, Kentucky,
Louisiana, Maine, Maryland, Massachusetts, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, Missouri, Montana, Nebraska,
Nevada, New Hampshire, New Jersey, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, Rhode Island, South
Carolina, South Dakota, Tennessee, Texas, Vermont, Virginia, Washington, Washington D.C., West Virginia,
Wisconsin and Wyoming,

All affiliates may be contacted at the following address:

[Name of the Respective Affiliate]
c/o KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.
1545 Route 206

Suite 300

Bedminster, New Jersey 07921-2567
Telephone (908) 470-2100

Facsimile (908) 719-8775

8. APPLICANT’S PRESENT OPERATIONS: (Select and complete the appropriate statement)

X The applicant is not presently doing business in Pennsylvania as a public utility.
(] The applicant is presently doing business in Pennsylvania as a:

LI Interexchange Toll Reseller, InterLATA and/or IntraLATA, (e.g., MTS, 1+, 800, WATS, Travel
and Debit Cards)

Q Interexchange Toll Facilities-based carrier, interLATA and/or IntraLATA, (e.g., MTS, 1+, 800,
WATS, Travel and Debit Cards)

Q Competitive Access Provider (dedicated point-to-point or multipoint service; voice or data)

DCO1/0DENM/137902.1 5
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U Competitive Local Exchange Carrier:

U Facilities-Based
[ Non-facilities-Based
O Incumbent Local Exchange Carrier.

L Other (Identify).

9. APPLICANT’S PROPOSED OPERATIONS: The Applicant proposes to operate as a:

X Interexchange Toll Reseller, InterLATA and/or IntraLATA, (e.g., MTS, 1+, 800, WATS, Travel
and Debit Cards)

d Interexchange Toll Facilities-based carrier, InterLATA and/or IntralLATA, (e.g., MTS, 1+, 800,
WATS, Travel and Debit Cards)

L Competitive Access Provider (dedicated point-to-point or multipoint service; voice or data)
X Competitive Local Exchange Carrier:
X Facilities-based

X Non-facilities-based
O Incumbent Local Exchange Carrier

O Other (identify).

10. PROPOSED SERVICES: Describe in detail the services which the Applicant proposes to offer. If
proposing to provide more than one category in ltem #9, clearly and separately delineate the services within
each proposed operation.

Interexchange Toll Reseller, InterLATA and/or IntraLATA:
KMC DATA proposes to provide resold intrastate interexchange telecommunications services to customers in the

State of Pennsylvania. Initially, KMC DATA proposes to offer basic “1+” long distance services, otherwise
known as Message Telecommunications Services (“MTS”), WATS, toll-free, data, and Intcrnet services. The
Applicant may expand its long distance offerings at a later date, to include other interexchange scrvices.

Competitive Local Exchange Carrier:
KMC DATA proposes to provide full scale telecommunications and data services. Specilically, KMC DATA

proposes to offer service to include the originating and terminating of local calls, private line and data services.

DCO1/ODENM/137902.1 6
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11.  SERVICE AREA: Describe the geographic service area in which the Applicant proposes to offer
services. Clearly and separately delineate the service territory for each category listed in ltem #9. For
Competitive Local Exchange Carrier operations, you must name and serve the Incumbent Local Exchange
Carriers in whose territory you request authority.

Interexchange Toll Rescller, InterLATA and/or IntraL ATA:
KMC DATA requests authority to operate as an intrastate interexchange toll reseller for the entire State of
Pennsylvania.

Competitive Local Exchange Carrier:

KMC DATA requests authority to operate as a competitive local exchange carrier in all areas defined by the
existing exchange areas in which the following incumbent local exchange carriers are currently authorized to
operate: Sprint and Verizon.

12. MARKET: Describe the customer base to which the Applicant proposes to market its services. Clearly
and separately delineate a market for each category listed in ltem #9.

Interexchange Toll Reseller, Inter, ATA and/or IntralL ATA:
For all selected markets and services, KMC DATA anticipates serving only business customers at this time.

Competitive Local Exchange Carrier:
For all selected markets and services, KMC DATA anticipates serving only business customers at this time.

13. PROPOSED TARIFF(S): Each category of proposed operations must have a separate and distinct
proposed tariff setting forth the rates, rules and regulations of the Applicant. Every proposed tariff shall state
on its cover page the nature of the proposed operations described therein, i.e., IXC R/S, CLEC, CAP, or IXC
F/B. A copy of all proposed tariffs must be appended to each original and duplicate original and copy of Form
377.

14. FINANCIAL: Attach the following to the Application:

A general description of the Applicant’s capitalization and, if applicable, its corporate stock structure;

Current balance sheet, Income Statement, and Cash Flow Statement of Applicant or Affiliated
Company, if relying on affiliate for financial security;,

A tentative operating balance sheet and a projected income statement for the first year of operation
within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania; provide the name, title, address, telephone number and fax
number of the Applicant's custodian for its accounting records and supporting documentation; and
indicate where the Applicant's accounting records and supporting documentation are, or will be,
maintained.

If available, include bond rating, letters of credit, credit reports, insurance coverage and reports, and
major contracts.

Please see Attachment C for all above information.

DCO1/ODENM/137902.1 7
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16.

17,

18.
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START DATE: The Applicant proposes to begin offering services on or about September 2001.

FURTHER DEVELOPMENTS: Attach to the Application a statement of further developments, planned
or contemplated, to which the present Application is preliminary or with which it forms a part, together
with a reference to any related proceeding before the Commission.

Not Applicable.
NOTICE: Pursuant to 52 Pa. Code §5.14, you are required to serve a copy of the signed and verified

Application, with attachments, on the below-listed parties, and file proof of such service with this
Commission:

Office of Consumer Advocate Office of Small Business Advocate
955 Walnut Street Commerce Building, Suite 1102
5th Floor, Forum Place 300 North Second Street
Harrisburg, PA 17101-1923 Harrisburg, PA 17101

Office of the Attorney General
Office of Consumer Protection
Strawberry Square, 14" Floor
Harrisburg, PA 17120

A certificate of service must be attached to the Application as proof of service that the
Application has been served on the above-listed parties. A copy of any Competitive Local
Exchange Carrier Application must also be served on any and/or all Incumbent Local Exchange
Carrier(s) in the geographical area where the Applicant proposes to offer services.

FEDERAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS ACT OF 1996: State whether the Applicant claims a particular
status pursuant to the Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996. Provide supporting facts.

Not Applicable.

DCO1/ODENM/137902.1 8
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20.

21.

COMPLIANCE: State specifically whether the Applicant, an affiliate, a predecessor of
either, or a person identified in this Application has been convicted of a crime involving
fraud or similar activity. ldentify all proceedings, limited to proceedings dealing with
business operations in the last five (5) years, whether before an administrative body or
in a judicial forum, in which the Applicant, an affiliate, a predecessor of either, or a
person identified herein has been a defendant or a respondent. Provide a statement as
to the resolution or present status of any such proceedings.

FALSIFICATION: The Applicant understands that the making of false statement(s)
herein may be grounds for denying the Application or, if later discovered, for revoking
any authority granted pursuant to the Application. This Application is subject to 18 Pa.
C.S. §§4903 and 4904, relating to perjury and falsification in official matters.

CESSATION: The Applicant understands that if it plans to cease doing business within

the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, it is under a duty to request authority from the
Commission for permission prior to ceasing business.

Applicant::

KMC DATA LLC

President a gJ hief Operating Officer

DCOL/ODENM/151698.1



22. AFFIDAVIT: Attach to the Application an affidavit as follows:

AFFIDAVIT

[Commonwealth/State) of Ll-ws C_Vﬂd-a-ﬂ.»{{

County of W

'RDSCOQ. e. \/oq AJ} {] , Affiant, being duly [sworn/affirmed] according to

$S.

law, deposes and says that:

He is the President and Chief Operating Officer of KMC DATA, LLC

That he js authorized to and does make this affidavit for said corporation;

That KMC DATA, LLC, the Applicant herein, acknowledges that it may have an
obligation to serve or to continue to serve the public by virtue of the Applicant
commengcing the rendering of service pursuant to this Application consistent with the
Public Utility Code of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Title 66 of the Pennsylvania
Consolidated Statutes; with the Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996, signed
February 6, 1996, or with other applicable statutes or regulations,

That KMC DATA, LLC, the Applicant herein, asserts that it possesses the requisite
technical, managerial, and financial fitness to render public utility service within the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and that the Applicant will abide by all applicable
federal and state laws and regulations and by the decisions of the Pennsylvania Public
Utility Commission.

That KMC DATA, LLC, the Applicant herein, asserts that it has contacted the
appropriate 911 Coordinator(s), and that arrangements are under way for the
provisioning of emergency 911 service in each of the Counties/Cities where service is to
be provided.

That the facts above set forth are [true and correct] to the best of his knowledge,
information and belief, and that he expects said entify to be able to prove the same at
any hearing thereof.

Sworn and subscribe before mé this Qﬁ: da _j-aﬂq

2001. /

DCOLODENMAS16981



\(\"4"\(6 me‘a./ Signature of official administering oath
\ 7

My Commission expires MARY B AROMIN .
o Elre! % Aprl 26, 2006

DCOT/ODENM/151698.1




23.  VERIFICATION STATEMENT: Attach to the Application a verification statement as
follows:

[Commonwealth/State] of ga) J-Qé%
County of W

88,

Rmc‘_oe_ C VOM& , \ , Affiant, being duly [sworn/affirmed] according to law,
deposes and days thdt

[He/She] is the _President and Chief Operating Officer (Office of Affiant) of _ KMC
DATA, LLC (Name of Applicant]

That [he/she] is autheorized to and does make this affidavit for said corporation;

That the facts above set forth are true and correct to the best of [his/her] knowledge,
information, and belief and that [he/she] expects said corporation to be able to prove the
same at any hearing hereof.

Signatureg of Aftiant

Sworn and subscribed before me this _ Q H day of Ju-l}
2001.

Signature of official
administering oath

Notary Public, State of New
.. . My Commission Expires Apri) g&%
My Commission expires .

DCOI/ODENM/S1698. |
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KMC Data, LLC . Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission
Telecommuntcations Service Application

ATTACHMENT A

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY
TO PROVIDE SERVICE IN THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

DCOVODENM/54029.0
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[

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

CEPARTMENT OF STATE

APRIL 12. 2001

LS

TO ALL WHOM THESE PRESENTS SHaLL COME, GREETING:

I 00 HEREBY CERTIFY THAT.

KMC DATA LLL

15 duly registered as a Foreygn Limited Liability Company under the laws
of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and remains subs15ting so far as the

records of this office show. as of the date herein.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREQF. I have
hereunto set my hand and caused
the Seal of the Secretary’s
Office to be affixed. the day
and year above written,

[ T e

JSOK

et e b e o T

Secretary of the Commonwealth




KMC Data, LLC . Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission
Telecommunications Service Application

ATTACHMENT B

ARTICLES OF FORMATION

DCOI/ODENM/154029.1



State of Delaware PAGE 1

Office of the Secretary of State

I, HARRIET SMITH WINDSOR, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY "EKMC DATA LLC" IS DULY FORMED UNDER

THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE AND IS IN GOOD STANDING AND

4

HAS A LEGAL EXISTENCE ‘SO FAR AS THE RECORDS OF THIS OFFICE SHOW,
e TR . -~ -
o 4 . 3 . N K ',,-5 “:‘\:
AS OF THE TWENTY-NINTH DAY OF JANUARY, A.D. 2001.
;/ . ) 7 e N .
AND I DO EEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE ANNUAL TAXES HAVE

NOT BEEN ASSESSED TO DATE.

Harriet Smith Windsor, Secretary of State

3344825 8300 AUTHENTICATION: 0941376

010045766 DATE: 01-29-01




KMC Data, LLC . Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission
Telecommunications Service Application

ATTACHMENT C

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

DCOVODENM/A 340291
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KMC Data, LLC . Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission
Telecommunications Service Application

In response to Question 14:

Applicant, a limited liability company, is a privately held, wholly-owned substdiary of KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc. (“KMC Holdings™). As such, Applicant is not a corporate entity and has
no outstanding stock.

Attached is the 2000 Securities and Exchange Commission’s Form 10-K Filing for the
Applicant’s parent corporation, KMC Holdings, as well as a statement of financial guarantee
(rom the same. [n addition, attached is a tentative operating balance sheet and projected income
statement for KMC Data.

The custodian of the Applicant’s accounting records and supporting documentation is:

William H. Stewart,

Chiel Financial Officer

KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.

1545 Route 206

Suite 300 :
Bedminster, New Jersey 07921-2567
Telephone (908) 470-2100
Facsimile (908) 719-8775

The Applicant’s accounting records and supporting documentation will be maintained at:

KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.

1545 Roule 206

Suite 300

Bedminster, New Jerscy 07921-2567
Telephone (908) 470-2100
Facsimile (908) 719-8775

DCCHODENM/54029.1




KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS INC

Filing Type:
Description:
Filing Date:
Period End:

Primary Exchange:
Ticker:

10-K

Annual Report
Apr 17,2001
Dec 31, 2000

N/A
N/A

DCOIJJENKE/147091.2

Data provided by EDGAR Online, Inc. (hiip./hvww. edear-online.com)
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Document is copied.

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

FOR ANNUAL AND TRANSITION REPORTS PURSUANT TO
SECTIONS 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

{MARK ONE)
|X| ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TQ SECTIQN 13 QR 15(D} OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000

| | TRANSITICN REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(D) CF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to
Commission File Number: 333-50475

KMC TELECOM HOLLDINGS, INC.
(EXACT NAME OF REGISTRANT AS SPECIFIED IN ITS CHARTER)

DELAWARE 22-3545325
(STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION (I.R.S5. EMPLOYER
OF INCCORPORATION OR ORGANIZATION) IDENTIFICATICON NO.)

1545 ROUTE 206
BEDMINSTER, NEW JERSEY 07921
(ADDRESS OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICES, INCLUDING ZIP CODE)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (508} 470-210¢

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(B) QOF THE ACT:
None

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(G) OF THE ACT:
None

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports
required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 Qduring the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to file such reports), and (2} has been subject te such
£iling reguirements for the past 90 days. [X] Yes [ ] No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item
405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the
best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements
incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this
Form 10-K [X].

The aggregate market value of the wvoting common stock held by
non-affiliates o©of the registrant as of March 30, 2001 was approximately
$86,193,000 based upon an estimate of the fair value thereof by management of
the registrant. There is no established trading market for the voting common

Capyright 2001 EDGAR Oaline, Ine. (ver 1.01/2.003) Page |
DCOIIENKE/147091.2
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stock of the registrant and no sales have occurred within the past sixty days.

As of March 30, 2001, B61,145 shares of the registrant's Common Stock,
$0.01 par value, were outstanding. There is no established trading market for
the Commeon Stock.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE. None.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD - LOOKING STATEMENTS

STATEMENTS 1IN THIS ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K THAT ARE NOT PURELY
HISTORICAL ARE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS WITHIN THE MEANING OF SECTION 27A OF
THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 AND SECTION 21E OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934, INCLUDING STATEMENTS REGARDING THE COMPANY'S EXPECTATIONS, HOPES,
INTENTIONS OR STRATEGIES REGARDING THE FUTURE. FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
INCLUDE: STATEMENTS REGARDING THE ANTICIPATED DEVELOPMENT AND EXPANSION OF QUR
BUSINESS, THE MARKETS IN WHICH OUR SERVICES ARE CURRENTLY OFFERED, OR WILL BE
OFFERED IN THE FUTURE, THE SERVICES WHICH WE EXPECT TC OFFER IN THE FUTURE, THE
CONTINUING IMPLEMENTATICN OF CUR OPERATIONS SUPPORT SYSTEM, OUR ANTICIPATED
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES, OUR FUNDING NEEDS AND POTENTIAL FINANCING SOQURCES,
REGULATCRY REFORM, THE INTENT, BELIEF OR CURRENT EXPECTATIONS OF THE COMPANY,
OUR DIRECTORS OR OFFICERS WITH RESPECT TO OUR FUTURE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS, AND OTHER STATEMENTS REGARDING MATTERS THAT ARE NOT HISTORICAL
FACTS. ALL FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS IN THIS REPORT ARE BASED ON INFORMATION
AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY AS OF THE DATE THIS REPORT IS FILED WITH THE SECURITIES
AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, AND THE COMPANY ASSUMES NO OBLIGATION TC UPDATE ANY
SUCH FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. FACTORS THAT COULD CAUSE ACTUAL RESULTS TO
DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM THOSE EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED BY SUCH FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO, THE FACTORS SET FORTH IN "ITEM 7.
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS -- CERTAIN FACTORS WHICH MAY AFFECT OUR FUTURE RESULTS."

PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
BACKGROUND

The initial predecessors of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. were founded in
1994 and 1995, respectively, by Harold N. Kamine, the Company's Chairman of the
Board. These predecessors were merged in 1996 and renamed KMC Telecom Inc. KMC
Telecom Holdings, 1Inc. was formed during 1997 primarily to own, directly or
indirectly, all of the shares of its operating subsidiaries. The principal
equity investeors in the Company currently include Nassau Capital Partners L.P.,
Mr. Kamine, Lucent Technologies, Inc., General Electric Capital Corporation, CIT
Lending Services Corporation, First Union Corp., and Dresdner Kleinwort
Wasserstein.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

We are a rapidly growing fiber-based integrated communications provider
offering data, voice and Internet infrastructure services. We offer these
services to businesses, governments and institutional end-users, Internet
service providers, 1long distance carriers and wireless service providers. 0Qur
business has two distinct components: serving communications-intensive customers
in Tier III markets, and providing data services on a nationwide basis.

We provide a full suite of broadband communications services in 37 Tier
III markets, which we define as markets with a population between 100,000 and
750,000. We own and operate robust fiber-based networks and Class 5 switching
equipment in all of our Tier III markets, which are predominantly located in the
South, Southeast, Midwest and Mid-Atlantic United States. We will continue to
expand in our existing Tier III markets because we believe that these markets
have attractive growth attributes and are typically less competitive than larger
markets. Our customers in these markets include: AT&T, Boeing, City of Augusta,
Columbia Hospital, NASA, Pillsbury, State of Wisconsin, Texas A&M University and
Wal-Mart.
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We also provide nationwide data services under long-term guaranteed
revenue contracts. Under these contracts, we currently provide local Internet
access infrastructure and other enhanced data services and will be providing
Voice over Internet Protocel service, or VOIP, beginning in the second half of
2001. Currently, we have contracts representing approximately $280 million in
annualized revenues in approximately 140 markets. We expect these markets to be
operational by the second quarter of 2001. The Internet infrastructure we are
deploying includes the latest technology platforms from Cisco and Noxtel, which
we believe will result in a cost-effective and technologically superior soclution
for our customers.

See Note 8 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Item 8
of this Report on Form 10-K for financial information by Tier III Markets
Segment and Nationwide Data Platform Segment.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

We intend to become a leading competitive provider of data and voice
services in the Tier III markets that we serve directly. These services will be
provided on an individual product basis and as part of value-added service
bundles. We also intend to continue to form alliances with carriers in Tier I
and II markets to deliver next generation data services. To accomplish these
cbhjectives we will:

CONTINUE TO OPERATE ROBUST FIBER OPTIC NETWORKS IN TIER III MARKETS TO
SUPPORT BROADBAND APPLICATIONS. We will continue to expand our geographically
extensive, full service, fiber-based networks in Tier III markets to support
both veoice and broadband data applications. We believe our networks are
generally more technoleogically advanced than those of the incumbent local
exchange carrier, facilitate the capture of market share, and are likely to
deter other alternative competitive local exchange carriers from penetrating our
markets due to the cost of congstructing a competing network of equal capability.
In all of our operational markets, we have completed our backbone construction
connecting the market's central business district with ocutlying office parks,
large institutions, the locaticns of long distance carriers' transmission
equipment and major incumbent local exchange carrier central offices. Consistent
with capital availability, we intend to <continue to expand our networks in
response to customer demand.

CONTINUE TO STRENGTHEN OUR LOCAL PRESENCE WITH PERSONALIZED CUSTOMER
SERVICE IN TIER III MARKETS. We seek to capture and retain customers in Tier III
markets through local, perscnalized sales, marketing and customer service
programs. In order to accomplish this, we will continue to:

] establish 1local sales offices in each market in which we operate
a network,

o recruit our city directors and sales staff primarily from the
local market,

o rely primarily on a face-teo-face direct selling approach, and

o support our sales staff with locally based customer service,
billing and technical support personnel and participation in the
local community.

Most of our existing sales personnel are local residents who have previously
worked for the incumbent 1local exchange carrier or other telecommunications
companies. We believe that our "Creative Solutions with a Hometown Touch{R}"
sales approach is very important to customers in Tier III markets, who do not
typically receive localized sales contact or customer support from the incumbent
local exchange carrier.

EXPAND OUR DATA PLATFORM OFFERINGS BY LEVERAGING OUR RELATICNSHIPS WITH
MAJOR CARRIER CUSTOMERS AND BY EXPANDING INTO NEW MARKETS. In Tier I, II and III
markets, we are creating a nationwide next generation local broadband network to
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provide data communications services through strategic alliances with major
carrier customers. We believe that these alliances leverage our core strengths
in managing technology and developing infrastructure and use the carriers’
larger sales organizations to brand and distribute these capabilities. We expect
to use our guaranteed revenue contracts with these carriers to reduce the risks
associated with expansion. We will build our networks to meet existing
requirements under these contracts while preserving the flexibility to rapidly
and cost- effectively expand capacity with demand.

ENHANCE OUR EXISTING INFRASTRUCTURE TO DELIVER NEXT GENERATICON VOICE
AND DATA SERVICES. We will expand our existing infrastructure so that we can
continue to offer new voice and data services, thereby enhancing our market
penetration and wmaintaining low customer turnover. Services we expect to offer
in the future include voice and data sexrvice bundles, =xDSL-based applicatiocns,
web hosting, data storage and backup, and application service hosting. We also
intend to become the leading gateway for data communications services to the
Tier IIT wmarkets we serve. We provide data services directly to our own
customers and to long distance carriers, Internet service providers and other
businesses which require broadband access in our markets but do not currently
have their own facilities or connections in those markets.

3

SERVICES

We offer a comprehensive suite of data and voice services.
Historically, we have resold switched services which we purchased from incumbent
local exchange carriers. In December 1997, we began providing our own on-network
services to our customers. OQur on-network services and resale services account
for all of our revenues. The allocation between on-network revenues and resale
revenues was as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

1998 1999 2000
On-network revenues. . . . ... ... .. iminutannen 37% 69% 95%
RESALE FEVENUES . & vt v vttt e i v v n s e aneeam et ennaenn 63% 31% 5%

VOICE SERVICES

For the year ended December 31, 2000, voice services accounted for
approximately 25% of our revenue. These voice services include:

LOCAL SWITCHED SERVICES. Local switched services allow customers to
connect their key systems and PBX system with the public network through dial
tone lines and trunks. Dial tone lines also enable customers without
premise-based communications systems to connect to the public network through
stand-alone telephone devices. We alsc offer enhanced services such as call
waiting, conferencing, speed dialing and wvoice mail to our customers. We
currently have switches commexrcially operable in each of our 37 Tier IIT
markets. We have added and will continue to add capacity in all markets to
insure services are available when required by our customers.

LONG DISTANCE SERVICES. We offer a full range of long distance services
including inter- and intra-LATA, interstate, intermnatiocnal, calling card,
prepaid calling card and 800 type services. We offer long distance services to
our customers by entering into wholesale agreements with various long distance
carriers and reselling their transmission services te our customers. We believe
that many of cur customers will prefer the aoption of purchasing long distance
services from us in conjunction with their local switched services as part of
their one-stop telecommunications seolution.

CENTREX-TYPE SERVICES. <Centrex-type services provide customers the
functionality of PBX without the capital expense of installing these systems.
Centrex-type services reduce customers' maintenance expenses and increase
communications reliability. We introduced these services in all our operational
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markets during 1999 and the first quarter of 2000. These services feature call
forwarding, speeéd dialing, conferencing and intercom, transfer and voice mail
capabilities. Centrex-type services can be provided over standard voice
connections or, where voice and data services are required, ISDN connections.

DATA SERVICES

Data services represented approximately 75% of our revenue for the yearx
ended December 31, 2000. We believe that these services enhance our ability to
provide an integrated turnkey sclution to our customers' data, voice and video
transmission requirements. Our current data sexrvice offerings include:

PRIMARY RATE ISDN. Primary Rate ISDN provides customers the eguivalent
of 1.544 megabits per second of digital communications via a T-1 type facility,
with 23 channels for data and voice communications and a 24th channel providing
network signaling and control for the services. We focus our Primary Rate ISDN
sales efforts on Internet service providers who use it as a means of supporting
customer access to their operations, and end-user customers who use it as a
network access facility for their internal telecommunications systems.

INTERNET INFRASTRUCTURE. Our Internet infrastructure service provides
large bandwidth users with data switching capability at the network level,
allewing them teo acgquire capacity as reguired without investing in data
switching equipment. Internet infrastructure service gives us the ability to
provide data switching to Internet service providers by allowing data calls to

4

be terminated though port wholesale equipment rather than the switch. This
enables the Internet service provider te more cost effectively manage its data
requirements while, at the same time, increasing the efficiency and capacity of
our Class 5 switches.

BASIC RATE ISDN. Basic Rate ISDN, or BRI, provides customers the
potential of 144 kilobits per second of digital communications via a single
network facility interface. We believe this service is attractive to medium and
small size customers, since it provides dial-up access to the Internet, and
other dial-up data applications, while simultanecusly providing the ability to
integrate voige traffic on a single network facility.

PRIVATE LINE AND SPECIAL ACCESS SERVICES. We currently provide various
types of on-network dedicated services which permit the transmission of voice
and data between two or more specified points and are dedicated to a particular
customer. Private line services are provided over dedicated lines and are
available in different capacities. DS-1 lines are dedicated lines that provide
24 separate channels that transport voice and/or data. DS-3 lines provide 672
channels. The use of the channels and capacity of the service is determined by
the needs of the customer. Special access services are provided to long distance
carriers to connect their customers to the long distance carriers' locations or
to multiple leocations of the carrier. The services are provided over DS-1 and
DS-3 lines. If additional capacity is desired we have the ability to provide
OC-3, 0OC-12 and higher capacities that deliver mwultiple DS5-3 equivalent
capacities. OQur private line and special access services are designed to meet
the needs of our customers.

FRAME RELAY/ATM. Frame relay and ATM, or asynchronous transfer mode,
are used by some of our data customers as a fast data transport service for Wide
Area Networks. Today we resell these services. In the future we intend to
provide these services over our own network and utilize a third party provider
for transport outside our network.

Our future data service offerings will include:

INTERNET ACCESS SERVICES. We plan to offer Internet access services
in partnership with several carriers beginning in the second half of 2001.

APPLICATION SERVICE PROVIDER. Through the second gquarter of 2001 we
will conduct a proof of concept trial in twe Tier III cities of a range of KMC
hosted and managed application services. These services include managed Internet
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access with a selection of security options {i.e. firewall, URL filtering, virus
scanning and intrusion detection) as well as a variety of hosted software
applications provided on a subscription basis. These applications range from
common desktop productivity tools like Microsoft Office and Micresoft Exchange
electronic mail/calendaring and contact management, to semi-custom accounting
applications from Quicken and Great Plains as well as select industry specific
vertical solutions. Depending on the results of the trial and the interest of
our customer base, thig service may be rolled out to all of our Tier III markets
in the future.

WEB HOSTING. We plan to offer web site design services and web hosting
on secured, monitored servers. These services will provide small to medium size
customers a turn key e-commerce solution.

DATA STORAGE AND BACKUP. We plan to offer automatic and secure off-site
storage of enterprise data. These services will include consulting, testing and
hosting, with 24 hours-per-day, seven days-per-week monitoring.

DSL. DSL, or digital subscriber 1line, 1is a method of using existing
copper wire for high bit-rate data transport in the "last mile" connecting our
network backbone ring to the customer's premises. DSL provides the customer with
a choice of bandwidth based upon its particular needs. Beginning in 2001, we
plan to offer HDSL, SDSL and ADSL in selected markets to provide high bandwidth
data and video service to medium and small size business customers. We have
deployed DSLAMs, or digital subscriber line access multiplexers, in cellocation
offices in 29 of our Tier III cities. These DSLAMs are equipped and configured
to support two access products; first to provide an optimized T-1 service via
HDSL, and second to provide ADSL and SDSL applications directly te our
customers.

OPERATIONS SUPPORT SYSTEM

We continue the implementation of our high quality operations support
system encompassing comprehensive billing, service order, customer care and
electronic bonding capability. The system is expected to support our existing
and contemplated services. The installation of the operational support systems
has been substantially completed with development and expansion to continue as
needed. The system is designed to provide us with a single "flow-through" order
system that will allow each order to be tracked from service provisioning
through installation.

We implemented the service order module and the number tracking module
in all our existing Tier IIT markets in July and August 2000. The implementation
included full testing of capabilities and training of persennel in all Tier III
markets. All existing Tier III markets are utilizing the system for order entry.

We are currently electronically bonded with five carriers and expect to
be electreonically bonded with our remaining carriers during 2001. Electronic
bonding is the ability to electronically share customer order information
between us and the incumbent local exchange carrier or interconnection carrier.
Even when we are electronically bonded, we may not achieve the anticipated
efficiencies if the informatrion provided to us by the incumbent local exchange
carrier is not in a format that we can readily use or if the incumbent local
exchange carrier does not promptly provision new lines for us.

The asset and inventory modules, which will provide each wmarket's
inventory, are currently being loaded with the necessary data including line
data. Completion of the data loading, verification process and testing will
conclude the implementation and provide full "flow-through" capability during
2001.

We believe that our operations support system will allow us to quickly
address customer concerns, and improve cperations efficiency which provides us
with a significant competitive advantage.

TIER TIII MARKETS
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We target Tier III markets, which we define as markets with a
population from 100,000 to 750,000. As part of our market selection process we
analyze the demographic, economic, competitive and telecommunications demand
characteristics of the market. We estimate market demand using data gathered
from long distance carriers, the Federal Communications Commission, local
sources, site visits and specific market studies commissioned by us. Through the
utilization of 20 databases, we also analyze the concentration of potential
business, government and institutional end-user customers and the general
economic prospects for the area.

We depend upon a detailed business analysis coupled with a
"success-based" return on capital employed analysis to drive our capital
deployment. Each year capital is deployed based on forecasts, and investment is
made when the forecasted investment return exceeds our threshold requirement.

Once we target a Tier III market for development, we design a network
to provide access to approximately B(0% of the business customers in that market
either through direct connections to our network or through unbundled network
elements leased from the incumbent local exchange carrier. Typically, we
construct a SONET, or self-healing synchronous optical network, backbone ring to
provide coverage of the major business districts, government offices, hospitals,
office parks and universities, the principal 1locations of the transmission
equipment of long distance carriers offering services in the area, and the
incumbent local exchange carrier's central office(s). Following construction of
our backbone network, we build additional loops to increase the size of our
addressable market as demand grows.

The construction of a network requires us to obtain municipal
franchises and other permits. These rights are typically subject to
non-exclusive agreements of finite duration providing for the payment of fees by
us or the provision of services by us to the municipality without compensation.
In addition, we must secure rights-of-way and other access rights which are alsec
typically provided under non-exclusive, multi-year agreements and generally
contain renewal options. Generally, these rights are obtained from utilities,
incumbent local exchange carriers, other competitive local exchange carriers,
railroads and long distance carriers. The Telecommunications Act of 1996
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requires most utilities to provide rights-of-way to competitive local exchange
carriers con non-discriminatory terms and conditions and at reasonable rates.

Our requirements for a planned network are communicated to KNT Network
Technologies LLC which provides program management for construction of the
outside plant portion of the network. OCur own personnel mnegotiate reguired
contracts and rights-of-way and test the network compenents prior to commencing
commercial service. <Cable, equipment and supplies required for the networks are
available from a variety of sources at competitive rates. The construction
period for a new network varies depending upon such factors as the number of
backbone route miles to be installed, the relative use of aerial as opposed to
buried cable deployment, the initial number of buildings targeted for connection
to the network backbone and other factors. We believe that a new fiber optic
network can be commercially operable within approximately nine months after
constructicon commences.

During Phase I of our network construction program we completed
networks in eight Tier IITI markets. We completed networks in 15 Tier III markets
during Phase II of the program and added networks in 14 additional markets
during Phase III. All of the 14 networks in Phase III were operational as of
December 31, 2000. The markets in which we established networks during each
rhase of the program are as follows:

PHASE I PHASE II PHASE III
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Huntsville, Alabama Daytona Beach, Florida Montgomery, Alabama
Melbourne, Florida Fort Myers, Flerida Clearwater/St. Petersbury,
Florida
Augusta, Georgia Pensacola, Florida Monroe, Louisiana
Savannah, Georgia Sarasota, Florida
Rockville/Bethesda/Frederick,
Baton Rouge, Louisiana Tallahassee, Florida Maryland
Shreveport, Louisiana Fort Wayne, Indiana Lansing, Michigan
Corpus Christi, Texas Topeka, Kansas Biloxi/Gulfport,
Mississippi
Madison, Wisconsin Ann Arbor, Michigan Akren, Ohio
Eden Prairie, Minnesota Dayton, Chio
Fayetteville, North Carolina Toledo, ©hio
Greensbhoro, North Carolina Charleston, South Carolina
Winston-Salem, North Carolina Columbia, South Carolina
Longview, Texas Spartanburg, South
Carolina
Norfolk, Virginia Chattanooga, Tennessee
Roanoke, Virginia Johnson City/Kingsport,
Tennessee

The following table provides aggregate data as of February 28, 2001 for the
networks placed in operation during Phase I, Phase II and Phase III of our
network construction program, respectively:

ADDRESSABLE
TOTAL LINES COMMERCIAL
IN SERVICE (1) ROUTE. MILES BUILDINGS (2} COLLOCATIONS
Phage I (8 markets)............ 574,109 751 14,852 EE]
Phane I1 (15 markets).......... 1,126,992 215 26,214 55
Phaoe II1T {14 markets)......... 331,661 657 27,294 16
B 11 2,032,762 2,323 68,361 134

(1) Represents all active switched channels we provide to custeomers either by
unbundled network elements leased from the incumbent local exchange
carrier, by direct connection to our own network, or by resale via the
incumbent local exchange carrier's network and all active dedicated lines
we provide to customers expressed on a DS-0 equivalent basis.

(2} Addressable by either unbundled network elements leased from the incumbent
local exchange carrier or by a direct connection to our own network. We
define a commercial building as cne with greater than ten employees.

7

TIER III NETWORK ARCHITECTURE

Our networks are designed for high-speed data and veoice communications,
using Class 5 digital switching devices. These devices are deployed in all of
our networks, as part of a total central office configuration that includes
electronic digital cross connect devices, SONET ctransport egquipment and
associated DC power plants and AC emergency power facilities. We currently offer
end-to-end fully protected fiber services using the SONET ring architecture
which routes customer traffic simultaneously in both directions arocund the ring
to provide protection against fiber cuts. If a line is cut, traffic 1is
automatically reversed and sent to its destination around the other side of the
ring. In addition, back-up electronics become operational in the event of
failure of the primary components. The switches and associated transport

Copyright 2001 EDGAR Online, fne. (ver 1.01/2.003) Page 8
DCOIENKE/147091.2




KMC TELECOM !’!OLDIN(’C = 10-K ~ Annual Report . Date Filed: 4/17/2001

equipment are deployed in an initial configuration that permits rapid growth as
our business in the local market grows. Our networks provide access to customers
through SONET-based fiber optic rings for on-network service and through
unbundled network elements which are connected to our central office through
SONET fiber rings between the incumbent local exchange carrier tandem and at
least two incumbent local exchange carrier service offices. In additien, at
least three interexchange carriers are connected from their points of presence
to our central office by SONET rings, for long distance connectivity.

We expedite new market service installation by deploying our
switch-in-the-box concept using a turn key process that allows installation and
testing of the switch in specially designed portable buildings at the
manufacturing facility before deployment. The switch and its housing are then
shipped and placed on-site for integration into the network.

We have deployed subscriber loop carrier equipment in each incumbent
local exchange carrier collocation for connection to customer premise equipment,
and service 1is then concentrated for transport to cur central office for
distribution. In addition, we are deploying equipment to permit digital
subscriber line (DSL) services to be served on qualifying unbundled network
element copper facilities. The incumbent lccal exchange carrier collocations are
engineered to provide access to business, institutional, governmental or other
large customers. In addition, for large customer services, the fiber backbone
can be extended to provide fiber access all the way to the business complex or
building for on-network services. We provide customer premise electronic
equipment to connect to both unbundled network element and on-network
facilities.

We have also deployed a nationwide primary rate interface (PRI}
capability that permits the provisioning of Internet infrastructure services to
large Internet service providers without the need to utilize the Class 5
switching capacity. This capability is managed via two centralized KMC NextGen
softSwitch contrellers, which permit the growth of Internet services quickly.
This technelogy provides economical and highly scalable PRI growth and avoids
the higher cost associated with placing additional capacity on the existing
Class 5 switch in each city.

We currently deploy a 72 pair-strand fiber optic network. Our optical
bandwidth capacity in fiber rings ranges from OC-3 to OC-48. We are actively
conducting both field and lab trials of dense wave division multiplexing (DWDM}
to enhance bandwidth capability in our Tier III markets.

We monitor our fiber optic networks and electronics 24 hours-per-day,
seven days-per-week, using a combination of local and national network control
centers. Local network monitoring is accomplished by means of an automatic
notification system that monitors for system anomalies. This system provides
instantanecus alarms to an on-call network technician whenever an anomaly is
detected. The local market technician is trained in network problem reseolution
and provides on-site corrective procedures when appropriate. A national Network
Knowledge Center, located in Denvexr, Coleorado, acts as the focal point for all
of our operating networks, providing integrated and centralized network
monitoring, correlation and problem management. The Network Knowledge Center has
access to all operating networks and can work independently of the local systems
to effect repair or restoration activities. The Network Knowledge Center is
currently provided by Lucent on a contractual basis.

The Network Knowledge Center receives, tracks and manages all customer
calls and issues to satisfactory conclusion. The call center works with our own
customer care representatives and engineers in the Lawrenceville facility to
ensure that timely and consistent service is provided. In order to enhance
customer service, we will be bringing these call center services exclusively
in-house during 2001.

NATTONWIDE DATA PLATFORM

We are a growing nationwide provider of Internet infrastructure in Tier
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I, II and III markets. We currently provide dial-up Internet access and other
data services to carriers using remote access servers, a type of switch that
uses Internet Protocol rather than traditional circuit-based switching. This
technology uses packets to transfer information and uses bandwidth wmore
efficiently and at a lower cost than similar services based on circuit
switching. We are deploying a nationwide data platform which we believe will
enable us to reach approximately 50% of the U.S. population. 1In March 2001, we
signed an agreement with Qwest to provide Voice over Internet Protocol, or VOIP,
services on over 30% of this Nationwide Data Platform, beginning in the second
half of 2001.

We are deploying a platform that will provide Internet access
infrastructure, remote access service capability, and VOIP services in Tier I,
1T and III warkets across the United States. In the markets in which we
currently provide integrated communications services, connectivity is integrated
into our existing architecture. In the markets in which we do not operate
systems, we establish a point of presence, lease fiber and provide the Internet
service providers with the same basiec architecture for their applications. This
provides the capability to create revenue for these major customers beyond our
existing markets.

Going forward, the application of Internet Protocol packet technology
to the public-switched telephone network may provide many distinct advantages
over the current time division multiplexing transport infrastructure, including:

] much less expensive and demanding deployment, less costly
equipment, lower space and power requirements, and faster
implementation,

o the ability for customers to integrate data and voice over the

same networks, saving cost and complexity, as well as the ability
to support new services combining both data and voice
communications,

] the opportunity for carriers to leverage the growing volume of
data traffic, and

Ie} DSL, fiber, and other broadband access technologies are
particularly compatible with packet-based transport.

As national and global carriers implement managed Internet Protocol
networks for end-to-end connectivity, they will require local Internet Protocol
infrastructure, including local access devices, packet switches and routers, S§S7
and other gateways, and local softswitches.

We currently have a local infrastructure for dial-up access pursuant to
agreements with several next generation carriers and Internet service providers.
In the second half of 2001, we will begin implementing Voice over Internet
Protocol. Additional oppeortunities inciude breoadband Internet Protoceol
platforms. This initiative 1is consistent with our current strategy and
infrastructure and, we believe, will also position us as a major participant
among next-generation telecom providers.

Voice over Internet Protocol is not currently being used by the
telecommunications industry to any material extent for many of the purposes we
believe it will serve in the future.

Our existing contracts require us to provide over one million ports in
approximately 140 markets nationwide by the second quarter of 2001. We are
currently in the process of deploying Cisco and Nortel equipment to provide
these ports through 41 supernodes, or concentration points for high-speed
connectivity to the Internet, located in variocus cities, including ten in our
existing markets. Our service allows our carrier customers to provide their own
customers with dial-up access to the Internet. Under the current regulatory
scheme, those «calls may qualify for reciprocal compensation which would be
incremental to the guaranteed revenues that we receive from our carrier
customers.

All of these contracts to date have been structured so that our
customers pay a fixed amount to us, regardless of their level of usage. These
contracts have terms of 42 to 51 months and have certain cost pass-throughs
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which allow us to limit our mwaintenance and servicing costs to predetermined
levels, and receive additional revenues for any costs incurred in excess of such
predetermined levels.

We currently have a dedicated team devoted to service and maintenance
under these contracts. We expect personnel demands to diminish significantly
after initial deployment, which will reduce our costs asgssociated with this
business, over the remaining lives of these contracts.

NEW TECHNOLOGY EVALUATION

We evaluate and test new concepts and capabilities in our laberatory in
Lawrenceville, Georgia, as well as in field trials. New capabilities for
existing technologies are evaluated, along with emerging technologies that could
potentcially be used for voice, data or converged voice/data services. We are
currently evaluating next generation metropclitan DWDM, PRI and modem poeling
technelogy, SoftSwitch, Passive Optical Networks, High Speed Optical Ethernet
MANs, and various next generation Internet Protocol based multi-service
platforms.

SALES

We target our sales activities at three separate customer groups: Tier
IITI local customers, Tier III national customers and naticonal data platform
customers. Tier III local customers include local governments, hospitals and
educational facilities as well as businesses. Tier III naticnal customers are
usually interexchange carriers or large corporations which have branches or
local offices within our Tier III markets, but which make their buying decisions
centrally from their corporate offices. National data platform customers include
major long distance carriers and Internet service providers.

TIER ITII LOCAL. We establish local sales offices in each Tier III
market we serve. Each local sales office is staffed by a city director, six to
eight account executives and sales support personnel. The sales support
personnel include customer service, technical, and billing personnel. During
2001 we will be establishing an alternate channel sales program to complement
the efforts of our local sales offices. We anticipate that the program will
include partner marketing, direct marketing, and various eCommerce
business-to-business based initiatives, as well as referral programs. Partnex
marketing will consist of our performing joint marketing efforts with sales
agents selected from companies that are currently selling to or servicing
customers with whom we also want to do businesa. The sales agents could be
gystems integrators, telecommunications equipment suppliers, Internet service
providers, information technology consultants, and telecommunications
consultants. These agents would sell our products and their products at the same
time as part of a total solutien. The direct marketing program will be used to
generate demand through direct mailings and telemarketing campaigns. e-Commerce
business-to-business based initiatives may include e-marketing to our embedded
customer base, targeted e-list¢s, or implementation of a KMC web-based order
process. Referral programs would invelve enlisting the aid of business contacts
our account executives have established who would be willing to pass on sales
leads in exchange for a commission.

We seek to hire local, seasoned telecommunications managers with sales
experience as City Directors. City Directors assist with the initial network
build out and oversee the daily operations of their networks, 1in additioen to
managing sales staff and market development . Their daily operations
responsibilities include management of provisioning, customer service, pricing
decisions and the billing process. City Directors work with senior management in
the strategic planning process, including capital expenditure and budget
planning. They pexrform cash flow analysis for fiber connections of new buildings
to the network, and participate in planning fiber network extensions in their
markets,

In our Tier III markets, we use a face-to-face direct sales force of
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approximately 180 account executives. Most of our sales personnel are hired
locally because we believe that knowledge of, and contacts in, a local market
are key factors for competitive differentiation and commercial success in a Tier
III market. We believe that this local focus will help to set us apart from the
incumbent local exchange carriers, our principal competitors in these markets.

TIER III NATIONAL. While there are few Fortune 500 companies with
headquarters located in our operating cities, there are branches and leocal
offices of large corporations within our market areas. Often these large
corporations make their buying decisions centrally, either through their
telecommunications or MIS functions, which are normally located at corporate
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headquarters. Our national markets sales organization is structured to assist
them in determining requirements for their various locations within our markets.
Additionally, this group targets regional and national interexchange carriers,
primarily for the sale of transport services. We believe that this focus on
national markets will further increase our market penetration with carriers and
large companies in our cities. We currently have 17 naticnal market account
managers.

NATIONWIDE DATA SERVICES. We have nationwide data services customer
account managers who build relationships with major long distance carriers and
Internet service providers. These relationships facilitate initial sales of our
services. We believe, and our contracts with our existing customers have shown,
that once national data platform customers experience our sexvice they will
allow us to provide additional services to them and expand the relationship.

We recruit our sales force from several sources including incumbent
local exchange carriers, competitive local exchange carriers, interexchange
carriers, cellular companies and interconnect companies. Once hired, our lecal
Tier IITI sales Fforce is put through a program of intense local training and
computer based data and voice product training at the local sales office. All
sales personnel participate in consultative sales and preoduct training at our
corporate cperations facility. Our sales force is compensated based on a fixed
base salary and variable payments for the sale of recurring monthly revenue.

CUSTOMERS

Contracts with Qwest Communications Corporation and Qwest
Communications International, Inc. (collectively, "Qwest") accounted for
approximately 36% of our total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2000. A
significant portion of the Qwest business was generated £rom long term
guaranteed revenue contracts. No other customer accounted for 10% or more of our
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2000. For the year ended December 31,
1999, no one customer accounted for more than 10% of revenue. It is unlikely
that the loss of any single customer, other than Qwest, would have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

As of Februaxy 28, 200L, we had approximately 12,700 customers, which
can be broken down into the following categories:

[+ Tier I1i local customers are local to a particular city and
in¢clude local governments, hospitals and educational facilities
as well as businesses, including 1local and regicnal Internet
service providers. Our business customers range from large
businesses to medium and small size businesses, including medical
and insurance offices, c¢ar dealerships, broadcast media outlets
and real estate brokerages.

o) Tier III national customers consist of Fortune 500 companies,
regional and national interexchange carriers, other large
comparnies, major 1long distance carriers, wireless service

providers and other competitive local exchange providers that
have a local or branch office in several of our markets.

o Nationwide data platform customers consist of major long distance
carriers and Internet service providers.
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Examples of our customers in each of these categories are shown below:

TIER III LOCAL CUSTCMERS TIER III NATIONAL CUSTOMERS DATA
PLATFORM SERVICES CUSTOMERS

Beoeing AT&T Corp.
Broadwing
City of Augusta, Georgia Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railway Qwest
Columbia Hospital Krispy Kreme Donuts
NASA Sprint
Pillsbury UUNET
State of Wisconsin Walgreens
Texas A&M University Walmart
11
MARKETING

We market our local services through a combination of media channels
and personal service in each of our local markets. We seek to gain brand
awareness through advertising on local television, radio and print media. We
also use outdoor advertising in prominent locations, customer testimonials, and
local events and sponsorships, such as charity golf tournaments.

Consistent with our "Creative Solutions with a Hometown Touch{R}"
motto, we also seek to actively participate in our local communities. Each City
Director is typically a long-time local resident with  extensive
telecommunications experience and is well known and respected in the community.
The City Director typically seeks to hire other local residents, further
strengthening our involvement with and contacts throughout the local market.
Each 1local office is typically an active member of the local Chamber of
Commerce, and contributes to local charities. We believe that these activities
provide us with a point of differentiation compared to the incumbent local
exchange carriers, who have generally underserved Tier III markets in favor of
larger markets.

SUPPLIERS

We depend on a numbex of suppliers in order to operate our networks.
The following companies are our primary suppliers.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT. We have contracted with Lucent, as our
primary supplier, to purchase switching, transport and digital cross connect
products. Lucent has also agreed to implement and test our switches and related
equipment. In addition, we have entered into an agreement with Lucent pursuant
to which Lucent has agreed to monitor our switches on an on-going basis. Lucent
is an investor in our preferred stock and a lender under our credit facilities.

BILLING SUPPORT SYSTEMS IMPLEMENTATION. In the second quarter of 1999,
we installed software developed by Billing Concepts Systems, Inc./APTIS to
provide us with comprehensive billing functionality, including the ability to
capture call detail records, message rating, bill calculation, inveoice
generation, customer care and inguiry, collections management, and quality
assurance. This software enables us to produce a single bill covering all of the
products and services that we provide to a customer. Additional development of
new billing functicnality continues.

OPERATIONAL SUPPORT SYSTEMS IMPLEMENTATION. We entered into an
agreement in 1998 with Efria 0SS Solutions Inc. to develop our operational
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support systems. These systems manage service order processing, c¢ircuit and
asset inventory, telephone number inventory and trouble administration. The
installation of the operational support systems has been substantially completed
with development and expansion to continue as needed.

QUTSIDE NETWORK RELATED CONSTRUCTION. We are currently in negotiations
to complete the transfer of our construction divisien to KNT Network
Technologies, LLC, a company independently owned by Harold N. Kamine and Nassau
Capital, our principal stockholders. Pursuant to an arrangement between the
parties, effective June 1, 2000, we transferred substantially all of the
employees of our construction division to KNT. KNT is providing construction and
maintenance services to us and is being reimbursed for all of the dirxect costs
of these activities. In addition, we are currently funding substantially all of
KNT's general overhead and administrative costs at an amount not te exceed 515
million per annum. We are currently negotiating with KNT to finalize the terms
of this arrangement and execute a formal contract which is required to be
completed by June 15, 2001.

The services and preducts which we obtained £from these principal
suppliers are also available from a number of other sources. If we were forced
to change suppliers for any reason, however, we may experience some
difficulties, particularly with respect tec the compatibility of equipment from
new suppliers with our existing Lucent equipment.
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COMPETITION

OVERVIEW. The telecommunications industry is highly competitive. Our
principal competitors in Tier III markets are the incumbent local exchange
carriers. In most instances the incumbent local exchange carrier is one of the
regional Bell cperating companies {such as Verizon, BellSouth or SBC}. Incumbent
local exchange carriers presently have a majority of the market share in those
areas we consider our market areas. Because of their relatively small size, we
do not believe that Tier III wmarkets can profitably support more than two
facilities-based competitors in addition to the incumbent 1local exchange
carrier.

Other competitors may include competitive local exchange carriers,
microwave carriers, wireless telecommunications providers and private networks
built by large end-users. Potential competitors (using similar or different
technologies) include cable television companies, wutilities, incumbent local
exchange carriers, regional Bell operating companies seeking to operate outside
their current local service areas and independent telephone companies. In
addition, there will be future competition from large long distance carriers,
such as AT&T and MCI WorldCom, which have begun to offer integrated local and
long distance telecommunications services. Consolidation of telecommunications
companies and the formaticon of strategic alliances within the telecommunications
industry, as well as the development of new technologies, could give rise to
significant new competitors for us.

Both the long distance business and the data transmission business are
extremely competitive. Prices in both businesses have declined significantly in
recent years and are expected to continue to decline. In the long distance
business, we will face competition from 1large carriers such as AT&T, MCI
WorldCom and Sprint. We will rely on other carriers to provide transmission and
termination for cur long distance traffic and therefore will be dependent on
such carriers.

A large portion of our nationwide data platform business will be
conducted in larger Tier I and Tier II markets. We expect that our primary
competitors in this business will be both incumbent local exchange carriers and
other competitive local exchange carriers. Because the regional Bell operating
companies and other incumbent local exchange carriers tend to focus their
efforts on Tier I and Tier II markets, they will have a significantly greater
local presence in these markets. In addition, due to the larger size of the
markets, there are a greater number of facilities-based competitive 1local
exchange carriers competing for data business in these markets than we usually
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face in Tier III markets. For this reason, we generally will not enter these
markets to offer nationwide data platform services unless we have a pre-existing
agreement with a significant customer justifying our presence in the market.

INCUMBENT LOCAL EXCHANGE CARRIERS. Our principal competitors for lecal
exchange services are the regional Bell operating companies. As a recent entrant
in the integrated telecommunications services industry, we have not yet achieved
a significant market share for any of our services. In particular, the incumbent
local exchange carriers:

o have long-standing relationships with their customers,

o have financial, technical and marketing resources substantially
greater than ours,

o have the potential to fund competitive services with revenues
from a variety of other businesses, and

o currently benefit from a number of existing regulations that
favor the incumbent local exchange carriers over us in some
respects.

COMPETITIVE LOCAL EXCHANGE CARRIERS AND QTHER COMPETITORS. We compete
from time to time with competitive local exchange carriers. In our markets we
generally face competition from two or more competitive local exchange carriers.
However, in many instances, the competitive local exchange carriers present in
our Tier ITII1 markets have not established robust fiber-based networks comparable
to ours. After the investment and expense of establishing a network and support
services in a given market, the marginal cost of carrying an additional call is
negligible. Accordingly, in Tier III markets where there are three or more
fiber-based competitive local exchange carriers, we expect substantial price
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competition. We Dbelieve that operations im such markets are likely to be
unprofitable for one or more cperators.

We face competition in each of ocur markets. However, we believe that
our commitment to build a significant network, depicy switches and establish
local sales and support facilities at the outset in each of the Tier III markets
which we target should reduce the number of facilities-based competitors and
drive other entrants to focus on the resale of incumbent local exchange carrier
service or our services or to invest in other markets. We believe that each
market will also see more agent and distributor resale initiatives.

REGULATICN

OQur services are subject to varying degrees of federal, state and local
regulation. The Federal Communications Commission exercises jurisdiction over
facilities of, and interstate and international services of fered by,
telecommunications common c¢arriers. The state regulatory commissions retain
jurisdiction over the same facilities and services to the extent they are used
to originate or terminate intrastate communications. Local governments sometimes
impose franchise or licensing reguirements on competitive lcocal exchange
carriers. The regulatory environment 1is in a constant state of flux, and you
should be aware that any of the items discussed below are subject to rapid
change due to regulatory action, judicial decision or legislative initiative.

FEDERAL REGULATION

We are regulated at the federal level as a nondominant common carrier
subject to minimal regulation under Title ITI of the Communications Act of 1934.
The Communications Act of 1934 was substantially amended by the
Telecommunications Act of 1996. This legislation 1is designed to enhance
competition in the local telecommunications marketplace by:

o removing state and local entry barriers,
=} requiring incumbent local exchange carriers to provide
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interconnection to their facilities,

o facilitating the end-users' choice to switch service providers
from incumbent local exchange carriers to competitive local
exchange carriers like us, and

Q requiring access to rights-of-way.

The legislation also is designed to enhance the competitive position of
competitive local exchange carriers and increase local competition by newer
competiters such as long distance carriers, cable television companies and
public utility companies. Under the Telecommunications Act of 1996, regional
Bell operating companies have the opportunity to provide in-region leong distance
services if specified conditions are met. In addition, the Telecommunications
Act of 1996 eliminates certain restrictions on utility holding companies, thus
clearing the way for them to diversify inte telecommunications services.

The Telecommunications Act of 1996 specifically requires all
telecommunications carriers (including incumbent local exchange carriers and
competitive leocal exchange carriers (like us)}:

o not to prohibit or unduly restrict resale of their services,

o to provide dialing parity and nondiscriminatory access to
telephone numbers, operator services, directory assistance and
directory listings,

o to afford access to poles, ducts, conduits and rights-of-way, and

o to establish reciprocal compensation arrangements for the
transpert and termination of telecommunications.
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It also requires competitive local exchange carriers and incumbent local
exchange carriers to provide interconnection for the transmission and routing of
telephone exchange service and exchange access. It requires incumbent local
exchange carriers to provide such interconnection:

o at any technically feasible point within the incumbent local exchange
carrier's network,

[+ that is at least equal in gquality to that provided by the incumbent
local exchange carrier to itself, its affiliates or any other party to
which the incumbent leocal exchange carrier provides interconnection,
and

=] at rates, terms and conditions that are just, reasonable and
nondiscriminatory.

Incumbent local exchange carriers also are required under the law to provide
nondiscriminatory access to network elements on an unbundled basis at any
technically feasible point, to offer their local retail telephone services for
resale at wholesale rates, and to facilitate collocation of equipment necessary
for competitors to interconnect with them or obtain access to their unbundled
network elements.

The Telecommunications BAct of 1996 provided Efor the removal of most
restrictions imposed on AT&T and the regional Bell operating companies resulting
from the consent decree entered in 1982 which provided for divestiture of the
regional Bell operating companies from AT&T in 1984. The Telecommunications Act
establishes procedures under which a regional Bell operating company can enter
the market for long distance service between specified areas within its
in-region local service territory. The Telecommunications Act of 1996 permitted
the regional Bell operating companies to enter the cut-of-region leong distance
market immediately upon enactment. Before the regional Bell operating company
can provide in-region inter-LATA serviges, it must obtain Federal Communications
Commission approval upon a showing that facilities-based competition is present
in its market, that the regional Bell operating company has entered into
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interconnection agreements in the states where it seeks authority, that it has
satisfied a 1l4-peint "checklist" of competitive requirements, and that its entry
is in the public interest. To date, such authority has only been granted to
Verizon (formerly Bell Atlantic} for New York and SBC for Kansas, Oklahoma and
Texas. A petition by Verizon Ffor entry in Massachusetts 1is pending at the
Federal Communications Commission. The provision of inter-LATA services by
regional Bell operating companies is expected to reduce the market share of
major long distance carriers, and consequently, may have an adverse effect on
the ability of competitive local exchange carriers to generate access revenues
from long distance carriers.

FEDERAL COMMUNTICATIONS COMMISSION RULES IMPLEMENTING THE LOCAL
COMPETITION PROVISIONS OF THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS ACT OF 1596. The Federal
Communications Commission in 1996 established a framework of national rules
enabling state public service commissions and the Federal Communications
Commission to begin implementing many of the local competition provisions of the
Telecommunications Act of 1996. The Federal Communications Commission prescribed
certain minimum points of interconnection necessary to permit cewpeting carriers
to choose the most efficient points at which to interconnect with the incumbent
local exchange carriers' networks. The Federal Communications Commission also
adopted a minimum list of wunbundled network elements that incumbent local
exchange carriers must make avallable Gto competitors upon reguest and a
methodology for states to use in establishing rates for interconnection and the
purchase of unbundled network elements.

In January 199%, the Supreme Court zruled on a variety of issues
addressed in the Federal Communications Commission's 1996 corder. Among other
things, the Supreme Court found that the Federal Communications Commission has
authority to establish natienal pricing rules for interconnection, unbundled
elements and resale services. However, the Supreme Court overturned the Federal
Communications Commission's rules regarding what network elements must be
unbundled by the regional Bell operating companies, and remanded to the Federal
Communications Commission the question of what network elements are "necessary"
te competing carriers like us. On November 5, 1995, the Federal Communications
Commission issued an order re-establishing the network elements that must be
offered by incumbent local exchange carriers as unbundled network elements. That
decision is currently the subject of various reconsideration petitions and
appeals. We cannot provide any assurances regarding the disposition of these
petitions and appeals and we cannot assure you that we will be able to maintain
interconnection agreements on terms acceptable to us.

On July 18, 2000, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the 8th Circuit issued
a decision in which it upheld the Federal Communications Commission's use of a
forward-looking methodology to establish prices for network elements, but the
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Court vacated the agency's rule that the methodology should be applied based on
the use of the most efficient telecommunications technology currently available
and the lowest cost network configuration. Rather, the Court held that the
methodology must be applied based on the costs of the incumbent local exchange
carriers’' existing facilities and egquipment. The issue was remanded to the
Federal Communications Commission for further consideration. The Court's ruling
is currently under review by the U.S5. Supreme Court. A decision by the Supreme
Court is expected in the Court's fall 2001 term. We are unable to provide
assurances as to the outcome of the Supreme Court case or of the remand
proceeding that must be conducted by the Federal Communications Commission.

The 8th Circuit also affirmed its pricr decision to vacate the Federal
Communications Commission rule that reguired incumbent local exchange carriers
to provide combinations of network elements that are not ordinarily combined in
their networks. The Court's decisgion keeps in place the system whereby carriers
cannet obtain network element combinations unless the incumbent local exchange
carrier has already combined the elements in its network today. The Supreme
Court is currently reviewing this issue as well as the pricing issue described
above.

Ccn March 17, 2000, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of
Columbia Circuit wvacated c¢ertain Federal Communications Commission rules
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relating to collocation of competitors' equipment in incumbent local exchange
carriers' «central offices. This decision reguires the Federal Communications
Commission to limit collecation to equipment that is ‘necessary" for
interconnection with the incumbent local exchange carrier or access to the
incumbent local exchange carrier's unbundled network elements. On August 10,
2000, the Federal Communications Commission respoended by issuing an order and
request for further comment. The agency required that incumbent local exchange
carriers provide physical collocation within %0 days after receiving an
application and clarified that an incumbent local exchange carrier must allow a
competitive local exchange carrier teo construct a controlled environmental vault
or similar structure on land adjacent to an incumbent local exchange carrier
structure that lacks physical collocation space. The Federal Communications
Commission asked for comment on what eguipwment incumbent local exchange carriers
should allow competitive local exchange carriers to physically collocate and how
physical collocation space should be assigned, whether collocators should be
permitted to crogs-connect with other collocators, and what rules should apply
to collocation at remote local exchange carrier premises. No assurances can be
given regarding the cutcome of this further proceeding.

OTHER REGULATION. 1In general, the Federal Communications Commission's
policies encourage the entry of new competitors in the telecommunications
industry and are designed to prevent anti-competitive practices. Currently,
large incumbent local exchange carriers, such as the regional Bell operating
companies, are regulated as "dominant" carriers, while competitive local
exchange carriers, like us, are considered ‘'nondominant" carriers. Dominant
carriers face more detailed regulatory scrutiny. As a nendominant carrier, we
are subject to relatively minimal Federal Communications Commission regulation.

o TARIFF. We may install and operate facilities for the transmission of
domestic interstate communications without prior Federal
Communications Commission authorization. The Federal Communications
Commission requires us to file periodic reports concerning our
interstate circuits and deployment of network Efacilities, and offer
interstate services on a nendiscriminatory basis, at Jjust and
reascnable rates. We also remain subject to Federal Communications
Commission complaint procedures.

The Federal Communications Commission adopted an order in 1996 {the
"Detariffing Order") which eliminated the requirement that nondominant
interstate carriers maintain tariffs on file with the Federal
Communications Commission for domestic interstate services. On April
28, 2000, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit upheld the

Commission's decision. The Federal Communications Commission
subsequently issued a notice establishing a 9-month transition to
mandatory detariffing. This transition period was subsequently

extended. However, by July 31, 2001, carriers must cancel all tariffs
for interstate domestic interexchange services. After that date, the
terms and conditions pursuant to which domestic providers offer
service to customers will be governed by contract. On March 16, 2001
the Federal Communications Commission adopted a mandatory detariffing
requirement for most international interexchange services provided by
non-dominant carriers. The Commission provided a nine month transition
pericd to permit carriers to adjust to this additional detariffing
requirement . The Federal Communications Commission 1is currently
considering whether to expand the mandatory detariffing requirement to
the interstate access services provided by competitive local exchange
carriers.
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o ACCESS CHARGES. The Federal Communications Commission has granted
incumbent local exchange carriers significant flexibility in pricing
their interstate spectal and switched access services. We anticipate
that this pricing flexibility will result in incumbent local exchange
carriers lowering their prices in high traffic density areas, where
our customers are concentrated.

In late May 2000, the Federal Communications Commission adopted an
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order establishing a five-year plan for reforming federal access
charges. The order provides for reductions in the usage-based and
flat-rate charges assessed by incumbent local exchange carriers or
long distance service providers. The order also provided for increases
over time in the flat-rate monthly charges assessed directly by
incumbent local exchange carriers on residential and business
subscribers. The agency concluded that the plan as adopted would
result in a more rational interstate rate structure, which in turn
would result in more efficient competition.

o UNIVERSAL SERVICE REFORM. The Federal Communications Commission
implemented the provisions of the Telecommunications Act of 1996
relating to the preservation and advancement of universal telephone
service in 1997. All telecommunications carriers providing interstate
telecommunications services, including wus, must contribute to the
universal service support funds. ©On October 8, 1999, the Federal
Communications Commission released an orderxr implementing changes to
its universal service rules to comply with a decision of the Fifth
Circuit Court of Appeals. Among other changes, the Federal
Communications Commission revised its rules concerning assessment of
carriers' interstate and international revenues for universal service
contribution. The Federal Communications Commission narrowed the scope
of the contribution base, removing intrastate end-user
telecommunications revenues from the assessment, consistent with the
opinion of the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals.

STATE REGULATION

We believe that most, if not all, states in which we operate or propose
to operate reguire a certification or other authorization to offer intrastate
and local services. These certifications generally require a showing that the
carrier has adequate financial, managerial and technical resources to offer the
proposed services in a manner consistent with the public interest. We have
obtained state authority for the provision of our competitive leocal exchange and
exchange access services and long distance services in those states where we
currently operate and we plan to obtain additional state authorizations as our
business expansion plans require. In most states, we are regquired to file
tariffs setting forth the terms, conditions and prices for services that are
clasgified as intrastate.

Some states also impose reporting, customer service and quality
requirements, as well as unbundling and universal service requirements on
competitive local exchange carriers. In addition, we are subject to the ocutcome
of proceedings held by state commissions to determine state regulatory policies
with respect to incumbent local exchange carrier and competitive local exchange
carrier competition, geographic build-out, mandatory detariffing and other
issues relevant to competitive local exchange carrier operations. Some states
have adopted state-specific universal service funding cbligations.

In addition to obtaining state certifications, we must negotiate texms
of interconnection with the incumbent local exchange carriers before we can
begin providing 1local exchange and exchange access services. Our executed
agreements are subject to the approval of the state commissions. The appropriate
commissions have approved each of our current agreements and we anticipate state
commission approval of our future interconnection agreements.

We believe cthat, asg the degree of local competition increases, the
states will offer the incumbent local exchange carriers increasing pricing
flexibility. This flexibility may present the incumbent local exchange carriers
with an opportunity to subsidize services that compete with our services with
revenues generated from non-competitive services, thereby allowing incumbent
local exchange carriers to offer competitive services at prices below the cost
of providing the service. We cannot predict the extent to which this way occur,
but it could have a material adverse effect on our business.
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We also may be subject to regquirements in some states to obtain prior
approval for, or notify the state commission of, any transfers of contreol, sales
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of assets, corporate reorganizations, issuances of stock or debt instruments and
related transactions.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORIZATIONS. We are required to obtain street use
and construction permits and licenses and/or franchises to install and expand
our fiber optic networks using municipal rights-of-way. In some municipalities
where we have installed or anticipate constructing networks, we will be required
to pay license or franchise fees based on a percentage of gross revenues or on a
per foot basis, as well as post performance bonds or letters of credit. We are
actively pursuing permits, franchises and other relevant authorities for use of
rights-of-way and utility facilities in a number of cities.

FRANCHISES AND PERMITS

The construction of a network requires us to obtain municipal
franchises and other permits. These rights are typically the subject of
non-exclusive agreements of finite duration providing for the payment of fees or
the provision of services by us to the municipality without compensatioen. In
addition, we must secure rights-of-way and other access rights which are
typically provided under non-exclusive multi-year agreements, which generally
contain renewal options. Generally, these rights are obtained from utilities,
incumbent local exchange carriers, other competitive local exchange carriers,
railroads and long distance carriers. The Telecommunications Act of 1996
reguires most utilities to afford access to rights-of-way to competitive local
exchange carriers on non-discriminatory terms and conditions and at reascnable
rates. However, there can be no assurance that delays and disputes will not
occur. Our agreements for rights-of-way and similar matters generally require us
to indemnify the party providing such rights. Such indemnities could make us
liable for actions (including negligence) of the other party.

EMPLOYEES

As of February 28, 2001, we had 1,266 full time employees. None of our employees
are represented by a labor union or subject te a collective bargaining
agreement, nor have we experienced any work stoppage due to labor disputes. We
believe that our relatiens with our employees are good. The labor market in the
telecommunications industry is currently very competitive and we compete for
gqualified personnel with many of our competitors. We believe that our
compensation and benefits package is competitive in the telecommunications
industry. See Item 7 of this Report on Form 10-K - "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations--Cerxtain Factors Which
May Affect Our Future Results -- The Future Success of Our Business Depends Upon
Key Personnel."

GEOGRAPHIC AREAS

We have no foreign operations. All of our networks are located in, and
all of our revenues are attributable to, the United States.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

We are headquartered in Bedminster, New Jersey and recently expanded
the space that we lease in our building from 20,000 to 50,000 sguare feet of
office space. This recent expansion should be sufficient to meet any of our
corporate headquarters space requirements for the nearxr future. The lease
requires us to pay an annual base lease rent of approximately $1.0 wmillion
(adjusted periodically for changes in the consumer price index), plus operating
expenses through 2012. We rent this space from a company in which a trust for
the benefit of Mr. Kamine's children has an ownership interest. See Item 11 of
this Report on Form 10-K - "Executive Compensation -~ Compensation Committee
Interlocks and Insider Participation."

We also maintain an operations center and additional administrative
offices in lLawrenceville, Georgia. The Lawrenceville premises is approximately
104,000 sqguare Feet held under a lease that expires in 2011. Our annual base
rental obligation for these premises is $1.3 million (adjusted periodically for
changes in the consumer price index), plus operating expenses. We also own or
lease facilities in each of our existing Tier III markets for central offices,
sales offices and the location of our switches and related equipment. We lease
collocation space for our Internet infrastructure equipment in our Nationwide
Data Platform c¢ities. We expect to lease an additional 50,000 sguare feet of
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space in Lawrenceville, Georgia starting in the second half of 2001 at an annual
cost of $650,000. This additional facility should be sufficient to satisfy our
near term space regquirements.

We believe that our facilities are in good condition, are suitable for
our operations and that, if needed, suitable alternative space would be readily
available.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

We are from time to time invelved in 1litigation incidental to the
conduct of our business. There is no pending legal proceeding to which we are a
party which, in the opinion of our management, is likely to have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operaticns.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the
fourth guarter of 2000.

PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMCN EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

There is currently no established trading market for ocur Common Stock,
$0.01 par value per share. As of March 30, 2001, there were ten holders of
record of our Common Stock.

We have never declared nor paid cash dividends on our Common Stock and
do not presently anticipate paying any cash dividends on our Common Stock in the
foreseeable future. We currently expect that earnings, if any, will be retained
for growth and development of our business.

As a holding company, we depend upon the receipt of dividends and other
cash payments from our operating subsidiaries in order to meet our cash
requirements. Pursuant to the terms of our Amended and Restated Loan and
Security Agreement, dated as of February 15, 2000, among certain of our
principal operating subsidiaries and a group of lenders led by First Union
National Bank, CIT Lending Services Corporation and Lucent {the "Amended Senior
Secured Credit Facility"), those subsidiaries are restricted in their ability to
pay dividends on their capital stock. The indentures applicable to our 13 1/2%
Senior Notes due 2009 and our 12 1/2% Senior Discount Notes due 2008,
respectively, impose certain restrictions upon ocur ability to pay dividends on
our capital stock.

Subject to the foregoing and to any restrictions which may be contained
in any future indebtedness which we may incur, the payment of cash dividends on
our Common Stock will be within the sole discretion of our Board of Directors,
and will depend upen the earnings, capital reguirements and financial position
of the Company, applicable requirements of law, general economic conditicns and
other factors considered relevant by our Board of Directors.

On January 1, 2000, March &, 2000, April 1, 2000, May 1, 2000, June &,
2000, July 1, 2000 and October 1, 2000, the Company granted options to purchase
an aggregate of 255,674 shares of its Common Stock to employees and directors of
the Company, as well as independent contractors who perform services for the
Company, under the 1598 Stock Purchase and Option plan for Key Employees of KMC
Telecom Holdings, 1Inc. and Affiliates. No consideration was received for the
issuance of the options. The options have various exercise prices with 127,500
exercisable at an exercise price of $75 per share, 2,500 exercisable at an
exercise price of $125 per share, 64,508 exercisable at an exercise price of
$250 per share, and 61,166 exercisable at an exercise price of $300 per share.
The issuance of these options was made in reliance upon the exemption from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act provided by Section 4{2} of the
Act, on the basis that the transactions did not inveolve a public offering.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.
The selected financial data set forth below for the years ended
December 31, 1996, 1997, 1998, 1999 and 2000 were derived from our audited
financial statements and those of our predecessors. The data presented below

should be read in conjunction with
of Financial Condition and Results

Item 7 "Management's Discussion and Analysis
of Operations" and the consolidated financial

statements and notes thereto included in Item 8 “"Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data."
Year Ended December 31,
1996 1997 1598 1999 2000
{IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:
ROVEIUD. « ettt va st i iataasaravaananctsanaason H .13 -] 3,417 $ 22,425 § 64,313 s 209,185
Qperating expensen
Network operating costs:
Non-cash ntoeck option compenaation... 19 1.110 566 7.187 2,731
Other network operating coots........ 1,381 5,482 27,699 a1,678 169,593
Selling, general and administracive:
Yon-caph Btock option compengation. .. 221 12,769 6,514 27,4486 31,840
Other selling, general and
adminiscrative. ... .. ooiiiiiiii i 2,216 12,176 34,171 84,434 162,275
Deprecinotion and amortizarion............. 287 2,506 9,257 29,077 76,129
Total operating expennmed.............., 4,104 34,034 78,207 225,022 442,568
Lops from operations. ... .. ..c.iiiioaaiiaans {3,899) (30.617) {55, 782) {160, 709) {233,373}
Other expenae (a).. - - - {4,297) -
Interest income. ... - 513 4,al1@ 8,701 11,7184
Interest expenge (B).......... . 0vninainann, (596) {(2,582) (29,789} {€5.,411) {136,393
et loso before cumulative effect of change ln
accounting principle........coooienunnn,. (4,495) (32,686) {76, 751) (225,716) {357, 982)
Cumulative affect of change ln accounting
principle (€} ..o vt iiiii - - - “ i1, 705)
Het 1OBD.. .0 iuirarsanrartsar inransrsrnnansas (4.495) (32,686) (76,751} (215,71%) (359,687)
Dividendp and accretion on redeemable preferred
BEOCK © v et tainntsaivansisinansimnnntvansan - (8,904) {1m,28%) (81,633) (94, 440)
Het loso applicable to commen sharcholdern... § (4,495) $ {41,590) $ (95,038} $(307,345) §  [454,127)
AEmARMASSSS ANSSAMSLANE EANSANSNASEE SESESENEESEE EEREEESEWEEEE
Net lons per common share before cumulative
effect of change in accounting principle.. § (7.43) § 164.93) § (114.42) § (360.88}) 3 1529.22)
Cumulative mffect of change ln accounting
principle (@) ...t i e ia e - - - - {1.9%)
Het losn per COMMON SRhALG. . .uiiarsacsrciarnnss § (7.4m) 5 {64.91) 5 (114.42) 5 (360.89) 5 (531.21
EnmEsEmEEEE seESEAsERHE  NesseESEEEEE  AwsRAmdERAER  EmEEHmE A RN
Proforma amgunts agpuming the ¢hange in
accounting principle wag applied retroactively:
Nek logn applicable to ¢ommon shareholders.. $ {4,495) § t41,.746) $ (95,424) 5(309,054} § {452,422}
EEEANSFESEE ESECEEIENSS AGANEESEANTE SEVESESENGEN SEFNSARSEREEE
Het lobp per Common BREXE, .., .ireecanrrnerny $ (7.4m) $ (65.17) $ (114,88) $ (362.80) H 1529 .22}
AUGAUREMWAN AAAENNAASEE ASANSASAASNE ASANNENMEMSAS EERASERARANSE
Weighted nverage number of common sharep
OUEBCANAING. o et i e 600 641 a1l a52 855
OTHER FINANCIAL DATA;
Capital expendituren (d) ... nvirivrnivanenas $ 9.111 5 61,148 $ 161,803 $ 440,713 5 457,651
Adjusted EBITDA{e) .... . uvuuuius (1,212) {14,241) {19,445} (101,799} (132.673)
EBITDALe) . ........ . {3,612} (28,111} (46,525} (135,929 (157, 244)
Caszh used in operating activitie . . (2.687) (8,676} {33,573} {98,293) (146,448)
Cazh uned in investing activitieo............ (10,174} (62,992} (180, 1%8) (277,078} (488,952)
Cash provided by fipancing octivities........ 14,314 B5. 734 219,399 440,156 £59,411
20
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{tN TIHOUSANDS)
BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Caoh and caoh equivalento.................... $ 1.487 $ 15.5581 5 21,181 5 B5,966 E 109,977
Restricted inventments........ - - 88,571 100, 056

Working capitai................. (2,345) 1,672 {1,391} {57,007} (63.116)
Networks, property and equipment . 12,347 71,371 224,890 639.324 1,021,684
Total ASBELB. ... . .viruranvrranns PE . 16,715 95,943 311,310 886,040 1,331,275
Long-term notes payable. . 12,334 61,277 41,414 235,000 128,173
ocher long-cterm debt...... v - - 267,811 576,137 615,181
Redeemable preferred atogk. ... ... .. .. ... - 315,925 52.023 203,790 472,765
Redeemable common stock and warrantd......... - 11,726 22,979 46, 6BD £2,380
Total nonredeemable equity (deficiency)...... k1:L {26,673} {104,353) (384,413 {819,471

{(a) During the second quarter of 1899, we recorded a %$4.3 million charge to
other expense in connection with an unfavorable arbitration award. The net
amount due under the terms of the award was paid in full in June 199%.

{b} Excludes capitalized interest of (i) $103,000 for 1996, (ii) $854,000 for
1997, (iii) %5.1 million for 1998, ({iv) $6.6 million for 19%9% and (v) $10.4
million for 2000. During the constructicon of our networks, the interest
costs related to construction expenditures are capitalized.

{c} In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 101 {("SAB 101"), REVENUE RECOGNITION IN FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS. SAB 101 provides additional guidance in applying generally
accepted accounting principles to revenue recognition in financial
statements. Through December 31, 1999, we recognized installation revenue
upon completien of the installation. Effective January 1, 2000, in
accordance with the provisions of SAB 101, we are recegnizing installation
revenue over the average contract period. The cumulative effect of this
change in accounting principle resulted in a charge of approximately $1.7
million which was recorded in the quarter ended March 31, 2000. For the
year ended December 31, 2000, the net effect of adopting this change in
accounting principle was a deferral of the recognition of $3.0 million of
revenue, which increased net loss for the vyear by 53.56 per share. Revenue
for the year ended December 31, 2000 includes $1.7 million of revenues
that, prior to the accounting change, had been recognized through December
31, 1999.

(d) The figure for 1997 includes $2.0 million related to the acquisition of a
network.

(e) Adjusted EBITDA consists of earnings (loss) before net interest, income
taxes, depreciation and amortization charges, stock opticn compensation
expense {a non-cash charge), other expense and cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle. EBITDA consists of earnings (loss) before all of
the foregoing items except stock option compensation expense and other
expense. These items are provided because they are measures commonly used
in the telecommunications industry. They are presented to enhance an
understanding of our operating results and they are not intended to
represent cash flow or results of operations in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Adjusted EBITDA and EBITDA are not
calculated under generally accepted accounting principles and are not
necessarily comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS QF FINANCIAL CONDITICON AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS.

YOU SHOULD READ THE FOLLOWING DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS TOGETHER WITH OUR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, INCLUDING THE NOTES AND THE OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION
APPEARING ELSEWHERE 1IN THIS REPORT. DUE TO QUR LIMITED OQOPERATING HISTORY,
STARTUP NATURE AND RAPID GROWTH, PERIOD-TO-PERIOD COMPARISONS OF FINANCIAL DATA
ARE NOT NECESSARILY INDICATIVE, AND YOU SHOULD NOT RELY UPON THEM AS AN
INDICATCR OQF OQUR FUTURE PERFORMANCE. THE FOLLOWING DISCUSSICN INCLUDES

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. SEE "--CERTAIN FACTORS WHICH MAY AFFECT QUR FUTURE
RESULTS".

OVERVIEW
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We are a rapidly growing fiber-based integrated communications provider
offering data, voice and Internet infrastructure services. We offer these
services to businesses, governments and institutional end-users, Internet
service providers, long distance carriers and wireless service providers. OQur
business has two distinct components: serving communications-intensive customers
in Tier III warkets, and providing data services on a naticonwide basis.

We provide a full suite of broadband communications services in 37 Tier
IITI markets, which we define as markets with a population between 100,000 and
750,000. We own and operate robust fiber-based networks and switching equipment
in all of our Tier III markets, which are predominantly 1located in the South,
Scoutheast, Midwest and Mid-Atlantic United States. We will continue teo expand in
our existing Tier IITI markets because we believe that these markets have
attractive growth attributes and are typically less competitive than larger
markets. Our customers in these markets include: AT&T, Boeing, City of Augusta,
Columbia Hospital, NASA, Pillsbury, State of Wisconsin, Texas A&M University and
Wal-Mart.

We also provide nationwide data services under long-term guaranteed
revenue contracts. Under these contracts, we provide local Internet access
infrastructure and other enhanced data sexrvices and will be providing Voice over
Internet Protocol beginning in the second half of 2001. Currently, we have
contracts representing approximately $280 million in annualized revenues in
approximately 140 markets. We expect these wmarkets to be operational by the
second quarter of 2001L. The Internet infrastructure we are deploying includes
the latest technology platforms from Cisco and Nortel, which we believe will
result in a cost-effective and technologically superior solution for our
customers.

TIER IIT MARKETS. We have installed fiber-based SONET networks, or
self- healing synchronous optical networks, using a Class 5 switch in all of our
37 markets. Our fiber optic networks are initially designed and built to reach
approximately 80% of the business access lines in each of our markets, typically
requiring a local fiber loop of about 30 to 40 miles.

As our switeches have become operaticnal, our operating margins have
improved meaningfully. Our operating margins have also improved due to increased
on-network revenues relative to resale revenues. On-network revenues are
revenues earned from services provided on our network, including by direct
connection to our switch, unbundled network element or dedicated line. Resale
revenues are generated when traffic is carried completely on the incumbent local
exchange carriers’ facilities. On-network revenues have increased from
approximately 37% of our revenues for the year ended December 31, 1998 to
approximately 95% of our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2000.

NATIONWIDE DATA PLATFORM. We currently provide Internet access
infrastructure using remote access servers manufactured by Cisco and Nortel
which we are deploying in our 41 supernodes, including ten in our existing Tier
III markets. Supernodes are concentration points for high-speed connectivity to
the Internet.

Under the terms of ocur existing guaranteed revenue contracts, we
provide the routing and ancillary equipment for each superncde, as well as data
transport service from the incumbent local exchange carrier to our supernode
location. Our customers pay us a fixed price per port and compensate us for
certain expenses, including space, power and transport, that we may incur above
an agreed level. This structure provides highly predictable revenues and costs
over the life of each contract, currently ranging from 42 to 51 months. These
contracts began generating revenues during the third guarter of 2000. Revenues
will continue to increase as the contracts are phased in through the third
quarter of 2001. These contracts started providing positive margins beginning
with the commencement of revenues in the third guarter of 2000.
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We purchased approximately $134.4 million of equipment (the "KMC
Funding V Egquipment") relating to these contracts during the first gquarter of
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2000. We sold this egquipment to General Electric Credit Corporation and CIT
Lending Services Corporation, and leased it back from them, during the second
quarter of 2000. We purchased an additional $168.6 million of eguipment (the
"KMC Funding Egquipment”) relating to these contracts during the second quarter
of 2000 and signed an agreement in November 2000 with Dresdner Kleinwort Benson
North American Leasing, Inc. to finance this equipment by means of a 48 month
term loan. In March 2001, we entered into two financing transactions (the "KMC

Funding V Monetization" and the "KMC Funding Monetization," respectively) and
repaid the remaining balance on this term loan and exercised our purchase option
on the KMC Funding V Equipment under the operating lease. See "--Liquidity and

Capital Resources" below for a detailed description of these transactions.

The table below provides selected key operational and financial data on a
consclidated basis as of the following dates:

Cuarter Ended

Decembor March 31, June 30, Scpoember December

' 31, 19399 2000 2000 30, 2000 i1, 2000

Tier III operational markets.... 34 35 15 35 37
Route mileg...........covvuninns 1,475 1,724 1,589 2,178 2,285
Fiber miles......... .. ... ..., 94,119 110,325 122,376 134,852 140, 988
CollocationB. ..o nnnnnan, a1 111 124 125 134
CUStOmMera. . . iviiurtiassuesraraass 6,060 7,305 8,513 9,990 11,602
Total buildings connected....... 4,108 5,615 7,088 9,085 9,748
Total ltines in service,......... 318,031 489.079 767,992 1,865,390 2,284,375
Oon-network revenues(a)(b)....... a7y 14 93% 96 % 97%
Resale revenues(ajlc)........... 13% 12% 1% 1% %

{(a) Asg a percentage of total revenues.

{b) On-network revenues are revenues earned from services provided on ocur
network, including by direct connection to our switch, unbundled network
element or dedicated line.

(¢) Resale revenues are generated when traffic is carried completely on the
incumbent local exchange carriers' facilities.

REVENUE. ©Our revenue 1is derived from the sale of local switched
services, long distance services, Centrex-type services, private line services,
special access services and Internet access infrastructure. In prior years, a
significant portion of our revenue was derived from the resale of switched
services. We have transitioconed the majority of our customers on-network and as a
result the portien of our revenue related to the resale of switched services has
decreased from 63% of total vrevenue for the year ended 1998 to 5% of total
revenue for the year ended 2000.

RECIPROCAL COMPENSATION. We recognized reciprocal compensation revenue
of approximately $9.7 million, or 15.1% of our total revenue for 1999 and
approximately $18.2 million or B.7% of our total revenue for the year ended
December 31, 2000. In May 2000, we reached a resolution of cur claims for
payment of certain reciprocal compensation charges, previously disputed by
BellSouth Corporation. Under the agreement, BellSouth made a one-time payment
that resolved all amounts billed through March 31, 2000. In addition, we agreed
with BellSouth on future rates for reciprocal compensation, setting new
contractual terms for payment. Cur prior agreement with BellSouth provided for a
rate of $.009 per minute of use for reciprocal compensation. Under the terms of
the new agreement, the rates for reciprocal compensation which will apply to all
local traffic, including ISP-bound traffic, will decrease over time. The
reduction will be phased in over a three-year period beginning with a rate of
$.002 per minute of use until March 31, 2001, $.00175 per minute of use from
April 1, 2001 through March 31, 2002 and $.0015 per minute of use from April 1,
2002 through March 31, 2003.
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In March 2001, we filed a formal complaint against Southwestern Bell
Telephone Company with the Kansas Corporatien Commission seeking payment of past
due reciprocal compensation for calls to Internet service providers. We cannot
predict the outcome of this proceeding.

We are currently pursuing resoluticn of this issue with other incumbent
local exchange carriers. Qur goal is to reach mutually acceptable terms for both
outstanding and future reciprocal compensation amounts for all traffic. We
cannot assure you that we will reach new agreements with these <carriers on
favorable terms

As of December 31, 2000, we have provided reserves which we believe are
sufficient to cover any amounts which may not be collected, but we cannot assure
you that this will be the case. Qur management will continue to consider the
circumstances surrounding this dispute periodically in determining whether
additional reserves against unpaid balances are warranted.

OPERATING EXPENSES. Our principal operating expenses consist of network
operating costs, selling, general and administrative expenses, stock option
compensation expense and depreciation and amortization., Network operating costs
include charges from termination and unbundled network element charges; charges
from incumbent local exchange carriers for resale services; charges from long
distance carriers for resale of long distance services; salaries and benefits
associated with network operations, billing and information services and
customer care personnel; franchise fees and other costs. Network operating costs
also include a percentage of both our intrastate and interstate revenues which
we pay as universal service fund charges. National data platform operating
expenses include space, power, transport, maintenance, staffing, sales, general
and administrative and rental expenses under our operating lease agreements.
Certain of these costs are passed through to the carrier customer which allows
us to limit our maintenance and servicing costs to predetermined levels, and to
receive additional revenues for any costs incurred in excess of such
predetermined levels. Selling, general and administrative expenses consist of
sales personnel and support costs, corporate and finance personnel and support
costs and legal and accounting expenses. Depreciation and amortization includes
charges related to plant, property and equipment and amortization of intangible
assets, including £franchise acquisition costs. Depreciation and amortization
expense will increase as we place additiocnal equipment into service expanding
our existing networks.

INTEREST EXPENSE. Interest expense includes interest charges on our
senior notes, senior discount notes, our senior secured credit facilities and
our Internet infrastructure equipment financings. Interest expense also includes
amortization of deferred financing costs.

RESULTS QF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 CCMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 19399

REVENUE. Revenue increased 225% from $64.3 million for 1999 to $209.2
million for 2000. This increase is attributable to the fact that our Tier ITIX
Market business derived revenues from 37 markets during 2000 compared to 23
markets during most of 1999 as well teo the fact that our Nationwide Data
Platform business began to generate revenues for the first time in the third
quarter of 2000. In addition, each of our Tier III markets that generated
revenues during 1999 generated increased revenues during 2000.

On-network local switched services, long distance services,
Centrex-type services, private line services, special access services and
Internet access infrastructure revenues ("On-network revenues") represented 95%
of total revenue in 2000, compared to 69% of total revenue in 1999; while
revenue derived from the resale of switched services ("Resale revenue")
represented 5% and 31% of total revenue, respectively, during those periods.
On-network revenues include revenues derived from services provided through
direct connections to our own networks, services provided by means of unbundled
network elements leased from the incumbent local exchange carrier and services
provided by dedicated line. In addivion, we recognized reciprocal compensation
revenue of approximately $18.2 million or B.7% of cur total revenue for the year
2000.
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NETWORK OPERATING COSTS. WNetwork operating costs, excluding non-cash
stock compensation expense, increased 108% from $81.7 million for 1999 to $169.6
million for 2000. This increase of $§87.9 million is due primarily to the
increase in the number of markets in which we operated in 2000 as compared to
199% combined wich expenses related to the startup of ocur WNationwide Data
Platform business in the third quarter of 2000. The components of this increase
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are %48.3 million in direct costs associated with our Tier ¥II Market and
Nationwide Data Platform businesses which provide on-network services, including
leasing unbundled network elements, and resale services, $18.0 million in
personnel costs, %$7.3 million in network support services, §$5.4 million in
consulting and professional services costs, $2.7 million in telecommunications
costs and $6.2 million in other direct operating costs.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES. Selling, general and
administrative expenses, excluding non-cash stock compensation expense,
increased 92% from $84.4 million for 1999 to $162.3 million in 2000. This
increase of $§77.9 million is due primarily to the increase in the number of
markets in which we operated in 2000 as compared to 1999 as well as to the fact
that our Nationwide Data Platform business commenced operations for the first
time in the third quarter of 2000. The components of this increase are $38.0
million in personnel costs, $11.0 million in professional costs, $5.7 million in
facility costs, $3.2 million in telecommunications costs and $2.4 million in
travel related costs, as well as increases in other marketing and general and
administrative costs aggregating approximately $17.6 million, including amounts
related to our arrangement with KNT.

STOCK OPTION COMPENSATION EXPENSE. Stock option compensation expense, a
non-cash charge, in aggregate increased 16% from $29.8 million in 1999 to $34.6
million for 2000. This increase is due primarily to an increase in the estimated
fair value of our common stock, as well as the grant of additional option awards
during 2000.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION. Depreciation and amortization expense
increased 162% from $25.1 million for 199% to $76.1 willion for 2000. This
increase is due primarily to depreciation expense associated with the greater
number of networks in commercial operation during 2000.

INTEREST INCOME. Interest income increased 36% from $8.7 million in
1999 to $11.8 million in 2000. The increase is due primarily to larger average
cash, cash equivalent and restricted cash balances during 2000 as compared to
1999, as well as receiving interest at a higher average rate.

INTEREST EXPENSE. Interest expense increased 97% from $69.4 million in
1999 to $136.4 million in 2000. Of this increase, $49.2 million is related to
higher berrowings under our senior secured credit facilities, $15.1 million is
attributable to the fact that ocur $275 million of 13 1/2% senior notes, issued
in May 1999, were outstanding throughout all of 2000, $4.92 million is due to
accretion and amortization of Einancing costs on our senior discount notes and
$1.6 million is due to our Nationwide Data Platform business. The individual
increases above were offset by a $3.8 million increase in capitalized interest
related to network construction projects which increased €£rom $6.6 million
during 1999 to %$10.4 million during 2000.

NET LOSS BEFORE CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE.
For the reasons stated above, net loss before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle increased from $225.7 million for 1999 to $358.0 million
for 2000.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 19299 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1598

REVENUE. Revenue increased 187% from $22.4 million for 1998 to $64.3
million for 1999. This increase is primarily attributable to revenues derived
from 23 markets we serviced during 1%99, as compared to 1998 when we derived
revenues from only 8 markets during the entire vyear, and began to derive
revenues from 14 additional markets during the fourth quarter of 19%8. 1In
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addition, each of our markets that generated revenues during 1998 generated
increased revenues during 1999.

During 1998 and 1999, we recognized revenue which we believed was due
to us from incumbent local exchange carriers for terminating local traffie of
Internet service providers. We determined to recognize this revenue because we
concluded, based wupon all of the facts and c¢ircumstances known to us at the
time, including numerous state public service commission and state and federal
court decisions upholding competitive local exchange carriers' entitlement to
reciprocal compensation for such calls, that realization of those amcunts was
reasonably assured. On October 13, 1999, however, the Louisiana Public Service
Commission ruled that local traffic to Internet service providers in Louisiana
is not eligible for reciprocal compensation. As a result of that ruling, we
determined that we could no longer conclude that realization of amounts
attributable to termination of local calls to Internet service providers in
Louisiana was reasonably assured. Accordingly, we recorded an adjustment to
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reduce revenue in the third quarter of 1999, which reversed all reciprocal
revenue recognized related to Internet service provider traffic in Louisiana for
the entire vear of 1998 and the first nine months of 1999. The adjustment
amounted to $4.4 million, of which $1.1 million relates to the year ended
December 31, 1998 and $3.3 millien relates to the nine months ended September
30, 199595.

Although incumbent local exchange carriers, such as BellSouth {prior to
our May 2000 settlement with them), have generally withheld payments of amounts
due for reciprocal compensation to competitive local exchange carriers like us
for calls to Internet service providers and disputed the entitlement of
competitive local exchange carriers to reciprocal compensation for such calls in
jurisdictions other than Louisiana as well, we have determined to continue to
recognize amounts due to us for reciprocal compensation for such calls in
jurisdictions other than Louisiana and South Carolina (which is the only othex
jurisdiction in which we currently operate that has adopted a similar position)
because we have concluded, based wupon all of the facts and circumstances,
including numerous state public service commissions and state and federal court
decisions upholding competitive 1local exchange carriers' entitlement to
reciprocal compensation for such calls, that realization of such amounts is
reasonably assured.

Revenue for 1998 and 1999 included $14.2 million and $19.7 million,
respectively, derived from resale services and an aggregate of $8.2 million and
$44.6 million (including, after giving effect to the third quarter 1999 $4.4
million adjustment for Louisiana, $9.7 millicon of revenue related to reciprocal
compensation during 1999), respectively, of revenue derived from on-network
services. Resale services represented 63% of revenue in 1998 and 31% of revenue
in 1999.

NETWORK OPERATING CCOSTS. Network operating costs, excluding non-cash
stock compensation expense, increased 195% from $27.7 million in 1998 to $81.7
million in 1999. This increase of $54.0 million was due primarily to the
increase in the number ¢f markets in which we operated in 1999. The components
of this increase are $27.7 million in direct costs associated with providing
on-network services, including leasing unbundled network elements, and resale
services, $14.3 million in personnel costs, $4.2 million in network support
services, $5.1 million in consulting and professional services costs, $600,00C
in facility costs, 3900,000 in ctravel costs and 51,2 million in
telecommunications and other direct operating costs.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES. Selling, general and
administrative expenses, excluding non-cash stock compensation expense,
increased 147% from 3$34.2 million in 1998 to $84.4 million in 1999. This
increase of approximately $50.2 million resulted primarily from increases of
$25.4 million in personnel costs, $5.1 million in prefessional costs, $53.4
million in travel related costs, as well as increases in other marketing and
general and administrative costs aggregating approximately $16.3 million. These
increases were due primarily to the greater number of networks in commercial
operation during 189%9.
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STOCK OPTION COMPENSATION EXPENSE. Stock optiocn compensation expense, a
non-cash charge, increased 320% from an aggregate of $7.1 million for 1998 to
$29.8 million for 19%9. This increase primarily resulted from an increase in the
estimated fair value of our common stock, as well as the grant of additional
option awards during 1999.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION. Depreciation and amortization expense
increased from $9.3 million for 1998 to $29.1 million for 1999, primarily as a
result of depreciation expense associated with the greater number of networks in
commercial operation during 1999.

OTHER EXPENSE. During the second quarter of 1999, we recorded a $4.3
million charge to other expense in connection with an unfaverable arbitration
award. The net amount due under the terms of the award was paid in full in June
1999.

INTEREST INCOME. Interest income remained consistent from $8.8 million
in 1998 to 58.7 million in 1999.

INTEREST EXPENSE. Interest expense increased from $29.8 million in 1998
to $69.4 millien in 1999, Of this increase, $23.3 million is attributable to the
fact that our %275 million of 13 1/2% senior notes were 1issued in May 1999,
$10.9 million is attributable to higher borrowings under our senior secured
credit facility and $6.9 million is attributable to increased accretion yeax
over year on our senior discount notes. The individual increases above were
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offset by a $1.5 million increase in capitalized interest related to network
construction projects from $5.1 million during 1998 to $6.6 million during 1999.

NET LOSS. For the reasons stated above, net loss increased from $76.8
million for 1998 to $225.7 million for 199%.

STOCK COMPENSATION PLAN

During 1996 and 1997, one of our principal operating subsidiaries
granted options to purchase shares of its common stock pursuant to its 1996
Stock Plan. On June 26, 1998, our board of directors adopted the 1998 Stock
Purchase and Option Plan for Key Employees of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and
Affiliates which authorizes the grant of options to purchase shares of our
common stock and replaced our 1996 Stock Plan. During the third quarter of 1998,
we replaced the options to purchase shares of common stock previously granted
under the 1996 Stock Plan, with options to purchase shares of our common stock
granted under the 1938 Stock Plan. We alsc granted new options to some
additional employees. Upon cancellation of the outstanding options under the
1996 Stock Plan, we reversed all compensaticn expense previously recorded with
respect to those options. Additionally, to the extent the fair value of our
common stock exceeded the exercise price of the options granted under the 1998
Stock Plan, we recognized compensation expense related to such options to the
extent vested. The net effect of the cancellation of the options outstanding
under the 1996 Stock Plan and the grant of options under the 1998 Stock Plan
resulted in a credit to compensation expense of approximately $600,000 in 1998.

Some of the provisions in the stock option awards granted under the
1998 Stock Plan will necessitate that the awards be treated as variable stock
compensation awards pursuant to Accounting Principles Beard Opinion No. 25.
Accordingly, compensation expense will be charged or credited periodically
through the date of exercise or cancellation of such stock options, based on
changes in the wvalue of our stock as well as the vesting schedule of such
options. These compensation charges or credits are non-cash in nature, but could
have a material effect on our future reported net income (loss).

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESQURCES

We have incurred significant operating and net losses as a result of
the development and operation of our networks. We expect that such losses will
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continue as we emphasize the development, ceonstruction and expansicn of our
networks and build our customer base. As a result, we do not expect there to be
any cash provided by operations in the near future. We will also need to fund
the expansion of our networks and our capital expenditures related to our
nationwide data platform business. We have financed our operating losses and
capital expenditures with equity invested by our founders, preferred stock
placements, credit facility borrowings, equipment loans, operating leases,
monetizations and our 12 1/2% senior discount notes and 13 1/2% senior notes.

During the first quarter of 2000, we amended, restated and combined our
prior senior secured credit facility and our prior Lucent facility in a single
$700.0 million facility. Under this amended senior secured c¢redit facility, our
subsidiaries which own our 37 existing networks are permitted to borrow up to an
aggregate of $700.0 million, subject to certain conditions, for the purchase of
fiber optic cable, switches and other telecommunications equipment and, once
certain financial conditions are met, for working capital and other general
corporate purposes.

During the gquarter ended June 30, 2000, our subsidiary, KMC Telecom,
IV, Inc., closed a new senior secured term loan from Lucent Technoleogies Inc.
Proceeds from this loan were to be used to purchase or install Lucent products.
This loan agreement was subsequently terminated by both parties and the
equipment purchased under it was returned to Lucent.

In July 2000, we issued shares of Series G Convertible Preferred Stock
to Lucent Technologies, Dresdner Kleinwort Benson Private Equity Partners, CIT
Lending Services, Nassau Capital Partners and Harold N. Kamine, our Chairman,
for aggregate gross proceeds of $182.5 million (See Note 7, "Redeemable and
Nonredeemable Equity-SERIES G PREFERRED STOCK," of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Report on Form 10-K). The Series
G Convertible Preferred Stock has an aggregate liquidation preference of $182.5
million and an annual cumulative dividend egqual to 7% of the liquidation
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preference. Payment of the unpaid dividends is triggered by an initial public
offering in which we receive aggregate gross proceeds of at least $80.0 million
or a merger, conscolidation or sale of substantially all of our assets. In such
event, we may elect to pay these dividends with additional shares of our common
stock.

In March 2001, we entered into a financing transaction (see Note 18,
"Subsequent Events-KMC FUNDING MONETIZATION," of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Report on Form 10-K) that
resulted in us receiving unrestricted gross proceeds of $325.0 from a secured
loan. The KMC Funding Monetization is secured by the future cash flows from our
Naticnwide Data Platform business contract that was entered into in June 2000
(see Note 9, "Significant Contracts and Customers," of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Report ¢n Feorm 10-K). The KMC
Funding Monetization requires that the principal and interest be paid on a
monthly basis upon receipt of the monthly proceeds from the related contract. We
retain the right to receive the remaining cash flows from this contract which
are expected to be approximately 25% of the wmonthly cash flows (from which
on-going operational expenses must be paid). We realized net proceeds of
approximately $145.5 million after using the proceeds to pay off the 48 month
term loan we obtained pursuant te cour November 2000 agreement with Dresdner
Kleinwort Benson North American Leasing, Inc. to finance our acquisition of the
KMC Funding Equipment (see Note 5, "Long-Term Debt - KMC FUNDING INTERNET
INFRASTRUCTURE EQUIPMENT FINANCING," of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included in Item 8 of this Report on Form 10-K), as well as to pay
any financing fees and expenses related to the monetization.

In March 2001, we entered into a financing transaction (see Note 18,
"Subsegquent Events-KMC FUNDING V MONETIZATION," of the Notes to Conscolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Report on Form 10-XK) that
resulted in us receiving unrestricted gross proceeds of $225.4 million from a
secured loan. The KMC Funding V Monetization is secured by the future cash flows
from our Nationwide Data Platform business contract that was entered into in
March 2000 {see Note 9, "Significant Contracts and Customers," of the Notes to
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Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Report on Form
10-K}. The KMC Funding V Monetization requires that the prineipal and interest
be paid on a monthly basis upon receipt of the monthly proceeds from the related
contract. We retain the right to receive the remaining cash flows from this
contract which are expected to be approximately 25% of the monthly cash flows
(from which on-going operational expenses must be paid). We realized net
proceeds of approximately $125.5 million after using the proceeds to exercise
our purchase option with respect to the KMC Funding V Equipment which we were
leasing from GECC and CIT Lending Services Corporation under an operating lease,
as well as to pay any financing fees and expenses related to the monetizatien.

In March 2001, we purchased approximately $65.0 million of Voice over
Internet Protocol equipment in association with entering into an agreement with
Qwest (see Note 18, "Subsequent Events - VOIP EQUIPMENT CONTRACT," of the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Report on Form
10-K). We expect to enter into a financing transaction to fund the cost of this
equipment; however, we can give no assurances that we will be able to obtain
such financing.

In April 2001, we further amended our amended senior secured credit
facility. The aggregate amount of the facility remains at $700.0 million and
funds are available under it for the same purposes. The primary changes effected
by the amendment were (i} changes to certain of the financial covenants to
reflect changes in the Company's business since the amended senior secured
credit facility was entered into and to permit continued compliance with those
covenants by the borrowers in accerdance with its revised business plan, (ii) to
conform the repayment schedules of both term loans and the revelving loan, (iii)
to require the borrowers to make an aggregate of $100 million in prepayments on
the loans in accordance with an agreed schedule, (iv} to reguire the Company to
use a portion of the proceeds of future equity issuances in excess of a
cumulative $200.0 millicon to make additional prepayments on the loans, (v) to
require the Company to use agreed upon portions of the proceeds from certain
sales of assets to make additional prepayments on the loans, {vi) to require the
Company to use agreed upon portions of the excess cash flows from its Nationwide
Data Platform business to make additional capital contributions to the
borrowers, (vii) to require the Company to restructure those of its subsidiaries
involved in its Nationwide Data Platform business under a single subsidiary
holding company, the shares of which will be pledged as additional collateral
for KMC Holding's obligations under its guaranty of the amended senior secured
credit facility, and (viii} to increase the interest rate. In connection with
the amendment, the lenders also waived failures by the borrowers to comply with
certain ©f the prior financial covenants as of March 31, 2001, and the Company
made aggregate capital contributions to the borrowers of $200.0 million. In
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addition, the cecllateral for KMC Heldings' guaranty of the facility was expanded
to include substantially all of the assets of KMC Holdings. For a more detailed

discussion of this amendment see Notce 18, "Subsequent Events - AMENDMENT TO
AMENDED SENIOR SECURED CREDIT FACILITY," included in Item 8 of this Report on
Form 10-K.

As of March 30, 2001, we had $656.2 million and $550.4 million of
indebtedness outstanding under the amended senior secured credit facility and
the combined KMC Funding V Monetization and KMC Funding Monetization,
respectively. Subject to certain conditions, as of that date we had an
additional $43.8 million in borrowing capacity available under the amended
senior secured facility. The KMC Funding V Monetization and KMC Funding
Monetization were both fully drawn at that date.

Net cash provided by financing activities from borrowings and equity
issuances was $659.4 million and our net cash used in operating and investing
activities was 5635.4 millicn for the year ended December 31, 2000.

We made capital expenditures of $161.8 million in 19%B, $440.7 million
in 1999, and $457.7 million in 2000. Of the total capital expenditures for 2000,
$280.7 million was related teo the Tier III Markets business segment and $177.0
million was for the Nationwide Data Platform business segment. As of March 30,
2001, we had outstanding purchase commitments aggregating approximately $32.2
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million related to the purchase of fiber optic cable and telecommunications
equipment under our agreements with certain suppliers and service providers. We
currently anticipate capital expenditures to be approximately $120.0 million for
the Tier TII Markets business for 2001. It is our intention that capital
expenditures for the Nationwide Data Platform business will be financed
separately and therefore will neot affect our current liquidity position. The
majority of the Tier III Market expenditures are expected to be made for network
expansion to facilitate the offering of our services. We expect to continue to
incur operating losses while we expand our business and build our custcmer base.
Actual capital expenditures and operating losses will depend on numerous
factors, including the nature of future expansion and acqguisition opportunities
and factors beyond our control, including economic conditions, competition,
regulatory develcopments and the availability of capital.

We believe that our cash and beorrowings available under the amended
senior secured credit facility will be sufficient tc meet our liquidity needs to
fund cperating losses and capital expenditure requirements for all of our 37
Tier III markets, our current Nationwide Data Platform contracts and other
existing commitments into the second quarter of 2002.

However, in the event that our plans change, the assumptions upen which
our plans are based prove inaccurate, we expand or accelerate our business plan
or we determine to consummate acquisitions, the foregoing sources of funds may
prove insufficient and we may be required to seek additional financing sooner
than we currently expect. Additional sources of financing may include public or
private equity or debt financings, leases and cther financing arrangements. We
can give no assurance that additional financing will be available to us or, if
available, that it can be obtained on a timely basis and on acceptable terms.

We believe that the present market prices of ocur 12 1/2% senior
discount notes and ocur 13 1/2% senior notes represent an opportunity for us to
reduce our long-term debt. Accordingly, our subsidiaries have recently made, and
may in the future make, purchases of senior discount notes and/or senior notes
in the open market from time to time at then prevailing market prices. Certain
of our officers and directors may also make purchases for their own account. We
may utilize a portion of our unrestricted cash to pay for any purchases of
senior discount notes or senior notes that we may make.

CERTAIN FACTORS WHICH MAY AFFECT QUR FUTURE RESULTS

WE HAVE A LIMITED OPERATING HISTCRY AND HAVE INCURRED SIGNIFICANT NEGATIVE
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT NEGATIVE EBITDA SINCE INCEPTION

We commenced material operations in 1996 and, as a result, we have a
limited coperating history and limited revenues. We have only recently completed
the process of building many of our networks. Accordingly, you will have limited
historical financial information upon which to base your evaluation of our
business. Our prospects for financial and operational success must be considered
in light of the risks, expenses and difficulties freguently encountered by
companies in their early stage of development.
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In connection with the expansion of our networks we have incurred and
expect to continue to incur significant negative cash flow from operations while
we expand our business and build our custemer base. Our negative cash flow and
negative EBITDA have increased in each of the last five years. Our operating
losses and cash used by operations will increase as a result of the continuation
of our expansion strategy.

For the year ended December 31, 2000, we had revenues of §$209.2
million, negative cash flow from operations of $146.4 million and negative
EBITDA of $157.2 million.

We might not achieve or sustain profitability or at any time have
sufficient resources to meet our capital expenditure and working capital
requirements. We will need to significantly increase our revenues and cash flows
to meet our debt service obligations.
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OUR FUTURE GROWTH MAY REQUIRE SUBSTANTIAL ADDITIONAL CAPITAL

Our current plans for expansion may require substantial additional cash
from outside sources. We currently anticipate that our capital expenditures for
2001 will be approximately $120.0 million for the Tier III Markets business. It
is our intention that capital expenditures for the Nationwide Data Platform
business will be financed separately and therefore will net affect our current
liquidity position. We will also have substantial net losses to fund and our
substantial cash requirements will continue into the foreseeable future.

Additional sources of financing may include:

o} public or private equity or debt financings,
o capitalized leases, and
=] other financing arrangements.

Additional "financing may not be available to us on acceptable terms,
within the limitations contained in the documents relating to our indebtedness,
or at all. Failure to obtain such additional financing could result in the delay
or abandonment of some or all of our development and expansion plans and
expenditures.

WE HAVE A SUBSTANTIAL AMOUNT OF INDEBTEDNESS, SIGNIFICANT DEBT SERVICE
REQUIREMENTS AND REFINANCING RISKS

As of March 31, 2001, we had approximately $1.8 killion of indebtedness
outstanding. In addition, until February 15, 2003, our senior discount notes
accrete in value instead of paying cash interest. At March 31, 2001, the
carrying value of the notes was $350.8 million, which will accrete to a
principal amount of $460.8 million as of February 15, 2003. Subseguently, we
will be required to make semi-annual cash interest payments on these notes. Qur
substantial indebtedness c¢ould have important consequences. For example, it
could:

o] limit our ability to obtain additional financing in the future,

o} require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from
operations to make payments on our indebtedness, thereby reducing
the funds available to us for other purposes, including working
capital and capital expenditures,

o limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to changes in,
our business or the industry in which we operate,

o] make us more highly leveraged than many, if not all, of our
competitors, which could place us at a competitive disadvantage
relative teo our competitors that are less leveraged, and

o increase our vulnerability in the event of a downturn in our
business.
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The deocuments under which our Jlong-term debt was issued contain a
number of significant covenants. These covenants limit, among other things, our
ability to:

o] borrow additional money,
Q create liens,
o) engage in sale-leaseback transactions,
o pay dividends,
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o] make investments,

o sell assets,

o issue capital stock,

o redeem capital stock,

o] merge or consolidate, and

o) enter into transactions with our stockholders and affiliates.

The limitations contained in the documents under which our long-term
debt was issued are subject to a number of important qualifications and
exceptions. In particular, while the indentures applicable to our senior
discount notes and our senior notes restrict our ability to incur additional
indebtedness, they do permit us teo incur an unlimited amount of purchase money
indebtedness. If we incur new indebtedness, the related risks that we and our
subsidiaries now face could intensify.

Under our credit facilities, certain of our subsidiaries are required
to meet a number of financial tests at the end of each quarter. In addition,
these subsidiaries are required to prepay at least $100 million of indebtedness
under those credit facilities prior to May 1, 2002. Failure to comply with these
tests or to make the required prepayments could limit their ability to make
further borrowings, or could result in a default under our credit facilities,
allowing the lenders te accelerate the maturity of the loans made thereunder.
Qur subsidiaries might not be able to comply with these covenants in the future.

If we fail to meet our obligations under the documents governing our
indebtedness there could be a default on our indebtedness which would permit the
holders of substantially all of our indebtedness to accelerate the maturity
.thereof.

In connection with the build-out of our networks and expansion of our
services, we recorded negative EBITDA and cur earnings were insufficient to
cover fixed charges for 1998, 1999 and 2000. After giving effect to the increase
in interest expense resulting from the establishment of the forty-eight month
term loan with Dresdner Kleinwort Benson Noxth American Leasing Inc. which we
entered into in November 2000 to purchase the KMC VI Equipment (and which was
later repaid with a portion of the proceeds from the KMC Funding Meonetization)
and the termination of the KMC Telecom IV credit facility as if they occurred on
January 1, 2000, our earnings would have been insufficient to cover fixed
charges by $370.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2000. We might not be
able to improve our earnings before fixed charges or EBITDA. I1If we do not, we
will not be able to meet cur debt service obligaticns.
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BECAUSE WE ARE A HOLDING COMPANY, WE WILL BE RELIANT ON FUNDS FRCOM QOUR
SUBSIDIARIES TO REPAY OUR INDEBTEDNESS AND OUR SUBSIDIARIES' CREDITORS MAY HAVE
PRIORITY ON THOSE FUNDS

We are a holding company whose sole material asset is the common stock
of our subsidiaries. In connection with the amended senior secured credit
facility, we have reaffirmed the pledge of all of the common stock of our
operating subsidiaries that own our 37 existing networks to the lenders under
the amended senior secured credit facility. These operating subsidiaries, which
currently own substantially all of our operating assets related to our Tier III
Markets business, are directly liable to the lenders under the amended senior
secured credit Ffacility. In addition, under a recent amendment to the amended
senjior secured credit facility, we will be required to pledge to the lenders all
of the common stock of a subsidiary holding company which we will organize to
hold all of the common stock of the operating subsidiaries through which we
condugt our Naticnal Data Platform business.

We must rely upon dividends and other payments from our operating
subsidiaries to generate the funds necessary to meet our obligations, including

Copyright 2001 EDGAR Online, Inc. (ver 1.01/2.003) Page 34
DCOIVENKE/147091.2




KMC TELECOM HOLDING’C = 10-K — Annual Report . Date Filed: 4/17/2001

the payment of principal and interest on the notes. These subsidiaries are
legally distinct from us and have no obligation to pay amounts due by us. The
ability of our operating subsidiaries to make such payments to us will be
subject to, among other things, the availability of funds, the terms of each
operating subsidiary's indebtedness and applicable state laws. In particular,
the terms of the gperating subsidiaries' credit facilities prohibit them from
paying dividends and principal and interest on intercompany borrowings unless,
among other things, they are in compliance with certain financial covenants.
Accordingly, we cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain any funds from
our operating subsidiaries.

Claims of creditors of our subsidiaries, including trade creditors,
will generally have priority as to the assets of such subsidiaries over the
claims of the Company and the holders of our indebtedness and capital stock. We
have unconditionally guaranteed the repayment of the amended senior secured
credit facility.

THERE ARE RISKS IN CONNECTION WITH OUR NATIONWIDE DATA PLATFORM BUSINESS

We have entered into a number of guaranteed revenue contracts with
carrier customers whereby we, as the local service provider, will provide data
telecommunications services to these cowmpanies for approximately 42 to 51
months. At the present time we have commitments under these agreements to
provide more than one million ports.

To date, we have principally financed the capital cost of the eguipment
associated with the provision of this serxvice. We are wheolly dependent upon
payment of fees under agreements with the carrier customers in order to fund the
required financing.

We do not have an option to renew or extend these agreements. In
addition, given the rapid change in techneology in the telecommunications
industry, the eguipment may be obsoclete at the end of the term.

Currently, more than 96% of the ports comprising our nationwide data
platform are subject to our contracts with Qwest. Any failure by Qwest to make
the contracted payments would have a material adverse effect on cur business.

OUR INDUSTRY IS EXTREMELY COMPETITIVE AND MANY OF OUR COMPETITORS HAVE
GREATER RESQOURCES THAN WE HAVE

The telecommunications industry is extremely competitive, particularly
with respect to price and service. We face competition in all of our markets,
primarily from incumbent local exchange carriers. Generally, our incumbent local
exchange carrier competitor is one of the regional Bell operating companies. The
incumbent local exchange carriers:

Ie] have long-standing relationships with their customers,

o) have financial, technical and marketing resources substantially
greater than we have,

o have the potential to Fund competitive services with revenues from
a variety of businesses, and
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o] currently kenefit from a number of existing regulations that favor
these carriers.

We do not believe that Tier IIT markets can profitably support more
than two facilities-based competitors to the incumbent local exchange carrier.
In several of our markets we face competition from two or more facilities-based
competitive local exchange carriers. After establishing and funding a network in
a given market, the marginal cost of carrying an additicnal call is negligible.
Accordingly, in Tier III markets where there are three or more facilities-based
competitive local exchange carriers, we expect substantial price competition. We
believe that such markets may be unprofitable for one or more operators.
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Potential competitors in our markets include:

o microwave carriers,

o) wireless telecommunications providers,

o cable television companies, utilities, regional Bell operating
companies seeking to operate outside their current local service
areas,

+] independent telephone companies, and

o large leong distance carriers, such as AT&T and MCI WorldCom, which
have begun to offer integrated local and 1long distance

telecommunications services.

Industry consclidation and the formation of strategic alliances within the
telecommunicatiens industry, as well as the development of new technologies,
could also give rise to significant new competitors for us.

A large portion of our Nationwide Data Platform business will be
conducted in larger Tier I and Tier II markets. We expect that our primary
competitors in this business will be both incumbent local exchange carriers and
other competitive local exchange carriers. Because the regional Bell operating
companies and cther incumbent local exchange carriers tend to focus their
efforts on Tier I and Tier II markets, they will have a significantly greater
local presence in these markets. In addition, due to the larger size of the
markets, there are a greater number of facilities-based competitive local
exchange carriers competing for data business in these markets than we usually
face in Tier III markets. For this reason, we generally will not enter these
markets to offer nationwide data platform services unless we have a pre-existing
agreement with a significant customer justifying our presence in the market.

One of the primary purposes of the Telecommunications Act of 1996 is to
promote competition, particularly in local markets. Recent regulatory
initiatives allow competitive local exchange carriers like us to interconnect
with incumbent 1local exchange carrier facilities. This provides increased
business opportunities for us. However, these regulatory initiatives have been
accompanied by increased pricing flexibility for, and relaxation of regulatory
oversight of, the incumbent local exchange carriers. If the incumbent local
exchange carriers engage in increased volume and discount pricing practices or
charge us increased fees for interconnection o their networks, or if the
incumbent local exchange carriers delay implementation of our interconnection to
their networks, our business may be adversely affected.

To the extent we interconnect with and use incumbent local exchange
carrier networks to serve our customers, we are dependent upon their technology
and capabilities. The Telecommunications Act imposes interconnection eobligations
on incumbent leocal exchange carriers, but we cannot assure you that we will be
able to obtain the interconnections we require at desirable rates, terms and
conditions. In the event that we experience difficulties in obtaining
appropriate and reasonably priced service from the incumbent local exchange
carriers, our ability to serve our customers would be impaired.

Both the long distance and data transmission businesses are extremely
competitive. Prices in both businesses have declined significantly in recent
years and are expected to continue to decline. Qur leong distance services face
competition from large carriers such as AT&T, MCI WorldCom and Sprint. We will
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rely on other carriers to provide transmission and termination for our long
distance traffic and therefore will be dependent on such carriers.

Although we expect to experience declining prices and increasing price
competition, we might not be able tc achieve or maintain adequate market share
or revenue, or compete effectively, in any of our markets.
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INCUMBENT LOCAL EXCHANGE CARRIERS HAVE DISPUTED THE ENTITLEMENT OF
COMPETITIVE LOCAL EXCHANGE CARRIERS TO RECIPROCAL COMPENSATION FOR CERTAIN CALLS
TC INTERNET SERVICE PROVIDERS

In most states in which we provide sexrvices, our arrangements with the
incumbent local exchange carriers provide that every time a customer of an
incumbent local exchange carrier connects to an Internet service provider that
is one of our customers, we are entitled to receive payment from the incumbent
local exchange carrier. This payment is called "reciprocal compensation." The
incumbent local exchange carriers have objected to making reciprocal
compensation payments and are seeking to have this changed by legislation,
regulation and litigation. The incumbent local exchange carriers have threatened
to withhold, and in many cases have withheld, reciprocal compensation for such
calls. We recognized reciprocal compensation revenue of approximately $18.2
million or B.7% of our revenue, related to these calls for the year ended
December 31, 2000. As of December 31, 2000, the receivable related to these
calls was approximately $7.2 million.

In May 2000, we reached a resclution of our claims for payment of
certain reciprocal compensation charges previously disputed by BellSouth
Corporation. Under the agreement, BellSouth made a one-time payment that
resclved all amounts billed through March 31, 2000. In addition, we agreed with
BellSouth on future rates for recipreocal compensation, setting new contractual
terms for payment. OQur prior agreement with BellSouth provided for a rate of
$.009 per minute of use for reciprocal compensation. Under the terms of the new
agreement, the rates for reciprocal compensation which will apply to all local
traffic, including Internet service provider-bound traffic, will decrease over
time. The reduction will be phased in over a three year period beginning with a
rate of $.002 per minute of use until March 31, 2001, §.00175 per minute of use
from April 1, 2001 through March 31, 2002 and $.0015 per minute of use from
April 1, 2002 through March 31, 2003.

In March 2001, we filed a formal complaint against Southwestern Bell
Telephone Company with the Kansas Corporation Commission seeking payment of past
due reciprocal compensation for calls to Internet service providers. We cannot
predict the outcome of this proceeding.

We are currently pursuing resclution of this issue with other incumbent
local exchange carriers. Our goal is to reach mutually acceptable terms for both
ocutstanding and future reciprocal compensation amounts for all traffic. We
cannot assure you that we will reach new agreements with these carriers on
favorable terms; nor can we assure you that changes in legislation or regulation
will not adversely affect our ability te collect reciprocal compensation.

WE RELY ON INCUMBENT LOCAL EXCHANGE CARRIERS FOR INTERCONNECTION AND
PROVISIONING

Although the incumbent local exchange carriers are legally required to
"unbundle” their network into discrete elements and permit us to purchase only
the network elements we need to originate and terminate our traffic, thereby
decreasing operating expenses, we cannot assure you that this unbundling will be
timely or result in favorable prices. We cannot service a new customer unless
the incumbent local exchange carrier sends a technician to physically alter its
netwerk (known as provisioning). We have experienced delays in provisioning
unbundled network elements from incumbent local exchange carriers in the past
and these delays have hampered our revenue growth. These delays may continue to
oceur.

In January 1989, the Supreme Court overturned the Federal
Communications Commission's rules regarding which network elements must be
unbundled by the incumbent local exchange carriers, and remanded to the Federal
Communications Commission the question of which network elements are "necessary”
to competing carriers like us. The Supreme Court also remanded several issues to
the U.S. Court of Appeals for the 8th Circuit for further consideration.

On November 5, 1999, the Federal Cecmmunications Commission issued an
order establishing the network elements that must be offered by incumbent local
exchange carriers as unbundled network elements. The Federal Communications
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Commission required that most, but not all, of the network elements specified in
its initial order, as well as some new network elements not included on the
original 1list, be made available by incumbent local exchange carriers. The
Federal Communications Commission also changed the obligation of incumbent local
exchange carriers to provide cerxtain combinations of network elements. Various
parties have sought reconsideration and filed appeals of the Federal
Communicaticons Commission’'s order. Those appeals and petitions are pending and
there can be no assurance as toc their ulcimate outcome.

On July 18, 2000, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the 8th Circuit issued
a decision in which it upheld the Federal Communication Commission's use of a
forward-locking methodoleogy to establish prices for network elements, but the
Court vacated the agency's rule that the methodeclogy applied should be bkased on
the use of the most efficient telecommunications technology currently available
and the lowest cost network configuration. Rather, the Court held that the
methodelogy must be applied based on the costs of the incumbent local exchange
carriers' existing facilities and equipment. The issue was remanded to the
Federal Communications Commission for further consideration. The Court's ruling
is currently under review by the U.S. Supreme Court. A decision by the Supreme
Court is expected in the Court's fall 2001 term. We are unable to provide
assurances as to the outcome of the Supreme Court case or of the remand
proceeding that must be conducted by the Federal Communications Commission.

The 8th Circuit also affirmed its prior decision to vacate the Federal
Communications Commission rule that required incumbent local exchange carriers
to provide combinations of network elements that are not ordinarily combined in
their networks. The Court's decision keeps in place the system whereby carriers
cannot cobtain network element combinations unless the incumbent local exchange
carrier has already combined the elements in its network today. The Supreme
Court is currently reviewing this issue as well as the pricing issue described
above.

WE MUST COMPLETE THE INSTALLATION OF QUR CUSTOMER SERVICE SYSTEMS

Sophisticated information and processing systems are vital to our
growth and our ability to monitor costs, bill customers, provision customer
orders and achieve operating efficiencies. Initially, our billing and
information systems were designed largely in-house with partial reliance on
third-party vendors. These systems generally met our needs due in part to our
low volume of bills and orders. As we have expanded our services and our
customer base, the need for sophisticated billing and information systems has
increased significantly. We have embarked wupon a program to implement a full
suite of order management, customer service, billing and financial applications.
These applications include electronic order tracking software developed by Eftia
088 Solutions 1Inc., providing comprehensive billing functions developed by
Billing Ceoncepts Systems, Inc./APTIS, Inc. and financial scftware developed by
PeopleSoft, Inc. The installation of the operational support systems has been
substantially completed with development and expansion to continue as needed.
The initial installation of the new billing and financial systems was completed
during the second quarter of 1999. Additional development of the billing and
financial systems will be phased in over time as needed. Our failure to:

o implement the new operational support systems on a timely basis,

o adequately identify all of our informaticn and processing needs,
or

0 upgrade ocur systems as necessary,

could have a material adverse effect on our business.

THERE ARE RISKS IN PROVIDING LONG DISTANCE SERVICES

We enter into wholesale agreements with long distance carriers to
provide us with long distance transmission capacity. These agreements typically
provide for the resale of long distance services on a per minute basis {some
with minimum volume commitments or volume discounts). The negotiation of these
agreements involves estimates of future supply and demand for long distance
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telecommunications transmission capacity, as well as estimates of the calling
pattern and traffic levels of our future long distance customers. Should we fail
to meet cour minimum volume commitments, if any, pursuant to these agreements, we
may be obligated to pay underutilization charges or we may lose the benefit of
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all or a portion of the volume discounts we have negotiated. Likewise, we may
underestimate our need for long distance facilities and therefore be reguired to
obtain the necessary transmission capacity in "spot markets" which are often
more expensive than longer term contracts. We canncot assure you that we will
acguire long distance capacity on favorable cterms or that we can accurately
predict long distance prices and volumes so that we can generate favorable gross
margins from our long distance business.

WE ARE SUBJECT TO SIGNIFICANT GOVERNMENT REGULATION WHICH MAY CHANGE IN AN
ADVERSE MANNER

Cur networks and the provision of switched and private line services
are subject to significant regulation at the federal, state and local levels.
The telecommunications industry in general, and the competitive local exchange
carrier industxry in particular, are undergoing substantial regulatory change and
uncertainty. We cannot assure you that future regulatory, judicial or
legislative changes, or other regulatory activities, will not have a material
adverse effect on our business. For a further discussion of regulatory issues
see Item 1 - "Business--Regulation" of this Report on Form 10-K.

WE WILL BE DEPENDENT UPCN KNT NETWORK TECHNOLOGIES LLC FOR CUTSIDE NETWORK
RELATED CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES

We are currently in negotiations to complete the transfer of our
construction division to KNT Network Technologies, LLC, a company independently
owned by Harold N. Kamine and Nassau {apital, our principal stockholders.
Pursuant to an arrangement between the parties, effective June 1, 2000, we
cransferred substantially all of the employees of our construction division to
KNT. KNT is providing censtruction and maintenance services to us and is being
reimbursed for all of the direct costs of these activities. In addition, we are
currently funding substantially all of KNT's general overhead and administrative
costs at an amount not to exceed $15 million per annum. We will be dependent
upon KNT for performance of our network related construction needs.

WE ARE DEPENDENT ON AGREEMENTS WITH THIRD PARTIES FOR OUR RIGHTS-OF-WAY AND
FRANCHISES

We must obtain easements, rights-of-way, entry to premises, franchises
and licenses from various private parties, actual and potential competitors and
state and local governments in order to construct and operate cur networks, some
of which may be terminated upon 30 or 60 days' notice to us. We cannot assure
you that we will obtain rights-of-way and franchise agreements on acceptable
terms or that current or potential competitors will not o¢btain similar
rights-of-way and franchise agreements that will allow them to compete against
us. If any of our existing franchise or license agreements were terminated or
not renewed and we were forced to remove cur fiber optic cables or abandon our
networks in place, such termination could have a material adverse effect on our
business. Our agreements for rights-of-way and similar matters generally require
us to indemnify the party providing such rights. Such indemnities could make us
liable for actions {including negligence of the other party).

THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS INDUSTRY IS SUBJECT TO RAPID TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGE

The telecommunications industry is subject to rapid and significant
changes in technolegy, and we must rely on third parties for the development of
and access to new technology. We cannct predict the effect of technological
changes on our business. For example, Voice over Internet Protocol technoclogy is
not currently being used te any material extent for many of the purpeses for
which we believe it will in the future. There may be significant obstacles in
implementing Voice over Internet Protocol for these purposes. We believe our
future success will depend, 1in part, on our ability to anticipate or adapt to
these changes and to offer, on a timely basis, services that meet customer
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demands. In particular, service offerings in the data transmission sector of the
industry are expanding rapidly. We may not be able to anticipate or adapt to
such changes and to offer, on a timely basis, services that meet customers!'
demands.

THE FUTURE SUCCESS OF OUR BUSINESS DEPENDS UPON KEY PERSONNEL

We believe that the efforts of a number of key management and operating
personnel will largely determine our success and the loss cf any of such persons
could adversely affect us. We do not maintain so-called "key man" insurance on
any of our personnel. We have employment agreements with Mr. Lenahan, our Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. Young, our President and Chief Operating Officer, and Mr.
Stewart, our Chief Financial Officer, which expire at varicus times from March
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2003 through April 2005. Our success will also depend in part upeon our ability
to hire and retain highly skilled and qualified operating, marketing, financial
and technical personnel. The competition for qualified perseonnel in the
telecommunications industry is intense and, accordingly, we may not be able to
hire or retain necessary personnel.

37

Copyright 2001 EDGAR Online, Ine. (ver [.01/2.003) Page 40
DCOIIENKE/147091.2




KMC TELECOM HOLDIN(’C —10-K — Annual Repore . Date Filed: 4/17/2001

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Market risks relating to our operations result primarily from changes
in interest rates. A substantial portion of our long-term debt bears interest at
a fixed rate. However, the fair market wvalue of the fixed rate debt is sensitive
to changes in interest rates. We are subject to the risk that market interest
rates will decline and the interest expense due under the fixed rate debt will
exceed the amounts due based on current market rates. We have entered inteo two
interest rate swap agreements with commercial banks to reduce the impact of
changes in interest rates on a portion of our outstanding wvariable rate debt.
The agreements effectively fix the interest rate on $415.0 million of our
outstanding variable rate borrowings under our amended senior secured credit
facility due 2007. A $325.0 million interest rate swap agreement entered inte in
April 2000 terminates in April 2004 and a $90.0 million interest rate swap
agreement entered into in June 2000 terminates in June 2005. For other
information regarding the swap agreements, see Note 6, "Interest Rate Swap
Agreements," of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item
8 of this Report on Form 10-K.

The following table provides information about our significant
financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in interest rates (in
millions) :

Fair Value

December future Prineipal Payments

Long-Term Debt:
Fixed Rnte:
Senior Discount Notes
interest payable at 12 1/2%,
maturing 2008............ 5 85.3
Senior Motes, interest
payable ac 13 1/2%, maturing
2009, ... i e 109.5 - - - - - 275.0 275.0
Variable rate:
Amended Senior Secured
Credit Facility, interest
variable (11.87% ak
December 31, 2000)(aj.... 618.2 . -5 54.5 95.9 136.5 126.7 618,2
Internet Infrastructure
Equipment Financing (8,75%
at December 3i, 2000){a}, 110.0 18.3 1.4 1.4 20.9 - - 11¢.0

340.2 ] J40.2

<
;
-
.
w
.

Interent rate owapn:
variable race for fixed rate 1. - - - - - - -

Total S s09.8 $ 18.3 § 32.0 § 85.9 5 128.8 $ 136.5 § 941.9 $ L,343.4

(a) Interest is based on a variable rate, which at ocur option, is determined by
either a base rate or LIBOR, plus, in each case, a specified margin.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

The following statements are filed as part of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K:

FORM 10-K
PAGE NO.
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REPCRT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of KMC Telecom
Holdings, 1Inc. as of December 31, 139% and 2000, and the related c¢onsolidated
statements of operations, redeemable egquity, nonredeemable equity and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2000. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on cur audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statewments. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluvacing the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our cpinicn.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. as of December 31, 19%% and 2000, and the
consclidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2000, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States.
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/s/ ERNST & YQUNG LLP

MetroPark, New Jersey
April 17, 2001
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KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{IN THOUSANDS)

DECEMBER 11

1999
ASSETS
Current asceto:
Cash and cash equivalents 3 85,966
Restricted investments........ 37,125
Accounts receivable, nec of allowance for doubtful accounts of 55,551 and
§210,921 In 1999 and 2000, reBpechively. ... c.iei i ieiiaiiiiaaa i 37,3173
Prepaid expenncg and other CUrIent ABBEEB. .. ..., .- catvarmmnrromnnoneans TR 1,37s
Total current apsetf.. ... ovaivuras . 151,839
Long-term restricred inveatmenta.. ... ... 51,446
Networks, property and equipment, net... . 639,324
Intangible aBO6LA, NEE. . .o variarrar i iarrey . 3.602
Deferred financing coeste, neb........... . [ 38,81%
L L= 1T . 7. T - 1,011
S 886, 040

[P
LIABILITIES, REDEEMABLE AND NONREDEEMABLE EQUITY ({(DEPICIEHCY)
Current liabilitipa:

Accounts payable........ § 167.490
Accrued expensen.... P P . . 37,047
L2 T I T L 4,309
Total gurrent liabilieiem. . ... i i i it i e e e e e m e, 208, 846
Noter payable.,.......... - 235,000
Senior notep payable.,.... P 275,000
Senior dincount neten payable.... 301,137
Total LiabllitdeB. oo i i i i ettt it e e e e 1,019,983

Commitments and contingencies

Redeemable equity:

$ 105,977
37,125

47,141
14,088
209,131
62,931
1,021,684
3.835
32,766
928

§ 1,331,275

5 160.803
73,6405
17,839

272,247
726,173
275,000
340, 181

1,615,601

Senior redeemable, exchangeable, PIK preferred stock, par value $.01 per

share: authorized: 630 shares in 1999 and 2000: ohares issued nnd
outsranding:
Serien E, 65 sharen in 199% and 75 shaxreno in 2000 {$74,954 liquidarion

preferencel .. .. 50,7710 61,992
Serien F, 44 pharep in 199% and 48 ghares ip 2000 {547,866 liguidation
it - R L L R L LRl T T 41,370 50,568
Redeemable cumulutive convertible pretericd stock, par value 5.01 per share; 499
sharen nuthorized: shares lasued and putatanding:
Series A, 124 pharep in 1959 and 2000 (532,380 liquidation preferencel......... 71,349 109,272
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Seriss C, 175 shares in 1999 and 2000 {317,500 liquidacion preference)......... 40,301 72,701
Redeemable cumulative convertible preferred stock, par vdalue 3.0l per
share; 2,500 shares authorized: shares issued and outstanding:
Series G-1, -0- shares in 1999 and 59 ghares in 2000 ($19,%00 liquidacion

5T T3 g 2 A - 19,435
Series G-2, -0~ shares in 1999 and 481 ohares in 2000 {$162,600 liquidation
preference) ... ..... .. verie e eana Prene e . . - 158,797
Redeemable c¢ommon stock, shares inaucd und oututand:ng 224 in 1999 and 2000. . f 33,755 45,561
Redeemable common Btock WArFAMEB. . .vuve i varascaioneaneonnn e e e e e e e e 12,925 16,817
TOTAl Yedefmable SUUEEY .. ot u et e ittt e r e aa e 250,470 535, 145
Monredeemable equity {(deficliency):

Common stock, par value 5.01 per share; 4,250 shares authorized, ipoued and
ocutstanding, 629 shaoreo in 1999 and 637 ahares in 2000 s &
Unearned CoOMPENBOLion. . .ttt ratarartaanarosnsaroananns . . . . (9,163) (16, 608)
Accumulated deficit, ............. e e e .. . (375,256} {B02,869)
Total nonredeemable equicty (defdciency). . .. . o .o i i e e (184,413) (B19,471)
$ 886,040 § 1,331, 215

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES.
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¥MC TELECOM ICLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CPERATIONS
{IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE RMOUNTS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

1998 1999 2000
Revenue........ P e b e e H 22,425 s 64,311 5 209,195
Operating expenses:
Hetwerk operakting conts:
Kon-cagh gtock oprion compenpation eXpense............. 566 2,387 2.731
Othnr network operating costo..... et edtae e 27,699 81,678 169,593
Selling, general and administrative:
Hopn-cash ptock option comprenpoatlon expense 6,514 27,446 31,840
Qther selling, general and adminilsirative. ... . 14,171 B4 ,434 162,275
Depreciation and amortization. . e virar e i vaviarrranarres %,357 29.077 76,129
Total OPeracing eXpenBeS. ... ..ttt et e 78,207 225,022
Loss from operationm............... R P . {35,782} {160, 709) (233,371)
OENEr BXPETIO®. 4t r v at i a s ar st a s o st e st s i b o st aasann -- (4,297 --
Interest income. . - . e - . a.618 4,701 11,784
INEGTEBE EXPOTBE. o ., oottt oot rmm b ot e {29,789} (69,411} (136,393)

Net loms hefore cumulntive effect of change in accounting

Prineiple, s e e i e e e e e .- {76,751} {225,716} {357, 942)
Cumularive effect of change in agcounting pr;ncxplc,.....,..,. -- -- {1,705
LT T T . {76,753 (225,716} (35%,687)
Dividends and accretion on redeemable preferred otock... .. (1B, 185) [BLl,633} (94,440)
et loss applicable to common BHareholdert. . ... .uinurinnnaes $ {95, 018) 5 (307,149} $ (454,127

sasssamamsmEEs aEmsmsnssanns assasEmsEmaEs

Het losg per common phare before cumulative effect of chunge

in acceounting pr1nc1p1e ........... b d e aaee e aeae - {114.42) 3 (3Jgo._nd} 5 [529.22)
Cumulative effect of change in ac:uunning princxpl: ........... .. - £1.99}
Net lonp per ¢ommon phare.............. heevrrser e § {114.,42} $ (360.88) ] {531.21}

asssmmasanass PYTT R TTPYT T T T YA

Pro forma amounkto assuming the change in accounting
principle was applied retronctively:
Net loop applicable to common shareholderd.........vvirivaara.n 5 {95,424) § 1309,054) $  {452,422)
swwsswERrnuws svwawvensenes
Net loos per COMMOR DHATC. .. i vriuimrrmasnvaroneroarnarasanss 9 {114 .88) H (36z.880

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding..........

EEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES.
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KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLTIDATED STATEMENTS OF REDEEMABLE EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1598, 1599 AND 2000

{(IN THOUSANDS}

REDEEMARLE EQUITY

Preferred Stock

Series A Seriea ¢ Series o Series B Series ¥

Shares Amount Shaxes Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1957 134 5 108,879 150 % 14.867 25 52,379 - 5§ .- -~ 5 .-

Conversion of Seriep D Preferred
Stock to Serieo € Preferred Stock..... as 2.179 1251 (2,379
1zguance of commen otock.......
Aeeretion of redeemable equity........ 11,511 4.597
Payment of dividendn on preferred
otock of subsidiary............. ...,
Izguanee Of waTTanbf.......ccoeevaean..
Cancellation of XMC Telecom stock
OPLIONE. . v i iia s asiarsacasasarans
lsguance and adjuatments to fair
value of stock options to employeen...
Igauance and adjustments to fair
value of stock options
to NON-emPlOYeED. v varrarararrrran
Amortizations of unearned
compenpation

L . . 3.

BALANCE, DECEMHER 31, 1998 124 10,390 179 21,643 -- -- -- -- -- --
Inpuance of Series E Preferred Stock... GO 44,829

Issuance of Series F Preferred Stock... 40 34,817
Stock Dividends of Series E Preferred

BLOCK. vnvr v ra iyt a e 5 5,004

Stock Dividends of Series F Preferred

3 4 4,177
10guance Of WALTARED ... o.uvaenranoaroan

Reclaggifigation of warrants related
to "put righbB". ... iviiiinnn i rran

Exercise of warrantb......... .

Accretion on redeemable equity......... 40,959 18,658 537 2,376

1souance and adjustments to fair

value of ntock optionn

0 EMPlOYeRB. o v i v i

Adjustment to fair value of ptock

options to non-#mployeeD...i.veiriias
Amortization of unearned compensntion..
Exarcioe of otock eptions..............
keclagoification of adaitional
paid-in ¢apital defigieney.............
Het 10BO. v vmvnnvararsennrarsnscarnen
BALANCE, DECEMBER 1311, 1999 124 T1,349 175 40,301 - - 65 50,770 44 41,370

Iopuance of Series Gl Preferred Stock..
Issuance of Series G2 Preferred Stock..
Stock Dividends of Seriep E Preferred

BLOCK . tuvvirranransararnssarsansrsrrnns 10 9.9551

Stock Dividends of Serieno F Preferred

BEOCK. . e e e e ] 6,654
Accretion on redeemable equity......... 37,923 32,400 1,271 5,509

taguance and adjustménts to fair
value of stogk optieng te employces....
Igguance and adjuptments to fair
value of stock cptionn

LO NOR-CMPlOY&EH. . o o vern i mrnmnnnnn
Exercise of stock optlonp .
Amortization of uncarned compensation..
Redemption and retirement of Series F

Preferred SEOCK. ... ivviaiiinaiarans {4) {2,965
Reclasgification of additional paid-in
capital deficiency..................
B 7 -
BALANCE, DECEMBER 1. 2000 124 $105.272 175 $72.701 5 -~ 75 £61.992 48 $50,568
Xmwise SESESES SSEEGSEE EESEESE ESAWS USESNE SANESSS ESSSSEE ESSEESE BEEEEEE

KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REDEEMABLE EQUITY

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998, 199% AND 2000
{IN THOUSANDS)
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REDEEMABLE EQUITY

Series G Common Stock
Tetal
Redeemable
Shares Amount Shares Amount Warrants Equity
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1997 -- 8 -- 133 $11,187 § 539 $ 47,651
Conversion of Series D Preferred
Stock to Series € Preferred Stock....
Isguance of common stock...............
Accretion of redeemable equity......... 91 9,500 9,500
payment of dividends on preferred 1,618 135 17,861
stock of subsidiary............. o0,
Taguance Of Warrants. .. .. v vrrrrrvrane
Cancellation of KMC Telecom stock
optlons. ... .. ...
Iaguance and adjustments Lo fair
value of stock options to employees....
Igsuance and adjustments to fair
value of stock options
to non-employees. ... ... i,
Amortizations of unecarned
compensation
Net 1log8. ... . ie it i e cmmemeeaasaans
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1998 -- -- 224 22,305 674 75,012
Igsuance of Sevies E Preferred Stock...
I1ssvance of Series F Preferred Stock... 44,829
Stock Dividends of Series E Preferred 14,817
StoCk. . e e
Stock Dividends of Series F Preferred 5,004
StOCK. . i i it e
Igguance of Warrants.......c.....c...... 4,177
Reclnssification eof warrants relaced 10,5606 104,606
to "put rights™............ ... ...
Exercise of warrants (249) (249)
Accretion on redeemable equity.........
Issuance and adjustments to fair 1,450 1,894 76,274
value of stock cptions
O EMPlOYEES . . . v vt r it
Adjustment to fair value of stock
opticns to non-employees.............
amortization of unearned compensation..
Exercise of stock optiens..............
Reclassification of additional
paid-in capital deficiency...........
3L S - .
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1999 -- -- 224 13,755 12,925 250,470
Igsuance of Series Gl Preferred Stock..
Issuance of Series G2 Preferred Stock.. 59 19,355 19,155
Stock Dividends of Series E Preferred 481 158,145 158,145
SEOCK. c vttt i s
Stock Divxdends of Series F Preferred 9,951
BEOCK . - e e
Accretion on redeemable eguity......... 6,654
Issuance and adjustments to fair 732 11,808 3,882 93,538
value of stock options to employees..
Issuance and adjustments to fair --
value of stock opticns
TO NON-emMployees ... .. iiiiiriain s
Exercise of stock options.. --
Amortization of unearned compensation.. --
Redemption and retirement of Sevieg F .-
Preferred Stock... ...
Reclaasification of additional paid-in } {2,965)
capital deficiency...............
Net LOBH. . ... iiaiinsnn i e iinianns --
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2000 540 $5178,232 224 545,563 $16,B17 $535,145
wwmEE  mewaemn eem=—- mumemmen cmmzama EweEEese==

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES.
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KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF NONREDEEMABLE EQUITY

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998, 199% AND 2000

{IN THOUSANDS)

NOWREDEEMABLE EQUITY

Additicnal
CCHMON STOCK Paid-1In
Shares Amount. Capital
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1997 614 $ 6 $ 15,374
Conversion of Series D Preferred Stock to Series C
Preferred SEOCK. ..ottt it ittt
Iopuance of Common stock.......
Accretion of redeemable equity (17,861}
Payment of dividends on preferred stock of subsidiary... {592}
Inpuance of warrants. ... ... vttt i 10,446
Cancellation of XMC Telecom stock optionu {26,191)
lopuance and adjustments to fair value of stock
options Lo employeen. . ... ... i i e 27,906
loguwance and adjustmenta to falr value of atock
opbtionn Lo non-employeed. . ... .. i i e 4,668
Amortizations of unearned compennpation....
b L T I
BALANCE, DECEMBER 131, 19398 614 G 13,750
Tapuance of Series E Preferred Stock....................
Igpuance of Series F Preferred Stock.........
Stock Dividends of Series E Preferred Stock.. (5,004)
Stock Dividends of Series F Preferred Stock. . {4,177)
Ippuance of WaLTaRES. ..ttt en et oran o nara s 19
Reclaspification of warrants rclnced to "put righve".... 249
EXerCior Of WaLLAnTS. . ...t otiiinir it raaaaaaeaaanansnsn 1
Accrection on redeemable equity........ .. ... i il (76,274}
Ispuance and adjustments to fair value of stock
Cptions tO eMPloyeeS. .. ittt e i e 27,286
Adjustment to fair value of stock options to
NON-CMPLOYCEE. « v vttt ittt i e ettt 5.832
Amortization of unearned compengation... .
Exercine of SLock OpLiOnB. ..ottt it i 15 333
Reclpopitication of additional paid-in capital
LT B . 37,255
] A - T |
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1999 625 6 --
1gsuance of Series G1 Prefarred Stock,......
Iapunnce of Seriea G2 Preferred Stock........
Stock Dividends of Series E Preferrved Stock.. {9.951)
Stock Dividends of Series F Preferred Stock.. e {6,654)
hceeretion on redeemable equity..... ..., {93,535)
lgsuance and adjustments to fair value of gtock
cprionas o cmployeen. ... ... ittt i i i, 38,218
Isguance and adjustments to fair value of stock
options to non-employeces 1,796
Excrcise of Stock optiono..........s+4 — a 562
Amortization of unearned CompentaTion.........veev-vnnn-
Redemprion and recirement of Series P Preferred Stock...
Reclagsification of additienal paid-in capital
deflciency. . v i et e 67,564
LT o . T Y e
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2000 637 56 $ --
AmamssEsEEEEEEEEEE = mmmm

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES.

KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS QF REDEEMABLE EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998, 19599 AND 2000

{IN THOUSANDS)

NONREDEEMABLE EQUITY
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Unearned Accumulated
Compensation Deficit
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1997 $ {6,521) 5 (35,532)
Converslon of Series D Preferred Stock to Series C
Preferred SEOCK. ..o viuvirvvarsarrrsrassrrsanternranns
Tssuance of Common stock...............
Accretion of redeemable equity
Payment of dividends on preferred stuck of subsidiary...
Issuance Of Warranbts. .. ... ... .ttt i,
Cancellation of KMC Telecom stock options............... 4,845
Iasuance and adjustments to fair value of stock
OPLioNE CO BMDIOYEES . . ot it et oiiresna s ianaias s e {27,906}
Ipsuance and adjustments to fair value eof atock
options to non-employees..... et e eiac et
Amortizations of unearned compengatlon........ . .oviiian 23,758
b A . - 7 T {76,753)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 3i, 1998 {5,824} (112, 285)
Issuance of Sevies E Preferred Stock....................
Issvance of Series F Preferred Stock.........ouuviununan
Stock Dividends of Series E Preferred Stock
Stock Dividends of Series F Preferred Stock
Issuance OF Warranbs8. ... oo uvrrvrrrmsrrrrnrrannrnsss ..
Reclassification of warrants related to "put righvs*....
Exercise Of WaArranCs. ... vuvravravrarerrrransiansarass
Accretion on redeemable equity...... . .
Issuance and adjustments co fair value oE stock
OPLions tO empPloyeesS . . .. itr it ittt ia i (27,2886}
Adjustment to fair value of stock options to
NON-eMpPLlOYeeS . .. ...ttt i it i
Amcrtizaclen of uneazned compensataon 23,947
Exercise of Stock options..
Reclassification of add1n10n1l pﬂid in capi:11
[ L8 5 o 2o T {37,285)
T = < (225,7186)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1999 $ {9,163} § (375,256
Iggunnce of Series Gl Preferred Stock
Isguance of Series G2 Preferred Stock
Stock Dividends of Serles E Preferred Stock
Stock Dividends of Series F Preferred Stock
Accretion on redeemable equiby..... ... ... ... .l
Issuance and adjustments to fair value of stock
gptions to employers. ... ... ...l (38,218)
Issuance and adjustments to falr value of stock
CPLioNs tO NON-eMPIOYEES. .t vtvn it tanr s s rareraanras
Excrcise of Stock oprions.................
Amortization of unearned compenaation 30,7713
Redemption and retirement of Series F Preferred Stock... (362)
Reclassification of additional paid-in capital
deficiency {67,564)
- o o - - (359,687)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2000 $ {16,608) $ (B0D2,869)

T T LT T
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KMC TELECOM HOLDIRGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{IN THOUSANDS)

Nonredeemable
Equity
(Deficiency)

$  (26,671)

{17,861)

{592)
10,446

(21,346)

4,668
23,758
{76,783)

{104,353}

(5,004}
(4,177)
749
249
1
(76,274}

5,832
23,947
313

(225,716}

5 (384,413}
{9,951}

. {6,654}
(93,535)

3,796

562

30,773
(352)

{359,687

s {819,471)

YRAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

1998 1999 2000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
LT < T . $ (76,7523} §  1225,716) s {33%9.687)
Adjuntments te reconcile net logn to net caoh used in
operating activitien:
Depreciation and amOrCizhbion. . vt riatraaanrroaaaiaaasa 9,257 29,077 76,129
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Provision for doubLful GCCOUNES. .. v v riaaaasanansnansnanas k¥ 5,263 7,875
Hon-cash interstt CRPENBe. .. vt s vt aaarar s rras . 25,256 31,141 45,635
¥on-cash otock option compensaticn expernse ¥,080 29,813 314,571
Changesg in assets and liabilicieg:
RCCOUNER XOCOIVBBLO - o e ettt et e et eea e e eaas {6,591} (25, 097) 127,643)
prepaid cxpenpes and other current ampetS............... B {826} {60) {2,513)
Othey aBBeED. i ..ottt r i cnacaaassstoaaansoiaaaassassnensan . {1,821} 3,720 {9
Accounts payable.. 7,449 29,319 31,541
Accrued expenses. . - 1,719 21,105 34,123
Deferred FOVeIUD . . oo vt iiiaasas st st as s aaaasasassasssaasan 1,187 3,122 13,530
Net canh used in operating aCtivities, . .vvvirvnnrraceosanrs annn= {33,571) (98,293} {146,448)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Construction of networks and pirchages of equipment............. {148,580) (318,536} (176,649)
Acquipitions of franchines, authorizations and related assets... {1,147) {1,992} {928)
Deposit on purchase of equipment.... ...t ininnnnnnnnnnnnannnnn (2,551) - -
Additionp to restricted investmenta.. - - (43,471)
Purchase of investmento, net......... . ({27,920) - -
Redemption Of InVEBEMEALG. . t. v i e s isanstausuiansnsnuannens - 43,450 12,085
Net caph used in investing activitdes........ ..o ool (186¢,198) (277,078) {488,352}
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceedn Erom notes payable, net of issuance coBtsS.............. 938 - 108,475
Preceeds Erom ioguance of common stock and warrants,
net of i00UARCE COBEB. .ttt v rrsornareneacanaeanenananaaanann 20,446 - -
Proceedn Erom ipsunnee of preferred stock and related wacrrants,
net of 100UANCE COBED. vttt rnanararinnasssssnsnrsnns - 91,001 177,500
lnpuance costp of credit facilities {6,515) (2,300) -
Proceeds from cxercipe of ptock optione - 333 562
Proceeds from lesubnce of senlor notes, net of issuarce costs
and purchase of portfolio of restricted investments.......... - 158, 286 -
Proceeds Erom senior pecured credit facility, net of issuance
COBLES . v v v narns IR e - 192,826 176,203
Repayment of noten payhable. ... oo i iiiiiiiiaa, . (20,801} - -
Repurchase and retirement of Series F Preferred Stock R - - {3,329}
Proceeds from ipouance of ocnilor discount notes, net of
I0BUANCE CODED. sttt sttt eeaa i aaaiasasaaananssnnsaans 225,923 - -
Dividends on preferred stock of pubgsidiary......vvvvvviiiainaaaas {592} - -
MNet cash provided by financing activities.... ... ... . .. ... .. 219,399 440, 156 659,411
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents..............ccuuenn. 5,528 G4, 785 24,011
Cagh and cash equivalents, beginning of year..... ..o iiviivanas 15,553 21,181
Cash and cagh equivalents, end ©f year. ... . v vvvnarrrarrrareny 5 21,181 s a5, 966 $
azmssssmaws asssnsssnmem EreEEEsEEmEEE

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Caah paid during the year for intereat, net of amountn
capitalized... ... ... i i e e § 4,438 $ 29,182 $ BO,374

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES.
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KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2000
1. ORGANIZATION

KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. ("KMC Holdings") is a holding company
formed during 1997 primarily to own all of the shares of its then operating
subsidiaries, KMC Telecom Inc. ("KMC Telecom"), KMC Telecom II, Inc. {"KMC
Telecom II"), KMC Telecem III, Inc. ("KMC Telecom III") and KMC Telecom of
Virginia, 1Inc. KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to herein as the Company. All significant intercompany transactions and
balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

The <Company is a fiber-based integrated communications provider
offering data, voice and Internet infrastructure services. The Company offers
these services to businesses, governments and institutional end-users, Internet
service providers, long distance carriers and wireless service providers,
primarily in the South, Southeast, Midwest and Mid-Atlantic United States. The
business has two distinct components: serving communications-intensive customers
in Tier III markets, and providing data services on a nationwide basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS CF PRESENTATION

On July 1, 1899, the Company acquired all of the membership interests
of KMC Services LLC from Harold N. Kamine, the Chairman of the Board of
Directors, for nominal consideration. KMC Services LLC was formed to provide
services to the Company and its customers, 1initially offering a leasing program
for equipment physically installed at the customer's premises. The acquisition
was accounted for as a combination of entities wunder common contreol, and no
changes were made to the historical cost basis of KMC Services LLC's assets.
During the second gquarter of 1999, the Company had reduced the carrying value of
its $709,000 loan receivable from KMC Services LLC to an amount equal to the
value of KMC Services LLC's net assets at the acgquisition date. KMC Services LLC
has been consolidated with the Company since July 1, 1999.

The Company has incurred significant operating and net losses as a
result of the development and operation of its networks, and expects that such
losses will continue as it emphasizes the development, construction and
expansion of its networks and building its customer base. As a result, the
Company does not expect there to be any cash provided by operations in the near
future. The Company will alsoc need to fund the expansion of its networks as well
as to fund capital expenditures related to its nationwide data platform
business. To date, the Company has financed its operating losses and capital
expenditures with equity invested by its founders, preferred stock placements,
credit facility borrowings, equipment lcans, operating leases, monetizations and
its 12 1/2% senior discount notes and 13 1/2% senior notes. Actual capital
expenditures and operating losses will depend on numerous factors, including the
nature of future expansion and acquisition opportunities and factors beyond the
Company's contrel, including ecconomic conditions, competition, regulatory
developments and the availability of capital.

As more fully described in Note 18, the Company entered into two
financing transactions in March 2001 which generated aggregate unrestricted net
proceeds of approximately $271.0 million and, in April 2001, further amended its
Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility te, among other things, revise certain of
the financial covenants to be less restrictive.

After giving effect to these transactions, management believes that the
Company's cash and borrowings available under the Amended Senior Secured Credit
Facility will be sufficient to meet its liquidity needs on a going concern basis
to fund operating losses and capital expenditure requirements for all of its
Tier III markets, its current Nationwide Data Platform contracts and cother
existing commitments into the second quarter of 2002. However, in the event that
such plans change, the assumptions upon which such plans are based prove
inaccurate, the Company expands or accelerates its business plan or determines
to consummate acquisitions, the foregoing sources of funds may prove
insufficient and the Company may be reguired to seek additional financing sconer
than currently expected. Additional sources of financing may include public or
private equity or debt financings, leases and other financing arrangements.

46

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company considers all highly liguid investments with maturities of
three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

NETWORKS, PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Netwerks, property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation is provided over the estimated wuseful lives of the
respective assets using cthe straight-line wethed for financial statement
reporting purposes.
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The estimated useful lives of the Company's principal classes of assets
are as follows:

Networks:
Fiber optic BYSLeMS. ... .. it i ittt i e e 20 years
Telecommunications equipment........ ... ... .. ... ... ... 10 years
Furniture and obher. ... ... . ... .. it et e e 5 years
Leasehold dmprovements. . o vttt it it it i et i e Life of lease

INTANGIELE ASSETS

Costs incurred in developing new networks or expanding existing
networks, including negotiation of rights-of-way and obtaining regulatory
authorizations are capitalized and amortized over the 1initial term of the
agreements, which generally range from 2 to 7 years. Costs incurred to obtain
city franchises are capitalized by the Company and amortized over the initial
term of the franchises, which generally range from 2 to 7 years.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Company records impairment losses on long-lived assgets used in
operations or expected to be disposed of when impairment indicators are present
and the cash flows expected to be derived from those assets are less than the
carrying amounts of those assets. An impairment loss is measured as the amount
by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.
There were no material impairments of assets during the year.

DEFERRED FINANCING COSTS

The Company capitalizes issuance costs related to its debt. Such costs
are amortized utilizing the interest method over the lives of the related debt.
The related amortization is included as a component of interest expense, and
amounted to $2,27%,000, $3,814,000 and $7,721,000 for the years ended December
31, 1998, 1999 and 2000, respectively.

OTHER ASSETS

Qther assets are comprised principally of employee loans, security
deposits and other deposits.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognized in the period the service is provided, except for
installation revenue which is recorded over the average contract period {(see
"ACCOUNTING CHANGE" below). The Company generally invoices customers one month
in advance for recurring services resulting in deferred revenue. However, some
services, such as reciprocal compensation, are not billed in advance resulting
in unbilled revenue included in accounts receivable. The accounts receivable
balances for services which will be billed in the succeeding month totaled
$5,305,000 and $4,119,000 at December 31, 1999 and 2000, respectively.
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ACCOUNTING CHANGE

In December 199%, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 101 ("SAB 101"), REVENUE RECOGNITION IN FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS. SAB 101 provides additional guidance in applying generally accepted
accounting principles to revenue recognition in financial statements. Through
December 31, 1999, the Company recognized installation revenue upon completion
of the installation. Effective January 1, 2000, in accordance with ¢the
provisions of SAB 101, the Company is recognizing installation revenue over the
average contract period. The cumulative effect of this change in accounting
principle resulted in a charge of approximately $1.7 million which was recoxded
in the quarter ended March 31, 2000. For the year ended December 31, 2000, the
net effect of adopting this change in accounting principle was a deferral of the
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recognition of $3.0 million of revenue, which increased net loss for the period
by $3.56 per share. Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2000 includes $1.7
million of revenues that, prior to the accounting change, had been recognized
through December 31, 1999.

NET LOSS PER COMMON SHARE

Earnings per share are calculated in accordance with FASB Statement WNo.
128, EARNINGS PER SHARE ("Statement 128"). All earnings per share amounts for
all periods have been presented in accordance with the provisions of Statement
128. Diluted earnings per share have not been presented for any period, as the
impact of including outstanding opticons and warrants would be anti-dilutive.

INCOME TAXES

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with FASE Statement
No. 109, ™"ACCOUNTING FOR INCOME TAXES," which requires that deferred income
taxes be recorded based on differences between the financial reporting and tax
reporting bases of assets and liabilities, using enacted tax rates.

ADVERTISING COSTS

Advertising costs are included in selling, general and administrative
expenses and charged to expense as incurred. For the years ended December 31,
1998, 1999 and 2000, such costs were $2,769,000, $4,080,000 and $6,851,000,
respectively.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

As permitted by FASB Statement No. 123, ACCOUNTING FCR STOCK-BASED
COMPENSATION ("Statement 123"), the Company has elected to follow Accounting
Principles Board Opinicn No. 25, ACCOUNTING FOR STOCK ISSUED TO EMPLOYEES ("APB
25") and related interpretations in accounting for its employee stock-based
compensation. Under APB 25, no compensation expense is recognized at the time of
option grant if the exercise price of the employee stock option is fixed and
equals or exceeds the fair market wvalue of the underlying common stock on the
date of grant, and the number of shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of
such option are known and fixed at the grant date. As more fully described in
Note 7, the Company's ocutstanding stock options are not considered fixed options
under APB 25. The Company accounts for non-employee stock-based compensation in
accordance with Statement 123.

SEGMENT REPORTING

In 1998, the Company adopted FASB Statement No. 131, DISCLOSURES ABCUT
SEGMENTS OF AN ENTERPRISE AND RELATED INFORMATION ("Statement 131"). Statement
131 uses a management approach teo report financial and descriptive information
about an entity's operating segments. Operating segments are revenue-producing
components of an enterprise for which separate financial information is produced
internally for the entity's chief operating decision maker. Under this
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definition, the Company operated within a single segment until the commencement
of our Nationwide Data Platform Business in 2000. See Note 8 for the Company's
detailed segment disclosure.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Beocard issued Statement
No. 133, ACCOQUNTING FOR DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES
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{("statement 133"), which will require the Company to recegnize all derivatives
on the balance sheet at fair wvalue. The Company will be required to adopt
Statement 133, as amended by Statement No. 137 which defers the effective date,
as of January 1, 2001. Derivatives that are not hedges must be adjusted to fair
value through income. If the derivative is a hedge, depending on the nature of
the hedge, changes in the fair value of derivatives will either be offset
against the change in fair value of the hedged assets, liabilities, or firm
commitments through earnings or recognized in other comprehensive income until
the hedged item is recognized in earnings. The ineffective portion of a
derivative's change in fair value will be immediately recognized in earnings.
The Company has two interest rate swap agreements to hedge its interest rate
exposure {see Note 6}, and the estimated effect of applying Statement 133 as of
December 31, 2000 would have resulted in the fair value of the swaps of $13.2
million being included as an asset with a corresponding credit to other
comprehensive income.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 1998 and 1999
consolidated financial statements to ceonform with the 2000 presentation.

3. NETWORKS, PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Networks and equipment are comprised of the following:

DECEMBER 131,

[IN THOUSANDS)

Fiber OpTic SYSELMO. .. v vttt it it et ian e it aannns S 150,647 5 249,690
Telecommunications equipment .. ... i v irrr i irrirnnsrrens 436,056 696,683
Furniture and other. ..... .. ..ttt e it i s 21,397 27,799
Leagehold improvements. . v e i oo ittt i i it 1,811 2,704
CONSETUCEION-AN-PEOGIrOBB. . . ottt it sttt it e sttt 66,380 157,075
676,291 1,133,942

Less accumulated depreciation.. ... .. .. ... . i iiiiiiaas {36,967) (112,258)
3 639,124 $ 1,021,684

Costs capitalized during the development of the Company's networks
include amounts incurred related to network engineering, design and construction
and capitalized interest. Capitalized interest related to the construction of
the networks during the years ended December 31, 19298, 19299 and 2000 amounted to
$5,133,000, $6,635,000, and $10,384,000 respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000, depreciation
expense was $8,284,000, 527,723,000, and 575,434,000 respectively.
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4. ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses are comprised of the following:

DECEMBER 31,
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{IN THOUSANDS)

Accrued COMPERSALION. .. .. iv i it i it m it i s 5 11,423 5 20,088
Accrued interest payable. .. ... . it it it 8,544 20,419
Accrued telecOmmNIcALions COSLE. . v ittt anrar oo anons 3,794 B,125
Accrued costs related to financing activitiea................. 7,316 1,593
Other accrued eXPEeNSEE. ..t i eaar s o et s et 5,970 23,400

] 37,047 § 73.605

5. LONG-TERM DEBT
KMC FUNDING INTERNET INFRASTRUCTURE EQUIPMENT FINANCING

In November 2000, our subsidiary, KMC Telecom Funding Corporation,
entered into an agreement with Dresdner Kleinwort Benson North American Leasing,
Inc. to finance the $168 million of Internet infrastructure eguipment purchased
from Qwest Communications Corporation in June 2000 (the "KMC Funding Equipment")
(See Note 9). The maximum aggregate loan amount is $168 million and the proceeds
from this loan can be drawn down in installments through April 30, 2001 to fund
the vendor payments due on the KMC Funding Eguipment. Borrowings under this loan
bear interest payable at a rate of 200 basis points above the LIBOR Rate through
Octeober 15, 2001 and 600 basis points over the LIBOR Rate thereafter. The loan
is sgecured by the KMC Funding Equipment and requires 48 monthly payments
commencing on December 15, 2000. The first 6 payments are interest only, and the
remaining payments include principal and interest. The loan was amended in March
2001 to allow the Company to borrow an additional $21 million. As of December
31, 2000, the outstanding balance on this loan was $110 million and an
additional $7% million was drawn down through March 2001. As more fully
described in Note 18, the loan was repaid in full in March 2001, using a portion
of the proceeds from the KMC Funding Monetization.

AMENDED SENIOR SECURED CREDIT FACILITY

During the guarter ended March 31, 2000, the Company's subsidiaries,
KMC Telecom, Inc., KMC Telecom II, Inc., KMC Telecom of Virginia, Inc. and KMC
Telecom III, Inc. {collectively, the '"Borrowers"), amended, restated and
combined the Senior Secured Credit Facility and the Lucent Loan and Security
Agreement, into a single facility by entering into a $700 million Loan and
Security Agreement (the "Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility") with a group
of lenders led by CIT Lending Services Corporation (formerly Newcourt Commercial
Finance Corporation), GE Capital Corporation, Canadian Imperial Bank of
Commerce, First Union National Bank and Lucent Technelogies Ine. (collectively,
the "Lenders").

The Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility includes a $175 million
reducing revolver facility (the "Revolver"), a $75 million tferm loan (the "Term
Loan"} and a $450 million term loan facility (the "Lucent Term Loan"). At
December 31, 2000, the outstanding loan balances on the Revolver, the Term Loan
and the Lucent Term Loan, were approximately $165 millieon, $75 millieon, and $378
million, respectively. Up to 510 million of the Revolver can be used for letters
of credit and as of December 31, 2000, approximately $7 million had been drawn
against the Revolver for letters of credit.

The Revoclver will mature on April 1, 2007. Proceeds Erom the Revolver
can be used to finance the purchase of certain equipment, transaction costs and,
upen attainment of certain financial conditiens, £or working capital and other
general corporate purposes. The aggregate commitment of the Lenders under the
Revolver will be reduced on each quarterly payment date beginning April 1, 2003.
The initial quarterly commitment reduction is 5.0%, reducing te 3.75% on July 1,
2003, then increasing to 6.25% on July 1, 2004, and further increasing te 7.50%
on July 1, 2006. Commencing with the fiscal year ending December 31, 2001, the
aggregate Revolver commitment will be further reduced by an amount egual to 50%
of excess operating cash flows (as defined in the Amended Senior Secured Credit
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Facility) for the prior fiscal year until the Borrowers achieve certain
financial conditions. The Borrowers must pay an annual commitmentc fee on the
unused portion of the Revolver ranging from .75% to 1.25%.

The Term Loan is payable in twenty consecutive guarterly installments
of $188,000 beginning on April 1, 2002 and two final installments of $35.6
million each on April 1, 2007 and July 1, 2007. Proceeds from the Term Loan can
be used to finance the purchase of certain equipment, transaction costs, working
capital and other general corporate purposes.

The Lucent Term Loan provides for an aggregate commitment of up to $450
million. Proceeds from the Lucent Term Loan can be used to purchase Lucent
products or to reimburse the Borrowers for Lucent products previocusly purchased
with cash or other socurces of Iligquidity. The Lucent Term Loan will mature on
July 1, 2007 and requires gquarterly principal payments beginning on July 1, 2003
of 5%. The principal payment decreases to 3.75% per guarter beginning on Octcber
1, 2003, increases to 6.25% on October 1, 2004 and further increases tc 7.50% on
October 1, 2006. An annuwal commitment fee of 1.50% is payable for any unused
portion of the Lucent Term Loan.

Borrowings under the Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility bear
interest payable, at the Borrowers' option, at either (a) the "Applicable Base
Rate Margin" (which generally ranges from 2.00% to 3.25%) plus the greater of
(i) the administrative agent's prime rate or (ii) the overnight federal funds
rate plus .5% or (b) the "Applicable LIBOR Margin" (which generally ranges from
3.00% to 4.25%) plus LIBOR, as defined. “"Applicable Base Rate Margin" interest
is payable quarterly while "Applicable LIBOR Margin" interest is payable at the
end of each applicable interest period or at least every three months. Under the
Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility the Borrowers were being charged a
weighted average interest vrate of 11.87% at December 31, 2000 (10.26% at
December 31, 1999 and 9.38% at December 31, 1598). If a payment default were to
occur, the interest rate will be increased by four percentage peints. If any
other event of default were to occur, the interest rate will be increased by two
percentage points.

KMC Holdings has unconditionally guaranteed the repayment of the
Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility when such repayment is due, whether at
maturity, upon acceleration, or otherwise. KMC Holdings has pledged the shares
of each of the Borrowers to the Lenders to collateralize its obligations under
the guaranty. In addition, the Borrowers have each pledged all of their assets
to the Lenders.

The Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility contains a number of
affirmative and negative covenants, one of which requires us to make additional
cash capital contributions to our subsidiaries which are the borrowers
thereunder of at least $35 million prior to August 31, 2001. The original
covenant required $185 million in cash capital contributions by April 1, 2001.
However, because we contributed $150 million cf the proceeds of our Series G
private equity financing toward fulfilling this requirement, the Lenders amended
this covenant by extending the due date on the remaining $35 million of cash
capital contributions to August 31, 2001. Because the entire $185 million cash
capital contribution was not made by July 31, 2000, however, the applicable
interest rate asscociated with the facility was increased by 100 basis points.
Additional affirmative and negative covenants include, among others, covenants
restricting the ability of the Borrowers to consolidate or merge with any
person, sell or lease assets not in the ordinary course of business, sell or
enter into long term leases of dark fiber, redeem stock, pay dividends or make
any other payments (including payments of principal or interest on loans) to KMC
Holdings, create subsidiaries, transfer any permits or 1licenses, or incur
additiconal indebtedness or act as guarantor for the debt of any person, subject
to certain conditions.

The Borrowers are required to comply with certain financial tests and
maintain certain financial ratios, including, ameong others, a ratio of total
debt to contributed capital, certain minimum revenues, maximum EBITDA losses and
minimum EBITDA, maximum capital expenditures and minimum access lines, a maximum
total leverage ratioc, a minimum debt service coverage ratio, a minimum fixed
charge coverage ratic and a maximum consclidated leverage ratio.
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Failure to satisfy any of the financial covenants will constitute an
event of default under the Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility permitting the
Lenders, after notice, to terminate the commitment and/or accelerate payment of
outstanding indebtedness thereunder. The Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility
also includes other customary events of default, including, without limitation,
a cross-default to other material indebtedness, material undischarged judgments,
bankruptcy, loss of a material franchise or material license, breach of
representations and warranties, a material adverse change, and the occurrence of
a change of control.
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As of December 31, 2000, the borrowers were in compliance with all of
the financial covenants of the facility.

In April 2001, the Company further amended the Amended Senior Secured
Credit Facility. This amendment made a number of significant changes in the
facility, although it did not change the overall amount of the facility or the
purposes for which proceeds of loans under the facility may be used. 1In
connection with the amendment, the Lenders also waived failures by the Borrowers
to comply with certain of the prior financial covenants as of March 31, 2001 and
the Company made aggregate capital contributions to the Borrowers of 5200.0
million {which satisfied the $35 million requirement discussed above). 1In
additien, the collateral for KMC Holdings' guaranty of the facility was expanded
to include substantially all of the assets of KMC Holdings. See Note 18 for a
detailed description of this amendment.

TELECOM IV SENIOR SECURED TERM LOAN

During the quarter ended June 30, 2000, the Company's subsidiary, KMC
Telecom, IV, Inc., closed a new senior secured term loan (the "Telecom IV Loan")
with Lucent Technologies Inc. The Telecom IV Loan initially provided up to $35
million of principal borrowings, plus accrued interest, until certain conditions
were met and then provided for additional principal borrowings up te a ceiling
of $50 million, plus accrued interest. In December 2000, the Company and Lucent
agreed to terminate this arrangement and the equipment purchased with funds from
the Telecom IV Loan was returned to Lucent. Accordingly, the Telecom IV Loan
balance was extinguished in Full and this facility is no longer available to the
Company .

SENIQR DISCOUNT NOTES

On January 29, 1998, KMC Holdings sold 460,800 units, each unit
consisting of a 12 1/2% senior discount note with a principal amount at maturity
of $1,000 due 2008 pursuant to the Senior Piscount Note Indenture between KMC
Hioldings and the Chase Manhattan Bank, as trustee {(the "Senior Discount Notes")
and one warrant to purchase .21785 shares of Common Stock of KMC Holdings at an
exercise price of $.01 per share. The gross and net proceeds of the offering
were approximately %250 million and $236.4 wmillion, respectively. A substantial
portion of the net proceeds of the offering have been loaned by KMC Heldings to
its subsidiaries. On August 11, 1998, KMC Holdings exchanged the notes issued on
January 29, 1998 for $460.8 million aggregate principal amount at maturity of
notes that had been registered under the Securities Act of 1933 {as used below
and elsewhere herein, "Senior Discount Notes" includes the original notes and
the exchange notes).

The Senior Discount Notes are unsecured, unsubordinated obligations of
the Company and mature on February 15, 2008. The Senior Discount Notes were sold
at a substantial discount from their principal amount at maturity, and there
will not be any payment of interest on the Senior Discount Notes prior Lo August
15, 2003%. The Senior Discount Notes will fully accrete to face value on Februaxry
15, 2003. From and after February 15, 2003, the Senior Discount Notes will bear
interest, which will be payable in cash, at the rate of 12.5% per annum on
February 15 and August 15 of each year, commencing August 15, 2003. The Company
is accreting the initial carrying wvalue of the Senior Discount Notes to their
aggregate face value over the term of the debt at its effective interest rate of
13.7%.
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The Senior Discount Notes are redeemable, at the Company's option, in
whole or in part, on or after February 15, 2003 and prior to maturity, at
redemption prices equal to 106.25% of the aggregate principal amount at
maturity, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date,
declining to 100% of the aggregate principal amount at maturity, plus accrued
and unpaid interest as of February 15, 2006.

The indebtedness evidenced by the Senior Discount Notes ranks pari
passu in right of payment with all existing and future unsubordinated, unsecured
indebtedness of KMC Holdings and senior in right of payment to all existing and
future subordinated indebtedness of KMC Holdings. However, KMC Holdings is a
holding company and the Senior Discount Notes are, therefore, effectively
subordinated to all existing and future liabilities (including trade payables)
of its subsidiaries.

Within 30 days of the occurrence of a Change of Control {(as defined in
the Senior Discount Note Indenture), the Company must offer to purchase for cash
all senior Discount Notes then outstanding at a purchase price equal te 101% of
the accreted wvalue thereof, plus accrued interest. The Company's ability to
comply with this reguirement is subject to certain restrictions contained in the
Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility.
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The Senior Discount Note Indenture contains events of default,
including, but not limited to, (i) defaults in the payment of principal, premium

or interest, {(ii) defaults in compliance with covenants contained in the Senior
Discount Note Indenture, (iii} cross defaults on more than $5 million of other
indebtedness, {iv) failure to pay more than $5 wmillion of judgments that have

not been stayed by appeal or otherwise and (v) the bankruptcy of KMC Holdings or
certain of its subsidiaries.

The Senior Discount Note Indenture restricts, among other things, the
ability oF KMC Holdings to incur additional indebtedness, create liens, engage
in sale-leaseback transactions, pay dividends or make distributions in respect
of capital stock, make investments or certain other restricted payments, sell
assets of KMC Holdings, redeem capital stock, issue or sell stock of restricted
subsidiaries, enter into transactions with stockholders or affiliates or effect
a consclidation or merger. The Senior Discount Note Indenture permits KMC
Holdings' subsidiaries to be deemed unrestricted subsidiaries and, thus, not
subject to the restrictions of the Senior Discount Note Indenture.

The Senior Discount Notes are v"applicable high yield discount
obligations" ("AHYDOs"), as defined in the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended. Under the rules applicable to AHYDOs, a portion of the original issue
discount ("0ID") that accrues on the Senior Discount Notes will not be
deductible by the Company at any time. Any remaining OID on the Senior Discount
Notes will not be deductible by the Company until such OID is paid.

SENIOR NOTES

On May 24, 1999, KMC Holdings issued $275.0 wmillion aggregate principal
amount of 13 1/2% Senior Notes due 2009. On December 30, 1999, KMC Holdings
exchanged the notes issued on May 24, 1999 for §275.0 millien aggregate
pringipal amount of notes that had been registered under the Securities Act of
1933 {as used below and elsewhere herein, "Senior Notes" includes the original
notes and the exchange notes). Interest on the Senior Notes is payable
gsemi-annually in cash on May 15 and November 15 of each year, beginning November
15, 1999. A portion of the proceeds from the offering of the Senior Notes was
used to purchase a portfolic of U.S. government securities that were pledged as
security for the first six interest payments on the Senior Notes.

The Senior Notes are redeemable, at the Company's option, in whole or
in part, on or after May 15, 2004 and prior to maturity, at redemption prices
equal to 106.75% of the aggregate principal amount at maturity, plus accrued and
unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date, declining teo 100% of the
aggregate principal amount at maturity, plus accrued and unpaid interest as of
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May 15, 2007.

In addition, at any time prior to May 15, 2002, the Company may redeem
up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount at maturity of the Senior Notes with
the net proceeds from the sale of common egquity at a redemption price of 113.5%
of the principal amount on such date plus accrued and unpaid interest. Upon a
change of control (as defined in the Senior Note Indenture), the Company must
offer to purchase for cash the Senior Notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of
the principal amount, plus accrued interest. The Company's ability te comply
with this reguirement is subject to certain restrictions contained in the
Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility.

The Senicr Notes are guaranteed by KMC Telecom Financing, Inc., a
wholly-owned subsidiary. The Senior Notes are senior, unsecured, unsubordinated
obligations o©f KMC Holdings and rank pari passu in right of payment with all
existing and future unsubordinated, unsecured indebtedness of KMC Holdings and
senior in right of payment to all of existing and future subordinated
indebtedness of KMC Holdings. However, KMC Holdings is a holding company and the
Senior Notes are, therefore, effectively subordinated teo all existing and future
liabilities (including trade payables), of its subsidiaries.

The Senior Note Indenture contains certain covenants that, among other
things, limit the Company's ability to incur additional indebtedness, engage in
sale-leaseback transactions, pay dividends or make certain other distributioms,
sell assets, redeem capital stock, effect a consolidation or merger of KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc. and enter into transactions with stockhelders and
affiliates and create liens on our assets.
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6. INTEREST RATE SWAP AGREEMENTS
AMENDED AND RESTATED INTEREST RATE SWAP AGREEMENT

In April 2000, the Company entered into an amended and restated
interest rate swap agreement (the "Amended Swap") with a commercial bkank to
reduce the impact of changes in interest rates on a portion of its outstanding
variable rate debt. The Amended Swap effectively fixes the Company's interest
rate on $325 million of outstanding variable rate borrowings under the Amended
Senior Secured Credit Facility {see Note 5} through April 2003, after which time
the Amended Swap is reduced to 5225 million through January 2004 and then
finally reduced to $100 million until termination of the Amended Swap in April
2005. The Company is exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by
the other party to the interest rate swap agreement. However, the Company does
not anticipate nonperformance by the counterparty.

JUNE 2000 SWAP AGREEMENT

In June 2000, the Company entered into a segond interest rate swap
agreement (the "June 2000 Swap") with a commercial bank to reduce the impact of
changes in interest rates on an additional portion of its outstanding variable
rate debt. The June 2000 Swap effectively fixes the Company's interest rate on
an additional $90 million of its outstanding wvariable rate borrowings under the
Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility for a pericd of five years. The Company
is exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to
the interest rate swap agreement. However, the Company does not anticipate
nonperformance by the counterparty.

7. REDEEMABLE AND NONREDEEMABLE EQUITY
SERIES G PREFERRED STOCK

In July 2000, the Company issued 58,881 and 481,108 shares of Series
G-1 Voting and G-2 Non-Voting Convertible Preferred Stock (the "Series G
Preferred Stock"), respectively, to Lucent Technologies, Dresdner Kleinwort
Benson Private Equity Partners, CIT Lending Services, Nassau Capital Partners
and Harold N. Kamine, its Chairman of the Beoard, for aggregate gross proceeds of
$182.5 million. The Series G Preferred Stock has a ligquidation preference of
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$337.97 per share and an annual cumulative dividend equal to 7.0% of the
liquidation preference. Payment of the unpaid dividends is triggered by (i} an
initial public offering in which the Company receives aggregate gross proceeds
of at least $80 million or {ii) a merger, conscolidation or sale of substantially
all assets. As of December 31, 2000, accumulated but unpaid dividends on the
Series G Preferred Stock aggregated $6,388,000.

Each share of Series G Preferred Stock is convertible into a number of
shares of Common Stock equal to the liguidation preference of each share divided
by the conversion prigce then in effect. Initially, the conversion price is
$337.97. However, this price is adjustable, subject to certain exceptions, upon
the occurrence of certain events including (i) the issuance or sale of common
stock for a consideration per share less than the conversion price, (ii) the
issuance of rights or options to acgquire common stock or convertible securities
with an exercise price less than the conversion price and (iii) the issuance or
sale of other convertible securities with a conversion or exchange price lower
than the conversion price. The Series G Preferred Stock will be automatically
converted into common stock upon (i) a Qualified Public Offering, defined as
sale of common stock pursuant to a registration statement in which the Company
receives aggregate gross proceeds of at least $80 million, provided that the per
share price at which such shares are sold in such offering is not less than the
liguidaticn preference then in effect, or (ii) the election of holders of at
least two-thirds of the outstanding shares of Series G Preferred Stock.

The Series G Preferred Stock ranks senior to the Common Stock, Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock and Series C Convertible Preferred Stock, on a
parity with the Series F Senior Redeemable, Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock
and junior to the Series E Senior Redeemable, Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock.
The Series G-1 shareholders are entitled to vote on all matters before the
common holders, as a single class with the common, on an as if converted basis.

Subject to certain limitations and conditions, at the request of the
holders of at least two-thirds of the Series G Preferred Stock, the Company may
be required to redeem the Series G Preferred Stock upon (i) a change of control
or sale of the Company, or {ii) August 15, 2009.
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SERIES E PREFERRED STOCK

On February 4, 1999, the Company issued 25,000 shares of Series E
Seniocr Redeemable, Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock (the "Series E Preferred
Stock") to Newcourt Finance (now CIT Lending Services), generating aggregate
gross proceeds of $22.9 million. ©On April 30, 1999, the Company issued an
additional 35,000 shares of Series E Preferred Stock for gross proceeds of 525.9
million. The Series E Preferred Stock has a liquidation preference of $1,000 per
share and an annual dividend egual to 14.5% of the 1liguidation preference,
payable quarterly. On or before January 15, 2004, the Ccmpany may pay dividends
in cash or in additional fully paid and nonassessable shares of Series B
Preferred Stock. After January 15, 2004, dividends must be paid in cash, subject
to certain conditions. Unpaid dividends accrue at the dividend rate of the
Series E Preferred Stock, compounded quarterly. During 1%99% and 2000, the
Company issued 5,004 and 9,951 shares of Series E Preferred Stock, respectively,
to pay the dividends due for such periods.

The Series E Preferred Stock must be redeemed on February 1, 2011,
subject to the legal availability of funds therefor, at a redemption price,
payable in cash, equal to the liguidation preference thereof on the redemption
date, plus all accumulated and unpaid dividends to the date of redemption. After
April 15, 2004, cthe Series E Preferred Stock may be redeemed, in whole or in
part, at the option of the Company, at a redemption price equal to 110% of the
ligquidation preference of the Series E Preferred Stock plus all accrued and
unpaid dividends to the date of redemption. The redemption price declines to an
amount equal to 100% of the ligquidation preference as of April 15, 2007.

In addition, on or prior to April 15, 2002, the Company may, at its
option, redeem up to 35% of the aggregate 1liquidation preference of Series E
Preferred Stock with the proceeds of sales of its capital stock at a redemption
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price equal to 110% of the liquidation preference on the redemption date plus
accrued and unpaid dividends.

The holders of Series E Preferred Stock have voting rights in certain
circumstances. Upon the occurrence of a change of centrol, the Company will be
required to make an offer to repurchase the Series E Preferred Stock for cash at
a purchase price of 101% of the liquidation preference therecf, together with
all accumulated and unpaid dividends to the date of purchase.

The Series E Preferred Stock is not convertible. The Company may, at
the sole option of the Board of Directors (out of funds legally awvailable),
exchange all, but not less than all, of the Series E Preferred Stock then
outstanding, including any shares of Series E Preferred Stock issued as payment
for dividends, for a new series of subordinated debentures (the "Exchange
Debentures") issued pursuant to an exchange debenture indenture. The holders of
Series E Preferred Stock are entitled to receive on the date of any such
exchange, Exchange Dehentures having an aggregate principal amount equal to ({i}
the total of the liquidation preference for each share of Serxies E Preferred
Stock exchanged, plus {(ii} an amount equal to all accrued but unpaid dividends
payable on such share.

SERIES F PREFERRED STOCK

On February 4, 1999, the Company issued 40,000 shares of Series F
Senior Redeemable, Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock (the "Series F Preferred
Stock”) to Lucent and Newcourt Finance (now CIT Lending Services Corporation),
generating aggregate gross proceeds of $38.9 million. The Series F Preferred
Stock has a liquidation preference of $1,000 per share and an annual dividend
equal to 14.5% of the liguidation preference, payable quarterly. The Company may
pay dividends in cash or in additicnal fully paid and nonassessable shares of
Series F Preferred Stock. During 1999 and 2000, the Company issued 4,177 and
6,654 shares of Series F Preferred Stock, respectively, to pay the dividends due
for such periods.

The Series F Preferred Stock may be redeemed at any time, in whole or
in part, at the option of the Company, at a redemption price equal to 110% of
the liquidation preference on the redemption date plus an amount in cash equal
to all accrued and unpaid dividends thereon to the redemption date. Upon the
occurrence of a change of control, the Company will be required to make an cffer
to purchase the Series F Preferred Stock for cash at a purchase price of 101% of
the 1liguidation preference thereof, together with all accumulated and unpaid
dividends to the date of purchase.

The helders of Series F Preferred Stock have voting rights undex
certain circumstances.
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Upon the earlier of (i) the date that is sixty days after the date on
which the Company c¢loses an underwritten primary offering of at least $200
million of its Common Stock, pursuant to an effective registration statement
under the Securities Act or (ii) February 4, 2001, any outstanding Series F
Preferred Stock will automatically convert into Series E Preferred Stock, on a
ene for one basis.

The Company may, at the sole option of the Board of Directors (out of
funds legally available), exchange all, but not less than all, of the Series F
Preferred Stock then outstanding, including any shares of Series F Preferred
Stock issued as payment for dividends, for Exchange Debentures. The holders of
Series F Preferred Stock are entitled to receive on the date of any such
exchange, Exchange Debentures having an aggregate principal amount equal to (i}
the total of the liquidation preference for each share of Series F Preferred
Stock exchanged, plus (ii}) an amount eqgual to all accrued but unpaid dividends
payable on such share.

In September 2000, the Company repurchased and retired 2,965 shares of
Series F Preferred Stock at 110% of its liquidation preference plus accrued and
unpaid dividends for approximately $3.3 million in accordance with the
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provisions of the certificate of designation applicable to the Series F
Preferred Stock.

On February 4, 2001, the Series F Preferred Stock converted intc Series
E Preferred Stock on a one for one basis {See Note 18 for a more detailed
description).

SERIES A PREFERRED STOCK

There are 123,800 shares of Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred

Stock of KMC Holdings ("Series A Preferred Stock") authorized and outstanding.
Such stock was issued to two entities, Nassau Capital Partners, L.P. and NAS
Partners I L.L.C. ("Nassau Capital" and "Nassau Partners", vrespectively,

collectively referred to as "Nassau") in January 1997 upon the conversion of
certain notes payable and related accrued interest due to Nassau aggregating
$12,380,000. Series A Preferred Stock has a liquidation preference of 5100 per
share and an annual dividend equal to 7.0% of the liquidation preference,
payable quarterly, when and if declared by the Board of Directors out of funds
legally available therefor. Unpaid dividends accumulate and the unpaid amount
increases at the annual rate of 7.0%, compounded quarterly. All accumulated but
unpaid dividends will be paid upon the occurrence of a Realization Event
(defined as (i) an initial public offering with gross proceeds of at least $40
million or (ii]} sale of substantially all the assets or stock of the Company or
the merger or consolidation of the Company intoc one or meore other corporations}.
As of December 31, 2000, accumulated and unpaid dividends on the Series A
Preferred Stock aggregated $3,161,000. Notwithstanding the foregoing, pursuant
Lo an agreement among Nassau and the Company, Nassau has agreed to forego the
payment of dividends from September 22, 1997 through the date on which Nassau
disposes of its interest in the Company; provided that at the time of such
disposition, Nassau has received not less than a 10% annual compound rate of
return during the period it held the Series A Preferred Stock.

Series A Preferred Stock is convertible into Common Stock at a
conversion price equal teo $20.63 per share of Commen Stock, subject to
adjustment upon the occurrence of certain events. Holders of Series A Preferred
Stock may convert all or part of such shares to Common Stock. Upon conversion,
subject to the aforementioned agreement to forego the payment of dividends, the
holders are entitled te receive a cash payment of the accumulated but unpaid
dividends; provided, however, that the Company may substitute common shares
having a fair market wvalue equal to the amount of such cash payment if the
conversion occurs before a Realizatrion Event. Series A Preferred Stock will
automatically convert inteo Common Stock upon the occurrence of a Qualified
Public Offering (defined as the first sale of Common 8Stock pursuant to a
registration statement filed under the Securities Act of 1933 in which the
Company receives gross proceeds of at least $40 wmillion, provided that the per
share price at which such shares are sold in such offering is at least four
times the conversicn price of the Series A Preferred Stock).

The holders of Series A Preferred Stock, except as otherwise provided
in the Company's Certificate of Incorporation, are entitled to vote on all
matters voted on by holders of Common Stock. Each share of Series A Preferred
Stock is entitled to a number of votes egqual to the number of shares of Common
Stock into which such share is convertible. Without the prior consent of
two-thirds of the shares of Series A Preferred Stock, among other things, the
Company may not increase the number of shares of preferred stock (of whatever
series) authorized for issuance, or declare or pay any dividends on shares of
Common Stock or other junior shares. As discussed under "Redemption Rights"
below, the holders of Series A Preferred Stock have certain redemption rights.
Accordingly, such stock has been reflected as redeemable equity in the
accompanying financial statements.

56

SERIES C PREFERRED STOCK

There are 350,000 shares of Series C Cumulative Convertible Preferred
Stock of KMC Holdings {"Series C Preferred Stock") authorized, of which 175,000
shares are outstanding at December 31, 2000. One hundred f£ifty thousand of such
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shares were issued in November 1997, generating aggregate gross proceeds of $15
million and the remaining 25,000 shares were issued in January 1998 upon the
conversion of an equal number of shares of Series D Preferred Stock. Series C
Preferred Stock has a liquidation preference of $100 per share and an annual
dividend eqgual to 7.0% of the liquidation preference, payable guarterly, when
and if declared by the Boaxrd of Directors out of funds legally available
therefor. Unpaid dividends accumulate and the unpaid amount increases at the
annual rate of 7.0%, compounded gquarterly. All accumulated but unpaid dividends
will be paid upon the occurrence of a Realization Event. As of December 31,
2000, accumulated but unpaid dividends on the Series C Preferred Stock
aggregated %$4,286,000. Notwithstanding the foregoing, pursuant te the Purchase
Agreement among the Company, Nassau, GECC and First Union Corp. ("First Union"),
each current holder of Series C Preferred Stock has agreed to forego the payment
of dividends that accumulate during the period from issuance through the date on
which such holder disposes of its interest in the Company; provided that at the
time of such disposition, it has received not less than a 10% annual compound
rate of return during such period.

Series C Preferred Stock 1s convertible into Common Stock at a
conversion price egual to $42.18 per share of Common Stock; provided that such
amount is subject to adjustment upon the cccurrence of certain events. Holders
of Series C Preferred Stock may convert all or part of such shares to Common
Stock. Upon conversion, subject to the aforementicned agreement to forego the
payment of dividends, the holders are entitled to receive a cash payment of the
accumulated but unpaid dividends; provided, however, that the Company may
substitute common shares having a fair market value equal to the amount of such
cash payment if the conversion occurs before a Realizaticn Event. Series C
Preferred Stock will automatically convert into Common Stock upon the occurrence
of a Qualified Public Cffering.

The holders of Series C Preferred Stock, except as otherwise provided
in the Company's Certificate of Incorporation, are entitled te vote on all
matters voted on by holders of Common Stock. Bach share of Series C Preferred
Stock is entitled to a number of votes equal to the number of shares of Common
Stock into which such share is convertible. Without the prior consent of
two-thirds of the shares of Series C Preferred Stock, among other things, the
Company may not increase the number of shares of preferred stock (of whatever
series) authorized for issuance, or declare or pay any dividends on shares of
Comment Stock or other junior shares. As discussed under "Redemption Rights”
below, the holders of Series C Preferred Stock have certain redemption rights.
Accordingly, such stock has been reflected as redeemable equity in the
accompanying financial statements.

The Series C Preferred Stock is subject to redemption at the option of
the Company, in whole but not in part, in connection with an "Acquisition
Event." An Acquisition Event is defined to mean any merger or consolidation of
the Company with any other company, person or entity, whether or not the Company
is the surviving entity, as a result of which the holders of the Company's
Common Stock (determined on a fully diluted basis) will hold 1less than a
majority of the outstanding shares of Common Stock or other equity interest of
the Company, person or entity resulting from such transaction, or any parent of
such entity.

SERIES I PREFERRED STOCK

There are 25,000 shares of Series D Cumulative Convertible Preferred
Stock ("Series D Preferred Stock") authorized, none of which are outstanding at
December 31, 1999 or 2000.

COMMON STOCK

Holders of Common Stock of the Company are entitled to one vote for
each share held on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders. Except as
otherwise required by law, actions at the Company's stockholders meetings (held
at least annually), require the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares
represented at the meeting, a quorum being present. Holders of Common Stock are
entitled, subject to the preferences of preferred stock, to receive such
dividends, if any, as may be declared by the Beard of Directors out of funds
legally available therefor. The Senior Discount Note Indenture and the Company's
other indebtedness restrict the ability of the Company to pay dividends on its
Common Stock. Without the prior consent of two-thirds of the shares of Series A
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Preferred Stock and two-thirds of the shares of Series € Preferred Stock, the
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Company may not declare or pay any dividends on its Common Stock. Except as
discussed under "REDEMPTION RIGHTS" below, the holders of Common Stock have no
preemptive, redemption or conversion rights.

Pursuant to provisions contained in an Amended and Restated
Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31, 1997, as further amended, among
the Company, Kamine, Nassau, CIT Lending Services Corporation, GECC, First
Union, Lucent and Dresdner Kleinwort Benson (the "Stockholders' Agreement"),
these stockholders have agreed to vote their shares and take all necessary
actions to elect the following individuals to the Company's board of directors:
the Chief Executive Officer, the President, three individuals designated by
Nassau, two individuals designated by Kamine, one individual designated by
Dresdner and one individual as an independent director approved by Nassau,
Kamine and other principal existing stockholders. Lucent or a person teo whom
Lucent transfers its shares may be entitled to designate one individual under
certain circumstances. The number of directors each of Nassau, Kamine and
Dresdner is entitled to designate will decrease as their respective percentages
of ownership decrease. If a default relating to payment occurs under the Amended
Senior Secured Credit Facility and continues uncured for 90 days, the holders of
Series C Preferred Stock (currently MNassau, GECC and First Union) are entitled
to elect two additional Directors, who will serve until the default is cured. In
addition, under the certificate of designations relating to each of our Series E
Preferred Stock and Series F Preferred Stock, 1f a default occurs undexr such
certificate(s), the holders of Series E Preferred Stock and/or the holders of
the Series F Preferred Stock will have the right to elect one additional
individual each to serve as a director {for a total of two additional
directors), in each case until the default is cured and all accrued dividends on
such preferred stock are paid in full.

REDEMPTION RIGHTS

Pursuant to a stockhelders agreement, certain of the Company's
stockholders and warrant holders have "put rights" entitling them to have the
Company repurchase their preferred and common shares and redeemable commen stock
warrants for the fair value of such securities if no Ligquidity Event {(defined as
(i) an initial public offering with gross proceeds of at least $40 million, (ii)
the sale of substantially all of the stock or assets of the Company or (iii) the
merger or consolidation of the Company with one or more other corporations) has
taken place by the later of (x) October 22, 2003 or (y) 90 days after the final
maturity date of the Senior Discount Notes. The restrictive covenants of the
Senior Discount Notes limit the Company's ability to repurchase such securities.
All of the securities subject to such "put rights" are presented as redeemable
equity in the accompanying balance sheets.

The redeemable preferred stock, redeemable common stock and redeemable
common stock warrants, which are subject to the stockholders agreement, are
being accreted up to their fair market wvalues from their respective issuance
dates to their earliest potential redemption date {Octeber 22, 2003). At
December 31, 2000, the aggregate redemption value of the redeemable equity was
approximately $580 million, reflecting per share redemption amounts of $1,454
for the Series A Preferred Stock, $711 for the Series C Preferred Stock, $338
for the Series G Preferred Stock and $300 for the redeemable common stock and
redeemable common stock warrants.

WARRANTS

In connection with a predecessor to the Amended Senior Secured Credit
Facility, warrants to purchase 10,000 shares of Common Stock were issued to GECC
in 1997. These warrants, at an exercise price of $.01 per share, are exercisable
from issuance threough January 21, 2005. The fair value of such warrants was
determined to be $525%,000, which was reflected as a charge to deferred financing
costs and credited to redeemable equity. Pursuant to the Stockholders!'
Agreement, GECC may put the shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of
such warrants back to the Company. These warrants have been presented as
redeemable common stock warrants in the accompanying balance sheet at December
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31, 2000.

In connection with the sale of Senior Discount Notes in January 1998,
the Company issued warrants to purchase an aggregate of 100,385 shares of Common
Stock at an exercise price of $.01 per share. The net proceeds of approximately
$10.4 million represented the fair wvalue of the warrants at the date of
igsuance. In the first gquarter of 2000 a portion co¢f these warrants were
exercised resulting in outstanding warrants to purchase an aggregate of 99,285
shares of Common Stock at December 31, 2000. The remaining warrants are
exercisable thrcocugh January 2008.

In connection with the February 4, 1999 issuances of the Series E
Preferred Stock and the Series F Preferred Stock, warrants to purchase an
aggregate of 24,660 shares of Common Stock were sold teo Newcourt Finance (now
CIT Lending Services) and Lucent. The aggregate gross proceeds from the sale of
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these warrants was approximately $3.2 million. These warrants, at an exercise
price of $.01 per share, are exercisable from February 4, 2000 through February

1, 2009.

In addition, the Company also delivered to the Warrant Agent
certificates representing warrants to purchase an aggregate of an additional
107,228 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $.01 per share (the
"Springing Warrants"). The terms of the Springing Warrants provide that they
would become issuable under the circumstances described in the following
paragraph.

If the Company fails to redeem all shares of Series F Preferred Stock
prior to the date (the "Springing Warrant Date"} which is the earlier of (i) the
date cthat is sixty days after the date on which the Company closes an
underwritten primary offering of at least $200 million of its Common Stock
pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act or (ii)
February 4, 2001, the Warrant Agent is authorized to issue the Springing
Warrants to the Eligible Holders [as defined in the warrant agreement} of the
Series E and Series F Preferred Stock. The Company did not redeem all of the
Series F Preferred Stock as of February 4, 2001 and therefore the "Springing
Warrants" have become issuable. See Note 18 for further discussion regarding
these springing warrants.

In connection with the April 30, 1999 issuance of additional shares of
the Series E Preferred Stock, warrants to purchase an aggregate of 60,353 shares
of Common Stock were issued to Newcourt Finance (now CIT Lending Services) and
First Union. The aggregate gross proceeds from the sale of these warrants was
approximately $9.1 million. These warrants, at an exercise price of $.01 per
share, are exercisable from February 4, 2000 through February 1, 2009.

OPTIONS

Prior to the establishment of the present holding company structure,
during 1996 and 1997, KMC Telecom granted options to purchase shares of its
common stock, par value $.01 per share ("KMC Telecom Common Stock"), to
employees pursuant to the KMC Telecom Stock Option Plan.

In order to reflect the establishment of the helding company structure,
on June 26, 1998, the Beard of Directors adopted a new stock option plan, the
KMC Holdings Stock Option Plan (the "1998 Plan"), which authorizes the grant of
options to purchase Common Stock of the Company. The 1998 Plan was approved by
the stockholders, effective July 15, 1998. In September 1998, the Company
replaced the options teo purchase KMC Telecom Common Stock previously granted
under the KMC Telecom Stock Option Plan with options to purchase Common Stock of
the Company granted under the 1998 Plan and granted options to additicnal
employees of the Company under the 19298 Plan.

The 1998 Plan, which is administered by the Compensation Committee of
the Board of Directors of KMC Holdings, provides Ffor various grants to key
employees, directors, affiliated members or other persons having a unique
relationship with the Company excluding Kamine and any person employed by Nassau
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Capital or any Nassau affiliate. Grants may include, without limitation,
incentive stock coptions, non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights,
dividend equivalent rights, restricted stocks, purchase stocks, performance
shares and performance units. The Compensation Committee has the power and
authority to designate recipients of the options and to determine the terms,
conditions, and limitations of the options.

Under the 1998 Plan, opticns to purchase 600,000 shares of Common Stock
of KMC Holdings are eligible for grant, of which 88,101 options have not been
granted as of December 31, 2000. No individual may receive options for more than
75,000 shares. The exercise price of all incentive stock options granted under
the 1998 Plan must be at least equal to the fair market value of the shares on
the date of grant. The exercise price of all non-qualified stock options granted
under the 1998 Plan must be at least 25% of the fair market value of the shares
on the date of grant.

Options granted pursuant to the 1998 Plan will have terms not to exceed
10 years and become exercisable over a vesting period as specified in such
optiens. The 1998 Plan will terminate no later than 2008. Options granted under
the 1998 Plan are nontransferable, other than by will or by the laws of descent
and distribution, and may be exercised during the optionee's lifetime, only by
the optionee.

The 1998 Plan provides for an adjustment of the number of shares
exercisable in the event of a merger, consolidation, recapitalization, change of
control, stock split, stock dividend, combination of shares or other similar
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changes, exchange or reclassification of the Common Stock at the discretion of
the Compensation Committee. Pursuant to the agreements adopted under the 1598
Plan, the greater of 25% of the shares granted or fifty percent of all unvested
options granted become fully vested upon a change-in-control of the Company, as
defined. Under certain circumstances, such percentages may increase.

The holders of options to acquire shares of Common Stock of KMC
Holdings are required to enter into agreements with KMC Holdings which place
certain restrictions upon their ability to sell or otherwise transfer such
shares. In the event of termination of employment of the option holder by the
Company or the affiliates, the Company can repurchase all of the shares or
options held by such individuals, generally for an amount equal to the fair
value of such shares or the excess of the fair value of such options over their
exercise price. -

Information on stock options is as follows:

NUMBER OF SHARES WEIGHTED
------------------------------------- AVERAGE EXERCISE
OUTSTANDING EXERCISABLE PRICE OF OPT!ONS
Balances, January 1, 1998......... .. ....... ... 141,500 19,000 $ 65
L) 5 ] o 262,500 - § 26
Became exercisable...... ... ...l - 117,000
Cancelled. ... ... ... i, {141,500} (19,000} $ (85)
Balances, December 31, 1998 ... .. . ... i 262,500 117,000 5 26
Granted. o i e e e 82,342 - $ 147
Became exercisable - 51,669
Exercised {15,600) (15,600} 5 22
Cancelled (27,200) (2,000} $ (26
Balances, December 31, 199%9.................... 302,042 151,069 $ 59
[ B o =« 255,674 - $ 173
Became exercisable.............. ... i - 136,929
EXerCised. « v ivr i ii et i it a e (7.B03) {7.803) 5 77
Cancelled. i o ov i iar s (38,014) {4,726} 5(158)
Balances, December 31, 2000........ 00000 unvians 51,899 275,969 5 109
EEEEEEAERA TR EEA AN Emm M A ey ———
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The weighted-average exercise price of options exercisable at December
31, 1998, 1999 and 2000 is $22, 526 and 548, respectively, and the
weighted-average fair value of options granted during 1998, 1999 and 2000 were
$114, 5134 and $236 per share, respectively.

The range of exercise prices, number of shares and the weighted-average
remaining contractual life for options outstanding as of December 31, 2000 were
as follows:

WEIGHTED-
WEIGHTED~ AVERAGE
NUMBER AVERAGE REMAINING

RANGE OF NUMBER OF SHARES EXERCISE CONTRACTUAL

EXERCISE PRICES OF SHARES EXERCISABLE PRICE LIFE

$20-850 215,950 153,999 5 26 7.5 years
$51-5100 120,000 55,937 & 75 9.2 years
$101-%$150 45,407 18,590 5 125 7.8 years
5200-5250 72,876 6,343 5§ 248 9.0 years
$251-5300 57,666 600 5 300 9.6 years
Total $20 - $300 511,899 275,469 5109 7.5 years

During the year ended December 31, 2000, non-qualified options to
purchase an aggregate of 255,674 shares were granted to employees, directers and
independent contractors who perform services for the company, at exercise prices
of $75 (127,500}, $125 (2,500), $250 (64,508) and $30¢ (61,166). All such
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options have 10 year terms. The options issued at $75 are 25% vested upon
issuance and vest 12.5% every six months thereafter. The options issued at $125
have immediate vesting. Of the options issued at %250, 23,500 options vest
annually over three years, 40,008 options vest 10% every six months and 1,000
optiong fully vest after one year. The options issued at $300 vest 10% every six
months.

During the year ended December 31, 1999, non-gqualified options to
purchase an aggregate of 82,342 shares were granted to employees at exercise
prices of $125 (67,509}, $225 (2,933) and $250 (11,900}. All options have 10
yvear terms and become exercisable over a five year period in equal six month
increments

As a result of restrictions upon the holders of options granted under
the 1998 Plan, including their ability to sell or otherwise transfer the related
shares, the 1998 Plan is required to be accounted for as a variable stock option
plan. Generally accepted accounting principles for variable stock option plans
reguire the recognition of a non-cash compensation charge for these options
{amortized over the vesting period of the employee options and recognized in
full as of the grant date Ffor the non-employee options). Such charge is
determined by the difference between the fair wvalue of the common stock
underlying the options and the option price as of the end of each period.
Accordingly, compensation expense will be charged or credited periodically
through the date of exercise or cancellation of such stcck options, based on
changes in the value of the Company's stock as well as the vesting schedule of
such options. These compensation charges or credits are non-cash in nature, but
could have a material effect on the Company's future reported results of
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operations.

The Company, upon cancellation of the outstanding options under the KMC
Telecom Stock Option Plan, reversed all compensation expense previously recorded
with respect to such options. Additionally, to the extent the fair value of the
Common Stock of the Company exceeded the exercise price of the options granted
under the 1998 Plan, the Company recognized compensation expense related to such
options over their vesting period.

Based on the estimated fair value of the Common Stock KMC Holdings at
December 31, 1998, December 31, 1999 and December 31, 2000, cumulative deferred
compensation obligations of $27,906,000, 50,972,000, and 585,190,000
respectively, have been established. The Company has recognized compensation
expense aggregating $7,080,000, $29,833,000 and $34,571,000 for the years ended
December 31, 19%8, 1999 and 2000, respectively. The 1998 stock option
compensation expense of $7,080,000 reflects charges of $7,236,000 under the KMC
Telecom Stock Option Plan through its termination in September 1998 and charges
of $21,190,000 related to the 1998 Plan, partially offset by a credit as a
result of the September 1998 cancellation of the KMC Telecom stock options,
reflecting the reversal of $21,346,000 of cumulative compensation previously
recognized for options granted under the KMC Telecom Stock Opticen Plan.

In accordance with the provisions of Statement 123, the Company applies
APB 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its stock option plan. If
the Company had elected to recognize compensation expense based on the fair
value of the options granted at the grant date as prescribed by Statement 123,
net loss and net loss per common share would have been the following:

DECEMBER 31,
1998 1999 2000

{IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

Net loss:
As reported. . ... ...l ${76,753) $ (225,716) $ (359,687)
Pro forma.............. ..., 5{76,869) $ (219,599) 5 (369,114)
Net loss per common share:
As reported................n ${114.42) $ (360.88) $ (531.21)
Pro forma........vvvvnnnons 5(114.56) 5 (353.70) 5 {542.24)
61

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing medel with the fellowing weighted average
assumptions:

1298 1999
2000
Expected dividend yield..................... 0% 0%
0%
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Expected stock price wvelatility............. 50% 70%
85%

Risk-free interest rate............... ... ... 6.0% 6.5%
6.0%

Expected life of optiens.................... 7 years 7 years
7 years

The expected stock price volatility factors were determined based on an
average of such factors as disclosed in the financial statements of peer
companies. The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in
estimating the fair value of traded options which have no vesting restrictions
and are fully transferable. 1In addition, option valuation models require the
input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stcck price
volatility. Because the Company's employee stock options have characteristics
significantly different from those of traded coptions, and because changes in the
subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in
management's opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable
single measure of the fair value of its employee stock options.

8. INFORMATION BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

The Company has two reportable segments as defined by FASE Statement
No. 131, "DISCLOSURES ABOUT SEGMENTS OF AN ENTERPRISE AND RELATED INFORMATION":
a Tier III Markets segment and a Nationwide Data Platform segment. The Company
owns and operates robust fiber-based networks and switching equipment in all of
its 37 Tier III markets, which are predominantly located in the South,
Scutheast, Midwest and Mid-Atlantic United States. The Nationwide Data Platform
segment: provides local Internet access infrastructure and other enhanced data
services in over 140 mwarkets nationwide.

The Company evaluates the performance of its operating segments based
on earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, excluding
general corporate expenses and stock compensation expense ("Adjusted EBITDA").
There are no significant intersegment transactions.

Prior to the develcpment of the Nationwide Data Platform segment in
late fiscal 2000, the Company was managed as one reporting segment for the

fiscal vears ended 1998 and 1999. Therefore, segment data for such years is not
presented.
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
{IN THOUSANDS)

NATIONWIDE DATA

TIER I1I MARKETS PLATFORM CORPORATE TOTAL

REVENUEH . v v evvnarirrrrrsrrrrsnns 3 161,938 s 47,257 ] - $ 209,195
Adjusted EBITDA. ................. {124,545} 1,667 208 (122,673)
Depreciation and amertizatien.... {62,842} {1,409) (11,878} (76,129}
Stock compensntion expense....... {1,027) {346) (33.188) {34,571}
Interest INCOME. ... ivaianrias 8,429 1,188 2,167 11,784
INEETeat CXPENBE. . . vv v v nrns s {122,290) {227} {13,876) {136,393)
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle.......... {1,705) - - {1,7035)
Net income (loBB) .........000004s {303,990) 873 {56,570} (359,687}
Dividends and acgreticn on

redeemable preferred stock - - {94, 440) {94.440)
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¥Net income {loas) applicable ta

sharchelders.................. 5 (303,930 5 873 § (151,010} S (454,127)

Total AOBEED. ... iv it v i aa -] 971,861 § 283,708 5 95, 7086 5$1,321,275
i —mm————— e —————————— [ —

Capital expenditures............. $ 274,191 $ 176,970 5 6,490 § 457,651

SERVICE REVENUES

The Company provides on-net switched and dedicated services and resells
switched services previously purchased from the incumbent 1local exchange
carrier. On-net services include beth services provided through direct
connections to our own networks and services provided by means of unbundled
network elements leased from the incumbent local exchange carrier.

The Company's service revenues consist of the fellowing:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
1998 15999 2000

{IN THQUSANDS)

L] R o 1= $ 8,248 544,615 $1%8,177

Resale......... ... .. ... . .. ' 14,177 19,698 11,018
ToEal ... $22,445 564,313 5209,195

9. SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS AND CUSTOMERS

In March 2000, the Company entered into an agreement with Qwest
Communications Corporatien and Qwest Communications International, Inc.
{collectively, "Quwest") pursuant to which (i} the Company purchased
approximately $134 million of Internet infrastructure eguipment (the "KMC
Funding V Equipment") from Qwest and (ii) the Company agreed to install and
maintain this equipment, throughout the United States, principally to handle
Internet service provider traffic on behalf of Qwest. As amended, the services
agreement 1is for a term of 51 months, commenced in August 2000 and expires in
October 2004.

In June 2000, the Company entered into a second agreement with Qwest,
pursuant to which (i) the Company purchased approximately $168 million of
Internet infrastructure equipment £rom Qwest and (ii} the Company agreed to
install and maintain this egquipment, in cities throughout the United States,
principally to handle Internet service provider traffic on behalf of Qwest. The
second services agreement commenced in November 2000 and expires in July 2005.

63

10. INCOME TAXES

As of December 31, 2000, the Company and its subsidiaries had
consolidated net operating loss carryforwards for United States income tax
purposes ("NOLs") of approximately 5500 million which expire through 2020. Under
Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, if the Company
undergoes an "cwnership change," its ability to use its preownership change NOLs
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{(NOLs accrued through the date of the ownership change) would generally be
limited annually to an amount egqual to the product of {i) the long-term
tax-exempt rate £for ownership changes prescribed monthly by the Treasury
Department and (ii) the value of the Company's equity immediately before the
ownership change, excluding certain capital contributions. Any allowable portion
of the preownership change NOLs that is not used in a particular taxable year
following the ownership change could be carried forward to subsequent taxable
years until the NOLs expire, usually 20 years after they are generated. As a
result of the cumulative effect of issuances of preferred and common stock
through September 22, 1997, KMC Telecom has undergone an ownership change.

For financial reporting purposes, the Company has an aggregate of
approximately $311 million and $671 million of loss carryforwards and net
temporary differences at December 31, 1999 and 2000, respectively. At existing
federal and state tax rates, the future benefit of these items approximates $121
million at December 31, 199% and $262 million at December 31, 2000. Valuation
allowances have been established equal to the entire net tax benefit associated
with all carryforwards and temporary differences at both December 31, 19%% and
2000 as their realization is uncertain.

The composition of expected future tax benefits at December 31, 1999
and 2000 is as follows:

{IN THOUSANDS)

Net operating loss carryforwards......... ...« i iinnranrnns 5 83,762 $ 196,177
Temporary differences:
Stock option compensation........ ... i 19,528 33,011
Enterest accretion. ... ... it e e e e e 21,127 34,025
[T T3 <P £ VY {3,244) {419}
Total deferred tax asSebS. . ... ... ... ..ttt anas 121,173 261,794
Less valuation allowanCe. .. ...t inin e ianrar s saas (121,173) (261,794}
Net deferred LaxX aBSEES. ... tv i tnarerrtnrnrr s mnansannn s - 3 -

A reconciliation of the expected tax benefit at the statutory federal
rate of 35% is as follows:

1998 1999
2000
Expected tax benefit at statutory rate.......... (35.0)% (35.0) %
(35.0)%
State income taxes, net of federal benefit...... (2.6} {(3.8)
(4.2)
Non-deductible interest expense................. 2.0 1.1
0.8
Other. . . e e e e 0.1 0.1
0.1
Change in valuation allowance................... 35.5 37.6
3g.3
Copyright 2001 EDGAR Onfine, inc. (ver 1.01/2.003) Page 70

DCO1/JINKE/147091.2



KMC TELECOM HOLDING’C" —10-K — Annual Report . Date Filed: 4/17/2001

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
LEASES

The Company leases various facilities and equipment under operating
leases. Minimum rental commitments are as follows (IN THOUSANDS):
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YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31:

0 N s 9,737

200 . e e e e 8,403

2003 . it e e e 7,602

= 7,039

200G . s e e e e e e 5,224
Thereafter. ... oot e e eeee e 22,485
560,490

Rent expense under operating leases was $1,299,000, $3,815,000, and
$7,835,000 for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000, respectively.
The amounts presented above for the year ending December 31, 2001 exclude
minimum rental commitments of $40.4 million associated with the Company's
operating lease for the KMC Funding V Equipment which was terminated in March
2001 as more fully described in Note 18.

LITIGATION

There are a number of lawsuits and regulatory proceedings related to
the Telecommunications Act of 1996, decisions of the Federal Communications
Commission related thereto and rules and regulations issued thereunder which may
affect the rights, obligations and business of incumbent local exchange
carriers, competitive local exchange carriers and other participants in the
telecommunications industry in general, including the Company.

PURCHASE COMMITMENTS

As of December 31, 2000, the Company has outstanding commitments
aggregating approximately $17 millicn related to purchases of telecommunications
equipment and fiber optic cable and its obligations wunder its agreements with
certain suppliers and service providers.

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS

The Company has entered into employment agreements with certain of its
executives. In addition to a base salary, these agreements also provide for
certain incentive compensation payments, based upon the attainment of certain
business and financial milestones.
ARBITRATION AWARD

During the second gquarter of 19%9, the Company recorded a $4.3 million
charge to other expense in connection with an unfavorable arbitration award. The

net amount due under the terms of the award was paid in full in June 1999.

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
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The Company and certain affiliated companies owned by Kamine share
certain administrative services. The entity which bears the cost of the service
is reimbursed by the cther for the other's proportionate share of such expenses.
The Company reimbursed Kamine-affiliated companies for these shared services an
aggregate of approximately $136,000, $60,000, and $0 of expense for the years
ended December 31, 1958, 1999 and 2000, respectively. During 1999, the Company
purchased approximately $180,000 of office furniture and leasehold improvements
from an entity controlled by Kamine.

The Company leases its headguarters office through January 2012 from an
entity in which a trust for the benefit of Kamine's children owns a fifty
percent interest. This new lease provides for a base annual rental cost of
approximately $1.0 million, adjusted periodically for changes in the consumer
price index, plus operating expenses. Rent expense recegnized under this new
lease and a predecessor lease (pursuant to which the Company had leased smaller
amounts of space) for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000 was
§217,000, $217,000 and $1.1 million, respectively.

Pursuant to an agreement dated as of January 1, 19299, the Company is
entitled to use a Citation III business jet chartered by Bedminster Aviation
LLC, a limited liability company wholly owned by Kamine, for a fixed price per

65

hour of flight time. During 1999 and 2000, the Company paid approximately
$210,000 and $1.7 willion, respectively, for the use of the Citation ITII. The
Company has agreed to use its best efforts to use the Citation IITI fifty hours
per quarter during 2001. However, the Company is under no obligation to do so
and it has not guaranteed any financial arrangements with respect to the
aircraft or to Bedminster Aviation LLC.

The Company is currently in negotiations to complete the transfer of
its construction division to KNT Network Technologies, LLC ("KNT") a company
independently owned by Harold N. Kamine and Nassau Capital, the principal
stockholders of the Company. Pursuant to an arrangement between the parties,
effective June 1, 2000, the Company transferred substantially all of the
employees of its construction division to KNT. KNT is providing construction and
maintenance services to the Company and is being reimbursed for all of the
direct costs of these activities. In addition, the Company is currently funding
substantially all of KNT's general overhead and administrative costs at an
amount not to exceed $15 million per annum.

Amounts paid to KNT during fiscal 2000 related to this arrangement
amounted to $20.0 million, of which $B.7 million was for network related
construction and was capitalized into networks and eguipment and the balance was
charged to expense. Further, the Company may be entitled to participate in
future profits of KNT, to the extent KNT develops a successful third-party
construction business.

The Company is currently negotiating with KNT to finalize the terms of
this arrangement and execute a formal contract which is required to be completed
by June 15, 20C1.

Pursuant to an agreement between the Company and Nassau, Nassau was
paid $450,000 per annum in cash as a financial advisory fee for the years ended
December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000.

Upon the initial closing of the offering of the Series G Convertible
Preferred Stock in July 2000, the Company paid a fee of $1.0 million in cash to
Nassau.

Upon the initial closing, in November 2000, of the 48 month loan which
the Company obtained to finance the KMC Funding Egquipment, the Company paid a
fee of $1.0 million in cash to Dresdner Kleinwort Benson North American Leasing,
Inc.

As of December 31, 1959 and 2000, the Company has made loans
aggregating $575,000 and $350,000 respectively, to certain of its executives.
Such loans bear interest at a rate of 6% per annum and are included in other
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assets.
13. NET LOSS PER COMMCN SHARE

The following

table sets forth the

computation of net loss per common

share:
1998 1999 2000
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)
Numerator:
Net loos before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle............ 5 {76,753) § (225,716) § (357,982}
Cumulative effect of change in acgounting
pEinciple. oo e i . - {1,708)
T = T Y {76,783} (225,716) {359,6087)
Dividends and accretion on redeemable
preferred BLOCK. . cvvvivivnivirrvirraaarann {18,285} 181,633) {94,440}
tumerator for net loss applicable to
comnon shareholders.........cvvevenonaiian 4 (95,0318) $ (307,349) $  (45a.127)
Dencminator:
Denominator for net logo per common shave
- weighted average pumber of comnon
shdres OULBLARdINg. . . ittt i 831 882 855
asumsmssssssss PP - =
Het loas per common share before
cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle - basic...coiiviii i iirnrarae s H] (114.42) H {360.88) $ (529.22)
Cumulative effect of change in accountcing
prinedple, .. ovvine i i i e - - {1.99)
¥et logy per common share.................. § (114.42) 3 {360.88) § (531,21
T T TR . -
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Cptions and warrants to purchase an aggregate of 372,885, 496,729 and 706,196

shares of common stock were outstanding as of December 31, 1598, 1999 and 2000,
respectively, but a computation of diluted net loss per common share has not
been presented, as the effect of such securities would be anti-dilutive.

14. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Information with respect to noncash investing and financing activities is as

follows:

In connection with the Senior Discounts Notes, the Company recognized noncash
interest expense of $33.3 million and $39.0 millien in 1959 and 2000,
respectively.

During 1999, the Company issued stock dividends to the holders of the Series
E Preferred Stock and Series F Preferred Stock of 5,004 shares and 4,177
shares, respectively. During 2000, the Company issued stock dividends to the
holders of the Series E Preferred Stock and Series F Preferred Stock of 9,951
shares and 6,654 shares, respectively.

In connection with optiens granted to employees under the KMC Holdings Stock
Option Plan in 1998, 1999, and 2000 and under the KMC Telecom Stock Option
Plan in 1997, cumulative deferred compensation’ obligations of $27,906,000,

$50,972,000, and $89,190,000 have been established in 1998, 1999 and 2000,
respectively, with offsetting credits to additional paid-in capital. Noncash
compensation expense of $23,758,000, $23,947,000 and $34,571,000 in 1998,

was recognized in connectien with such optiecns.
granted to individuals employed by certain
affiliates of the Company in 1998, 1999 and 2000, the Company recognized
noncash compensation expense of $4,668,000, $5,832,000 and $3,796,000
respectively. In addition, during 1998 the Company cancelled all of the then
outstanding options granted under the KMC Telecom Stock Option Plan,
resulting in the reversal of previocusly recognized compensation expense of

19299 and 2000, respectively,
In c¢onnection with options
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$21.3 million.
15. RECIPROCAL COMPENSATION

In May 2000, the Company reached a resolution of its claims for payment
of certain reciprocal compensation charges, previously disputed by BellSouth
Corporation. Under the agreement, BellSouth made a one-time payment that
resolved all amounts billed through March 31, 2000. In addition, BellSouth and
the Company agreed to future rates for reciprocal compensation, setting new
contractual terms for payment. Under the terms of the agreement, the rates for
reciprocal compensation. will be reduced, and will apply te all lecal traffic,
including ISE-bound traffic, thereby eliminating the principal area of dispute
between the parties. The reduction will be phased in over a three-year period
beginning with a rate of $.002 per minute of use until March 31, 2001, $.00175
per minute of use from April 1, 2001 through March 31, 2002 and $.0015 per
minute of use from April 1, 2002 through March 31, 2003.

The Company is currently pursuing resolution of this issue with other
incumbent 1local exchange carriers. Its goal is to reach mutually acceptable
terms for both cutstanding and future reciprocal compensation amounts for all
traffic. The Company cannot assure you that it will reach new agreements with
these carriexs on favorable terms. However, as of December 31, 2000, the Company
has provided reserves which it believes are sufficient to cover any amounts
which may not be collected, but it cannot assure you that this will be the case.
The Company will continue to considexr the circumstances surrounding this dispute
periodically in determining whether additional reserves against unpaid balances
are warranted.
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16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
value of each class of financial instruments.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The carrying amounts approximate fair value because of the short-texrm
maturity of the instruments.

LONG-TERM DEBT

The carrying amount of floating-rate long-term debt approximates its
fair wvalue. The fair value of the Company's fixed-rate long-term debt is
estimated using discounted cash flows at the Company's incremental borrowing
rates.

REDEEMABLE EQUITY

The fair wvalue of the Company's redeemable equity instruments are
estimated based upon third party valuations.

INTEREST RATE SWAP

At December 31, 2000, the Company had two interest rate swap agreements
to reduce the impact on interest expense of fluctuations in interest rates on a
portion of its variable rate debt. The effect of these agreements is to limit
the Company's interest rate exposure on a notiecnal amount of debt of $415.0
million. The fair value was estimated as the amount the Company would receive if
the swap agreements were terminated at December 31, 2000.

ESTIMATED FAIR VALUES

The carrying amounts and estimated fair wvalues of the Company's
financial instruments are as follows (IN MILLIONS}:
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1999 2000
CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR
AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALUE
Cash and cash equivalents...................... $ 86.0 5 86.0 % 110.0 3 110.0
Long-term debt:
Floating Lal@... .. et iarecnsaninnans 235.0 235.0 728.2 728.2
Fixed rate - Senior Discount Notes........... 301.1 275.7 340.2 85.3
Fixed rate - Senior Notes.................... 275.0 263.5 275.0 109.5
Redeemable equity instruments:
Series E Preferred Stock...... ..o 50.8 65.0 62.0 75.0
Serieg F Preferred Stock..................... 41.4 414.2 50.6 17.9
Series A Preferred Stock........ ... ... ..., 71.3 150.0 109.3 180.0
Series C Preferred Stock.. ... iiiuiuouiuiaes 40.3 83.3 72.7 124.5
Series G-1 Preferred Stock................ ... - - 19.4 19.9
Series G-2 Preferred Stock..........ovriviann - - 156.8 162.6
Redeemable common stock. ... .. ..o .. ..., 33.8 56.0 45.6 67.2
Redeemable common stock warrants............. 12.9 21.6 16.8 25.9
Interest rate swaps ({asset):
1999 SWAD . v vt v e e e e e - 3.9 - -
Amended and restated interest rate swap..... - - - {8.2)
JUne 2000 BWaAD. & . i ei it e - - - (5.0}
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CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to
significant concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash
investments and accounts receivable. The Company places its cash investments
with major financial institutions. With respect to accounts receivable, the
Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers' financial
conditions and generally does not require collateral. At December 31, 2000,
reciprocal compensation comprised approximately $7.2 million or 12.4% of the
gross accounts receivable balance. The Company has contracts with Qwest (see
Note 9) which accounted for 36% of the Company's total revenue during the year
ended December 31, 2000. As of December 31, 2000, amounts due from Qwest
comprised $11.9 million or 20.4% of the Company's total accounts receivable,
none of which is past due. For the twelve months ended December 31, 1999 and
1998, no cne customer accounted for more than 10% of revenue.

The Company maintains interconnection agreements with the major
incumbent local exchange carriers ("ILECs") in each state in which it operates.
Among other things, these contracts govern the reciprocal amounts to be billed
by competitive carriers for terminating local traffic of Internet service
providers ("ISPs") in each state. ILECs around the country have been contesting
whether the obligation to pay reciprocal compensation to competitive local
exchange carriers should apply to local telephone calls from an ILEC's customers
to ISPs served by competitive local exchange carriers. The ILECs claim that this
traffic is interstate in nature and therefore should be exempt from compensation
arrangements applicable to local intrastate calls. Competitive local exchange
carriers have contended that the interconnection agreements provide no exception
for local calls to ISPs and reciprocal compensation is therefore applicable. The
ILECs have threatened to withhold, and in many cases have withheld, reciprocal
compensation to competitive local exchange carriers for the transpert and
termination of these calls. During 1999 and 2000, the Company recognized revenue
from these ILECs of approximately $%.7 million and $18.2 million, or 15.1% and
8.7% of 1999 and 2000 revenue, respectively, for these services. Payments of
approximately $1.6 million and $19.5 million were received from the ILECs during
1999 and 2000, respectively.

The Company determined to recognize this revenue because wmanagement
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concluded, based upon all of the facts and circumstances available to them at
the time, inecluding numerous state public service commission and state and
federal court decisions upholding competitive local exchange carriers'
entitlement to reciprocal compensation for such calls, that realization of those
amounts was reasonably assured.

17. SUPPLEMENTAL GUARANTOR INFORMATION

In May 1999, the Company sold $275 million aggregate principal amount
of Senior Notes. KMC Telecom Financing Inc. (the "Guarantor"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the
Company's obligations under these notes. Separate financial statements and other
disclosures of the Guarantor are not presented because management determined the
information is not material to investors. No restrictions exist on the ability
of the Guarantor to make distributions to the Company except to the extent
provided by law generally {adeguate capital to pay dividends wunder corporate
laws) and restrictions ceontained in the Company's credit facilities.

The following condensed consolidating financial information presents
the results of operations, financial position and cash flows of KMC Holdings (on
a stand alene basis), the guarantor subsidiary (on a stand alone basis), the
non-guarantor subsidiaries {on a combined basis) and the eliminations necessary
to arrive at the consolidated results for the Company at Decembexr 31, 2000 and
1999 and for the years then ended. The non-guaranter subsidiaries include KMC
Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom II, In¢., KMC Telecom III, Inc., KMC Teleccom IV, Inc.,
KMC Telecom.com LLC, KMC Telecom of Virginia, Inc., KMC Telecom Financial
Services LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing I LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing II LLC, KMC Telecom
III Leasing III LLC, KMC Telecom V, Inc., KMC Telcom VI, Inc., KMC Telecom VII,
Inc. and KMC Funding Corporation, {collectively, the "Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries") .
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GUARANTOR/HOH -GURRANTCR CONSOLIDATING RALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 21, 2400
1IN THOUSANDS)
CONSCLIDATED
KMC TELECOM HOX - KMC
HOLDINGS, INC. GUARANTOR TELECOM
PARENT CO. GUARANTOR SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS HOLDIEGS. INC.
ASSETS
Current apsera:
Camh and cash pQuivalentm. .. ..ouiiiraniiirnaareriannans $ 21,922 3 -- 5 88,055 § - $ 109,%77
Reatricted 1nVesLmORLO............0.nan - 17,125 -- - 37,125
Accounta receivable, DebL....iiaaiiiavas - - 47,141 - 47,141
Prepaid expenoes and other current aose - 131,846 -- 14,888
Amounts due {rom subsidiaries............ -- 39,273 (163,728} .-
Total current aspets 37,125 188,315 (163.7128) 209,101
Investment 1n subsidiarieD. . ..oiviviiniirra 35,000 .- - {35,000) -
Long-term restritted invedstme 76 19,284 41,571 aa 62,%11
Hetworks and eguipment, net 53,149 -- 968,515 -- 1,021,684
Intangtble ansets, net .... 1,368 - 2,467 .- 3,835
Deferred financing cooto, n 17.524 -- 15.242 -- 12,766
Losne receivable Irom gubsidiaries. 866,711 -- -- (866,783) --

[, T T L A P T I T T T T 624

LIABILITIES, REDEEMASLE AND HONREDEEMABLE EQUITY

(DEFICIENTY)
Current liabilitiesr
ACcounts PAYAble. ... e e e . $ .. $ 11,405 5 e H 180,803
ACCTUSH CXPENBES. \vuvarviratrrir e . - 3,938 .- 73,695
Amgunts due LO subdidiacies - . 163,728 {163,728} -
Defervtd TEVONUG. oo vu i ianns - - 17,833 - 17,839
Tozal current LiabllitiCa. v i i ruariinear st . -- 237,911 {161, 128} 272,247
Hates Payable|. . . oeeuir s inaniaan it ettt - -- 738,173 -- 126,11
Senier notes payable.. ... .. i i e 275,000 -- -- - 245,000
Senior discount nates payable.......... " 140,181 .- -- - 340,181
Loana payable to paTent............. ... .. .. -- 49,415 Bl7,298 (866, 713) .
loneer of subsidiaries in excesp of hapis 596,388 .- -- (596.208) -
TOLAL JaABL gL hBa . ittt e eataecaeeanerirataarrarrarnaenan 1,419,511 49,418 1,773,382 1,626,729} 1,615,601
Redeemable squicy:
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Senler redenmable, exchangeable, PIK preferred atock:

Seriens E. .. 6Ll,992 -- .- - 61,992
Serien 50,568 .- -- -- 50,568
Redeemable tive convertible preforred otochk:
Serien T ca 109,272 - - - 109,272
Seriea 72,701 -- -- - 72 401
Redacmabl e
Series G-1.... 1%.435 -- LA s 19,435
Series G-2.....+ 158,797 -- -- .- 158,79%
Redecmable comman pteck. .. ..., 45,561 -- .- . 4%,561
Redeemable common stoCk warranto...... 16,817 - .- .- 16,817
TOLOL rEdaemiBle GQUILY -« rrvearaeennetoentonaenesrnonsnn 535,145 .- - -- 535, 145
Konredeemable equity (deliciency}:
Comman #Lock - & .- a 18) &
Unearned compenRaatibil. ... .. - {16, 5608) -- -- -- 16, 608)
Actumulated delicit - (816,203) 6,994 (554, #56]) 561.296 (602,867}
Total nonredeemable equity {defictencyl............... {812,80%)
$L.12L.872 £3,218,424 5 1,065,440)
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GUARANTOR /30N *GURRANTOR CONSCLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMAER 31, 2000
{IM THOUSANDS)
KMC TELECOM HON- CONSOLIBATED
HOLDIKGS, INU. RANTGR FMC TELECOH
PARENT €O GUARANTOR SUBSTDIARIES ELIMINATICNS HOLDINGS, INC.
Ravenue. . § .- $ -- § 209,195 $ -- 5 20%,195
Operating expensen: .
Helwork DParating COBLH ... v v iimnnreinnrians -- -- 169,593 -- 15%, 593
Selling. general apd Adminiutracive......... 100,113 -- 62,162 - 162,275
Stock option compendablon expende.. 31,138 1.183 -- 34,571
Depreciation and amertizaticn...... 11,874 64,251 - 76,129
Total operating expenged....-... ‘e [ 145,17% 297,389 -- 442,568
LOus Erom OPeraLiQnf. ...« roeocreiiiaaniiaiaaanos i145,17%) -- (88,194) - §231,371)
INLEECOMpANY Chargath, ,.rerrrras 134,409 .- 134, 10m . --
Interedt InCOmR, .. .vu rerernae 64,450 3,752 5,865 [66,283) 11,784
INLETERL CXPENBE, ,4raratrrsisriiaasrs {89,157 - {122,519 66,283 {136,393)
Equity in net loss af sebsidiariee (349,161} .. -- 349,161 --
Het income (lops} befard Cumulative effuct of
change in accounting Principle...,...... PR 1371.638) 3,752 1339,25M 148,161 [387,982)
Cumulacive atiscr of chopde n accounting
PILTIGAPI, +« 1« vy anssr s trrtnassrtn rr st sannsi -- -- 11,708} . 11.105)
Het tncome (1OBB) o, s ertrrsrsatisneriserirsanannren [371,638) 3.752 (340,962} 349,161 (259,5687)
Dividendn and accretien on redeemable proferred
BEOCK s o vmaeeerrnnnas S (94,440} .- - .- {94,1340)
ter income (loga) applicable to common
aharehelders, . ..... R PP § {466,078} § 3,752 5 {340,962} & 349,181 § mse.121
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GUARANTOR/NOK - GUARANTOR CONSOLIOATING STATEMENT OF CAGH FLOWS
¥EAR ENDED DECEMBER 11, 2000
{IH THOUSMIDS)
KMC TELECOM HOM- CCHSOLIDATEDR
HOLDINGS, 1KG. GUARAHTOR KMC TELECOM
PARENT CQ. GUARANTOR SUBSIDIARTES  ELIMINATIONS  HOLDINGS, INC.
QPERATING ACTIVITIES
ML 1088 .. vuraiina e carte st i tstatstetnaatsrnnmnas $ 1371,638) g 3,752 § 1340,362}) § 345,161 § {35%,687)

Adjustments to reconelle fat losa to net cagh
uged 1 oprrating activicies:
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Equity in net lo#o of subiidiaries... 49,161 - - (349,161} .
Depreciation amd amortization,, ... 11,878 .- 64,251 .- T6,12%
Provisien ter doubtful accountd... . . - .85 . 7.87%
Hon-caah 1NLCreal BXPENBE. .oouravrisavee . 1a.858 kx 6,760 -- 45,635
ton-caah puock opLich CORPEngatign expense B 33,188 == 1,381 .- 34,571
Changes in assets and liabalicies:
ACCOUNLD rRCeivABle. . i i iaiarriarans 6 .- 127,643) - {27,643
Prepaid expenaes and othar curiant agdecd . 207 = {2,720) LR {2,510
Accounts paynbln. oo a i s i e 128,414 .. 196,873 .- 41,541
Acerued expenang....... . 23,837 = 10,286 - 34,123
Defrrred revenue..... -- 11,530 -- 13,530

Amgunts cue [rom suboidiaries (51,483) 51,48) -- --

OChet BBAGLD. ... ceusarvaratnasnsrnssn e 207 {216} -~ 9
Het cash pﬂwlded by (uased in) operating 163, 635 Ul? 21 -- (146, 448)
acgkivitiea. rebteteiemtan i W mmmesmmemaa dmemmsdeeees eevmae e e

ITHVESTING ACTIVITIES
Loans recaivable (rom aubatdinrled. . .....oici.unns (276, 609) 135,914} 112,523 - -
Conpuruction of networke and purchases of

oquiphent. . . (2,934} -- (473,706) -- [476.640)
Acquinitions of {ranchimes, authorizarions a

related apaetn .. {70} L3 {854) -- (926)
Investmenta 1n aubs1diarien.. . ..ovveananen . [35,900) .- 35,900 -- ==
Additiona to restricted inveatmen . -~ 133,471) - 43,471

Rodemption of investmentn - -~ - 12,085

Nat cogh uoed in inveating aCLivitiem. .. .. . ovuuas {314, 613) 170, 510) .- (488, 452}
FINARCING ACTIVITLES
Precendd [rom notes payable, net of lesuance
COBLE L ¢ 1 vstnaratsiatnrnsarsremsrsearatsanansosnnses -- -- 108,475 .- 104,475
Procewsdn [rom jssuance of preferred -Luck "nee of

1OAUBNCO COBLE. .o vrnn o N 177,500 -- -~ .- 177.500
Procenda [rom axdrcioe of ptock cptions.. .. 562 .. - -- 562
Procensdo from penlor decured Credit Eacility, net

©f 1DBUMICE COBLB. v vursarvrnannrirann isncenan .- -- 176,201 -- 376,203
Repurchnge and retirement of Scrxn: F Prnlcr:cd

BLOCK. .t e 03,2329} -- .- .- 13,329
Met eash provided by financing activities. 174,733 484,678 .- 559 411
Het increase in caoh one cash mgquivalentd......... 22,755 1,256 24,011
Cagh and c¢ash equivalonts, beginning of yenr... ... [LERD] 86,799 85,964
Caph and gash equivialenta, and of year.. $ 21,522 $ 88,085
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CUARANTOR/MON - GUARANTOR CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 195%9
{IN THOUSANDS)

EMC TELECOR NON- CONSQLIDATED
HOLDINGS. INC. GUARANTOR KMC TELECOM
PARENT QO. GUARANTOR SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS HOLDINGS, INC.
ASSETS
Current agsoeto:
Cash and caph aguivalents l(overdraft)........... $§ {833} H - 5 86,799 5 -- § 85, 966
Resbricted investments.......... . -- 17.125 .- -- 37,135
Accounts recelvable, net . 6 - 27,367 -- 37.373
Prepaid expenges and other current assets. . 1,249 LR 126 -- 1,375
Amounte due C[rom subsidiarien................... 12,972 .. (72,972} -- -
Total current assets 73.394 37,125 41,1320 -- 151,839
Long-term rescricted investments e -- 51.446 -- -- 51,446
Networks and cquipment, net ..... B . . 58,531 . 580,793 635,324
Tatongible ageets, net ...... . 1,388 -- 2,214 3,602
Deferred flnancing copte. ne:....... . 31,031 -- 17, TBS -- 38,816
Loanp receivable from subsidiarics.. . 550,103 (85.329) {504, 774] - --
OLher ABOELD.. . ....rtineininnrnrernernsrmennennansns 825 - 184 1.013
Tothl AOOBED. ..t vrrimrmrcma i m e m e m e a s $ 745,272 5 3,242 S 137,526 3 s - BB6, 040
amazmanam EusssssEEmE  EEEEcEssEas swawEawEs  SesenssvwEEw
LIARILITIES, REDEEMABLE AND NOMREDEEMABLE EQUITY
(DEFICIENCY)
Curzent liabilitien:
Accountn payable. .. 5 40,984 $ -- § 126, 506 H] -- 5 167,450
Accrued expenpes. . . . 14,967 -- 22,080 - 17,047
Deferred reVEAUR. ... .. .o iivinernr e -= .- 4,309 -- 4.309
Total current liabilities.... ... ... .o iiiiinnans 55,951 -- 152,895 -- 208,846
Hoten Paynble. . i e e B -- -- 235,000 -- 235,000
Senior notes payable............. ... . . B 275,000 -- .- -- 275,000
Senlor discount netes payable . - 301,137 -- -- -- 301,137
tLosaes of gubsidiarien in exceas ot basis. . ....i..es 247,127 -- (247,127} .-
Tocal liabilitien...... PAPIF. v im e m e .y a7%,21s5 - 387,895 (247,127} 1,019,981
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Redeemable equity:
Senior redeemable, exchangeable, PIK
preferred atock:

Seriey 58, 710 -- .- -- 50,770
Serien 41,170 - .- .- 41,370
Redeemable
Serien 71,349 -- .- - 7L, 349
Serien 40,1301 -- -- 40,301
Redeemable common BLoOCk. .o vr v iriraian iy 33,755 .- - .- 313,755
Redeecmable commen ObOCK WATLTAMES. . .vuvrerairians 12.92% -- -- -- 12,925
Toral redeemable SQUILY . ooi.iri i iaiianenanenananans 250,470 . . . 250,410
Honredeemakle equity {deficiency}:
Common BEGCK «..vvurrriviarastnariirarasrrararans [ .- .- 6
Additional pnid-in capital.. . -- .- - -- --
Unecarned compensation....... . (9,163} .= -- -- (9.2163
Accumulaced deficle............. (375,256) 3,242 {250, 369} 247,127 (375,256}

{144,413) 31,242

§ 745,272

(250, 369)

73 .

GUARANTOR/NON-GUARANTOR CONSOLIDATIRG STATEMENT QF QPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
{18 THOUSANDS)

KMC TELECOM NON- CONSOLIDATED
HOLDINGS, ING. GUARANTOR KMC TELECOM
PARENT CO. GUARANTOR SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS HOLDINGS, INC.
REVENUC . o v utiusia i nr s aeaannrsensenns eveane § -- $ -- $ 64,352 $ (39) $ 64,313
Operacing expenoes:
Network operating comtm........... ... eaeee e -- -- 110, 348 133 110,309
Selling, general and administracive. . ......... 40,714 -- 15,089 -~ 55.80]
Stock option gompengntion expeode..... ae 29,81) . .- 29,813
Depreciation and amortization..........vrvvvevs 3.192 -- .- 28,077
Tatal operating EXPERBeS. (.ot ver it earacn et 73,651 [39)
Loos from operatlons......ivovvvinnsrmacanss e {71,651) .- {87,058) ..
Intercompany charges. .. 72,972 .- {72,972) -- --
Cther expense......... 14,297} -- .- -- {4,297)
Interest income .- . 1.872 3,242 3,587 -- B, 701
Interesl EXPRNSH. ... uirouaranes . .. (36,729) .- t32,682) -- (69,411)
Equity in net loos of subpidiaries................. {185.883) .. e 185,883 -
Het dngome {loS0) .. ... ittt e {225,716) 3,342 {189,125) 5,883 {225,716
Dividends and aggretion on  redeemnble preferred {81,631) - ae L33 (81,6313)
BEOCK . .ttt ieiieiietiaeiivrsrsasansacainainaasaas mmmmmmmmmas eem-m-eo-o aoee-oe e .- —etaatedemeaas
Net income [loan) applieable to common g {307,349 $ 3,242 5 (189,125) § 185,883 § (307,349

BHArehCldera. v st e
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GUARANTOR/NON-GUARANTCR CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
{IN THOUSANLS)

KMC TELECOM HON-
HOLDINGS, INC. GUARANTOR
PARENT CO. GUARANTOR SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS

CPERATIKG ACTIVITIES
1T S . 7. ] {225, 718) 5 3,242 § {(18%,125) 5185,883
Adjugtments 1o ¢on¢ile net loso Lo net canh

uped in operating activities:

Equity in net losa of subsldiaries............. 185,883 .- .- f1as,883})
Depreciacion and amorxtization P 3,104 -- 25.973 --
Non-caoh inCerenr eXpenbt..........cveinuan . 36,963 -- {5,822) --
Non-cash ntock opbion gompensation expense..... 29,831 -- - -
Changes in apsmets and liabilities:
Accountn recelvable ... . iiiii i raiaeaa, 13} -- {19,828} --
Prepaid expenpen and cther current a P (917} -- 457 --
ACCOuntE payAble. ... ... ..iiiiiiiiii e 441 .- (28,878) --
Accrued EXDENDEO. - v nn iy e 9,075 -- 15,152 --
Amounts due from subsidiaries . {52,050} -- 52.050 --
Other aBBets. ... ..ot iiein i m e 1,128 -- 2.592 .-
Net c¢agh provided by {uded in) operating {12,262} 3,242 (89,273} -
F T R 5 T e N T L iremerar
IRVESTING ACTIVITIES
Loans receivable from pubsidinries................ (324, 390) 85,339 239,061 .-
Conptruction of networks and purchasep of
EUPMenT . . i e e e e {18,327 - [100,209) --
Roquinitions of franchisen, authorizarions and
related ABOBEB.. v vvia s ra i i e {7986) -- {1,196} --
Redemprion (purchanel of ipveptments.............. -- (88,571} 27,920 104,101
Net ¢anh used in inveating activities............. (3,242) {34,424) 104,101
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock and
relnted warrants, net of issuancs COSED......... 91,001 . - .-
Proceeds from exercide of gtock eptions........... 313 .- - .
Proceeds tfrom issuance of senior notes. net of
ipsuance costs and purchase of portfolio of
restricted invesLments. . ........evviieirnianann 262,387 .- -- {104,101}
Preceeds from genlor secured crediv facility, nec
©f ipsuance COBED. ..., on it i i mma e -- . 192,836 -
Isouance cogts of Lucent facility.........cvcuvnn, -- -- (2,300} --
Her canh provided by financing acrivities......... 353,721 - (104,101
............. [ ——— [ [P
Net increape (decrenpe) in cash and caph
LT R B 1 (2,054) .- 66,8319 --
Cash and cash eguivalents, beginning of year...... 1,221 -- 19,960 --
Cash aod eash eguivalents, end of year............ s (833} s e $ 8¢, 799 -3 .-
azmsmansmanme asaaEsEwawn wawswwawaEE wEEwsswEEE
75

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

KMC FUNDING MONETIZATION

In March 2001, the Company entered inte a financing transaction

CONSOL1DATED
KMC TELECOM
HOLDINGS, 1KC.

$ {225,716)

29,9077
31,141
29,833

{19.834)

{60)
29,319
24,227

{318,536

(1,992)
43,450

{277,078)

91,001
333

158,286

192,836
(2,300}

64,785
21,101

$ 85,966

{the

"KMC Funding Monetization") that resulted in the Company receiving unrestricted
gross proceeds of $325.0 million from a secured loan. The KMC Funding
Monetization 1is secured by the future cash flows from the Company's Nationwide
Data Platform business contract that was entered inte in June 2000 (see Note 9).
The KMC Funding Monetization reguires that the principal and interest be paid on
a monthly basis upon receipt of the monthly proceeds from the related contract.
The Company retains the right to receive the remaining cash flows from this
contract which are expected to be approximately 25% of the monthly cash flows
{from which on-going operational expenses must be paid). The Company realized
net proceeds of approximately $145.5 million after using the gross proceeds to

Copyright 2001 EDGAR Ondine, Ine. (ver 1.01/2.003)
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pay off the 48 month loan which the Company obtained from Dresdner Kleinwort
Benson North American Leasing, Inc. in November 2000 to finance its acquisition
of the KMC Funding Egquipment (see Note 5), as well as financing £fees and
expenses related to the monetization. The interest rate on the KMC Funding
Monetization is 7.34%.

KMC FUNDING V MONETIZATION

In March 2001, the Company entered into a financing transaction (the
"KMC Funding V Monetization") that resulted in the Company receiving
unrestricted gross proceeds of $225.4 million from a secured loan. The KMC
Funding V Monetization is secured by the future cash flows from the Company's
Nationwide Data Platform business contract that was entered into in March 2000
{see Note 9). The KMC Funding V Monetization requires that the principal and
interest be paid on a monthly basis upon receipt of the monthly proceeds £from
the related contract. The Company retains the right to receive the remaining
cash flows from this contract which are expected to be approximately 25% of the
monthly cash flows (from which on-going operational expenses must be paid). The
Company realized net proceeds of approximately $125.5 million after using the
proceeds to exercise its purchase optien with respect to the KMC Funding V
Equipment which the Company was leasing from GECC and CIT Lending Services
Corporation under an operating lease, as well as to pay any financing fees and
expenses related to the monetization. The interest rate on the KMC Funding V
Monetization is 6.77%.

SPRINGING WARRANTS

Effective February 4, 2001 the Company became obligated to issue
warrants to purchase an aggregate of 107,228 shares of its common stock at an
exercise price of $.01 per share to certain holders of the Series E Preferred
Stock and Series F Preferred Stock as a result of the Company's failure to
redeem, prior to that date, all of the outstanding shares of Series F Preferred
Stock. The issuance of these warrants will trigger anti-dilution provisions in
ouxr Series A Preferred Stock, Series C Preferred Stock and Series G Preferred
Stock resulting in adjustments to the conversion prices which may result in an
increase in the number of shares of common stock inte which they are convertible
of approximately 20,522 shares, 14,194 shares and 18,478 shares, respectively.
The issuance of the Springing Warrants will also trigger anti-dilution
provisions in certain of our other outstanding warrants which will increase the
number of shares of common stock for which such warrants are exercisable by
approximately 3,740 shares.

SERIES F PREFERRED STOCK

Effective February 4, 2001, all the shares of Series F Preferred Stock
were converted into shares of Series E Preferred Stock on a one to one basis in
accordance with the provisions of the Certificate of Designations of the Series
F Preferred Stock.

VOIP EQUIPMENT CONTRACT

In March 2001, the Company entered into an agreement with Qwest
pursuant to which (i} the Company purchased approximately $65 million of Voice
over Internet Protocol equipment from Qwest and (ii) the Company agreed to
install and maintain this equipment throughout the United States, principally to
handle Voice over Internet Protocol traffic on behalf of Qwest. The services
agreement commences in the second half of 2001 and expires 48 months later, and

76

provides guaranteed annualized revenues of approximately $29 million. The
Company exXpects to enter into a financing transaction to fund the cost of this
egquipment .

AMENDMENT TO AMENDED SENIOR SECURED CREDIT FACILITY
In April 2001, the Company and its Lenders under the Amended Senior

Secured Credit FPFacility agreed to make certain further amendments to the
facility, including the following:
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Certain of the financial covenants were amended to reflect changes in
the Company's business since the Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility was
entered into and to permit continued compliance with those covenants by the
Borrowers in accordance with the Company's revised business plan. In addition,
certain additional financial covenants were added, the most significant of which
will require the Borrowers to meet specific liquidity tests prior to each due
date of cash interest and dividend payments on the Company's senioxr discount
notes, senior notes and preferred stock.

In addition to the existing reductions in the aggregate Revolver
commitment, the Revolver commitment will be further reduced, pro rata with the
Term Loan and Lucent Term Leoan, (i) by applying the net asset sale proceeds of
certain asset sales ({both as defined in the Amended Senior Secured Credit
Facility) in an amount equal to 85% of gross property, plant and equipment
allocated to the assets sold, plus 50% of any proceeds in excess of the full
gross property, plant and equipment allocated to the assets sold (plus a make up
of any shortfall on prior asset sales), (ii) by 50% of the net securities
proceeds (as defined) from the future issuance of eguity intexests by KMC
Holdings in excess of a cumulative $ 200.0 million and (iii) by prepayment of an
aggregate of 5100 million on before May 1, 2002.

The Company will be required to use 50% of the excess cash flows (as
defined) from its National Data Platform business to make additional capital
contributions to the Borrowers.

The repayment schedule for the Term Loan was amended teo provide for 17
consecutive gquarterly installments commencing April 1, 2003 in the same
percentages of outstanding principal amount as the specified percentage
reduction in the Revolver commitment on the same date. The final installment
will now be due on April 1, 2007. Repayments of the Term Lean will also be made
from its pro rata share of net assets sale proceeds, net securities proceeds and
the $100.0 million repayment required to be made by May 1, 2002, all as
described above.

The repayment schedule for the Lucent Term Loan was also amended to
provide for 17 consecutive guarterly installments commencing April 1, 2003 in
the same percentages of outstanding principal amount as the specified percentage
reduction in the Revolver commitment on the same date. The final installment
will now be due on April 1, 2007. Repayments on the Lucent Term Loan will also
be made from its pro rata share of net asset sale proceeds, net securities
proceeds and the $100.0 million repayment reguired to be made by May 1, 2002,
all as described above.

The interest rates on loans under the Amended Senior Secured Credit
Facility were increased. The "Applicable Base Rate Margin" now ranges from 3.25%
to 4.25% and the '"Applicable LIBOR Margin" now ranges from 4.25% to 5,25%.
Interest is now payable monthly.

' KMC Holdings has agreed that it will form a subsidiary holding company
which will own all of the common stock of its operating subsidiaries which are
engaged in its National Data Platform business. KMC Holdings has agreed to
pledge the shares of the data subsidiary holding company as further c¢ollateral
for KMC Holdings' guaranty of the Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility.

In connection with the amendment, the Lenders also waived failures by
the Borrowers to comply with certain of the prior financial covenants as of
March 31, 2001 and the Company made aggregate capital contributions to the
Borrowers of $200.0 million. 1In addition, the collateral for KMC Holdings'
guaranty of the Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility was expanded to include
substantially all of the assets of KMC Holdings.
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LENDER WARRANTS

In connection with the execution of the amendment to the Amended Senior
Secured Credit Facility discussed above, the Company agreed to deliver to a
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warrant agent certificates representing warrants to purchase an aggregate of
166,542 shares of common stock at an exercise price of %$.01 per share (the
"Lender Warrants"). The terms of the Lender Warrants provide that they will
become issuable under the circumstances described in the following paragraphs.

If the Company fails to (i} prepay an aggregate of $50 million under
the Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility by October 31, 2001, (ii) prepay an
additional $50 millicn wunder the Amended Senicor BSecured Credit Facility by
January 31, 2002 and (iii) make additional cash capital contributions to the
Borrowers in the aggregate ameunt of $50 million by January 31, 2002, 50% of the
Lender Warrants will be issued pr¢ rata to the Lenders under the Amended Senior
Secured Credit Facility. If the Company fails to make additional cash capital
contributions to the Borrowers in the aggregate amount of $100 million by March
31, 2002 ({including any amounts taken into consideration pursuant to clause
{iii}) above}, 50% of the Lender Warrants will be issued pro rata to the Lenders
under the Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility. Any Lender Warrants which do
not become issuable as described herein will be returned to the Company by the
Warrant Agent.

NOTE REPURCHASES

We Dbelieve that the present market prices of cur 12 1/2% senior
discount notes and our 13 1/2% senior notes represent an opportunity for us to
reduce our long-term debt. Accordingly, our subsidiaries have recently made, and
may in the future make, purchases of senior discount notes and/or senior notes
in the open market from time to time at then prevailing market prices. Certain
of our officers and directors may also make purchases for their own account. We
may utilize a portion of our unrestricted cash to pay for any purchases of
senior discount notes or senior notes that we may make.

FUTURE DEBT REPAYMENT SCHEDULE

Due to the significant changes in the Company's future debt repayment
structure subsequent to December 31, 2000, the principal repayment schedule of
the Company's outstanding debt as of March 31, 2001 1is as follows (IN
THOUSANDS) :

2001 $ 86,327

2002 129,952

2003 221,478

2004 269,017

2005 221,002
Thereafter 504,675
Total $ 1,832,451
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Independent Auditors' Report on Schedules

The Beoard of Directors and Stockhelders
KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.
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We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. as
of December 31, 1999 and 2000 and the related consolidated statements of
operations, redeemable and nonredeemable equity and cash flows for the years
then ended. Our audit report issued thereon dated April 17, 2001 is included
elsewhere in this Form 10-K. Our audit also included the financial statement
schedules listed in Item 14(a) of this Form 10-K. These schedules are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion based on our audits.

In our opinion, the financial statement schedules referred to above, when
considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole,
present fairly, in all material respects the information set forth therein.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

MetroPark, New Jersey
April 17, 2001
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SCHEDULE 1 - Condensed Fimancial Information aof Regiatrant
KMC Telecoo Holdingz, 1nc.
{Parent Coepany)

Cendenscd Balance Sheetn
{10 THQUSANDS)

DECEMIOER 31

1393 2000
ASSETS
Qurrant nosets:
Canh and gash equivalents {overdrafg). k) (a33) § 2,820
Amounto due !rom suhaldiardes,....,.... I - 42,972 124,458
Prepaid sxpenaes ond other current napelp 1,255 1,042
ToLal QUELENC JABETB. .. ..c..vumuus Geeareeas e m e aa e aa 73,194 147,417
Loans receivable from subsidiaries. 490,104 866,713
Hetwarks, property and equipment. net 58,511 53,119
Intangible amsets, oot o...oeenii. 1,188 1,368
Daferred [inanCing CosLd, net.. 21,011 17,524
Investment 1n subsidiaries.. ... e -~ 35,000
Lo T, T E T X S L A T RN azs Q0
E 745,272 51,121,871
LIADILITIES, REDEEMABLE AND MONREDEEMABLE EQUITY {UEFICIENCY)
Current liabilities:
Agcounts payable. . ..o e e i e 5 10,984 5 165,138
ACETURD EXPOIBEB . . . .o\ttt s saannsoanoenassasassseanasnaianaeieonnannencans 14,967 1B, 666
TOLR] CUrTent L1ADI LT ABE. st vuasanratiotarostarraseinnianenrmsennsmanrassnn 55,95%] 208,061
Senior nocew payable........ . 275,000 275,000
Semar discount notes payable. ... 101,137 349,181
Lopoea of gubsidiaries 1n eagonp of banis 247,127 596,283
Tohal liabilities..., . ......... S a79,21% 1,415,533

Redeemable equity:

Senior redeemable, exchangeable, PIK preferred stock, par value $.01 per
phnre; authorized: 630 sharen in 1959 and 2000; shares insued and

oucpranding:

Series E, 65 sharens in 1959 and 75 pharep in 2000 ($74,954 liguidation

preference) . 50,779 61,992
Serieg F, 44 shares in 1999 and 48 sharem in 200C (547,856 liquidarion

preference). 41,370 50,568

Redermable cumulative convertible preferred stock, par value $.01 per ahare;
4939 shares authorized; shares lanued and outntanding:
Serien A. 134 pharen in 1999 and 2000 (%$12,3680 liquidation preference)... 71,349 109,272
Series C. 175 pharep in 1959 and 2000 {517,500 liguidation preference)... 40,301 72,701
Redeemable cumilative convertible preferred stock, par value $.01 per share:
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2,500 shares authorized; ghares isgsued and ocutstanding:
Series G-1. -0- oharen in 1999 and 59 shares in 2000 {§19,900 liguidation

preference} -- 19,435

Series G-2, -0- sharep in 1999 and 481 shares in 2000 (5162.600
1liguidation PrefEIOOCEY & ..t ut st et st aeaeme st ntmeme e am e imn ey . 158,797
Redeemable common stock, ohares ispoued and outstanding, 224 in 1999 and 2000 33,755 45,563
Redeemable ¢ommon fEOCk warranbfi........... e erraE s 12,925 16,817
Total redeemable equi:y...................f ..................................... 250,470 535,145

Nonredeemable cquity {deficlency}:

Common Btock, par value $.01 per nhare, 4,250 shares aunthorized;
ghares idsued nnd outmtanding: 629 gharap in 19%9 and 617 ghares in 2000 G 5
Unearned COMPEROATION. o\ i rat i et ararmrr e rar i art rrearsiaaart it e ianan (9,163) (16,608)
Accumulated defleit. .o e i i i i e e e e s {375, 256) (816, 205)
Total nonredeemable equity (defigleneyl........ooooioiin.s e (384,411} {832,807)
H] 745,272 $ 1,121,871
massssaEmEman [T T

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES.
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SCHEDULE [ - Condenged Pinancial Information of Registrant

XMC Telecom Holdingo, Ing.
(Parent Company)

Condenoed Statements of Operations
(I THOUSANDS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMRER 31,

Operating expensien:

selling, general and administrative,..... § 19,624

% 100,111

Stack optiocn compengation expenme. . . . 21,150 33,188
Depreciation and amortization...................... 1,197 11,878
Total Operating CXPeRBLE. o+ viv v ie et in e meeianaes o ‘e 42,011
Lops from operationp (42,011} {73,651 {145,179}
OLRET CXPOABR. o vttt taenms ot sassinsonmeneneennnnssnann -- (4,297} .-
Intercompany chargeo..... . . e 20,922 72.972 134,499
Interest iNCOME........00nvns e a.575 18,297 68,450
Interest EXPente. ... 1 rarvrrartansraass (23,104} (53,154} {80,157}
Equity in net loss of gubsidiaries..... (41,135} (185,881} (349,161
g S T T X . (76,153) {225,116} (371,628)
Dividendn and accrecion on redeemable preferred
DL OC K. vt v s n s smncncasnonnaneannnstserasanisnanernnan {18, 285) (81,633) {94,440)
Net loss applicable to common sharcholderd............ % {95,038) § (307,349 $ {466,978}
= - areeamaw

SEE ACCOMPANYING NQTES,
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SCHEDULE T - Condenped Financial Information of Regidtrant

RMC Talecom lloldinge, lne.
[Parent Company}

Condenaad Statements of Canh Flown
(1N THOUSANDS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 11,
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1993 2000
DPERATING ACTIVITIES
HET JOBE. ..ot i e e R e R R 8 176.751) § (235,786} § {371,638}
Adjustmento to recengile net loas to net cosh uoed in operating
activitien:
Fquity in net JoBR Of AubBIO AT LeO. . . ot nn ittt i 41,135 185,683 349,161
DeproCiacion and amorliZatlon.., .. 1,197 3.104 11,874
Hon-caph interest CXpendn. .. ...ovvvrisirs 23,104 16,963 18,854
don-cash stock opLion componsallion expenoe. 11,190 25,833 13,188
Changes in asgets and liabilitics:
Accounta receivable...... . - " 3
Prepalc expenaes and ather current anpet 1332) 923} 207
Agcounto payable 2,043 141 128,414
Accrued SXPERAGHE, .. ..., 5.0838 3.075 21,937
Amounts duc from subsidiarien . 120,922} (52. 0501 {51,48))
[o13, T2 LT 11, T ) . (1,952) 1,128 297
Het cash provided by (ubed (n} operabting activities.., (5,452} 12,262) 162,615
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Loanio receivable from gubdldidried.............. T [ (211, &85} {324.3500 (276.609)
Purchages of SQUIPMERT. .. rrransrsrs .. (5,845} {18,327 12.034)
Investments i1 gubsidiaries - - - {35.000)
Acquiaitions of 1NLONGIDIE ABDOLD. oo v rrrnnrnrrrrntrncrenmtrrrnrivrrnsr {166) 1796) (7o)
Het cash uped AT INVEALING ACLIVILIOD. o ittt a et ia e s {239, 69¢) (341,510 3i4,610)
FINAHCING ACTIVITIES
¥rogceedn (rom lasuance 6! praferced uwtock., net of todilance COBLH........ - 91, 001 177,500
Froceedo from exvrcine of utock OPLIOND. o iviieiin i it rnnanss - R 562
Proctoeds [rom L(dauance of Henlor notaa, net of ippusnce conta nnd
purchnge of portfolio of reatridted investmonio.........cciieinannrans - 262,187 -
Proceeds [rom igsuance of common #tock and warrants, neat ol 1souance
11,17, TR, R R R R T O 20,446 - -
Repurchase and ratirement, of Series F Profarcud Steck....ooiioianionna, - - 13,3239}
Proceedn [rom iasuance of menilor discount notea, nat of 1ABUANCE COUELD. . 225,923 - -
Het caoh provided by financiig nCLIvitIeD. . oo vs v i i rantsaranrarsn 246,369 A3, 721 174,733
liet Increase (decrenge) fn camh asd cash equivalento..............iaan 1.221 12,054} 22,75%
Cagh and camh equivalenta, bLeginning Of YRAT...oivv ieiersarisenarisanns - 1,221 18331
Canh and cagh equivalentl, e0d Of YONE. . o oiieraiiecianerrariorrarisrnns ] 1,324 H 1934} 5 21,922

SEE ACCOMPANYING HOTES.
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SCHEDULE I - Condensed Financial Information of Registrant

KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.
{Parent Company)

Notes to Condensed Financial Statements
December 31, 2000
1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

In the parent company only financial statements, KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s
{the rCompany") investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost less equity in
losses of subsidiaries since date of formation. These parent company financial
statements should be read 1in conjunction with the Company's consolidated
financial statements.

Pursuant to a management agreement among the Company and its subsidiaries, the
Company provides management and other services and incurs certain operating
expenses on behalf of its subsidiaries. Such costs are allocated to the
subsidiaries by the Company and reimbursed on a current basis. At December 31,
1999 and 2000, an aggregate of $73.0 and $124.5 million, respectively, was due
from the subsidiaries for such costs and is included in the accompanying
condensed balance sheet at December 31, 1999 and 2000 as a current receivable.
Such reimbursements are permitted under the debt agreements of the Company’s
subsidiaries.

2. AMENDED SENIOR SECURED CREDIT FACILITY

See Note 5 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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3. INTEREST RATE SWAP AGREEMENT

See Note 6 of the Notes to bonsolidated Financial Statements.

4. SENIOR DISCOUNT NOTES

See Note 5 of the Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements.

5. SENICR NOTES

See Note 5 of the Notes to Conseolidated Financial Statements.

6. REDEEMABLE EQUITY

See Note 7 of the Notes to Conscolidated Financial Statements.

7. ARBITRATICN AWARD

During the second quarter of 1599, the Company recorded a $4.3 million charge to
other expense in connection with an unfavorable arbitration award. The net
amount due under the terms of the award was paid in full in June 1999%.

8. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

See Note 18 of the Notes to Consclidated Finmancial Statements.
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KM Telncom Heldings, Inc.
SCHEQULE I - Yaluaclon and Qualifying Accounts
{1 THOUSANDS)
ADDITIONS
CHARGED 10O
BALARCE AT CHARGED TC QOTHER
BEGINNING COSTS AND ACCOUNTS - DEDUCTIONS - BALANCE AT
DESCRIPTION QF PERIOD EXRENSES DESCRIBE DESCRIBE END OF PERIGD
YEAR ENDED OECEMBER 31, 1993:
Allowance Lor doubtful accounta 5 33 $ 270 S s4{1) § 350
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999:
Allowance for doubnful accounty § 350 $5,263 ] 6241 § 5.551
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER J1, 2000:
Allowance for doubtful agcounts §5,551 $7,875 § 2,505(1) $1p,%21
[#8] Uncolleccible acgounca wricten-ofl,
84

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DRISCLOSURE.
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None .
PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT.
The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the

persons who are members of the Board of Directors or are executive officers of
the Company as of March 30, 2001.

NAME AGE
POSITION

Harold N. Kamine................ 44 Chairman of the Board of
Directors

Gary E. Lasher.................. 65 Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors

William F. Lenahan.............. 50 Chief Executive Officer and
Director

Roscoe C. Young II............. 50 President, Chief Operating
Officer and Director

William H. Stewart.............. 34 Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Cfficer and Director

Robert L. Nibbs, Jr. ........... 49 Executive Vice President,
Field Sales and Operations

Larry G. Salter................. 52 Executive Vige President,
Network Services

Tricia Breckenridge............. 54 Executive Vice President,
Business Development

John G. Quigley................. 47 Director

Richard H. Patterson............ 42 Director

Alexander P. Celeman............ 34 Director

Jeffrey M. Tuder................ 27 Director

The business experience of each of the directors and executive officers
of the Company is as follows:

HARCLD N. KAMINE is our founder and has been the Chairman of our board
of directors since 1994. He is a co-owner of KNT Network Technologies LLC, which
is our exclusive provider of outside network related construction and
maintenance services. Previocusly, he was the Chief Executive Officer and sole
owner of Kamine Development Corp. and associated companies in the independent
power industry. Mr. Kamine has successfully financed a number of unregulated
non-utility power generation projects. Companies owned by Mr. Kamine owned
substantial interests in and managed six power generation plants in the
Northeastern United States. Mr. Kamine devotes less than half his time to our
affairs.

GARY E. LASHER joined us as Vice Chairman of our board of directors
effective November 1, 19297. He was the founder, Chief Executive Officer and
President of Eastern Telelogic Corporation from 1987 to 1997. Eastern TelelLogic
was a leading competitive local exchange carrier operating in greater
Philadelphia, Delaware and southern New Jersey before its purchase by Teleport
Communications Group in October 1996. Prior to Eastern TelelLogic, from
1984-1986, Mr. Lasher was Chief Operating Officer of Private Satellite Network,
a company which built and operated wvideo satellite networks for major
corporations. Mr. Lasher also spent 20 years with Continental Telephone holding
various positions including Corporate Vice President, President of the
International Engineering and Construction Company, and various senior positions
with Continental Telephone's regulated subsidiaries. Mr. Lasher is one of the
founding members of the Association for Local Telecommunications Services and
served for three vears as Chairman of the BAssociation. Mr. Lasher is also
Chairman of the Board of Linx Communications, a privately-owned provider of
unified personal communications services.
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WILLIAM F. LENAHAN joined us as our Chief Executive Officer effective
May 1, 2000 and has been a director since May 2000. He was President and Chief
Executive Officer of BellSouth Wireless Data from October 1994 to April 2000,
and was responsible for financial performance and nationwide wireless data
strategy for this division of BellSouth Corporation. From 1987 to 19%3, he was
Vice President/General Manager and then President and Chief Executive Officer of
three Sears divisions--Sears Business Centers, Office Centers and Computer
Services. In 1986, he was named President and Chief Executive Officer of
BellAtlantic's Compushop division, a reseller of PCs and communicaticns
products. Mr. Lenahan has served nearly 30 years in the information technology,
telecommunications and data industries. He began his career at IBM, where he
worked for 12 years in a variety of sales, marketing, operations and human
resources executive assignments, and sat on the IBM Product Review Board. He
later joined United fTelecom, the forerunner of Sprint, where he started
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Amerisource, a new business that resold PBXs, PCs and systems integration
products. He was a member of the Advisory Councils of IBM, Compaq and NCR.

ROSCOE €. YOUNG II has over 20 vyears experience in the field of
telecommunications with both new venture and Fortune 500 companies. He has
served as a director since December 1999 and President and Chief Operating
Officer since March 2000. Previously, he had been our Executive Vice President
and Chief Operating Officer. Prior to joining us in November 1996, Mr. Young
served as Vice Pregident, Network Component Services for Ameritech Corporation
from June 1994 to October 1996. From March 1988 to June 1994, Mr. Young served
as Senior Vice President, Network Services for MFS Communications. From October
1977 to March 1988, Mr. Young served in a number of senior operations, sales and
marketing, engineering, £inancial management, and human resource positions for
AT&T Corp.

WILLIAM H. STEWART has served as a director since August 1997.
Mr. Stewart joined us as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer in
March 2000. Previously, Mr. Stewart was a Managing Director of Nassau Capital
L.L.C. after joining that firm in June 1995. From 1989 until joining Nassau, Mr.
Stewart was a portfelio manager and equity analyst at the Bank of New York. He
is a Chartered Financial Analyst and a member of the New York Society of
Security Analysts.

ROBERT L. NIBBS, JR. joined us in November 1997. He is our Executive
Vice President of Field Sales and Operaticons and oversees all sales and
operations activities in KMC's Tier III markets. Prior to jeining KMC, he served
over 20 years in marketing, sales and operations positions with Ameritech
Corporation

LARRY G. SALTER Fjoined us in December 1997. He is the Executive Vice
President of Network Services and has over 30 years experience in the field of
telecommunications. Prior to joining us, he spent 28 years with AT&T where he
worked in Bell Labs, as well as senior level positions in marketing and product
management .

TRICIA BRECKENRIDGE joined us in April 1995. From January 1993 to April
1995, she was Vice President and General Manager of FiberNet USA's Huntsville,
Alabama operations. Previously, she had served as Vice President, External
Affairs and later Vice President, Sales and Marketing of Diginet, Inc. She was
co-founder of Chicago Fiber Optic Corporation, the predecessor cf Metropoelitan
Fiber Systems. FEarliexr, she was Director of Regulatory Affairs for Telesphere
Corporation.

JOHN G. QUIGLEY has served as a director since August 1996. Mr. Quigley
iz a founding member of Nassau Capital L.L.C., the independent firm that has
managed Princeton University endowment's $2.0 billion private investment program
since 1995%. Nassau Capital L.L.C. is the general partner of Nassau Capital
Partners L.P. and Nassau Capital Partners IV L.P. Mr. Quigley is also on the
beoard of directors of KNT Network Techneologies LLC and an adjunct faculty member
at Columbia Law School.
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RICHARD H. PATTERSON has served as a director singe May 1897. From May
1986 to June 1999, Mr. Patterson served as a partner of Waller Capital
Corporation, a media and communications investment banking firm. Since June
1997, he has served as a Vice President of Waller-Sutton Media LLC and Vice
President of Waller-Sutton Management Group, Inc., two entities which manage a
media and telecommunications private equity fund. Since October 1999, he has
served as Managing Member of Spire Capital Partners, a media and
telecommunications fund providing growth capital to private companies. Mr.
Patterson is a member of the board of directors of Regent Communicatiens, Inc.,
which owns and operates radio stations in small-to-mid size markets.

ALEXANDER P. COLEMAN has served as a director since July 2000. Since
January 1996, Mr. Coleman has served as Vice President and Investment Partner of
Dresdner Kleinwort Benson Private Equity LLC, Dresdner Bank AG's United States
leveraged buyout group. Prior to joining Dresdner Kleinwort Benson Private
Equity LLC, Mr. Coleman served in several corporate finance positions for
Citicorp/Citibank N.A. from 1989 through 1995, and most recently as Vice
President of Citicorp Venture Capital. Mr. Coleman is also a director of
Gardenburger, Inc. and Tritel, Inec.

JEFFREY M. TUDER has served as a director since January, 2001. Since
1998, Mr. Tuder has served as a '‘Principal with Nassau Capital L.L.C. Prior to
joining Nassau Capital in 1998, Mr. Tuder was a Financial Analyst with ABS
Capital Partners, L.P. from 1996 to 1998, and served in the investment banking
division of Alex. Brown & Sons from 1995 to 1996. Mr. Tuder is als¢ on the Board
of Managers of KNT Network Technologies LLC.
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Pursuant teo  provisions contained in an Amended and Restated
Steckholders Agreement dated as of October 31, 1997, as further amended, among
the Company, Kamine, WNassau, CIT Lending Services Corporation, GECC, First
Union, Lucent and Dresdner Kleinwort Benson (the "Stockholders' Agreement”),
these stockholders have agreed to vote their shares and take all necessary
actions to elect the following individuals to the Company's board of directors:
the Chief Executive Officer, the President, three individuals designated by
Nassau, two individuals designated by Kamine, one individual designated by
Dresdner and one individual as an independent director approved by Nassau,
Kamine and other principal existing stockholders. Lucent or a person to whom
Lucent transfers its shares may be entitled to designate one individual under
certain circumstances. The naumber of directors each of Nassau, Kamine and
Dresdner is entitled to designate will decrease as their respective percentages
of ownership decrease. If a default relating to payment occurs under the Amended
Senior Secured Credit Facility and continues uncured for 90 days, the holders of
Series C Preferred Stock {currently Nassau, GECC and First Union) are entitled
to elect two additional Directors, who will serve until the default is cured. In
additien, under the certificate of designations relating to each of our Series E
Preferred Stock and Series F preferred Stock, i1if a default occurs under such
certificate(s), the holders of Series E Preferred Stock and/or the holders of
the Series F Preferred Stock will have the xight to elect one additional
individual each to serve as a director (for a total of two additional
directors), in each case until the default is cured and all accrued dividends on
such preferred stock are paid in full.

Kamine/Besicorp Allegany L.P., an independent power company 50% owned
by corporaticons which Mr. Kamine owns, filed a voluntary petition to reorganize
its business under Chapter 11 of the Federal Bankruptcy Code in November 1995.
In Octobex 1998, the bankruptcy court confirmed a plan of liquidation for this
entity.

Directors hold office until the next Annual Meeting of stockholders or
until their successors are duly elected and gualified. Executive officers. are
elected annually by the Board of Directors and serve at the discretion of the
Board of Directors.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
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OQur board of directors has authorized a Compensation Committee to be
composed of three members. The present members of the Compensation Committee are
Messys. Quigley, Patterson and Coleman. OQur board of directors has created an
Executive Committee consisting of Messrs. Kamine, Quigley and Coleman. Our board
of directors has alsc created an Audit Committee consisting of Messrs. Lasher,
Patterson, Quigley and Coleman.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.
SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The following table sets forth information concerning compensation for
services in all capacities awarded to, earned by, or paid to, any person acting
as the Company's Chief Executive Officer during 2000, regardless of the amount
of compensation paid, and the other four most highly compensated executive
officers of the Company whose aggregate cash and cash equivalent compensation
exceeded 5100,000 during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000 (collectively,
the "Named Executive Officers"):

87
LONG TERM
ANNUAL COMPENSATION COMPENSATION
OTHER AMNNUAL SECURITIES
COMPENSATION UNDERLY [HG
NAME AND POSITION YEAR SALARY (%} BONUS (8§} (5) (1) OPTIONS (#
William F. Lenabhan(2)}.............. 2000 §317,382 51, 000, 000 - 50,000
Chief Execcutive OEficer
Michoael A. Sternbergf{d}............ 2000 $142,1958 - - -
President and Chief Execubive 1999 $496,539 $272,500 - -
offigar 1998 $275,000 407,500 - 65,000
Harold N- Kamine................... 2000 5485, D53 - - -
Chairman of the Board 1999 5450, 000 - - -
Rogeoe C- Young [I.......vvivvvinnn
president and Chicf Qperacing 2000 8551, 200 51,150, G600 - 17,500
Officer 1999 5446,539 $362,500 - -
1998 §218,270 $497,500 §52,189 32,500
William H. Stewart(d}.............. 2000 5278, 864 $500, 000 - 15, 000
Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer
Robert L. Nibba, Jr.........o.ovny. 2000 §235,975 $303,063 - 2,000

Executive Vice Presidenc,
Salen and Operbtions

(1) The amounts reported in this column for Mr. Young in 1998 include
relocation related expenses of $47,377 and personal use of a Company
automcbile of $4,812. The aggregate wvalue of the perguisites and other
personal benefits, if any, received by Mr. Young for 200C and 1999 and by
the other Named Executive OQfficers for all years presented have not been
reflected 1in this table because the amount was below the Securities and
Exchange Commission's threshold for disclosure (i.e., the lesser of $50,000
or 10% of the total of annual salary and bonus for the executive officer
for the yearx).

(2) Mr. Lenahan joined the Company as Chief Executive Cfficer effective May 1,
2000 and the compensation figures for him are for the peried from that date
to the end of the year.
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{3} Mr. Sternberg served in the capacities indicated from the beginning of the
year until March 8, 2000 and the compensation figure for him is for that
period. For a description of amounts payable to Mr. Sternberg pursuant to a
separation agreement, see "--separation agreements" below.

{4) Mr. Stewart <joined the Company as Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer on March 9, 2000 and the compensation figures for him are
for the period from that date to the end of the year.

STOCK OPTION GRANTS
The following table sets forth information regarding grants of options to

purchase shares of Common Stock made by the Company during 2000 to each of the
Named Executive Officers.
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OPTION GRANTS [N PISCAL YEAR 2000
IHDIVIDUAL GRANTS
HARKET POTENTIAL REALIVADLE VALUE AT
PERCENT OF FRICE ASSUMED AMNUAL RATES OF STOCK
HUMBER OF TOTAL oF PRICE APPRECIATICH POR
SECURITIES QPFTIONS EXERCISE QOMMOH OPTION TERM (1)
WHDERLYIHQ  GRANTED TO OR STOCK O reesermmamrmseememeeesacmeesmsaesasamamaaeas
GPTIQNS EMPLOYEES BASE DATE
GRAMTED 11 PISCAL PRICE OF GRANT EXIRATLOH
HARE 2000 ($/SHARE) 21 DATE {ov) {sy)
Williom P, Lenahan..... 50,000 19.6% $75 §300 5/12/10 $11,250,000 920,683,000 $35,156,000
Michael A, Sternberg... - - - - - - - -
Harold H. Kamnm....o... - - - - - - - -
Romcoe C. Younq II.... 17.500 6.8% 875 §100 3/6/10 §3,938, 000 §7.239,000 §12. 305,000
William H. Stewart..... 35,000 13.7% 575 £300 E/10 §7.875.000 §14.478,000 §24.60%, 000
Robert L. Hibba, Jr.... 2.000 1.0% $250 5100 471210 5100,000 §477,000 §1,056, 000
(1) Mr. Lenahan, Mr. Young, and Mr. Stewart's options vested 25% upeon

issuance and continue te vest 12.5% every six months thereafter.,
Mr. Nibbs options vest annually over three years.

{2) There 1is no active trading market for the Company's Common Stock. The
market price shown is based upon management's estimate of the fair value
of the Company's Common Stock on the date when these options were granted.

(3) Amounts reported in these columns represent amounts that may be realized
upon exercise of options immediately prior to the expiration of their term
assuming the specified compounded rates of appreciation (0%, 5% and 10%)on
Common Stock over the term of the options. These assumptions are based on
rules promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission and do not
reflect the Company's estimate of future stock price appreciatien. Actual
gains, if any, on the stock option exercises and Common Stock heldings are
dependent on the timing of such exercises and the future value of the
Common Stock. There can be no assurance that the rates of appreciation
assumed in this table can be achieved or that the amounts reflected will
be received by the option holders.

OPTION EXERCISES AND OPTION YEAR-END VALUE TABLE

No coptions were exercised during 2000 by any of the Named Executive
Officers. The following table sets forth information regarding the number and
year-end value of unexercised options to purchase shares of Common Stock held at
December 31, 2000 by each of the Named Executive Officers.
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FISCAL 2000 YEAR-END OPTION VALUES

NUMBER OF SECURITIES
VALUE OF UNEXERCISED

UNDERLYING UNEXERCISED
"IN-THE-MONEY"

SHARES VALUE QPTICONS AT
OPTIONS AT
ACQUIRED ON REALIZED DECEMBER 31, 2000

DECEMBER 31, 2000
NAME EXERCISE (#) ($) EXERCISABLE/UNEXERCISABLE
EXERCISABLE/UNEXERCISABLE (1)

William F. Lenahan....... - - 18,750/31, 250
$4,219,000/87,031,000
Michael A. Sternberg..... - - 65,000/~

$17,810,000/8% - ‘
Harold N. Kamine......... - - -

Roscoe C. Young II...... - - 3%,812/14,188
$9,536,000/53,192,000

William H. Stewart....... - - 13,125/21,875
$2,953,000/%4,922,000

Robert L. Nibbs, Jr...... - - 3,000/4,000

$822,000/%$648,000

{1) Options are "In-the-Money" if the fair market wvalue of the underlying
securities exceeds the exercise price of the options. There is no active
trading market for the Company's Common Stock. The fair market value of the
option grants at December 31, 2000 was determined on the basis of
management's estimate of the fair value of the Company's Common Stock on
that date.

DIRECTOR CCMPENSATION

Qur Directers do not currently receive any compensation £for their
services in such capacity, except that Mr. Lasher receives $25,000 per year in
connection with his services as our Vice Chairman and was granted options to
acquire 12,000 shares of our stock and Mr. Patterson receives $25,000 and
optiens to acquire 1,00C shares of our common stock per year in connection with
his services as a Director.

EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT CONTRACTS

We have an employment contract with Harold N. Kamine, the Chairman of
our board of directors. Our employment agreement with Mr. Kamine provides for a
term of four years, effective as of January 1, 1999. Under the agreement, Mr.
Kamine is paid a bhase salary of $450,000 per annum and is entitled to be
considered for bonuses in amounts to be determined by the Board of Directors.
Mr. Kamine 1is entitled to receive benefits generally vreceived by our
senior executives, including reimbursement of expenses incurred con our behalf,
and participation in group plans. If Mr. Kamine's employment agreement is
terminated as a result of Mr. Kamine's death or permanent disability, or upeon
our breach of the agreement, he, or his estate, is entitled to a severance
payment in an amount equal to the lesser of two times his annual base salary and
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the aggregate unpaid base salary that would have been paid te him during the
remaining balance of the term of the employment contract, subject to a minimum
of one-half of his annual base salary.

We have an employment contract with William F. Lenahan, Chief Executive
Officer and a member of our hoard of directors. OQur employment agreement with
Mr. Lenahan provides for a term of five years, effective as of May 1, 2000.
However, the term will be auvtomatically extended for successive two year pericds
unless either party provides notice to the other, at least ninety days prior to
the end of the term, that the agreement will not be extended. Under the
agreement, Mr. Lenahan's base salary is $500,000 per annum and he is entitled to
be considered for an annual bonus in an amount to be determined by the
Compensation Committee of the board of directors. In addition to the annual
bonus, Mr. Lenahan will be entitled to receive a total of $3.0 million in bonus
payments with %500,000 payable upon completion of each of three (3) financing
transactions related to our data services agreements with Qwest, $500,000
payable upon the Company achieving positive EBITDA and $1.0 million payable upon
the next equity capital event (public or private), other than an initial public
offering, in which at least $100.0 million is invested in the Company. With our
agreement, Mr. Lenahan may elect to receive these special bonuses in common
stock in lieuw of cash. Mr. Lenahan is also entitled to receive benefits
generally received by our officers, including opticns to purchase our common
stock, reimbursement o©of expenses incurred on our behalf, and a leased
automobile. If we terminate Mr. Lenahan's employment without cause, or if the
term of his employment agreement expires, prior to an initial public offering or
upon our change in control, Mr. Lenahan will be entitled to receive a makeup
bonus equal to $5.0 million. Upon terminatien of the agreement, Mr. Lenahan is
subject to a confidentiality c¢ovenant and a twenty- four month non-competition
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agreement. Mr. Lenahan is entitled to receive a severance payment in an amount
ranging from 0% to 200% of his base salary upon termination of his employment
depending on the cause of such termination. Upon payment of the makeup bonus,
all stock and stock options which Mr. Lenahan may have with regard to cur equity
will be terminated.

We have an employment contract with Roscoe C. Young, II, President,
Chief Operating Officer and a member of our beard of directors. The term of Mr.
Young's employment under the employment agreement became effective as of March
6, 2000, and continues until March 31, 2005, unless earlier terminated in
accordance with the employment agreement. Under the agreement, Mr. Young's base
salary is $500,000 per annum and he is entitled to be considered for an annual
bonus in an amount to be determined by the Compensation Committee of our board
of directors. In addition te the annual beonus, Mr. Young will be entitled to
receive a total of 53.0 million in bonus payments with $500,000 payable upon
completion of each of three (3) financing transactions related to our data
services agreements with Qwest, $500,000 payable upon the Company achieving
positive EBITDA and $1.0 million payable upon the next equity capital event
(public or private), other than an initial public offering, in which at least
$100.0 million is invested in the Company. With our agreement, Mr. Young may
elect to receive these special bonuses in common stock in lieu of cash. Mr.
Young is entitled to receive benefits generally received by our officers,
including options to purchase our stock, reimbursement of expenses incurred on
our behalf, and a leased automobile. Upon termination of the agreement, Mr.
Young 1is subject to a confidentiality covenant and a twenty-four month
non-competition agreement. If we terminate Mr. Young's employment without cause,
he is entitled to a severance payment in an amount equal to two times his annual
base salary.

We also have an employment contract with William H. Stewart, our Chief
Financial Officer and Executive Vice President. Our agreement with Mr. Stewart
provides for a term of three years, effective as of March &, 2000. Under the
agreement, Mr. Stewart's base salary is $350,000 per annum and he is entitled to
be considered for an annual bonus in an amount teo be determined by the
Compensation Committee of our board of directors. In addition to the annual
bonus, Mr. Stewart will be entitled to receive a total of 5$2.0 million in bonus
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payments with $500,000 payable upon the completion of each of two (2) financing
transactions related to our data services agreements with Qwest, $500,000
payable upon the Company achieving positive EBITDA and $500,000 payable upon the
next equity capital event (public or private), other than an initial public
offering, in which at least $100.0 million is invested in the Company. With our
agreement, Mr. Stewart may elect to receive these special bonuses in commen
stock in lieu of cash. Mr. Stewart is entitled to receive benefits generally
received by our officers, including options to purchase our stock, reimbursement
of expenses incurred on our behalf, and a leased automobile. Upon termination of
the agreement, Mr. Stewart is subject to a confidentiality covenant and a
twenty-four month non-competition agreement. If we terminate Mr. Stewart's
employment without cause, he is entitled to a severance payment in an amount
equal to two times his annual base salary.

SEPARATION AGREEMENTS

On March 7, 2000, we entered into a separation agreement and release
with Michael A. Sternberg, pursuant to which Mr. Sternberg's employment as our
President and Chief Executive Officer was terminated, by mutual agreement,
effective March 8, 2000. Under the separation agreement, Mr. Sternberg was paid
a total of $1.0 million. Mr. Sternberg was alsoc reimbursed for accrued vacation
time. Pursuant to the agreement, we will pay the costs associated with Mr.
Sternberg's current enrollment in our health care plans through December 31,
2001. Mr. Sternberg also retained €%,000 stock options previcusly granted to him
under our stock optien plan. Mr. Sternberg has agreed to vote any shares of
common stock owned by him in accordance with the shares owned by Mr. Kamine and
Nassau. Mr. Sternberg has agreed tc make himself available to consult with us on
a non-exclusive basis through December 31, 2001.

On March 7, 2000, we entered into a separation agreement and release
with James D. Grenfell, pursuant to which Mr. Grenfell's employment as our
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary was terminated,
by mutual agreement, effective March 8, 2000. Under the separation agreement,
Mr. Grenfell was paid a total of $1.0 million. Pursuant to the agreement, we
will pay the costs associated with Mr. Grenfell's current enrollment in our
health care plans through December 31, 2001. Mr. Grenfell also retained 3,600
stock options previcusly granted to him under our steck optien plan. Mr.
Grenfell has agreed to vote any shares of common stock owned by him in
accordance with the shares owned by Mr. Kamine and Nassau. We also paid Mr.
Grenfell $148,000 for certain relocation and other services.
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EMPLOYEE PLANS

KMC HOLDINGS STOCK OPTION PLAN. Employees, directers or other persons
having a unique relationship with the Company or any of its affiliates are
eligible to participate in the KMC Holdings Stock Option Plan. However, neither
Mr. Kamine nor any person employed by Nassau or any affiliate of Nassau is
gligible for grants under the plan. The KMC Holdings Stock Option Plan is
administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Company. The Compensation Committee is authorized to grant (i) options intended
to qualify as Incentive Options, (ii} Non-Qualified Options, (iii) stock
appreciation rights, (iv) restricted stock, (v} performance units, (vi)
performance shares and (vii) certain other types of awards.

The number of shares of Company Common Stock available for grant under
the KMC Holdings Stock Cption Plan is 600,000. As of March 30, 2001, options to
acquire 522,864 shares of common stock were outstanding under the plan. No
participant may receive more than 75,000 shares of Company Common Stock under
the KMC Holdings Stock Option Plan.

The Compensation Committee has the power and authority to designate
recipients of grants under the KMC Holdings Stock Cption Plan, to determine the
terms, conditions and limitations of grants under the plan and to interpret the
provisions of the plan. The exercise price of all Incentive Options granted
under the KMC Holdings S$tock Optien Plan must be at least equal to the Fair
Market Value (as defined in the plan} of Company Common Stock on the date the
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options are granted and the exercise price of all Nongualified Options granted
under the KMC Holdings Stock Option Plan must be at least equal to 25% of the
Fair Market Value of Company Common Stock on the date the options are granted.
The maximum term of each Option granted under the KMC Holdings Stock Option Plan
will be 10 years. Options will become exercisable at such times and in such
inastallments as the Compensation Committee provides in the terms of each
individual Option.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLCCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION

Mr. Kamine, our Chairman, and Messrs. Coleman, Quigley and Patterson
served as members of the Compensation Committee during at least a portion of
2000. The present members of the Committee are Messrs. Coleman, Quigley and
Patterson. Mr. Quigley is also a member of Nassau Capital L.L.C. which, through
its affiliates, beneficially owns more than five percent of our voting
securities.

We are entitled to use a Citation III business jet chartered by
Bedminster Aviation LLC, a limited liability company wholly owned by Mr. Kamine,
for a fixed price per hour of flight ¢time. During 2000, we paid Bedminster
Aviation approximately $1.7 million for the use of the Citation TIII. We have
agreed to use our best efforts to use the Citation IIT fifty hours per quarter
during 2001. However, we are under no obligation to do so and we have not
guaranteed any financial arrangements with respect to the aircraft or to
Bedminster Aviation LLC.

Effective August 18, 2000, we entered into a 12 year lease, with an
entity controlled by Kamine, for all three floors of the building (approximately
50,000 sguare feet) in Bedminster, New Jersey in which we are presently
headquartered. The new lease provides for a base annual rental cost of
approximately $1.0 million, adjusted periodically for changes in the consumer
price index, plus operating expenses. The building is owned by a company in
which a trust for the benefit of Mr. Kamine's children owns a fifty percent
interest. Previously, under the terms cf a lease initially entered into in June
1996, we had leased smaller amounts of space in the building in which our
headguarters are located. The earlier lease had provided for a base annual
rental of $217,000 (adjusted periodically for changes in the consumer price
index}, plus operating expenses. Pursuant to these leases we paid an aggregate
of 51.1 million during 2000.

We are currently in negotiations to complete the transfer of our
construction division to KNT Network Technologies, LLC a company independently
owned by Harold N. Kamine and Nassau Capital, our principal stockholders.
Pursuant to an arrangement between the parties, effective June 1, 2000, we
transferred substantially all of the employees of our construction division to
KNT. KNT is providing censtruction and maintenance services te us and is being
reimbursed for all of the direct costs of these activities. In addition, we are
currently funding substantially all of KNT's general overhead and administrative
costs at an amount not to exceed $15 million per annum.
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Amounts paid to KNT during fiscal 2000 related te this arrangement
amounted to $20.0 million, of which 58.7 million was for network related
construction and was capitalized into networks and equipment and the balance was
charged to expense. Further, we may be entitled to participate in future profits
of KNT, to the extent KNT develops a successful third-party construction
business.

We are currently negotiating with KNT to finalize the terms of this
arrangement and execute a formal contract which is required to be completed by
June 15, 2001.

Pursuant to an agreement between us, Mr. Kamine and Nassau, Nassau is
paid financial advisory fees in cash at a rate of $450,000 per annum.

Upon the initial closing of our offering of our Series G Convertible
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Preferred Stock in July 2000, we paid a fee of $2.0 million in cash to Dresdner
Kleinwort Benson Private Eguity LLC, an affiliate of one of our principal
stockholders, a fee of $1.0 million in cash to Nassau Capital L.L.C. and a fee
of $400,000 in cash to CIT.

Upon the initial closing, in November 2000, of the 48 month term loan
we obtained to finance our acguisition of the KMC Funding Equipment, we paid a
fee of $1.0 million in cash to Dresdner Kleinwort Benson North American Leasing,
Inc. Mr. Coleman is currently serving as Vice President and Investment Partner
of Dresdner Kleinwort Benson Private Equity LLC, an affiliate of this entity.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT.

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the
beneficial ownership of the Common Stock, as of March 30, 2000, by (i) each
person known to the Company to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the
Common Steock, (ii) each of the Company's directors, (iii) each of the Named
Executive Officers, and (iv) all directors and executive officers as a group.
All information with respect to beneficial ownership has been furnished to the
Company by the respective stockholders of the Company.

NUMBER QF PERCENTAGE
NAME AND ADDRESS OF BENREFICIAL OWNER SHARES (1} CWNERSHIP (1}

Harold N. KamMine. ... . ciuiiiiinninnrrrnaasnrnassansasanransasaasarnassanansans 581,485 66.9%
¢/o Kamine Development Corp.

1545 Route 206

Bedmingter, NJ 07921

HASS0u Capital PALENETS LB (2] ..ttt meaa st i s aeaacoaroeanenaneenns PP 726,255 AG.2%
c/o Nagpau Capital L.L.C.

22 Chambers Street

Brinceton, NJ 08542

CIT Lending Serviges Corporabion (3. ..ottt enainanirnsinsnian 269,317 27.7%
44 Whippany Road
Morristown, NJ 07960

Firok Union Corp. (A) st naasnaannnrrraa s s anraanaasaaaarssansranaaansnnns 196,793 18.7%
301 Secuth College St.
Charlotte, NC 28288

General Electric Capital CorporaCion (5)........veiiieiiniiininiiacaiaaniaaass 256,533 22.9%
120 Leng Ridge Read
Stamfcord, CT 06927

CIBC INC. v iviriiirirr sttt ssrraaarrrsaasrasasssassssssnanararannnanans 44,104 5.1%
425 Lexington Avenue
New York, New York 10017

23

NUMBER OF PERCENTAGE
NAME AND ADDRESS OF BENEFICIAL QWNER SHARES (1} OWNERSHIP (1)

Lucent Technologies INC. §6) .. ..uiurinniiannrrarsrrereransrriraraasassssannns 363,678 29.7%
600-700 Mountain Avenue
Murray Hill, NJ Q7974

Dregdner Kleinwort Benaon Private Equity Partners LP (7} ......c.iciiininnnannnn 153,005 15.1%
75 Wall Street
New York, NY 10005

William F. Lenahan (B) ..ueuiiiriorranaaaarririasaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaarssssssssnnns 25,000 2.8%
c/o KMC Telecom Holdings, Toc.

1545 Rouce 206, Suite 300

Bedminager, New Jersey (7921

Michae! A. Sternberg (B) ... .. ..ttt i i i ittt aea 65,000 7.0%
¢/o KMC Telecom Holdinga, Ine.

1545 Route 206, Suite 300

Bedmingter, New Jersey 07921
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Gary E. LaBRer (B) . ... . it ranaa ittt iat s aa et naaaas 12,000 1.4%
c/o KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.

1545 Route 206, Suite 300

Bedminmater, New Jersey 07921

John G. QUIGLEY [9) ..ottt ittt et i i e ittt aa e e e e s 126, 255 46.2%
c/o Waspau Capital L.L.C.

22 Chambers Street

Princeton, MJ 08542

Richard H. PABLEErSOn (B) .iuiiitnyiuiiuuiaeotisostoetotoeaeacaananeeenneannsnn 7.000 0.BY¥
c/o Spire Capital Management

30 Rockefeller Center

Suite 4350

New York. NY 18112

Alexander P. Coleman [10) ... ...t neeeenaeocaaaasanarasaaanaansaeeessneensnna 153, 005 15.1%
c/o Dresdner Kleinwort Bengon

Private Equity Partners L.P.

75 Wall Street

New York, NY 100043

Jeff M. Tuder (9)...
c/o Nassau Capital L.
22 Chambera Street
Princeton, NJ 08542

726,255 46.2%

Rogcog €. Young Il {B).... ... it ennieeeneranenanennsannnacaancnnnnnes 41,250 q4.6%
c/o KMC Telecom Holdinga, Inc.

1545 Route 206, Suite 100

Bedminster, NJ 07921

William H., SECWATE {B) suuuaaaaronssaarrrrrrrorrrorirorirrrrtoreosonorasssnnnsnsy 17,500 2.0%
c/o KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.

1545 Roure 206, Suite 300

Bedminster, NJ 07921

94

NUMBER OF PERCENTAGE
NAME AND ADDRESS OF BENEFICIAL OWNER
SHARES (1} CWNERSHIP (1)

Robert Nibbs, Jxr. (B) ..ttt it e e et e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e
3,500 0.4%

c/o KMC Telecom Heldings, Inc.

1545 Route 206, Suite 300

Bedminster, NJ 07921

Directors and Officers of the Company as a Group (12 persons).................
1,575,595 85.2%

{1) Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the
Commission. In computing the number of shares beneficially owned by a
person and the percentage ownership of that person, shares subject to
options, warrants and convertible securities held by that person that are
currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 30, 2001 are
deemed outstanding. Such shares, however, are not deemed outstanding for
the purposes of computing the percentage ownership of any other person.
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Except as indicated in the footnotes to this table, each shareholder named
in the table has sole voting and investment power with respect to the
shares set forth opposite such shareholder's name.

(2) Includes 620,522 shares of commen stock which Nassau Capital Partners L.P.
and NAS Partners I L.L.C. have the right to acgquire upon conversion of
122,708 and 1,092 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock,
respectively, 61,298 shares of common stock which Nassau and NAS Partners
I, L.L.C. have the right to acquire upon conversion of 24,778 and 222
shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock, respectively and 30,601
shares of commen stock which NAS Partners I, L.L.C. and Nassau Capital
Partners IV L.P. have the right to acquire upon conversion of 411 shares
and 29,178 shares of Series G Convertible Preferred Stock, respectively.
These are the same shares listed for Messrs. Quigley and Tuder.

(3) Includes 48,950 shares of common stock which Newcourt Commercial Finance
Corporation, also a subsidiary of CIT Lending Services Corporation, has
the right to acquire upon the exercise of warrants and 61,202 shares of
common stock which CIT Lending Services Corporation has the right to
acquire upon conversion of 59,177 shares of Series G Convertible Preferred
Stock.

(4) Includes 122,595 shares of common stock which First Union Corp. (the
successor to CoreStates Holdings, Inc.) has the right to acquire upon
conversion of 50,000 shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock and
67,280 shares which First Union Corp. has the right to acguire wupon the
exercise of warrants.

(5) Includes 245,190 shares of common stock which General Electric Capital
Corporation has the right to acquire upon conversion of 100,000 shares of
Series C Convertible Preferred Stock and 10,343 shares of common stock
which General Electric Capital Corporation has the right to acguire upon
exercise of a warrant.

(6) Includes 306,009 shares of common stock which Lucent has the right to
acquire upen conversion of 295,885 shares of Series G Convertible
Preferred Stock and 57,669 shares of Common Stock which Lucent has the
right to acguire upon exercise of a warrant.

(7) Represents shares of common stock which Dresdner Kleinwort Benscon Private
Equity Partners LP and its affiliate, 75 Wall Street Associates, have the
right to acquire upon conversion of 147,942 shares of Series G Convertible
Preferred Stock. These are the same shares listed for Mr. Coleman.

(8) Represents shares of common stock which the holder has the xight to
acguire upon the exercise of options that are exercisable within sixty
days pursuant teo our stock cption plan.

{9) Messrs. Quigley and Tuder, directors of the company, are members of Nassau
Capital L.L.C., the general partner of Nassau Capital Partners L.P. and
Nassau Capital Partners IV L.P.; accordingly Messrs. Quigley and Tuder may
be deemed to be beneficial owners of such shares and for purposes of this
table they are included. Messrs. Quigley and Tuder disclaim beneficial
ownership of all such shares within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 under the
Exchange Act. Messrs. Quigley and Tuder are also members of NAS Partners
I, L.L.C.; accordingly Messrs. Quigley and Tuder may be deemed to be
beneficial owners of such shares and for purposes of this table they are
included. Messrs. Quigley and Tuder disclaim beneficial ownership of all
such shares within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act,.

{10) All of the shares indicated as owned by Mr. Coleman are owned directly or
indirectly by Dresdner Kleinwort Benson Private Equity Partners LP of
which Mr. Coleman is a Vice President and Investment Partner. Accordingly,
Mr. Coleman may be deemed to be a beneficial owner of such shares and for
purposes of this table they are included. Mr. Coleman disclaims beneficial
ownership of all such shares within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 under the
Exchange Act. The shares set forth represent shares of common stock which
Dresdner Kleinwort Benson Private Eguity Partners LP and 75 Wall Street
Associates have the right to acquire upon conversion of 133,148 and 14,794
shares of Series G Convertible Preferred Stock, respectively.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS.

In February, 1998, we loaned to Roscoe C. Young II, our President and
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Chief Operating Cfficer, the principal sum of $350,000. The loan is evidenced by
a promissory note which bears interest at the rate of 6% per annum. Interest and
principal are payable at maturity on February 13, 2003. In June, 2000, we loaned
Mr. Young an additional $318,000. The loan was evidenced by a promissory note
which bore interest at the rate of 6.43% per annum. The loan was repaid in full
in December, 2000. The largest aggregate amount of loans outstanding to Mr.
Young at any time during 2000 was $668,000. The aggregate amount of loans
ocutstanding to Mr. Young at March 26, 2001 was $350,000

CIT Lending Services Corporation (an affiliate of The CIT Group), one
of our principal stockholders, has provided financing to us as one of the
lenders under our amended senior secured credit facility. The lenders under the
amended senior secured credit facility have agreed to make available, subject to
certain conditions, wup to a total of $5700.0 million, for construction and
development of our existing networks. We paid CIT and its affiliates aggregate
cash payments for fees, discounts and commissions of $450,000, during the year
ended December 31, 2000. This amount does not include the $400,000 in fees we
paid to CIT in connection with our cffering of Series G Convertible Preferred
Stock.

In June, 2000 we paid General Flectric Capital Corporation, one of our
principal stockholders, a fee of $1.0 million in cash for their services in
connection with arranging the lease financing transactioen which funded the cost
of the $134.4 million of KMC Funding V Equipment we purchased in March 2000.

PART IV
ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM B-K.
{A) 1. Financial Statements.

The financial statements are included in Part II, Item 8. of this
Report.

2. Financial Statement Schedules and Supplementary Information
Required to be Submitted.

Independent Auditors' Report on Schedules
Schedule I - Condensed Financial Information of Registrant
Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

These schedules are included in Part II, Item 8. of this Report. All
other schedules have been omitted because they are inapplicable or the
required information is shown in the consolidated financial statements

or notes.
(B} REPORTS ON FORM B-K.
None.
86
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() INDEX TO EXHIBITS.
The following is a list of all Exhibits filed as part of this Report:

EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT

*3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Inceorporation of KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc. dated as of September 22, 1997
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to KMC
Telecom Heoldings, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S5-4
{Registration No. 333-50475) filed on April 20, 1398
{hereinafter referred to as the "KMC Holdings' S-4")).

*3.2 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation
of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. filed on November 5, 1997
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to KMC
Holdings'S-4).

*3.3 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation
" of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. dated as of February 4, 1999
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998) .

*3.4 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorpeoration
of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. dated as of April 3¢, 1899
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly periced
ended June 30, 1999).

*3.5 Certificate of Amendment of the Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation of KMC Telecom Heoldings, Inc.
dated July 7, 2000 (incorporated herein by reference Lo
Exhibit 3.5 to KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Registration
Statement on Form $-1 (Registration No. 333 - 46148 filed on
September 19, 2001 (hereinafter referred to as Gthe "KMC
Holdings' S§-1")).

*3.6 KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. Amended and Restated Certificate of
the Powers, Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series
A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 per
Share, dated November 4, 1997 {incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.4 to KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998).

*3.7 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series A
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 Per
Share, dated as of April 30, 19%%9 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1999).

*3.8 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series A
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 Per
Share, dated June 29, 2000 (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for
the guarterly period ended June 30, 2000).

*3.9 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights o©f the Series A
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 Per
Share, dated July 7, 2000 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.10 te KMC Heldings' S5-1).

*3.10 KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series C
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 per
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Share, dated November 4, 19397 {incorporated  herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.5 to KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form
16-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998).

*3.11 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series (
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 per
Share, dated as of April 30, 199%9 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.3 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1939).

27

EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT

*3.12 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series C
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 pex
Share, dated as of June 2%, 2000 [(incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the guarterly period ended June 30, 2000).

*3.13 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series C
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 Per
Share, dated July 7, 2000 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.14 to KMC Holdings® S-1).

*3.14 KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. Certificate of the Powers,
Lesignations, Preferences and Rights of the Series D
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value 5.0) pex
Share, dated November 4, 1997 (incorporated  herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.6 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998).

*3.15 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series D
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, par Value $.01 Per
Share, dated as of April 30, 1999 ({incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.4 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the guarterly periocd ended June 30, 1999).

*3.16 Certificate of Voting Powers, Designations, Preferences and
Relative Participating, Optional or Other Special Rights and
Qualifications, Limitations and Restrictions Thereof of the
Series E Senior, Redeemable, Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock
of KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc., dated as of February 4, 1998
{incorporated herxein by reference to Exhibit 3.7 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1598).

*3.17 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Voting Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Relative Participating, Optional
or Other Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and
Restrictions Thereof of the Series E Senior Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock, dated as of April 30, 1993
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.5 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 1999).

*3.18 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Voting Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Relative Participating, Opticnal
or Other Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and
Restrictions Thereof of the Series E Senior Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock, dated as of June 30, 2000
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to KMC
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Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-¢Q for the guarterly period
ended June 30, 2000).

*3.19 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Voting Powers,
besignations, Preferxences and Relative Participating, Opticnal
or Other Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and
Restrictions Thereof of the Series E Senior Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock, dated July 7, 2000
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.20 to KMC
Holdings' $-1).

*3.20 Certificate of Voting Powers, Designations, Preferences and
Relative Participating, Optional or Other Special Rights and
Qualifications, Limitations and Restrictions Thereof of the
Series F Senior, Redeemable, Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock
of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., dated as of February 4, 1959
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.8 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998).

*3 .21 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Voting Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Relative Participating, Optional
or Other Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and
Restrictions Thereof of the Series F Seniocr Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock, dated as of June 1, 18359
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.8 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the guarterly period
ended June 30, 1999).
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT

*3.22 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Voting Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Relative Participating, Optional
or Qther Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and
Restrictions Thereof of the Series F Senipr Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock, dated as of June 30, 2000
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to KMC
Telecom Heldings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 2000).

*3.23 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Voting Powers,
Designationg, Preferences and Relative Participating, Optional
or Other Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and
Restrictions Therecf of the Series F Senior Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock, dated as of July 7, 2000
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.24 to KMC
Holdings' S-1).

*3 .24 Certificate of Powers, Designations, Preferences and Rights of
the Series G-1 Voting Convertible Preferred Stock and Series
G-2 Nom-Voting Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value 5.0l Per
Share, dated as of July 5, 2000 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.5 to KMC Telecom Heldings, 1Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2000.

*3.25 Amended and Restated By-Laws of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.,
adopted as of April 1, 2000 {incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 3.6 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended June 30, 2000).

*3 .26 Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restated By-Laws of KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc., amended as of July 5, 2000
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.27 to KMC
Holdings' $-1).
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*4 .1 Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of
October 31, 1997 by and among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.,
Nassau Capital Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold
N. Kamine, KMC Telecommunications L.P., Newcourt Commercial
Finance Corporation {formerly known as AT&T Credit
Corporation), General Electric Capital Corporation,
CoreStates Bank, N.A. and CoreStates Holdings, Inc.

{incorporated herein by reference &to Exhibit 4.1 to KMC
Holdings' S$-4).

*q 2 Amendment No. 1 dated as of Januvary 7, 1998 to the Amended
and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31,
1997, by and among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital
Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N. Kamine, KMC
Telecommunications L.P., Newcourt Commercial Finance
Corporation (formerly known as ATE&T Credit Coxporation},
General Electric Capital Corperation, CoreStates Bank, N.A.
and CoreStates Holdings, Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to KMC Holdings' $-4}.

*4.3 Amendment No. 2 dated as of January 26, 1998 to the Amended
and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31,
1997, by and among K MC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital
Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N. Kamine, KMC
Telecommunications L.P., Newcourt Commercial Finance
Corporation (formerly known as AT&T Credit Corporation),
General Electric Capital Corporation, CoreStates Bank, N.A.
and CoreStates Holdings, Inc. ({incerporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.3 to KMC Holdings' $-4}).
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*4 .4 Amendment No. 3 dated as of February 25, 19%8 to the Amended
and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31,
1997, by and among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. , Nassau
Capital Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N.
Kamine, KMC Telecommunications L.P., Newcourt Commercial
Finance Corporation (formerly known as AT&T Credit
Corporation}, General Electric Capital Corporation,
CoreStates Bank, N.A. and CoreStates Holdings, Inc.
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to KMC
Holdings' $-4).

*4 .5 Amendment No. 4 dated as of February 4,

1989 to the Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement
dated as of October 31, 1997, by and ameng KMC Telecom
Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital Partners L.P., NAS Partners I
L.L.C., Harold N. Kamine, Newcourt Commercial Finance
Corpeoration (formerly known as AT&T Credit Corporation},
General Electric Capital Corporation, CoreStates Bank, N.A.
and CoreStates Holdings, Inc. ({incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.5 to KMC Telecom Heldings, 1Inc.'s
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 199B).

*4.6 Amendment No. 5 dated as of April 30, 18%9 to the Amended
and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31,
1597, by and among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau
Capital Partners L..P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N.
Kamine, Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation (formerly
known as AT&T Credit Corporation}, General Electric Capital
Corporation, Ffirst Union National Bank {as successorxr to
CoreStates Bank, N.A.) and CoreStates Holdings, Inc.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.11 to KMC

Copyright 2001 EDGAR Online, Ine. fver 1.01/2.003) Page 104
DCOIJIENKE/147091.2




KMC TELECOM HOLDING,C — 10-K — Annual Report . Date Filed: 4/17/2001

Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the guarterly period
ended June 30, 1999).

*q.7 Amendment No. 6 dated as of June 1, 1999% to the Amended and
Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31, 1997,
by and among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital
Partners L.P., ©NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harcold N. Kamine,
Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation (formerly known as
ATE&T Credit Cerporation), General Electric Capital
Corporation, First Union Naticnal Bank (as successor to
CoreStates Bank, N.A.) and CoreStates Holdings, Inc.
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.12 to KMC
Telecom Heldings, 1Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the gquarterly pericd
ended June 30, 1999).

*4.B Amendment No. 7 dated as of Januwary 1, 2000 te the Amended
and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31,
1997, by and among KMC Telecem Holdings, Inc., Nassau
Capital Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N.
Kamine, Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation (formerly
known as AT&T Credit Corporation), General Electric Capital
Corporation, First Union National Bank {(as successor to
CoreStates Bank, N.A.) and CoreStates  Holdings, Inc.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1999).

*4.9 Amendment No. 8 dated as of April 1, 2000 to the Amended and
Restated Stockholders Agreement, dated as of October 31,
1997, among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital
Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N. Kamine,
General Electric Capital Corporation, First Union National
Bank (as successor to CoreStates Bank, N.A.}, CoreStates
Holdings, Ingc. and CIT Lending Services Corporation
(formerly known as Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporatiocn)
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form 10-0Q for the gquarterly period
ended June 30, 2000).

EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION QF DOCUMENT

*4.10 Amendment No. 9 dated as of June 30, 2000 to the Amended and
Restated Stockholders Agreemwent, dated as of October 31, 1997,
among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital Partners
L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N. Kamine, General
Electric Capital Corperation, First Union WNational Bank (as
successor to CoreStates Bank, N.A.)}, CoreStates Heoldings,
Inc., Dresdner Kleinwort Benson Private Eguity Partners
LP, 75 Wall Street Associates, LLC, Lucent Technologies Inc.
and CIT Lending Services Corporation (formerly Kknown as
Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation) {incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2000).

*4 .11 Indenture dated as of January 29, 1998 between KMC Telecom
Holdings, 1Inc. and The Chase Manhattan BRank, as Trustee,
including specimen of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s 12 1/2%
Senior Discount Note due 2008. (incorperated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.5 to KMC Holdings' S-4).

*4.12 First Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 24, 1999 among
KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc., KMC Telecom Financing, Inc. and
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The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Trustee, to the Indenture dated
as of January 28, 1998 between KMC Telecom Heoldings, Inc.
and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Trustee. (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the guarterly period ended September 30,
1989} .

*4 .13 Indenture dated as of May 24, 1999 among KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc., KMC Telecom Financing, Inc. and The Chase Manhattan
Bank, as Trustee, including specimen of KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc.'s 13 1/2% Senior Notes due 2005. (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s
Form 10-Q for the guarterly period ended September 30, 199%}.

*4 14 Collateral Pledge and Security Agreement made and entered
into as of May 24, 1999 by KMC Telecom Financing, Inc. in
favor of The Chase Manhattan Bank as Trustee. {incorpcrated
nerein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc. s Form 10-Q0 for the quarterly period ended September 30,
1999) .

*4 .15 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of January 26, 1998,
between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and Morgan Stanley & Co.
Incorporated. {incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.6
to KMC Holdings' $5-4).

*4.16 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of May 19, 1999 among
KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and Morgan Stanley & Co.
Incorporated, Credit Suisse First Boston Corporation, First
Union Capital Markets Corp., CIBC World Markets Corp.,

BancBoston Robertson Stephens Inc. and Wasserstein Perella
Securities, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.5 to KMC

Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the guarterly period
ended September 30, 1999}).

¥4 17 Warrant Agreement dated as of January 29, 1998 between KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc. and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as
Warrant Agent, including a specimen of Warrant Certificate
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to KMC
Holdings' S-4).

*4.18 Warrant Agreement dated as of February 4, 1999 among KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc., The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Warrant
Agent, Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation and Lucent
Technologies Inc. (inceorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.2 teo KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.”s Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended March 31, 1999).

*4.18% Warrant Agreement dated as of April 30, 1599 among KMC Telecom
Holdings, Inc., The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Warrant Agent,
First Union Investors, Inc., Harold N. Kamine and Nassau

Capital Partners L.P. {incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.4 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc."s Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended June 30, 1999).
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NUMBER DESCRIPTICON OF DOCUMENT
*4.20 Amendment No. 1 dated as of April 30, 1999 to the Warrant
Agreement dated as of February 4, 19929, ameng KMC Telecom
Holdings, Inc., The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Warrant Agent,
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Newcourt Commexcial Finance Corporation, Lucent Technologies
Inc. and First Union Imvestors, Inc. {incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.7 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the guarterly period ended June 30, 1999).

*4.21 Amendment No. 2 dated as of June 1, 1999 to the Warrant
Agreement dated as of February 4, 1999, among KMC Telecom
Holdings, Inc., The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Warrant Agent,
Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation, Lucent Technologies
Inc. and First Union Investors, Inc. {incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.8 to KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form
10-0 for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1999).

*4 22 Warrant Registration Rights Agreement dated as of January 26,
1998 between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and Morgan Stanley &
Co. Incorporated. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.8 to KMC Holdings' S5-4).

w4 .23 Warrant Registration Rights Agreement dated as of February 4,
1999 among KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc., Newcourt Commercial
Finance Corporation and Lucent Technologies Inc. [(incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31,
19899) .

*4_ 24 Warrant Registration Rights Agreement dated as of April 30,
1999 between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and First Unicn
Investors, In¢c. {incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.5 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Feorm 10-Q for the
guarterly period ended June 3¢, 1999).

*4 .25 Amendment No. 1 dated as of April 30, 1999 to Warrant
Registraticn Rights Agreement among KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc., Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation and Lucent

Technologies Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.6 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the
guarterly period ended June 30, 1999).

4 .26 Preferred Stock Registration Rights Agreement dated as of
April 30, 1999 between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and First
Union Investors, Inc.. (incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 4.5 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-§
for the quarterly period ended June 30, 199%).

*4 .27 Amendment No. 1 dated as of June 1, 1999 te Preferred Stock
Registration Rights Agreement among KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc., First Union Investors, Inc., Newcourt Commercial Finance
Corperation and Lucent Technologies Inc. {incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 4.10 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s
Form 10-Q for the guarterly pericd ended June 30, 1999).

*4,28 Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of June 30, 2000 among
KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital Partners IV, L.P.,
NAS Partners I L.L.C., Dresdner Kleinwort Benson Private
Equity Partners LP, 75 Wall Street Associates, Harold N.
Kamine, CIT Lending Services Corporation and Lucent
Technologies Inc. {(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.3 to KMC Telecom Heldings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended June 30, 2000).
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NUMBER DESCRIBTION OF DOCUMENT
*10.1 Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement dated as of
February 15, 2000 by and among KMC Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom
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II, Inc., KMC Telecom III, Inc., KMC Tel

ecom of Virginia,

Inc., KMC Telecom Leasing I LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing II LLC,
KMC Telecom Leasing III LLC, KMC Telecom.com, Inc., KMC ITI

Services LLC, the financial institutions
parties thereto as ‘"Lenders", First Union
Administrative Agent for the Lenders, First
Bank, as Administrative Agent for the Len
Commercial Finance Corporation (formerly
Commercial Finance Corporation), an affil

from time to time
National Bank as

Union National
ders and Newcourt
known as AT&T
iate of The CIT

Group, Inc., as Collateral Agent for the Lenders (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to KMC Telecom Holding,

Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended De

*10.2 Amendment No. 1, dated as of March 2B, 2000,
Restated Loan and Security Agreement dated a

cember 31, 1999).

to Amended and
s of February 15,

2000 by and among KMC Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom II, Inc., KMC

Telecom III, Inc., KMC Telecom of Virginia,
Leasing I LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing II LLC, KM

Inc., KMC Telecom
C Telecom Leasing

III LLC, KMC Telecom.gcom, Inc., KMC III Services LLC, the
financial institutions from time to time parties thereto as
"Lenders", First Union Naticnal Bank, as Administrative
Agent for the Lenders and  Newcourt Commercial Finance
Corporation (formerly known as AT&T Commercial Finance
Corporation), an affiliate of The CIT Group, Inc., as
Collateral Agent for the Lenders (incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to KMC Telecom Heldings, Inc.'s
Form 10-0Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2000}.

*10.3 General Agreement by and among KMC Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom
IT, Inc. and Lucent Technolegies Inc. dated September 24,
1997, as amended on October 15, 1997 (incorpeorated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to KMC Holdings' 5-4).

*10.4 Amendment Number Two to the General Agreement

by and among KMC

Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom II, Inc., KMC Telecom Leasing I LLC,

KMC Telecom Leasing II LLC and Lucent Techno

logies Inc. dated

as of December 22, 1998 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.8 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the

fiscal year ended December 31, 1999}.

*10.5 Amendment Number Three to the General Agreement by and among
KMC Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom IT, Inc., KMC Telecom III, Inc.,
KMC Telecom of Virginia, Inc., XMC Telecom Leasing I LLC, KMC

Telecom Leasing II LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing I
Technologies Inc. dated as of November 15, 19

I1 LLC and Lucent
99 (incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 19%98}.

*10.6 Amendment Number Four to the General Agreement by and among
KMC Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom II, Inc., KMC Telecom III, Inc.,

KMC Telecom IV, Inc., KMC Telecom of Virg
Telecom Leasing I LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing II
Leasing IIT LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing IV LLC,
LLC and Lucent Technologies Inc. dated as of

inia, Inc., KMC
LLC, KMC Telecom
KMC IIT Services
February 15, 2000

{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to KMC

Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the
December 31, 19%99).

fiscal year ended

*10.7 Professional Services Agreement Dbetween KMC Telecom Inc.
and Lucent Technologies, Inc. dated September 4, 1597.

{incorporated herein by reference to Exh
Holdings' $-4).

*10.8 Memorandum of Agreement between KMC Telecom

ibit 10.8 to KMC

Holdings, Inc.

and EFTIA 0SS Solutions Inc., dacted as of October 26, 1998.
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to KMC

Telecom Heldings, Inc.'s Form 1C-K for the £
December 31, 1998}.
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iscal year ended
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTICN OF DOCUMENT

*10.9 Master License Agreement dated December 31, 1998 by and
hetween Billing Concepts Systems, Inc. and KMC Telecom
Holdings, Inc. (incorperated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.7 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form L0-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1998).

*10.10 Lease Agreement dated January 1, 1996 between Cogeneration
Services 1Inc. {now known as Kamine Development Corp.) and KMC
Telecom Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.8 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1998}

*10.11 1998 Stock Purchase and Option Plan for Key Employees of KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc. and Affiliates. (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 4 to KMC Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q
for the quarterly period ended September 30, 1998) .+

*10.12 Specimen of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for options
granted under the 1998 Stock Purchase and Option Plan for Key
Employees of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and Affiliates.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to KMC
Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form 10-0 for the quarterly period ended
September 30, 1998). +

*10.13 Amendment No. 1 made as of June 7, 1999 to 1998 Stock Purchase
and Optien Plan Ffor Key Employees of KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc. and Affiliates (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for
the quarterly pericd ended June 30, 1899). +

*10.14 Participation Agreement, dated as of June 28, 2000, among KMC
Telecom V, Inc., Telecom V Investor Trust 2000-A, Wilmington
Trust Company, in its individual capacity and as trustee of
the Lessor, and the Investors party thereto [(incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to KMC Holdings' §-1).

*10.15 Employment Agreement, dated as of April 17, 2000, by and
between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and William F. Lenahan
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to KMC
Holdings' S-1).

*10.16 Employment Agreement, dated as of March 9, 1000, by and
between KMC Telecom Heoldings, Inc. and William H. Stewart
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to KMC
Holdings' S5-1).

*10.17 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of
March 6, 2000, by and between KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc. and
Roscee C. Young III (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.18 to KMC Holdings'® S§-1).

*10.18 Amended and Restated Media Gateway Services Agreement II
between KMC Telecom V TInc. and Qwest Communications
Corporation, effective as of March 31, 2000 {(incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.192 to KMC Holdings' $-1).

*¥10.19 Media Gateway Services Agreement III between KMC Telecom VI
Inc. and Qwest Communications Corporation, effective as of
June 30, 2000 [{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.20 to KMC Holdings' S-1).

*10.20 Amendment No. 1 to the Media Gateway Services Agreement III
between KMC Telecom VI Inc. and Qwest Communications
Corporation, effective as of August 31, 2000 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to KMC Holdings' S-1).
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*10.21

EXHIBIT
NUMBER

*10.22

*10.23

*10.24

*10.25

*10.26

**271.1
**24 .1

Pledge and Security Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2000 by
and among Hareld N. Kamine, KNT Partners, LP, KNT Network
Technologies, LLC and KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.
{(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.22 te KMC
Holdings' S-1).
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Secured Promissory Note, dated as of June 1, 2000, delivered
by KNT Network Technologies, LLC to KMC Telecom Heldings, Inc.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to KMC
Holdings' S-1}.

Real Estate Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2000 between KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc. and KNT Network Technolegies, LLC
{incorperated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to KMC
Holdings' S-1).

Maintenance Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2000, by and
between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and KNT Network
Techneologies, LLC (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.25 to KMC Holdings' S5-1).

Master Engineering, procurement and Constructioen Contract,
dated as of June 1, 2000, by and between KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc. and KNT Network Technolegies, LLC (incorporated hereby by
reference to Exhibit 1C¢.26 to KMC Holdings' §-1).

KNT Asset Transfer and Proceeds Sharing Agreement, dated as of
June 1, 2000 between KNT Network Technologies, LLC and KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc. [{incorporated herxeby by reference to
Exhibit 10.27 to KMC Heoldings' S5-1).

Subsidiaries of KMC Telecom Heldings, Inc.
Power of Attorney (Appears on signature page).

* Incorporated herein by reference.
*% Filed herewith.

+ Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant te the reguirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report te be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the Town of
Bedminster, State of New Jersey, on the 17th day of April, 2001.

KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS, INC.

By: /8/ WILLIAM F. LENAHAN
William F. ' Lenahan
Chief Executive Officer

KNOW BY ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature
appears below constitutes and appoints William F. Lenahan, Roscoe C. Young II
and William H. Stewart his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full
power of substitution and vresubstitution, for him and in his name, place and
stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto and other
documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
granting unto said attorney-in-fact and agent, full power and authority to do
and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in
and about the premises, as fully as he might or could do in person, hereby
ratifying and confirming all that said attorney-in-fact and agent or their or
his substitutes or substitute, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue
hereof .

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report
has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and
in the capacities indicated on the 17th day of April, 2001.

SIGNATURE TITLE(S)

/8/ WILLIAM F. LENAHAN Chief Executive Officer and
----------------------------------------- Director (Principal Executive

William F. Lenahan Officer)
/S/ WILLIAM H. STEWART Executive Vice President, Chief
————————————————————————————————————————— Financial Officer and Director
William H. Stewart (Principal Financial Cfficer)
/8/ ROBERT F. HAGAN Senior Vice President, Finance
----------------------------------------- (Principal Accounting Qfficer)

Robert F. Hagan

/8/ HARQLD N. KAMINE Chairman of the Board of Directors

Harold N. Kamine

/8/ GARY E. LASHER Vice Chairman of the Board of
—————————————————————————————————————————— Directors

/S8/ ROSCOE C. YOUNG II President, Chief Operating Officer
------------------------------------------ and Director
Roscoe C. Young, II
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/S8/ ALEXANDER P. COLEMAN

Alexander P. Coleman

/8/ RICHARD H. PATTERSON

Richard H. Patterson

/8/ JOHN G. QUIGLEY

John G. Quigley

/8/ JEFFREY M. TUDER

JeEfrey M. Tuder

107

Director

Director

Director

Director

Index of Exhibits

EXHIBIT

NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF DQCUMENT

*3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate Incorporation of KMC
Telecom Holdinags, Inc. dated as September 22, 1997
{incorporated nerein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form $-4
(Registration No. 333-50475) filed April 20, 1998
{hereinafter referred to as the "KMC Holdings' S-4")).

*3.2 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate Incorporation
of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. filed on November 5, 1997
{incorporated herein by reference Exhibit 3.2 to KMC
Holdings'S-4}.

*3.3 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation
of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. dated as of February 4, 1999
{incorporated herein by reference Exhibit 3.3 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998).

*3.4 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation
of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. dated as of April 30, 1939
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 1999}.

*3.5 Certificate of Amendment of the Amended and Restated

Certificate of Incorporation

of KMC Telecom

Holdings, Inc.
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dated July 7, 2000 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.5 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Registration
Statement on Form $-1 (Registration No. 333 - 46148 filed on
September 19, 2001 (hereinafter referred to as the "KMC
Holdings' 8-1")).

*3.6 KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. Amended and Restated Certificate of
the Powers, Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series
A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 per
Share, dated November 4, 1597 {incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.4 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 199%8).

*3.,7 Certificate of Amendment to the C(ertificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights o©f the 8eries A
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value S$.01 Per
Share, dated as of April 30, 1999 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-¢ for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1999).

*3.8 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series A
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 Per
Share, dated June 29, 2000 (incorperated herein by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for
the guarterly period ended June 30, 2000).

*3.9 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series A
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par value 5.01 Per
Share, dated July 7, 2000 {(incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.10 to KMC Holdings' S-1).

*3 .10 KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series C
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value §.01 per
Share, dated MNovember 4, 1997 {incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 3.5 to KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc¢.'s Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1958).

*3.11 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights o©f the Series C
Cumulacive Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value 5.01 per
Share, dated as of April 30, 1999 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.3 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 19299).
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EXHIBIT

NUMBER DESCRIPTICN QOF DOCUMENT

*3 .12 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights ¢f the Series C
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Steock, Par Value $.01 per
Share, dated as of June 29, 2000 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.’'s Form
10-Q for the guarterly period ended June 30, 2000).

*3.13 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights o©f the Series C
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Steock, Par Value $.01 Per
Share, dated July 7, 2000 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.14 to KMC Holdings' S-1).

*3.14 KMC Telecom Heoldings, Inc. Certificate of the Powers,
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Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series D
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 per
Share, dated November 4, 1997 {(incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 3.6 to KMC Telecom Heoldings, Inc.'s Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998).

*3.15 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series D
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, par Value $.01 Per
Share, dated as of April 30, 1999 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.4 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-0 for the quarterly pericd ended June 30, 1999).

*3.16 Certificate of Voting Powers, Designations, Preferences and
Relative Participating, Optional or Cther Special Rights and
Qualifications, Limitations and Restrictions Thereof of the
Series E Senior, Redeemable, Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock
of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., dated as of February 4, 199%
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.7 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998).

*3.17 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Voting Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Relative Participating, Optional
or Other Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitatiens and
Restrictions Thereof of the Series E Senior Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock, dated as of April 30, 1999
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.5 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the guarterly pericd
ended June 30, 1999}.

*3.18 Certcificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Voting Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Relative Participating, Optional
or Other Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and
Restrictions Thereof of the Series FE Senior Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock, dated as of June 30, 2000
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the guarterly period
ended June 30, 2000).

*3.19 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Voting Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Relative Participating, Optional
or Other Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and
Restrictions Thereof of the Series E Senior Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIXK Preferred Stock, dated July 7, 2000
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.20 to KMC
Holdings' §-1).

*3.20 Certificate of Voting Powers, Designations, Preferences and
Relative Participating, Optional or Other Special Rights and
Qualifications, Limitations and Restrictions Thereof of the
Series F Senior, Redeemable, Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock
of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., dated as of February 4, 1999
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.8 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Ing.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998}).

*3.21 Certificate of Amendment te the Certificate of Voting Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Relative Participating, Optional
or Other Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and
Restrictions Thereof of the Series F Senior Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock, dated as of June 1, 1999
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.6 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly periced
ended June 30, 1999).
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT

*3.,22 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Voting Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Relative Participating, Optional
or Other Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and
Restrictions Thereof of the Series F Senior Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock, dated as of June 30, 20060
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 2000).

*3.23 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Voting Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Relative Participating, Optional
or Other Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and
Restrictions Thereof of the Series F Senior Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock, dated as of July 7, 2000
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.24 to KMC
Holdings' S-1)}.

*3.24 Certificate of Powers, Designations, Preferences and Rights of
the Series G-1 Voting Convertible Preferred Stock and Series
G-2 Non-Voting Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 Per
Share, dated as of July 5, 2000 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibir 3.5 teo KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the guarterly period ended June 30, 2000.

*3.25 Amended and Restated By-Laws of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.,
adopted as of April 1, 2000 (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 3.6 to KMC Telecom Heldings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended June 30, 2000).

*3.26 Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restated By-Laws of KMC
Telecomn Holdings, Inc., amended as of July 5, 2000
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.27 to KMC
Holdings' 8-1}.

*4.1 Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of
October 31, 1997 by and among KMC Telecom Heoldings, Inc.,
Nassau Capital Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold
N. Kamine, KMC Telecommunications L.P., Newcourt Commercial
Finance Corporation (Eormerly known as ATET Credit
Corporation), General Electric Capital Corpeoration,
CoreStates Bank, N.A. and CoreStates Holdings, Inc.
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to KMC
Holdings' §-4}.

*q .2 Amendment No. 1 dated as of January 7, 1998 to the Amended
and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31,
1997, by and among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital
Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N. Kamine, KMC
Telecommunications L.P., Newcourt Commercial Finance
Corporation (formerly known as AT&T Credit Corporation),
General Electric Capital Corporation, CoreStates Bank, N.A.
and CoreStates Holdings, Inc. {incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to KMC Holdings' S-4}.

*4.3 Amendment No. 2 dated as of January 26, 1998 to the Amended
and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31,
1997, by and among K MC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital
Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N. Kamine, KMC
Telecommunications L.P., Newcourt Commercial Finance
Corporation (formerly known as AT&T Credit Corporation),
General Electric Capital Corporation, CoreStates Bank, N.A.
and CoreStates Holdings, Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.3 to KMC Holdings' S-4}.
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT

*4 .4 Amendment No. 3 dated as of February 25, 1998 to the Amended
and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31,
1997, by and among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. , Nassau
Capital Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N.
Kamine, KMC Telecommunications L.P., Newcourt Commercial
Finance Corporation {(formerly known as ATET Credit
Corporation), General Electric Capital Corperation,
CoreStates Bank, N.A. and CoreStates Holdings, Inc.
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to KMC
Holdings' S-4}.

*4.5 Amendment No. 4 dated as of February 4,

1999 to the Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement
dated as of October 31, 1997, by and among KMC Telecom
Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital Partners L.P., NAS Partners I
L.L.C., Harold N. Kamine, Newcourt Commercial Finance
Corporation (formerly known as AT&T Credit Corporation),
General Electric Capital Corporation, CoreStates Bank, N.A.
and CoreStates Holdings, Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.5 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1398}.

*4.6 Amendment No. 5 dated as of April 30, 1999 to the Amended
and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31,
1297, by and among KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc., Nassau
Capital Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Hareold N.
Kamine, Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation (formerly
known as AT&T Credit Corporation), General Electric Capital
Corporation, First Union National Bank {as successor to
CoreStates Bank, N.A.}) and CoreStates Holdings, Inc.
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.11 to KMC
Telecom Heldings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 1999).

*q .7 Amendment No. 6 dated as of June 1, 1299 to the Amended and
Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31, 1997,
by an d among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital
Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N. Kamine,
Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation (formerly known as
ATET Credit Corporation), General Electric Capital
Corporation, First Union National Bank (as successor Lo
CoreStates Bank, N.AL) and CoreStates Holdings, Inc.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.12 to KMC
Telecom Heoldings, Inc.'s Form 10-0Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 1999).

*4 .8 Amendment No. 7 dated as of January 1, 2000 to the Amended
and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31,
1997, by and among KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc., Nassau
Capital Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N.
Kamine, Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation (formerly
known as AT&T Credit Corporation), General Electric Capital
Corporation, First Union National Bank (as successor to
CoreStates Bank, N.A.) and CoreStates Holdings, Inc.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1999).

*4.9 Amendment No. 8 dated as of April 1, 2000 to the Amended and
Restated Stockholders Agreement, dated as of October 31,
1297, among KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Ine¢., Nassau Capital
Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N. Kamine,
General Electric Capital Corporation, First Union National
Bank {(as successor to CoreStates Bank, N.A.}), CoreStates
Holdings, Inc. and cIT Lending Services Corporation
(formerly known as Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation)
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{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly peried
ended June 30, 2000).
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT

*4.10 Amendment No. 9 dated as of June 30, 2000 to the Amended and
Restated Stockholders Agreement, dated as of October 31, 1997,
among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital Partners
L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harcld N. Kamine, General
Electric Capital Corporation, First Union National Bank (as
successor to CoreStates Bank, N.A.), CoreStates Holdings,
Inc., Dresdner Kleinwort Bensen Private Equity Partners
LP, 75 Wall Street Associates, LLC, Lucent Technologies Inc.
and CIT Lending Services Corporation (formerly known as
Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation) (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s
Form 10-Q for the gquarterly period ended June 30, 2000)}.

*4 .11 Indenture dated as of January 2%, 1998 between KMC Telecom
Holdings, 1Inc. and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Trustee,
including specimen of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s 12 1/2%
Senior Discount Note due 2008. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.5 to KMC Holdings' S-4).

*4,12 First Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 24, 1999 among
KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., KMC Telecom Financing, Inc. and
The Chase w#anhattan Bank, as Trustee, to the Indenture dated
as of January 29, 1898 between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.
and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Trustee. (incorperated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the guarterly period ended September 30,
19599) .

*4 .13 Indenture dated as of May 24, 1999 among KMC Telecom Holdings,

Inc., KMC Telecom Financing, Inc. and The Chase Manhattan

Bank, as Trustee, including specimen of KMC Telecom Holdings,

Inc.'s 13 1/2% Senior - Notes due 200%. ({incorporated herein

| by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to KMC Telecom Heldings, Inc.'s
Form 10-Q for the gquarterly period ended September 30, 1999).

*4 .14 Collateral Pledge and Security Agreement made and entered
into as of May 24, 1999 by KMC Telecom Financing, Inc. in
favor of The Chase Manhattan Bank as Trustee. {incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc.”s Form 10-0Q for the quarterly period ended September 30,
1999) .

*4 .15 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of January 26, 1998,
between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and Morgan Stanley & Co.
Incorporated. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.6
to KMC Holdings' S-4).

*4 .16 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of May 19, 1999 among
KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and Morgan Stanley & Co.
Incorporated, Credit Suisse First Boston Corporation, First
Union Capital Markets <Corp., CIBC World Markets Corp.,
BancBoston Robertson Stephens Inc. and Wasserstein Perella
Securities, Inc¢. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.5 to KMC

Telecom Holdings, 1In¢.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
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ended September 30, 1999).

*4 .17 Warrant Agreement dated as of January 29, 1998 between KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc. and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as
Wwarrant Agent, including a specimen of Warrant Certificate
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to KMC
Holdings' S5-4).

*4.18 Warrant Agreement dated as of February 4, 1899 among KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc., The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Warrant
Agent, Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation and Lucent
Technelogies Inc. {incorporated herein by reference te Exhibit
10.2 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc."s Form 10-Q for the
guarterly period ended March 31, 1995).

*4.19 Warrant Agreement dated as of April 30, 1999 among KMC Telecom
Holdings, 1Inc., The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Warrant Agent,
First Union Investors, Inc., Harold N. Kamine and Nassau

Capital Partners L.P. (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.4 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.”s Form 10-0Q for the
quarterly period ended June 30, 1999).
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT

*4.20 Amendment No. 1 dated as of April 30, 1999 to the Warrant
Agreement dated as of February 4, 1999, among KMC Telecom
Holdings, Inc., The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Warrant Agent,
Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation, Lucent Technoleogies
Tnc. and First Union Investors, Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.7 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1999).

*4,2]1 Amendment No. 2 dated as of June 1, 1999 to the Warrant
Agreement dated as of February 4, 1999, among KMC Telecom
Holdings, Inc., The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Warrant Agent,
Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation, Lucent Technologies
Inc. and First Union Investors, Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.8 to KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 199%}.

*q,22 Warrant Registration Rights Agreement dated as of January 26,
1998 between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and Morgan Stanley &
Co. Incorporated. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.8 to KMC Holdings' S-4).

*4 .23 Warrant Registration Rights Agreement dated as of February 4,
1999 among KMC Telecom Heoldings, Ing., Newcourt Commercial
Finance Corporation and Lucent Technoleogies Inc. (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc.'s PForm 10-Q for the gquarterly period ended March 31,
1999).

*4 .24 Warrant Registration Rights Agreement dated as of April 30,
1999 between XMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and First Union
Investors, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference te Exhibit
4.5 to KMC Telecom BHKoldings, 1Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the
quarterly periecd ended June 30, 19299).

*4 .25 Amendment No. 1 dated as of April 30, 1999 to Warrant
Registration Righrs Agreement among KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc., Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation and Lucent
Technologies Inc.{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
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4.6 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended June 30, 1939).

%4 26 Preferred Stock Registration Rights Agreement dated as of
April 3¢, 19%9 between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and ¥®First
Union Investors, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 4.% to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q
for the guarterly period ended June 30, 1998).

*4 .27 Amendment No. 1 dated as of June 1, 1999 to Preferred Stock
Registration Rights Agreement among KMC Telecom Heldings,
Inc., First Union Investors, Inc., Newcourt Commercial Finance
Corporation and Lucent Technologies Inc. (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 4.10 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s
Form 10-Q for the guarterly period ended June 30, 19%9).

*4,28 Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of June 30, 2000 among
KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital Partners IV, L.P.,
NAS Partners I L.L.C., Dresdner Kleinwort Benson Private
Equity Partners LP, 75 Wall Street Associates, Harold N.
Kamine, CIT Lending Services Corporation and Lucent
Technologies Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.3 £o KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the
gquarterly period ended June 30, 2000).
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT

*10.1 Amended and Restated Loan and- Security Agreement dated as of
February 15, 2000 by and among KMC Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom
II, 1Inc., KMC Telecom III, Inc., KMC Telecom of Virginia,
ing., KMC Telecom Leasing I LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing II LLC,
KMC Telecom Leasing III LLC, KMC Telecom.com, Inc., KMC III
Services LLC, the financial institutions from time to time
parties thereto as "Lenders", First Union National Bank as
Administrative Agent for the Lenders, First Union National
Bank, as Administrative Agent for the Lenders and Newccourt
Commercial Finance Corporaticon (formerly known as ATA&T
Commercial Finance Corporation), an affiliate of The CIT
Group, Inc., as Collateral Agent for the Lenders (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to KMC Telecom Helding,
Inc.'s Form 10-K for the £fiscal year ended December 31, 1998).

*10.2 Amendment No. 1, dated as of March 28, 2000, to Amended and
Restated Loan and Security Agreement dated as of February 15,
2000 by and among KMC Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom II, Inc., KMC
Telecom III, Inc., KMC Telecom of Virginia, Inc., KMC Telecom
Leasing I LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing II LLC, KMC Telecowm Leasing
IIT LLC, XKMC Telecom.com, Inc., KMC III Services LLC, the
financial institutions Erom time to time parties thereto as
"Lenders", First Union Natiecnal Bank, as Administrative
Agent for the Lenders and Newcourt Commercial Finance
Corporation {formerly known as AT&T Commercial Finance
Corporatiocn), an affiliate o<f The CIT Group, Inc., as
Collateral Agent for cthe Lenders {incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s
Form 10-Q for the guarterly period ended March 31, 2000).

*10.3 General Agreement by and among KMC Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom
II, 1Inc. and Lucent Technologies Inc. dated September 24,
1997, as amended con Octcber 15, 1997 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 1C.7 to KMC Holdings' 5-4).

*10.4 Amendment Number Tweo to the General Agreement by and among KMC
Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom II, Inc., KMC Telecom Leasing I LLC,
KMC Telecom Leasing II LLC and Lucent Technologies Inc. dated
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as of December 22, 1998 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.8B to KMC Telecom Holdings, Ing.'s Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 1993}.

*1C.5 Amendment Number Three to the General Agreement by and among
KMC Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom II, Inc., KMC Telecom III, Inc.,
KMC Telecom of Virginia, Inec., KMC Telecom Leasing I LLC, XMC
Telecom Leasing II LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing III LLC and Lucent
Tachnologies Inc. dated as of November 15, 1999 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999}.

*10.6 Amendment Number Four to the General Agreement by and among
KMC Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom II, Inc., KMC Telecom III, Inc.,
KMC Telecom IV, Inc., KMC Telecom of Virginia, Inc., KMC

Telecom Leasing I LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing Il LLC, KMC Telecom
Leasing III LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing IV LLC, KMC III Services
LLC and Lucent Techneologies Inc. dated as of February 15, 2000
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1989).

*10.7 Professional Services Agreement between KMC Telecom Inc.
and Lucent Technologies, Inc. dated September 4, 1997,
(inegorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to KMC
Holdings' S-4}.

*10.8 Memorandum of Agreement between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.
and EFTIA 0S8 Sclutions Inc., dated as of October 26, 1558.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998).

EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION QF DOCUMENT

*10.9 Master License Agreement dated December 31, 1998 by and
between Billing Concepts Systems, Inc. and KMC Telecom
Holdings, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.7 to KMC Telecom Heldings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1998).

*10.10 Lease Agreement dated January 1, 1956 between Cogeneraticen
Services Inc. (now known as Kamine Development Corp.} and KMC
Telecom Inc. {incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.8 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1998}

*10.11 1998 Stock Purchase and Option Plan for Key Employees of KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc. and Affiliates. {incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 4 to KMC Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-0Q
for the quarterly period ended September 30, 1998).+

*10.12 Specimen of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for options
granted under the 19%8 Stock Purchase and Option Plan for Key
Employees of KMC Telecom Heoldings, Inc. and Affiliates.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to KMC
Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-0 for the quarterly period ended
September 30, 1598). +

*10.13 Amendment No. 1 made as of June 7, 1999 teo 1998 Stock Purchase
and Optien Plan for Key Employees of KMC Telecom Heldings,
Inc. and Affiliates (incorporated herein by reference ¢to
Exhibit 10.1 to KMC Telecom Heldings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended June 30, 1999). +

Copyright 2000 EDGAR Online, fuc. (ver 1.01/2.003) Page 120
DCOIIENKE/ 1470912




KMC TELECOM HOLDIN”IC — {0-K — Annual Report . Date Filed: 4/17/2001

*10.14 Participation Agreement, dated as of June 28, 2000, among KMC
Telecom V, Inc., Telecom V Investor Trust 2000-A, Wilmington
Trust Company, in its individual capacity and as trustee of
the Lessor, and the Investors party thereto (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to KMC Heldings' S-1}.

*10.15 Employment Agreement, dated as of April 17, 2000, by and
between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and William F. Lenahan
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to KMC
Holdings' 8-1}.

*10.16 Employment Agreement, dated as of March 9, 1000, by and
between KMC Telecom Heoldings, Inc. and William H. Stewart
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to KMC
Holdings' S§-1}.

*10.17 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of
March 6, 2000, by and between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and
Roscoe C. Young IITI (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.18 to KMC Heldings' S$-1).

*10.18 Amended and Restated Media Gateway Services Agreement IT
between KMC Telecom V Inc. and Qwest Communications
Corporation, effective as of March 31, 2000 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to KMC Holdings' S8-1).

*10.19 Media Gateway Services Agreement III between KMC Telecom VI
Inc. and Qwest Communications Corporation, effective as of
June 30, 2000 ({incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.20 to KMC Holdings' §-1).

*10.20 Amendment No. 1 to the Media Gateway Services Agreement III
between KMC Telecom VI Inc. and Qwest Communications
Corporation, effective as of August 31, 2000 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to KMC Heldings' S-1}.
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EXHIBIT

NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF DQCUMENT

*10.21 Pledge and Security Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2000 by
and among Harold N. Kamine, KNT Partners, LP, KNT Network
Technologies, LLC and KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to KMC
Holdings' S-1).

*10.22 Secured Promissory Note, dated as of June 1, 2000, delivered
by KNT Network Technologies, LLC to KMC Telecom Heoldings, Inc.
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to KMC
Holdings' S-1).

*10.23 Real Estate Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2000 between KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc. and KNT Network Technelogies, LLC
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to KMC
Heldings' S-1) .

*10.24 Maintenance Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2000, by and
between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and KNT HNetwork
Technoleogies, LLC (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.25 to KMC Holdings' 5-1).

*10.25 Master Engineering, procurement and Construction Contract,
dated as of June 1, 2000, by and between KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc. and KNT Network Technologies, LLC {incorporated hereby by
reference to Exhibit 10.26 to KMC Holdings' S-1).
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LLC and KMC

*10.26 KNT Asset Transfer and Proceeds Sharing Agreement, dated as of
June 1, 2000 between KNT Network Technologies,
Telecom Holdings, 1Inc. ({incorporated hereby by reference to
Exhibit 10.27 to KMC Holdings' S§-1).

*%21.1 Subsidiaries of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.

**24 .1 Power of Attorney (Appears on signature page).

* Incorporated herein by reference.

** Filed herewith.

+ Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

DIRECT

KMC
KMC
KMC
KmC
KMC
KMC
KMC
KMC
KMC
KMC
KMC
KMC
KMC
KMC
KMC
KMC

INDIRE
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EX-21 QTHERDCC

2
0002.txt
LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES
Document is copied.
SUBSIDIARIES OF KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS, INC.
SUBSIDIARIES

Telecom Inc.

Telecom II, Inc.
Telecom III, Inc.
Telecom V, Inc.

Telecom VI, Inc.
Telecom Financing, Inc.
Financial Services LLC
Telecom.com, Inc.
Telecom IV Heldings, Inc.
Telecom VII, Inc.
Funding Corporation
Funding V LLC

Data LLC

Telecom VIII LLC
Telecom IX LLC

Telecom Q V LLC

CT SUBSIDIARIES

Exhibit 21.1

Copyright 2001 EDGAR Online,_fie. (ver 1.01/2.003)
DCOTAIENKIE/147091.2
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KMC Telecom Leasing I LLC {wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom Inc.}
KMC Telecom of Virginia, Inc. {(wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom Inc.}
KMC I Services LLC (wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom Inc.)
KMC Telecom Leasing II LLC (wholly cwned subsidiary of KMC Telecom II, Inc.}
KMC II Services LLC (wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom II, Inc.)
KMC Telecom Leasing III LLC (wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom
III, Inc.)
KMC III Services LLC (whelly owned subsidiary of XMC Telecom III, Inc.)
KMC Telecom IV, Inc. {wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom IV
Heldings, Inc.)
KMC Telecom Leasing IV LLC (wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom IV, Inc.)
KMC Telecom IV of Virginia, Inc. {(wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom IV,
Inc.}
KMC IV Services LLC (wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom IV
Holdings, Inc.)
KMC Telecom V of Virginia, Inc. (wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom
Vv, Inc.)
KMC Telecom VI of Virginia, Inc. (wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom
VI, Inc.)
KMC Telecom Leasing VI LLC (wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom VI, Inc.}
KMC Funding of Virginia Corporation {(whelly owned subsidiary of KMC Funding
Corporation)
Copyright 2001 EDGAR Online, Inc. (ver 1.01/2.003) Puge 123
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

Roscoe C. Young, Il , Affiant, being duly sworn according to law, deposes and says that:

He is the President and Chief Operating Officer _of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.

That he is authorized to and does make this affidavit for said corporation;

That KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., guarantees financial support of Applicant KMC Data, LLC,
in its endeavor to obtain certification and proyid€ tgfecommunicatiohs services in the State of
Pennsylvania as described in this Applicatjé /

KMC Telecom H

dings, Inc.

[Commonwealth/State] of l'\M XZ\M
A
County of &&Y\M%'

Sworn and subscribed before me this aﬁﬁzday of J’lr\zu\k , 2001 .

Signature of offidial administering oath

§S.

MARY B AROMIN

Notary Public, State of New Jg
My Cogmission Expires April 26%6

My commission expires

DCOVLEVEN/137891.3



Telecom. BALANCE SHEET
Business Plan 2001 DATA PLATFORM
{3 thousands) 2001 2002
Cash & Equivalents $ 185749 134,736
Accounts Receivable 11,862 -
Prepaid Expenses & Other Current Assets 10,926 -
Current Assets $ 208,537 134,736
Gross Fixed Assets $ 350,139 350,139

Accumulated Depreciation {32,866) (70,939)
Net Fixed Assels § 317,273 279,200
Net Intangible Assets - -
Deferred Financing Costs 1,462 1,462
Other Long Term Assets - -
Total Assets $ 527,272 415,398
Accounds Payable 5 23443 -
Accrued Expenses 4,952 -
Deferred Revenues 5,055 -
Other Liabilities - -
Current Liabilities $ 33,450 -
Notes Payable § 434958 308,296
Long-Term Debt $ 434,958 308,296
Total Liabilities $ 468,408 308,296
Nonredeemable Equity (deficiency):
Common Stock $ 35,000 35,000
Retained Earnings 23.864 72,102
Total Nonredeemable Equity $ 58864 107,102
Total Shareholders' Equity % 58,864 107,102
Total Liabilities & Equity $ 527,272 415,398

KMC Business Planning
Printed 6/15/2001 12:54 PM

4kkh01_XLS Data Platform Financials
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K7 C Telecom. .

Business Plan 2001 DATA PLATFORM
{$ thousands) 2001 2002
Total Revenue $ 238533 § 273,323

(Growth Rate) 405% 15%
Total Direct Network Operating Costs $ 8302¢ § 52492
Direct Contribution $ 155511 § 220,831

(Contribution Margin %} 65.2% 80.8%
City Network Operating Costs:

Indirect Network Operating Costs - KMC 5 3537 3 3,810

Indirect Network Operating Costs - Lucent - -
Indirect Operating Costs $ 3,537 § 3810
Allocated Network Operating Costs:

MIS, Network, Customer Care, etc... 15,323 13,055
Allocated Network Qperating Costs $ 15323 § 13,055
Total Indirect Network Operating Costs $ 18860 § 16,865
Gross Profit $ 136,651 $ 203966

{Gross Margin %) 57.3% 74.6%

City Operating Expense - Market Related 7,521 8,465

Operating EBITDA $ 129130 $ 195,501
{Operating EBITDA %) 54.1% 71.5%

Corporate Marketing $ 18174 § 16983

Corporate Overhead 27 417 28,788
EBITDA {before Stock Option Expense) $ 85539 $ 149,731

(EBITDA %) 35.9% 54.8%
Depreciation & Amortization 31,457 38,073
EBIT $ 54,081 $ 111,658

(EBIT %) 22.7% 40.9%
Interest Income 5761 § -
Interest Expense 35,741 31,261
Pre-Tax Income $ 24101 $ 80,396
Income Tax Expense - 32,158
Net Income $ 24101 § 48238

(Net Margin %} 10.1% 17.6%

4kkh01_XLS Data Platform Financials

KMC Business Planning
Printed 6/15/2001 12:54 PM
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KMC Data, LLC . Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission
Telecommunications Service Application

ATTACHMENT D

PROPOSED TARIFFS
(CLEC, IXC, AND ACCESS)
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KMC DATA, LLC . ’clcphonc Pa. P.U.C. Tariff No. |

Original Title Sheet

KMC DATA, LLC

1545 Route 200
Suite 300
Bedminster, New Jersey 07921

FACILITIES-BASED AND RESOLD CLEC TARIFF

This Tariff contains the description, regulations and rates for the furnishing of local exchange
services and facilities for telecommunications services provided by KMC Data, LLC, throughout
the State of Pennsylvania. The principal offices of KMC are located at: 1545 Route 206, Suite 300,
Bedminster, New Jersey 07921, This Tariff applies for service furnished within the Commonwealth
of Pennsylvania, in the Philadelphia service territories of Bell Atlantic-PA, Zones 1, 2, 3 4, 14, 25,
26, 28, 30, 31, 33, 34; and in the Pittsburgh service territories of Bell Atlantic-PA, Zones 1, 2, 3,4, 6,
7, 8, 14, 22. This tariff is on file with Pennsylvania Public Utility Cemmission, located at North
Office Building, Harrisburg, PA 17120 (717) 787-1740. Copies may be inspected, during normat
business hours, at the Company’s principal place of business in Bedminster, New Jersey. The
Company’s Tarift is in concurrence with all applicable State and Federal Laws (including but not
limited to, 52 Pa. Ceode, 66 Pa. C.S., the Teleccommunications Act of 1996), and with the
Commissions applicable Rules and Regulations and Orders. Any provisions contained in this

Tariff that are inconsistent with the foregoing mentioned will be deemed inoperative and
superseded.
Issucd: July 19, 2001 Effective: August 20, 2001

By: Tricia Breckenridge
Execcutive Vice President of Business Development
KMC Data, Inc.
1755 North Brown Road

Lawrenceville, GA 30043
DCOLAODLIENMA51523.1




KMC DATA,LLC .elcphone Pa. P.U.C. Tariff No. |
Preface
Original Sheet No. 1

CHECK SHEET

The shects listed below, which are inclusive of this tariff, arc effective as of the date shown at the bottom
ol the respective sheet(s). Original and revised sheets as named below comprise all changes from the
original tarilT and are currently in elfeet as of the date indicated below.,

Sheet Revision Sheet Revision Sheet Revision
1 Original 3l Original 61 Original
2 Original 32 Original 62 Original
3 Original 33 Original 63 Original
4 Original 34 Original 64 Original
5 Original 35 Original 65 Original
6 Original 36 COrigimal 66 Original
7 Original 37 Original 67 Original
8 Original 38 Original 68 Original
9 Original 39 Original 69 Original
10 Original 40 Original 70 Original
11 Original 41 Original 71 Original
12 Original 42 Original 72 Original
13 Original 43 Original 73 Oniginal
14 Original 44 Original 74 Original
15 Original 45 Original 75 Original
16 Original 46 Original 76 Original
17 Original 47 Original 77 Original
18 Original 48 Original 78 Original
19 Original 49 Original 79 Original
20 Original 50 Original 80 Original
2] Original 51 Original
22 Original 52 Original
23 Original 53 Original
24 Original 54 Original
25 Original 55 Original
26 Qriginal 56 Original
27 Original 57 Original
28 Original 58 Original
29 Original 59 Original
30 Original 60 Original

* New or revised

Issued: July 19, 2001 Effective: August 20, 2001
By: Tricia Breckenridge
Exccutive Vice President of Business Development
KMC Data, Inc.
1755 North Brown Road

Lawrenceville, GA 30043
DCOI/ODENM/51523.1
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KMC DATA, LLC |clcphone Pa. P.U.C. Tariff No. 1
Preface
Original Sheet No. 2
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241 GCNETAL et et e s e s n e e sae e s s an e en i e abas 3

242 Application of Credits for Interrupted Services ... 9

243 Limitations on AllOWANCES......ccorveiiri i e s e 9

2.5 Obligations Of the CUSIOMICT.....cooi it rae e e 11

20l OO P ittt ettt stk e e e 11
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2.6 Cancellation Of SCIVICE .o e e e 18
Issued: July 19, 2001 Effective: August 20, 2001

By: Tricia Breckenridge

Executive Viee President of Business Development
KMC Data, Inc.
1755 North Brown Road
Lawrenceville, GA 30043
DCOVODENM/151523.1
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Issued: July 19, 2001 Effective: Aupust 20, 2001
By: Tricia Breckenridge
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By: Tricia Breckenridge
Exccutive Vice President of Business Development
KMC Data, luc.
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KMC DATA, LLC
Preface
Original Sheet No. 7

SYMBOLS

The following are the only symbols used for the purposes indicated below:

(C) All other Changes
(D) Decreased Rates
{I) Increased Rates

Issued: July 19, 2001 Effective: August 20, 2001
By: Tricia Breckenridpe
Exccutive Vice President of Business Development
KMC Data, Inc.
1755 North Brown Road
Lawrenceville, GA 30043

DCOT/OBENM/IS1523.1
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Original Sheet No. 8

D.

TARIFF FORMAT

Sheet Numbering - Sheet numbers appear tn the upper right corner of the page. Sheets are
numbered sequentially, However, new sheets are occasionally added to the Tarift, When a new
sheet is added between sheets already in effect, a decimal is added. For example, a new sheet
added between sheets 14 and 15 would be 14.1.

Sheet Revision Numbers - Revision numbers also appear in the upper right corner of each page.
These numbers arc used {o determine the most current sheet version on file with the Commission.,
For example, the 4th revised Sheet 14 cancels the 3rd revised Sheet 14. Because ol various
suspension periods, deferrals, ete., the Commission follows in their TarilT approval proccess, the
most current sheet number on file with the Commission is not always the Tariff page in cffect.

Paragraph Numbering Sequence - There are nine levels of paragraph coding. Each level of
coding is subservient o its next higher level:

1.
1A
1AL
1.A.1.(a).
1

1

1

LAL().L
A L)L),

2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2.1 LA 4 (2).LG).(1).

1
1
1
1.
1.
.
1
gl

Check Sheets - When a Tarilf filing is made with the Commission, an updated check sheet
accompanics the Tarifl filing. The check sheet lists the sheets contained in the Taniff, with a
cross reference to the current revision number. When new pages are added, the check sheet is
changed to reflect the revision. All revisions made in a given filing are designated by an asterisk
(*). There will be no other symbols used on the check sheet if these are the only changes madc 1o
it (i.e., the format, cte., remains the same, just revised revision levels on some pages). The Tariff
user should refer to the latest check sheet to find out if a particular sheet is the most current on
{ile with the Commission.

Issued: July 19, 2001 Effective: August 20, 2001

By: Tricia Breckenridge
Exccutive Vice President of Business Development
KMC Data, Ine.
1755 North Brown Road
Lawrenceville, GA 30043

DCO/ODENMAS1523.1
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APPLICATION OF TARIFF

This tariff sets forth the service offerings, rates and terms and conditions of service applicable to the
{furnishing of End-User local exchange iclecommunications services by KMC Data, LLC ("KMC” or
“Company”) to business Customers within the state of Pennsylvania.

Issued: July 19, 2001 Effcctive: August 20, 2001
By: Tricia Breckenridge
Excecutive Viee President of Business Development
KMC Data, Inc,
1755 North Brown Road
Lawrenceville, GA 30043
DCO/ODENM/ASL523.0
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Section |
Original Sheet No. |

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

1.1 Definitions
Certain terms used generally throughout this tariff are defined below.
Abbreviated Dialing: Permits lincs within a Customer’s {erminal group to place calls within the
group using 1 to 7 digits.
Account Codes: Permits Centrex Stations and attendants to dial an account code number of up
to cight digits. For use when placing calls over facilities arranged for Automatic Message
Accounting (AMA) recording. The account or project number must be input prior to dialing the
called number.
Advance Payment: Part or all ol a payment required before the start of scrvice.
Automatic Callback Calling: Allows Customers to request an automatic callback upon
receiving a busy signal. Caller may signal for dial tone and dial a feature code or press a feature
bution o request automatic callback facilitics.
Automatic Number Ideatification (ANI):  Allows the awtomatic transmission of a caller's
billing account telephone number to a local exchange company, interexchange carrier or a third
parly subscriber. The primary purpose of AN is to allow for billing of toll calls.
Bit: The smallest unit of information in the binary system of notation.
Call Back/Camp On: Permits a station line encountering an all-trunk-busy condition the option
of being notified when a trunk becomics idle.
Call Forwarding Busy: Allows incoming calls to a busy station to be routed to a presclected
station line or attendant within the same system or outside the system. Intercom calls can be
arranged to be forwarded to a number different from DID calls.
Call Forwarding Don't Answer: Allows incoming calls to be automatically routed to a
preselected station line or attendant in the same system or oulside the sysiem, when the called
station is not answered aller a preset number of rings.  Intercom calls can be arranged o be
lforwarded to a number different from DID calls,
Call Forwarding Remote: This optional feature allows a uscr to activate/deactivate the Call
Forwarding - All Calls feature or change the forwarded 1o telephone number from a remote
location.

Issued: July 19, 2001 Effective: August 20, 2001

By: Tricia Breckenridge
Exccutive Vice President of Business Development
KNMC Data, Inc.
1755 North Brown Road
Lawrenceville, GA 30043

DCOODENM/51523.1
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1.1

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS (Cont’d)

Definitions (Cont’d)

Call Forwarding Station: Allows calls directled to a station line to be routed to a user defined
line inside or outside the customer's telephone system.

Call Forwarding System: Pcrmits calls attempting to terminate to a busy station line to be re-
directed to a predetermined line inside or outside the customer's telephone system.

Call Forwarding Variable Limited: When this featurc is activated by a station line user or the
atiendant, incoming calls to the activated station line or atlendant position will be automatically
routed to any other sclected station line, within the same Centrex system, or to the attendant
position. The attendant may also activate this {eature for a station line user.

Call Forwarding Variable Unlimited: The same as Call Forwarding Variable Limited except
that incoming calls may be automatically routed to a telephone number outside the Centrex
system or 1o station lines within the same Centrex system, The attendant may not activate this
fcature to a telephone number outside the Centrex system for a station line use. Calls forwarded
outside the Centrex system are subject to the appropriate charges for local and toll messages.

Call Hold: Allows the user to hold one call for any length of time provided that neither party
goes on-hook.

Call Park: Allows a station line to park a call against its own line number. The parked call can
be retricved {rom any station line by dialing a feature code and the line number against which the
call is parked.

Call Pickup: Allows a station line to answer incoming calls to another station line within a
defined call pickup group. Call pickup is provided on individual station lines within a customer
group.

Call Transfer: Allows a station line user to transfer any established call to another station line
inside or outside the customer group without the assistance of the attendant.

Call Waiting: Permits a line in the talking state to be alerted by a tone when another call is
attempting to complete to the line. Audible ringing is retumed to the originating line. The
Service also provides a hold feature that is activated by a swilchhook {lash.

Caller ID: Allows customers to view the name and telephone number associaicd with an
incoming call before answering the phone.
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KMC DATA, LLC Telephone Pa. P.U.C. Tariff No. 1

Section |
Original Sheet No. 3

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS (Cont’d)

1.1 Definitions (Cont’d)
Communication Services: The Company's intrastate toll and local exchange switched telephone
services offered for both intralLATA and interLATA use.
Company or KMC: KMC Data, LLC, the issucr of this tariff,
Conference: Allows customers to add additional partics to a call.
Customer or Subscriber: The person, firm or corporation that orders service and is responsible
for the payment of charges and compliance with the Company's regulations.
Dial Pulse (or "DP"): The pulse type employed by rotary dial station sets.
Direct Outward Dial (or "DOD"): A scrvice attribute that allows individual station users to
access and dial outside numbers dircetly.
Do Not Disturb: Permits the attendant to cut off a single station line and seclected groups of
station lines from receiving incoming and station-to-station calls.
DSX-1 Panel: Distribution cquipment used to terminate and administer DS1 (1.544 Mbps)
circuits.
Dual Tone Multi-Frequency (or "DTMF"): The pulsc type employed by tone dial station sets.
Duplex Service: Service that provides for simultancous transmission in both dircctions.
Fiber Optic Cable: A thin filament of glass with a protective outer coating through which a
light beam carrying communications signals may be transmitted by means of multiple internal
rellections to a receiver, which translates the message.
Hunting: Routes a call to an idle station line in a prearranged group when the called station line
is busy.
In-Only: A service attribute that restricts outward dial access and routes incoming calls to a
designated answer point.
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KMC DATA, LLC Telephone Pa. P.U.C. Tariff No. 1

Section |
Original Sheet No. 4

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS (Cont’d)

1.1 Definitions {(Cont’d)
Joint User: A person, firm or corporation that is designated by the Customer as a uscr of
services furnished to the Customer by KMC and to whom a portion of the charges for the service
will be billed under a joint user arrangement as specified herein.
Kbps: Kilebils per sccond, denotes thousands of bits per second.
Last Number Redial: Enables a station line user to redial the last called number by use of an
access code rather than dialing the entire number.
LATA: A Local Access and Transport Arca established pursuant to the Modification of Final
Judgment entered by the United States District Court for the District of Columbia in Civil Action
No. 82-0192; or any other geographic arca designated as a LATA in the National Exchange
Carrier Association, Inc. Tariff F.C.C. No. 4.
Local Exchange Carrier or ("LEC"): Denotes any individual, partnership, association, joint-
stock company, trust or corporation engaged in providing swilched communication within an
exchange,
Manual Exclusion: Restricts others from retrieving a pul on hold or from breaking into a call,
Applicable to ISDN centrex type services. Ensures privacy is automatically invoked whenever a
customer picks up the phone to place or answer a call.
Mbps: Mcgabits, denotes millions of bits per second.,
Message Waiting Indication: Provides a lighted indicator (usually on a teicphone sct) that
informs customer of a new message to be reviewed.
Multi-Frequency or ("MF"):  An inter-machine pulse-type used for signaling between
telephone switches, or betwecen telephone switches and PBX/key systems.
Multi Site Abbreviated Dialing: Allows customers to usc abbreviated dialing capabilitics
among multiple locations.
Recurring Charges: The monthly charges to the Customer for scrvices, facilities and
equipment, that continue for the agreed upon duration of the service.
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KMC DATA, LLC Telephone Pa. .U.C. Tariff No. 1

Section |
Original Sheet No. 5

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS (Cont’d)

1.1 Definitions (Cont’d)

Service Commencement Date: The first day following the date on which the Company notifics
the Customer that the requested service or facility is available for use, unless extended by the
Customer’s refusal to accept service that does not conform to standards set forth in the Service
Order or this tariff, in which case the Service Commencement Date is the date of the Customer's
acceptance.  The Company and Customer may mutually agree on a substitute Service
Commencement Date.

Service Order: The written request for Network Services executed by the Customer and the
Company in the format devised by the Company. The signing of a Service Order by the
Customer and acceptance by the Company initiates the respective obligations of the partics as set
forth therein and pursuant to this tariff, but the duration of the service is calculated from the
Service Commencement Date.

Shared: A facility or equipment system or subsystem that can be used simultancously by several
Customers.

Speed Calling: Pcrniits a station line uscr to dial selected numbers by using fewer digits than
normally required. This is accomplished through the assignment of abbreviated codes to

frequently called numbers. The speed calling list is customer-changeable.

System: Allows shared use of speed calling list. A control station will add, change or delcte
telephone numbers from the list for the group.

Station: Allows a station line user to add, change or delete telephone numbers from a speed
calling list. The list is dedicated to the individual station line user.

Three-Way Calling: Allows a station line user to add a third party to an cxisting conversation.

Two Way: A service attribute that includes outward dial capabilities for outbound calls and can
also be uscd to carry inbound calls to a central point for further processing.

Uniform Call Distribution: Automatically distributes incoming calls, in the order of their
arrival, to customer telephone lines that have been idle the longest.

User or End User: A Customer, Joint User, or any other person authorized by a Customer to use
service provided under this tarifT,
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Seclion |
Original Sheet No. 6

SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS (Cont’d)

1.2 Abbreviations

PBX — Private Branch Exchange
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KMC DATA, LLC

Telephone Pa. P.U.C. Tariff No. |
Section 2
Criginal Sheet No. |

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS

2.1 Undcrtaking of the Company

2.1 Scope

2111

2.1.1.2

2.1.13

The services of the Company consist of the furnishing of one-way and/or two
way telecomimunication and information transmission secrvices throughout
the State of Pennsylvania pursuant to this general tariff offering of service to
the gencral public.

The Company’s local service lerritory mirrors certain of the local exchanges
of the incumbent carrier, Bell Atlantic-PA. As stated on the Title page to this
tarifl, initially the Company will serve Philadelphia Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, 14, 25,
26, 28, 30, 31, 33 and 34, and Pittsburgh Zoncs 1, 2, 3,4, 6, 7, 8, 14 and 22,
as sct forth in Sections 5 and 6 of this tarifl.

The services offered hercin may be used for any lawful purpose, including
residential, business, governmental or other use. There are no restrictions on
sharing or resale of the Company’s services. However, the Customer
remains liable for all obligations under this tarifll notwithstanding such
sharing or resale and regardless of the Company’s knowledge of same. The
Company shall have no liability to any person or entity other than the
Customer. If service is jointly ordered by more than one Cuslomer, cach is
jointly and scverally liable for all obligations herein.
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KMC DATA, LLC

Telephone Pa. P.U.C. Tariff No. 1
Scclion 2
Original Sheet No. 2

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS {Cont’d)

2.1 Undertaking of the Company (Cont’d)

2.1.1  Scope (Cont’d)

2.1.14

Company services may be connected to the services or facilities of other
communicalions carriers only when authorized by, and in accordance with,
the terms and conditions of any tarills of such other communications carriers
which are applicable to such connections,

2.1.2  Shortage of Equipment or {acilitics

2.1.2.1

2122

The Company reserves the right to limit or o allocate the use of its existing
and future facilitics when necessary because of a lack of facilities or due to
any causc beyond the Company’s control including but not limited to acts of
God, fire, flood, explosion or other catasirophes; any law, order, regulation,
direction, action or request of the United States government, or of any other
government, including state and local governments having or claiming
jurisdiction over the Company, or of any deparliment, agency, commission-,
burcau, corporation, or other instrumentality of any onc or more of these
federal, state or local governments, or of any civil or military authority;
national emergencics: inswrrcctions, riots, wars; unavailability of rights-of-
way or matcrials; or strikes, lock-outs, work stoppages, or other labor
difficultics.

The furnishing of service under this tlariff ts subject to the availability on a
continuing basis of all facilities necessary to provide the service. Services
will be provided using the Company’s [iber optic facilities, as well as, from
time to time and at the sole discretion of the Company, facilities the
Company may obtain from other carriers.
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Section 2
Original Sheet No. 3

2.1

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

Undertaking of the Company (Cont’d)

2.

~

1.3

1.4

Ownershin ol Facilitics

Title to alb facilitics and cquipment, and related plans and proposals, provided by
Company in furnishing service in accordance with this tariff remains in the Company, its
agents or contractors.  Customer shall not have, nor shall it assert, any right, title or
interest in the fiber optic or other facilitics and associated cquipment, plans or proposals
provided by the Company. Such facilities and equipment, plans and proposals shall be
returned to the Company by the Customer whenever requested, within a rcasonable
period (but in any cvent not more than fiftcen (15) days following the request, in as good
condition as rcasonable wear will permit.

Governmental Authorizations

The provision of the Company’s services is subject to and contingent upon the Company
obtaining and retaining all governmental authorizations that may be required or be
deemed necessary by Company. Such authorizations may include but are not limited to
governmental approvals, consents, licenses, franchiscs, and permits. Company shall use
reasonable cfforts to obtain and keep in cffect all such governmental authorizations.
Company shall be entitled to take, and shall have no liability whatsoever for, any action
necessary to bring its facilities and/or services into conlormance with any requircment or
request of the Federal Communications Commission or other federal, state or local
governing entity or agency. Customer shall fully cooperate in and take any action as may
be requested by Company to comply with such governmental requirement.
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KMC DATA, LLC Telephone Pa. P.U.C. Tariff No. 1

Section 2
Original Sheet No. 4

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

2.1 Undertaking of the Company (Cont’d)

2.1.5

2.1.0

Rights-of-Way

Where cconomically feasible (in the sole opinion of the Company), Company shall use
reasonable ¢fforts to obtain and maintain, directly or through third parties, rights-of-way
necessary lor installation of the facilities used to provide Company’s services 1o
Customer’s property line, building entrance, or other service point as agreed to by
Company. Customers use of such rights-of~way shall in all respects be subject to the
between the Company and such third parties relating thereto, and shall not regulation or
restriction.

Term of Service
The minimum term of service under this tariff is one month. Service is provided 24-
hours per day, 7-days per weck. For purposes of this tariff, a month is considered to have

30 days.

Customer Service

The Company's customer service representatives for billing and service inquirics may be
rcached, toll free at (888) KMC-THE!1 / (888) 562-8431. Customers wishing to
communicate with the Company in writing may send correspondence to 1545 Route 2006,
Suite 300, Bedminster, New Jerscy 07921,
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KMC DATA, LLC Telephone Pa. P.U.C. Tariff No. 1

Section 2
Original Sheet No. 5

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

2.2 Limitations of Scrvice

Service is offered subject to the availability of facilitics and provisions of this tariff.

222 Service is furnished to the User for any law{ul purpose. Scrvice shall not be used for any
unlawful purpose, nor used in such a manner as to interferc unrcasonably with the use of
scrvice by any other Uscrs.

223 The use of the Company’s services without payment for service or attempling to avoid
payment for service by fraudulent means or devices, lalse or invalid numbers, or false
calling or credit cards is prohibited.

224 The Company’s scrvices may be denied for noncompliance with any of the
Commission’s regulations, or for other violations of the terms and conditions set forth in
this tarifi.

2.2.5  The use of the Company’s services to make calls which might reasonably be expected to
{righten, abuse, torment, or harass another is prohibited.

2.2.6  Scrvice temporarily may be refused or limited because of system capacity limitations.

2.2.7  Service is subject to transmission limitations caused by natural (including atmospheric,
geographic or topographic) or artificial conditions adversely aifecting transmission.

2.2.8  Service to any or all Customers may be temporarily interrupted or curtailed due to
equipment modifications, upgrades, rclocations, repairs and similar activities necessary
for proper or improved opcerations.

2.2.9 The Company reserves the right to discontinue furnishing service where the Customer is
using the service in violation of the law or the provisions of this tariff.
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Scction 2
Original Shect No. 6

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

2.3 Liability of the Company

231

232

233

The liability of the Company for damages anising out of the furnishing of its services,
including but not limited to mistakes, outages, omissions intcrruptions, delays, crrors, or
other defects, representations, failures arising out of the use of these services or failure to
furnish service, whether caused by act, omission or negligence, shall be limited 1o the
exlension of allowances as sct forth in scction 2.4 of this tarifl captioned: “Allowances
for Interruptions in Service.” The extension of such allowances for interruption shall be
the sole remedy of the Customer, and the sole liability of the Company. The Company
will not be liable for any direct, indircet, incidental, special, conscquential, exemplary or
punitive damages to Customer as a result of any Company scrvice, equipment or
facilitics, or the acts or omissions or negligence of the Company’s employees or agents.

The Company shall not be liable for any delay or fatlurc of performance of equipment
due to causes beyond its control, inciuding but not limited to:  acts of God, fire, flood,
explosion or other catastrophes; any law, order, regulation, direction, action or request of
the United States government having or claiming jurisdiction over the Company, or of
any department, agency, commission, burcau, corporalion, or other instrumentality of any
one or more of these federal, state or local governments, or of any civil or military
authority; national emergencics; insurrections, riots; wars; unavailability of rights-of-way
or materials; or strikes, lock-outs, work stoppages, or other labor difficultics.

The Company shall not be liable for any act, omission or defect of any entity furnishing
to the Company or to the Customer facilitics or equipment used for or with the
Company’s services; or for the acts or omissions of common carriers or warchousemen.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

23 Liability of the Company (Cont’d)

234

235

2.3.6

23.8

The Company shall not be liable for any damages or losses due to the fault or negligence
of the Customer or duc to the failure or malfunction of Customer-provided equipment or
facilities,

The Company docs not guarantee nor make any warranty with respect to installations it
provides for use in an explosive atmosphere. The Customer indemnifies and holds the
Company harmicss (rom any liability whatsoever, and for any damages caused or
claimed to have been caused in any way, directly or indirectly, as a result of any such
installation. -

The Company is not liable for any defacement of or damage to Customer’s premiscs
resulting from the furnishing of services or cquipment or the installation or removal
thercof, unless such defacement or damage is causced by the willful misconduct of the
Company’s employees or agents.

The Comipany shall be indemnified, defended and held harmiess by the Customer against
any claim, loss or damage arising from Customer’s use of services, involving claims for
libel, slander, invasion of privacy, or mfringement of copyright arising from the
Customer’s use of the Company’s facilitics.

The Company’s cntire liability, if any, for any claim, loss, damage or expense from any
cause whatsocver shall in no event cxcecd sums actually paid Company by Customer {or
the specific services giving rise to the claim. Any claim, action or procceding against the
Company which is not filed or commenced within one (1) ycar after the carlier of: (a) the
rendering of the service, or (b) the occurrence of the event with respect to which such
claim arose, shall be deemed waived if not brought within such one year period.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

2.3 Liability of the Company (Cont’d)

2.3.9  With respect to the furnishing of Company’s scrvices to public safety answering points or
municipal emergency service providers, the Company’s liability, il any, will be limited to
the lesser oft (a) the actual monetary damages incurred and proved by the Customer as
the direct result of the Company’s action, or failure to act, in providing the service, or (b}
the sum of $1,000.00.

2.3.10 In the event partics other than. Customer, including but not limited to joint users and
Customer’s customers, shall have use of the Company’s service dircctly or indirectly
through Customer, then Customer agrees to forever indemnify and hold the Company
harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, suits, actions, losses, damages,
asscssments or payments which may be asserted by said partics arising out of or relating
to the Company’s furnishing of service.

2.3.11 THE COMPANY MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS, EXPRESS
OR IMPLIED, EITHER IN FACT OR BY OPERATION OF LAW, STATUTORY OR
OTHERWISE, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS
FOR A PARTICULAR USE, EXCEPT THOSE EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN.

24 Allowances for Interruptions in Service

2.4.1  General

24.1.1 A service is interrupted when it becomes unusable to the User, e.g., the User
is unable to transmit or receive communications due to the failure of a
component furmished by the Company under this tariff.

2412 An interruption period begins when the User reports a service, facility or
circuit to be inoperative and releases it for testing and repair.  An interruption
period ends when the service, facility or circuit 1s operative.

2413 If the User reports a service, facility or circuil to be inoperative but declines
to release it for testing and repair, the service, facility or circuit is considered
to be impaired but not interrupted. No credit allowances will be made for a
service facility or circuit considered by the Company to be impaired.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

2.4 Allowances for Interruptions in Scrvice (Cont’d)

2.4.2  Application of Credits for Interrupted Services

2421

2422

2423

2424

Al the Customer’s request, a credit allowance for a continuous interruption of
service for more than twenty-four (24) hours will be made in an amount to be
determined by the Company on a case-by-case basis. Credit allowances shall
be applied in conformity with the requircments of 52 PA. ADMIN. CODE
§64.52, unless otherwise agreed by Company or required by law.

Company may temporarily interrupt service when necessary to effect repair
or maintenance; to climinate on imminent threat to life, health, safety or
substantial property damage; or for response of local, State or National
ecmergency in conformity with 52 PA. Admin Code §64.51.

Any such interruption will be measured from the time 1t is reported to or
detccted by the Company, whichever occurs lirst.

In the event the User is affected by such interruption lor a period of less than
twenty-four (24) hours, no adjustment will be made. No adjustments wili be
carned by accumulating non-continuous periods of interruption.

243 Limitations on Allowances

2.4.3.1

No credit allowance will be made for any interruption of service:

2.4.3.1.1  due to the negligence of, or noncompliance with the provisions
of this tariff by, any person or entity other than the Company,
including but not limited to the Customer or other entitics or
carriers connected 1o the service ol the Company;

24.3.1.2  duc to the failure of power, equipment, sysiems or services not
provided by the Company;

243.1.3 due to circumslances or causes beyond the control of the
Company;

2.43.1.4  during any period in which the Company is not given [ull and
free access to the Customer’s or Company’s facilities and
equipment for the purpose of investigating and correcting the
interruption;
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

24 Allowances for Interruptions in Service (Cont’d)

2.4.3  Limitations on Allowances (Cont’d)

2.4.3.1 (Cont'd)

2.43.1.5 during any period in which the User continucs to use the service
on an impatred basis;

2.43.1.6  during any period in which the Customer has rcleased service 1o
the Company for maintenance purposes or for implementation ol
a Customer order for a change in scrvice arrangements;

24.3.1.7 that occurs or continues duc to the Customer’s failure (o
authorize replacement of any element ol special construction;
and

2.43.1.8 that was not reported to the Company within thirty (30) days of
the date that service was affected.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

2.5 Obligations of the Customer

2.5.1  Scope

The obligations of the Customer shall include the following:

2.5.11 Customer shall be responsible for any damage to or loss of the Company’s
facilitics or equipment causcd by the acts or omissions of the Customer, or its
employecs, agents, contractors or suppliers, by Customer’s noncompliance
with this tariff, by malfunction or failure of any ecquipment or facility
provided by Customer or its agents, employees or suppliers, or by fire, theft
or other casualty on the Customer’s premises, unless causcd by the gross
negligence or willful misconduct of Company’s employeces or agents.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

2.5 Obligations of the Customer {Cont’d)

2.5.1  Scope (Cont’d)

25.1.2

2513

Customer shall provide at no cost to, and, as specified [rom time to time by
the Company, any personnel, equipment, space, power, heating and air
conditioning needed to operate, and maintain a proper operating environment
for, Company flacilitics and cquipment installed on the Customer’s premises.
Customer shall cooperate with Company in choosing the location, size and
characteristics of the Company’s equipment space on Customer’s premises,
which shall define the point of termination of Company’s service. Customer
may be required to pay, in the sole discretion of the Company, additional
non-recurring charges for any additional points ol termination within
Customer’s premiscs.

Customer shall obtain, maintain, and otherwise have full responsibility for all
rights-of-way and conduit necessary for installation of Company facilitics
from the building entrance or property line to the location of Company’s
cquipment space on the Customer’s premises. Any costs associated with
obtlaining and maintaining the rights-of~-way described herein, including any
necessary building modification costs, shall be borne entircly by the
Customer. Customer shall also be responsible for complying with all
applicable laws, and obtaining all required permits or other approvals related
10 the location and installation of Company facilitics and equipment in the
Customer’s prentiscs or within the rights-of-way for which the Customer is
responsible.  The Customer and the Company may mutually agree to enter
into a contract under which Company will provide some or all such non-
regulated services and facilitics.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

2.5 Obligations ¢f the Customer (Cont’d)

2.5.1  Scope (Cont’d)

2514

2.5.1.5

Customer shall provide a safe place to work and be responsible for
complying with all laws and regulations regarding the working conditions on
the premises at which Company employees and agents install or maintain the
Company’s facilitics and equipment. The Customer shall be responsible for
identifying, monitoring, removing and disposing of any hazardous material
(e.g., friable asbestos) prior to, during and after any construction or
installation work. Customer may be required to install and maintain
Company facilities and cquipment if, in the Company’s opinion, the
equipment space provided by the Customer is a hazardous area.

Customer shall grant or obtain permission for Company employces or agents
to enter the premiscs of the Customer at any time for the purpose of
installing, inspecting, maintaining, repairing, or removing the facilities or
equipment of the Company and/or inspecting Customer-provided equipment
which is connected to Company’s facilitics.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

2.5 Obligations of the Customer (Cont’d)

2.5.1  Scope (Cont’d)

25.1.6

2517

2518

Customer shall be responsible for the provision, operation and maintenance
of any Customer-provided terminal equipment connected to Company
equipment and facilities, and for cnsuring that such Customer-provided
equipment is compatible with Company cquipment and facilitics. The
magnitude and character of the voltages and currents impressed on Company
cquipment, facilities and wiring by such Customer-provided equipment shall
be such as not to cause damage to Company’s cquipment, facilities and
wiring or injury to Company’s employces or to other persons. Upon
Company’s request, Customer will submit to Company a complele
manufacturer’s specification shect for cach item of Customer-provided
cquipment that is or is proposed to be attached to Company’s facilitics.
Conmpany may provide, at the Customer’s expense, any additional protective
equipment required in the sole opinion of the Company, to prevent damage
or injury resulting from the connection of any Customer-provided equipment.

Customer warrants that the services ordered pursuant to this tariff are
intrastate in naturc.

Customer shall cooperate with Company to plan, coordinate and undertake
any actions required to maintain maximum network capability following
natural or man-made disasters, which affect telecommunications services.,
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

25 Obligations of the Customer (Cont’d)

2.5.2 Payments

Obligations of the Customer with regard to payments shall include:

2521

2522

Customer shall be responsible for payment of all applicable charges pursuant
to this tariff for facilitics and service furnished to the Customer or lo
authorized or joint users or to the Customer’s customers. Company’s
services are provided on a “take or pay” basis, that is, Cuslomer is
responsible for the applicable charges for services as ordered, whether or not
Customer actually uses all or part of those scrvices or capacity.

Customer shall pay all sales, use, excise, access, bypass or other local, state
and Federal taxes, fees (including franchise fecs), charges or surcharges,
however designated, imposed on or based on the provision, sale or use of the
Company’s services, cxcluding gross receipts taxes and taxes on the
Company’s net income. Such taxes shall be scparately stated on the
Customer’s invoice.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

25 Obligations of the Custemer (Cont’d)

2,52 Payments (Cont’d)

2523

2524

2525

2526

Customer shall pay outstanding charges in full within 30 days of the invoice
date. Charges not paid by Customer within 30 days, or paid in funds not
immediately available to the Company, shall be subject 1o a late fec of 1.5%
per month. This late fee of 1.5% may not include previously-accrucd late
payment charges. Residential Customers may be assessed a late payment fee
of 1.25% per month. This late lec of 1.25% may not include previously-
accrued late payment charges.  Charges normally will be invoiced in
advance, with monthiy recurring charges invoiced on or about the first of the
month for which the charges apply. A Customer’s bill will be duc and
payable twenty (20) days from the date of the postmark on the bill in
compliance with PA ADMIN CODE § 64.12. In the event of a Company
billing error or omission, Customer shall be responsible for any back billing
invoiced by the Company within 2 years of the original date of service.

Customers must notify the company cither verbally or in writing of any
disputed charges within thirty (30) days of the billing date, otherwise all
charges on the invoice will be deemed accepted. All Charges remain due and
payabic at the due date, although a Customer is not required 1o pay any
disputed charges during the time period in which the Company conducts its
investigation into the matter.

Customer agrees that Company may conduct an independent verification of
Customer’s financial condition at any time, and Customer agrees to prompily
supply such financial information as may be rcasonably requested by
Company. If, in the sole opinion of the Company, a Customer presents an
undue risk of nonpayment at any time the Company may rcquirc that
Customer pay its bills within a specified number of days, pay in advance of
the furnishing or continuation of any service, and/or make such payments in
cash or the equivalent of cash.

Il required by the Company, Customer shall make an advance payment
before serviees are furnished, which advance payment will be credited to the
Customer’s initial bill. Company may, in its sole discretion, require such an
advance payment, which may be in addition to a deposit.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

2.5 Obligations of the Customer (Cont’d)

2.5.2  Payment (Cont'd)

2527

If required by the Company, Customer shall make a deposit before a service
is furnished or continucs to bc held as a guarantce for the payment of
charges. Company may require such a deposit, which may be in addition to
an advance payment, if Company considers this action necessary 10
safeguard its interests. A deposit shall not relieve the Customer of the
responsibility for prompt payment of bills on presentation. Interest shall be
paid at a ratc of 9% annually on the deposit pursuant to 52 PA. ADMIN.
ConE § 64.41(4), unless otherwise agrecd by the Company or required by
law. At any time, the Company may return the deposit or credit it to the
Customer’s account. When a service is discontinued the amount of any
applicable deposit plus interest will be applied to the Customer’s account and
any credit balance remaining will be refunded.

2.5.3  Indemniflication

2531

With respeet to any service or facility provided by the Company, or otherwise in the
event of Customer's breach of any of the provisions of this tanff, Customer shall
indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Company from and against all claims, actions,
damages, liabilities, costs and expenses, for:

any loss, destruction or damage to property of the Company or any third
party, or the death or injury of any person, to the extent caused by or
resulting [rom the negligent or intentional act or omission of the Customer,
its cmployces, agents, representatives or invitees; and
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

2.5 Obligations of the Customer (Cont'd)

2.5.3  Indemniiication (Cont'd)

2532 any claim, loss, damage, expense or liability for infringement of any
copyright, patent, trade sccret, or any proprictary or intellectual property
right of any third party, arising [rom any act or omission by the Customer,
including, without limitation, use of the Company’s services and facilitics in
a manner not coniemplated by this tariff or any agreement between Customer
and Company.

2.6 Cancellation of Service

[f Customer cancels a service order or terminates service before the completion of the term of
service specified in the service order for any reason, Customer agrees to pay to Company all
costs, fees and cxpenses incurred by Company in connection with construction and with such
termination. In addition, Customer may be liable for termination charge up to a maximum
amount equal to the total of charges applicable for the remaining term specified in the service
order (discounted to present value at six percent).

2.7 Termination of Service

2.7.1  In conformance with 52 PA. ADMIN CODE §64.53 Customer may terminate service, with
or without cause, by giving the Company notice. The Company may terminate service
with five (5) busincss days’ oral or written notice to the Customer for any of the
following occurrences:

2,7.1.1 Failure of the Customer to pay a non-disputed delinquent account;

2.7.1.2 Failure of the Customer to make satisfactory arrangements (o pay arrearages
or meet the requirements of a payment agreement;

2.7.13 Failure of the Customer to permit the Company to have recasonablc access to
its equipment, facilitics, service connections or other property;

27.14 Failure of the Customer to provide the Company with adcquate assurances
that an unauthorized use or practice will ceasc;
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

2.7 Termination of Service (Cont’d)

2.7.1. (Cont’d)
27.1.5

27.1.6

2.7.1.7

Customer non-compliance with Commission regulations;

Customer (raud or material misrepresentation of identity for purpose of
obtaining ielephone service

Failure of the Customer to adhere to contractual obligations with the
Company,

2.72  The Company may terminate service without written notice 1o the Customer for any of
the following occurrences:

2.7.2.1

2722

2723

2724

Customer’s maintenance or operation of its cquipment in such a manner as to
adversely atfect the Company’s equipment or scrvice to others;

Customer non-compliance with any provision of this tariff’ which results in
threatening the safety of a person or the integrity of the scrvice delivery
system of the Company;

Customer tampering with the Company’s cquipment or scrvicc;

Customer’s unauthorized or illegal use of the Company’s service or
cquipment.

2.7.3  Customer notification of termination of service will conform 1o the requirements ol 52
PA. ADMIN, CODE §64.72.

2.74  Except for emergency situations, Company may not commence suspension or iermination
ol service for non payment of charges on any of the following:

(1
(2)
3

Saturday or Sunday.
A bank holiday.
A Company holiday.
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2.7

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

Termination of Scrviee (Cont’d)

2.7.5

270

277

278

Termination of service 1o residential Customers will follow a two-step process in which
the above-referenced notice of termination is provided to the Customer at lcast seven (7)
days prior to the date of suspension of service. After at least ten (10) days have passed
since service o the Customer has been suspended, and the Custonter has failed to pay a
reconnection fee and to remedy the original grounds for suspension, the Company may
terminate service to the Customer.

The Customer is responsible for all charges incurred to the Calling Station regardless of
which parly terminates the service. The Customer shall reimburse the Company for all
cosls, cxpenses and fees (including rcasonable attorneys’ fees) incurred by the Company
in collecting such charges.

Upon the Company’s discontinuance of service to the Customer under section 2.7.1.1 or
2.7.1.2, the Company, in addition to all other remedics that may be available to the
Company at law or in equity or under any other provisions of this tariff, may declare all
future monthly and other charges which would have been payable by the Customer
during the remainder of the term of scrvice specified in the scrvice order to be
immediately due and payable (discounted to present value at six percent).

Upon the Customer filing for bankruptcy or reorganmization or failing to discharge an
involuntary pctition therefore within the time permitted by law, or an assignment for the
benefit of creditors, appointment of a trustee or receiver or similar event with respect to
Customer, the Company may, in addition to any other remedy available at law or in
cquity, immediately discontinue or suspend service, refuse additional applications for
service and/or refusc to complete any pending orders for service without incurring any
liability.
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2.7

2.8

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

Termination of Service (Cont’d)

279

2.7.10

Upon condemnation of any significant portion of the facilitics or associated cquipment
used by the Company to provide service to Customer or if a casualty renders all or any
significant portion of such facilities or equipment inoperable beyond feasible repair, the
Company may discontinuc or suspend service, refuse additional orders for service and/or
refuse to complete any pending orders for scrvice upon notice to Customer, without
incurring any liability.

Upon any governmental prohibition or required alteration of the services provided or
ordered, or any violation of an applicable law or regulation, the Company may
timmediately discontinuc or suspend service, refuse additional applications for service
and/or refuse to complete any pending orders for service without incurring any liability.

Changes in Equipment and Services

2.8.1

282

Company may substitute, change or rcarrange any cquipment, facility or system used in
providing services at any time and from time to time, but shall not thereby materially
alter the technical parameters of the services provided pursuant to Customer’s service
order,

Customer shall not cause or allow any facility or equipment of Company to be
rearranged, moved, disconnected, altered or repaired without Company’s prior writlen
consent.
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2.8

2.9

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

Changes in Equipment and Services (Cont’d)

283

Upon receipt of a written request from Customer, Company will add, delete or change
locations or featurcs of specific circuits and/or equipment. Customer shall be liable for
nonrecurring charges for such changes. If a request for deletion of a service represents a
cancellation prior to the applicable term of service, Customer will be subject to
Company’s termination charges.

Prohibited Uses

29.1

292

293

294

The services Company provides shall not be used for any unlaw{ul purpose or for any use
with respect to which Customer has not obtained all governmental approvals,
authorizations, licenscs, consents and permits required to be obtained by Customer.

Customier shall not use the Company’s scrvice offerings for resale and/or for shared usc
unless, it requested to do so by Company, Customer has first demonstrated that such usc
complies with relevant laws, regulations, policies, orders, decisions and other
govermmental or legal requirements.

Customer may not use Company’s services so as to interfere with or impair any other
service or impair the privacy of any communications over any of Company’s facilities
and associated cquipment or over the facilities and cquipment of any other
communications carrier connected to Company’s facilities.

Customer shall not usc or allow the use of Company’s facilitics or equipment installed at
the Customer’s premiscs for any purpose other than that for which the Company provides
it, without the prior written consent of the Company.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

2.10 Assignment

2.10.1 Company may, without obtaining any further consent from Customer, assign any of its
rights, privileges or obligations under this tariff to any subsidiary, parent company or
affiliate ol Company; pursuant to any sale or transfer of substantially all the business of
Company; or pursuant to any financing, merger or reorganization of Company.

2.10.2 Customer may, upon prior written consent of Company, assign its rights, privileges or
+ obligations under this tariff to any subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of Customer;
pursuant to any sale or transfer of substantially all the business of Customer; or pursuant
to any f{inancing, merger or reorganization of Customer. Any attempt of Customer to
make any assignment, transier, or disposition of its rights, privileges or obligations under

this tariff without the consent of Company shall be null and void.

2.11 License, Apency or Partnership

No license, express or implied, is granted by Company to Customer by virtue of an agreement for
the furnishing of scrvice hercunder. Neither Customer nor any joint or authorized users shall
represent or otherwise indicate to its customers or others that the Company jomntly participates in
the Customer’s joint user’s services. The relationship between Company and Customer shall not
be that of partners or agents for one or the other, and shall not be deemed to constitute a
partnership or agency agreement, unless such relationship or agreement is expressly agreed to in
writing by both Company and Customer.
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

Proprietarv Information

Neither Company nor Customer or any joint or authorized user shall disclose any plans, drawings,
trade secrets or other proprietary information of the other party which is made known in the
course of the furnishing of service hercunder, except as may be required by law, without prior
written consent.

Promotions

Company reserves the right, from time to time, o provide promotional offerings. Company will
notify Commission prior to cifective date of promotions.

2.14  Waiver of Nonrecurring Charges

Company rescrves the right to waive nonrecurring charges for moves, additions, and deletions.

2.15  Contested Charges

All bills are presumced accurate, and shall be binding on the Customer unless objcction is received
by the Company in the timeframe specified in Section 2.5.2.4 In the event that a billing dispute
between the Customer and the Company for service furnished to the Customer cannot be settled
with mutual satisfaction, the Customer may take the lollowing course of action:

2.15.1 First, the Customer may request, and the Company will provide, an in-depth review of
the disputed amount. (The undisputed portion and subsequent bills must be paid on a
timely basis or the scrvice may be subject to disconnection.)

2.15.2 Sccond, if there is still a disagreement about the disputed amount after investigation and
review by the Company, the Customer may {ile an appropriate complaint with the
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission. The address of the Commission is:

North Office Building
Harrisburg, PA 17120
(717) 787-1740

2,16 Taxes

State and local sales, use and similar taxes, including gross receipts taxcs, are billed as separate
items and are not included in the quoted rates for local exchange or long distance
tclccommunications scrvice,
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SECTION 3 - APPLICATION OF RATES

3.1 Introduction

The regulations set forth in this section govern the application of rates for services contained in
other sections of this tariff.

3.2 Charges Based on Duration of Use

Where charges for a scrvice are specified based on the duration of use, such as the duration of a
telephone call, the following rules apply:

3.2.1

322

323

324

325

Calls are measured in durational increments identified for cach service. All calls that arc
fractions of a measurement increment are rounded-up to the next whole unit.

Timing on complcled calls begins when the call is answered by the called party.
Answering is determined by hardware answer supervision in all cases where this
signaling is provided by the terminating local carrier and any intermediate carrier(s).
Timing for operator service person-to-person calls start with completion of the
conneclion to the person called or an acceptable substitute, or to the PBX station called.

Timing terminates on all calls when the calling party hangs up or the Company's network
receives an off-hook signal from the terminating carrier.

Calis originating in onc time period and terminating in another will be billed
proportion to the rates in cffect during different segments of the call.

All times refer 1o local time.

33 Rates Based Upon Distance

Where charges {or a service are specified based upon distance, the following rules:

3.3.1

Distance between two points is measured as airline distance between the rate centers of
the originating and terminating telephone lines. The rate center is a set of geographic
coordinates, as referenced in the Local Exchange Routing Guide issucd by Bellcore,
associated with each NPA-NXX combination (where NPA is the area code and NXX is
the first three digits of a seven-digit telephone number). Where there is no telephone
number associated with an access line on the Company's network (such as a dedicated
800 or WATS access line), the Company will apply the rate center of the Customer's
main billing telephone number.
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SECTION 3 - APPLICATION OF RATES (Cont’d)

33 Rates Based Upon Distance (Cont’d)

3.3.2  Theairline distance between any two rate centers is determined as follows:

3.3.2.1 Obtain the "V" (vertical) and "H" (horizontal) coordinates for cach rate
center from the Bellcore Local Exchange Routing guide rcfercnced in
Section 3.3.1.

3322 Computc the difterence between the "V" coordinates of the two rate centers;
and the difference between the two "H" coordinates.

3323 Square each difference obtained in 3.3.2.2 above.

3324 Add the square of the "V" difference and the square of the "H" difference
obtained in 3.3.2.3 above,

3325 Divide the sum of the squares by 10. Round to the next higher whole
nuwmber i any {raction is oblained,

3326 Obtain the square root of the whole number result obtained above. Round to
the next higher whole number if any fraction is obtained. This is the airline
mileage.

3327 FORMULA =
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SECTION 4 - SERVICE AREAS

Basic rates charged for services are listed below:

4.1 Exchange Access Service Areas

Exchange Access Services arc provided (pursuant to Section 5.1 and Scction 7.1) in the following

arcas:

Exchange Arcas In Which
Basic Local Calling Service Is Available'

Alexandria
Aliquippa
Allentown
Altoona
Ambridge
Annville
Ashland
Austin
Avella
Avis
Avondale
Baden
Barnesboro
Bath
Beaver Falls
Bedminster
Belle Vernon
Belicfonte
Beliwood
Berwick
Bessemer
Bethlehem

Big Run
Black Lick
Blairsvilie
Bloomsburg
Boalsburg
Bolivar
Bradford
Brownsville
Buckingham
Burgeltstown
Bushkill
California
Canonsburg
Carbondale
Carrolltown
Carversville
Catasauqua
Catawissa
Center Point
Centre Hall
Charleroi
Cherry Tree

Chester Springs
Clairton
Clarion
Claysville
Clearfield
Clymer
Collegeville
Conncllsville
Coudersport
Cresco
Cresson
Curwensville
Danville
Donora
Downingtown
Doylestown
Dauphin
Dawson
Derry

Donora
Downingtown
Doylestown

Dublin
DuBois
Eagle

East Palesting
Easton
Ebensburg
Eldred
Elizabeth
Ellwood City
Elysburg
Endeavor
Lixton
Fairchance
Farmington
Fayette City
Finleyville
Fleetwood
Frackville
Freeland
Frenchville
Galeton
Girardville

Glen Campbell
Glenmoore
Glenwillard
Green Lane
Greensburg
Greenville
Grove City
Halifax
Hamburg
[Hamlin
Harleysville
Harrisburg
Hastings
IHawley
Hazleton
Hellertown
Herminie
Hollidaysburg
Homer City
Honesdale
Honey Brook
Hookstown

Full service versions of the Company’s Exchange Access Services will be provided to Customers at

Customer premiscs located in these areas pursuant to this tariff to the extent that: (a) the Company has in place and
available network facilities extending to such premises; or (b) the Customer’s premises is served by the Company’s
wire center at which the Company maintains a collocation arrangement and 1s able to reasonably employ such
arrangement to interconnect to unbundled exchange link facilitics that the Company, in its sole discretion, judges to
be of a type, grade, technical specification, quality and quantity sufficient to, and offered under conditions consistent
with, the delivery of such services.
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SECTION 4 - SERVICE AREAS (Cont’d)

4.1 Exchange Access Service Areas {Cont’d)
Houtzdale McClellandtown  Northumberland Schuylkill Haven ~ West Alexander
Hummelstown — McDonald Numidia Schwenksville West Chester
Huntingdon McMurray Oakdale Scottdale West Grove
Imperial McVeylown Olyphant Scranton West Middlesex
Indiana Mechanicsburg Orwigsburg Shamokin West Newlon
Jeannetic Mendenhall Osceola Mills Sharon Westtown
Jermyn Mercer Oxford Sharpsville While Iaven
Jersey Shore Middletown Palmyra Shenandoah Wilkes-Barre
Jim Thorpe Midland Paris Slatington Williamsport
Kane Millersville Parkesburg Smethport Winburne
Kemblesville Millhetm Parkwood Smithfield Waalrich
Kennett Square  Millville Patton Smiths Ferry Wycombe
Kingston Milton Pennsburg Smock Wyoming
Kulpmont Minersville Perkasie Snow Shoe Yardley
Kutztown Mongcssen Perryopolis Souderton Youngsville
Lake Ariel Monongahela Philipsburg Spring Mills Youngwood
Lake Como Moosic Phocenixville Springdale Zelienople
Lancaster Morrisville Pittston Springtown
Landenbery Mortonville Plumsteadville State College
Landisville Moscow Plymouth Strasburg
Lansdale Mount Carmel Point Marion Stroudsburg
Latrobe Mount Gretna Port Allegany Sugar Grove
Lebanon Mount Jewett Portage Sunbury
Leeper Mount Pleasant Pottstown Sykesville
Lebighton Mount Pocono Pottsville Tamaqua
L.enape Mount Union Pughtown Tarentum
Lewistown Mountaintop Punxsutawney Taylor
L.igonier Nanticoke Quakertown Tidioute
Line Lexington  Nazarcth Reading Tionesta
Lock Haven Nesquchoning Renovo Tyrone
Lords Valley New Castle Republic Ulysses
Lowellville New Florence Rew Uniontown
Ludlow New Hope Reynoldsville Unionville
Mahaffey New Kensington Riegelsville Upper Black Eddy
Mahanoy City New Philadelphia  Rochester Wallenpaupack
Marchand New Salem Roulette Wampum
Marienville Newfoundland Royersford Warren
Marion Center  Newtown Russell Washington
Mason town North Wales Saint Clair Washingtonville
McAdoo Northampton Saxton Weatherly
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SECTION 4 — SERVICE AREAS (Cont’d)

4.2 Expanded Local Calling Areas

Expanded Local Calling Arcas® arc associated with each Exchange Access Service provided
pursuant to Scction 5.1 and Section 7.1. Exchange Acccss Services in the lollowing exchanges
shall have the following Expanded Local Calling Arcas:

Expanded Local Calling Arca Exchanges

Ambridge Elizabeth MecMurray Westlown
Buckingham Finleyville Newtown
Center Point Herminie North Wales
Chester Springs  Landisville Phoenixville
Doylesiown Line Lexington West Newton
: Rates and rate plans for Local and Intral. ATA Calling Arca calls placed over Company-provided Exchange

Accuess Services are sct forth in Section 7.
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SECTION 5 - EXCHANGE ACCESS SERVICE

5.1 General
Exchange Access Scrvice provides a Customer with a telephonic connection to, and a unique
telephone number address on the public swilched telecommunications network. Each Exchange
Access Service enables users to:
5.1.1  receive calls from other stations on the public switched telecommunications network;
5.1.2  access other services offered by the Company as sct forth in this tariff;
5.1.3  access cerlain interstate and international calling services provided by the Company;
5.1.4  access (at no additional charge) the Company's operators and business office for service
related assistance;
5.1.5 access (at no additional charge) emergency services by dialing 0- or 9-1-1; and
5.1.6 access services provided by other common carriers that purchase the Company's
Switched Access services as provided under the Company's Federal and State tariffs, or
that maintain other types of traffic exchange arrangements with the Company.
Each Exchange Access Scrvice is available on a "Full" service basis, whereby scrvice is
delivered to a demarcation/connection block at the customer's premiiscs.
The following Exchange Access Services are offered:
Basic Line Service
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SECTION 5 - EXCHANGE ACCESS SERVICE (Cont’d)

5.2 Basic Line Service

Basic Linc Scrvice provides a Customer with a single, voice-grade telephonic communications
channel that can be used to place or receive one call at a time. Basic Lines are provided for
connection of Customer-provided single station sets or facsimile machines to the public switched
teleccommunications network. Lach Basic Line may be configured into a hunt group with other
Company-provided Basic Lincs.  Each Basic Line is provided with the following standard
features which arc set forth in Section 9.11 of the tariff.

Non-recurring and monthly recurring rates per Basic Line apply as follows:

Non-Recurring Monthiy Recurring
On-Net Services
Basic Local
Exchange Service
Flat Rate Service
-Iirst Line $75.00 $36.93
-Fach Additional Linc $35.00 $12.00
Measurcd Rate Service
-First Minute $0.031
-Each Additional Minute $0.013
Expanded Local
Exchange Scrvice
Flat Rate Service
-First Line $75.00 $41.23
-Each Additional Line $35.00 $i2.00
Measured Rate Service
-First Line $0.031
-Each Additional Line $0.013
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SECTION 6 - EXCHANGE ACCESS OPTIONAL FEATURES

6.1 Dircctory Listings

For cach Customer of Company-provided Exchange Access Scrvice(s), the Company shall
arrange for the listing of the Customer's main billing telephone number’ in the directory(ics)
published by the dominant Local Exchange Carrier in the arca at no additional charge. At a
Customer's option, the Company will arrange for additional listings at the lollowing rates:

Non-Recurring Monthly Recurring

Each Additional Listing: N/A N/A

’ For Customers with multiple premiscs served by the Company, the Company will arrange for a listing of the

main billing telephone number at cach premise.
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SECTION 6 - EXCHANGE ACCESS OPTIONAL FEATURES {Cont*d)

6.2 Main Number Retention

6.2.1  Descriplion

Main Number Retention is an optional feature by which a new Cuslomer, who was
formally a customer ol another certificated local exchange carrier at the same premiscs
location, may rctain its main telephone numbers and main fax numbers for use with the
Company-provided Exchange Access Services. Main Number Retention service is only
available in arcas where the Company maintains some form of number retention
arrangement with the Customer's former local exchange carrier.

Monthly recurring and non-recurring charges apply per retained number. Rates for
retained numbers may vary {rom arca to arca.

6.2.2 Rales

Non-Recurring Monthly Recurring
per retained
Vanity number RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE
Issued: July 19, 2001 Effective: August 20, 2001

By: Tricia Breckenridge
Exceutive Vice President of Business Development
KMC Data, Inc.
1755 North Brown Road
Eawrenceville, GA 30043
DCOL/ODIENMII51523.1




—»—

KMC DATA, LLC Qlephonc Pa. P.U.C. Tariff No. |

Scctlion 7
Original Sheet No. |

SECTION 7 - LOCAL CALLING SERVICE

7.1 Description

Local Calling Service provides a2 Customer with the ability to originate calls from a Company-
provided access line to all other stations on the public switched telephone network” bearing the
designation of any central office exchanges, areas, and zones included in the Customer's local
calling arca.

7.1.1  Basic Local Exchange Scrvice - This calling service allows the Customer unlimited
access to all other stations on the public switched tclephone network within the
customer’s Basic Local Calling Arca.’® All calls to destinations outside the Basic Local
Calling Area but within the samec state and LATA will be charged the IntralL ATA rates.

7.1.2  Area Calling Local Exchange Scrvice - This calling service allows the Customer limited
access to all other stations on the public switched telephone network within the
Customer's Basic Local Calling Area. Additional calls to the Basic Local Calling Area
will be charged as specificd in Scction 7.2.1.1 following. All calls 1o the Arca Local
Calling Area’ will be charged a per minute access charge as specified in Scction 7.2.1.2
following. All calls to destinations outside the Arca Calling Local Calling Area but
within the same state and LATA will be charged the IntralL ATA rates.

! Except calls to other telephone companies’ caller paid information services (c.g. NPA 900, NXX

976, etc.). Calls to those numbers and other numbers used for caller-paid information services will be
blocked by the Company’s centralized switching facility.

’ As specified in Bell Atlantic-PA’s tarifl in cffect and as amended from time-to-time.

Issued: July 19, 2001 Effective: August 20, 2001
By: Tricia Breckenridge
Executive Vice President of Business Development
KMC Data, Inc.
1755 North Brown Road

Lawrenceville, GA 30043
DCCHODIENM/151523.1




—»—

KMC DATA, LLC Qlcphonc Pa. P.U.C. Tarilf No. |

Section 7
Original Sheet No. 2

SECTION 7 - LOCAL CALLING SERVICE (Cont’d)

7.1 Description (Cont’d)

7.1.2  Area Calling Local Exchange Service (Cont’d)

7.1.2.1 Time Periods

Day and Night/Weckend rates apply as follows:

To (but
Rates From not including) Days_Applicable
Day 9:00 A.M. 9:00 P.M. Mon. - Fri.

Night/Wc¢ekend All other days, times, and holidays.

Holidays include New Year's Day (January 1}, Independence Day (July 4),
Labor Day (the first Monday in September), Thanksgiving Day (the fourth
Thursday in November), and Christmas Day (December 25).
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7.2 Rates

SECTION 7 - LOCAL CALLING SERVICE (Cont’d)

The rates set forth in this section apply to all dircet dialed local calls. For operator-assisted local
calls, the opcrator charges listed in Section 9.1.3 apply in addition to the charges listed below.

7.2.1  Usage Charpes - Per minute charges apply for cach call. Timing is in whelc minute
increments, with a minimum charge of one minute per call.
In addition to the line charges, Customers must choose a usage package from the
following options. A combination of usage packages is not allowed on the same
premiscs on the same account.
7.2.1.1 Option 1-Area Calling Service
With this usage package, Customers are billed for all local calls in
accordance with the usage schedule following. Local usage charges for calls
will not exceed $30.00 per business line.
72.1.2 Option 2 - Area Calling Service with Discount
This option includes a $6.00 usage allowance on all calls. Local calls are
billed in accordance with the usage schedule following. Billed usage
charges, above the allowance, will not exceed $24.00 per business line. The
following charge is in addition te the business line rate.
Arca Calling Service with Discount $6.00
The following usage rates are applicable for all local calls and are based on airline
milcage.
DAY EVENING NIGHT/WEEKEND
. o _ Each
Rate Initial Each Addt’l  Initial Each Addt’l  Initial Addt’]
Milcape Period Minute Period Minule Period Minute
0-8 $.0280 $.0160 $.0168 $.0090 $.0112 $.0064
9-13 0.0400 0.0200 0.0240 0.0120 0.0160 0.0080
14-18 0.0510 0.0270 0.0306 0.0162 0.0204 0.0108
19 -23 0.0600 0.0320 0.0360 0.0192 0.0240 0.0128
24-28 0.0730 0.0370 0.0438 0.0222 0.0292 0.0148
29-38 0.0840 0.0440 0.0504 0.02064 0.0336 0.0176
39 -48 0.0950 0.0480 0.0570 0.0288 0.0380 0.0192
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SECTION 7 - LOCAL CALLING SERVICE (Cont’d)

7.2 Rates (Cont’d)

7.2.1 Usage Charges (Cont’d)

7.2.1.3 On-Net Usage Calling Plan

Per minute charges apply for each call.

In addition to the line charges, Customers must choose a usage package. A
combination of usage packages is not allowed on the samc premises on the
same account.

With this usage package, Customers arc billed for all local calls in
accordance with the usage schedule following. Local usage charges for calls
will not exceed $24.00 per business line.

The following usage rates are applicable for all local calls and are based on
airline mileage.

Milcage Bands Per Minute Charge

A (0 miles) RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE
B (1-10 milcs) RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE
C (11-16 miles) RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE
D (17-22 miles) RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE
E (23-30 nutles) RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE
F (31-40) RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE
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8.1

SECTION 8 - INTRALATA TOLL PRESUBSCRIPTION

IntralLATA Toll Presubscription

8.1.1

Description

IntralLATA Presubscription is a procedure whereby a Customer that designates to the
Company the IntralLATA Toll Provider (“ITP”} that the Customer wishes to be the
Carrier of choice for intraLATA toll Calls. Such Calls are automatically dirccied to the
designated Carrier without the need to use carrier access codes or additional dialing to
dircet the Calls to the designated Carrier. IntraLATA presubscription does not prevent a
Customer who has presubscribed to an IntraLATA toll Carrier from using carrier access
codes or additional dialing to direct Calls to an alternative intralLATA toll carrier on a per
Call basis.

Lach Carrier will have one or more access codes assigned to it for various types of
service. When a Customer scleets a carrier as its preferred intraLATA toll provider, only
one access code of that Carrier may be incorporated into the switching system of the
Company, thus permitting access to that Carrier by the Customer without dialing an
access code. Should the same Customer wish to use other scrvices of the same Carrier, it
will be necessary for the Customer to dial the necessary access code(s) to reach that
Carricr’s additional service(s).

An ITP must use Feature Group D (“FGD”) Switched Access Service to qualify as an
intralLATA toll provider unless prior arrangements have been made with or by the
Company. [TPs must submit an Access Service Request (“ASR™) prior to the intraLATA
toll presubscription conversation date or prior to the date on which the Carrier proposes
1o begin participating in intraLATA toll presubscription, unless prior arrangements have
been made with the Company.

Sclection of an intralL ATA toll provider by a Customer is subject to the following terms
and conditions:

Issued: July 19, 2001 Effective: August 20, 2001

By: Tricia Breckenridge
Executive Vice President of Business Development
KMC Data, Inc.
1755 North Brown Road
Lawrenceville, GA 30043

DCOH/GDENM/351523.1




—»—

KMC DATA, LLC

'clcphonc Pa. P.U.C. Tanff No. |
Scction 8
Original Sheet No. 2

SECTION 8 - INTRALATA TOQLL PRESUBSCRIPTION (Cont’d)

8.1 IntralLATA Toll Presubscription (Cont’d)

8.1.2 [Free Initial Presubseription Selection Periods

8.1.2.1

8.122

Existing Customers

The Company has no existing customers, as all of its Customers will have
subscribed for the Company’s local cxchange service afier the
presubscription implementation date.

New Iind User Customers

New ¢nd user Customers or Customers that order an additional line will be
asked to select a primary ITP when they place an order flor the Company’s
Local Exchange Service. If a customer cannot decide upon an intraLATA
toll carricr at the time, the Company may exiend a 30-day period following
completion of the service request to make an intraLATA PIC choice without
charge. In the interim, the Customer will be assigned a “No-PIC’ status and
will have to dial an access code to make intraLATA toll Calls.
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SECTION 8 - INTRALATA TOLL PRESUBSCRIPTION (Cont’d)

8.1 IntralLATA Toll Presubscription (Cont’d)

8.1.2  Free Initia] Presubscription Sclection Periods (Cont’d)

8.1.2.2 New IEnd User Customers (Cont’d)

Initial free sclections available to new end users Customers are:

- Designate an I'TP as their primary Carrier, thereby requiring no access
code to access that ITP’s service. Other Carriers are accessed by
dialing 10XXX, 101 XXX, or other required codes.

- Choose no Carrier as a primary Carricr, thus requiring 10XXX or
101XXX code dialing to access all I'TPs. This choice can be made by
dircctly contacting the Company. In addition, new end user Customers
that do not seleet a preferred Carrier will be assigned a “No-PIC”
status.

Following a new end user Customer’s initial frec sclection, any
subsequent selection made following implementation of intraLATA
toll presubscription is subject to a nonrecurring charge as sct forth in
Section 8.2 herein.
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8.1

SECTION 8 - INTRALATA TOLL PRESUBSCRIPTION (Cont’d)

IntralLATA Toll Presubscription (Cont’d)

813

ITP Feature Group D Discontinuance

If an ITP clects to discontinue FGD service after implementation of the intraLATA toll
presubscription option, the ITP is obligated to contact, in writing, all end users who have
sclected the canceling ITP as their preferred intraLATA toll provider. The ITP must
inform its end user customers that it is canceling its FGD service, request that the end
user customer select a new ITP, and state that the canceling ITP will pay the PIC change
charge in accordance with the provisions ol this tarillf. The ITP must provide writien
notification to the Company that this activity has taken place.

Following the ITP’s discontinuance of service, the Company will bill the canceling I'TP a
change charge for cach end user customer that is designated to the ITP at the time of its

discontinuance of scrvice.

Unauthorized PIC Change Charpes

An unauthorized PIC change is a change in the presubscribed intraLATA toll provider
that the end user Customer denies authorizing. PIC disputes for end user Customers arc
resolved through an investigative process similar to that sct forth in Section 2.15 of this
tarifT.

If an unauthorized change in intraLATA presubscription occurs, the ITP making the
unauthorized change will be assessed a charge for unauthorized change in presubscription
to compensate the Company for costs incurred. In addition, the ITP will be assessed the
applicable PIC Change Charge for rcturning the end user to their preferred intraLATA
toll provider,

If an unauthorized change in intraLATA toll presubscription and interLATA
presubscription occurs at the same time, on the same line, and the presubscribed ITP is
the same carrier for intraLATA and interLATA, unauthorized and PIC Change Charges
as provided herein and in the Company’s corresponding F.C.C. Tariff will apply.
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8.1

8.2

SECTION 8 - INTRALATA TOLL PRESUBSCRIPTION (Cont’d)

Intral.ATA Toll Presubscription (Cont’d)

8.1.5

Rate

Equal Access Recovery Charpe

The Equal Access Recovery Charge is a charge 1o recover the costs that the Company has
dircctly incurred in conmection with the implementation of intralLATA toll
presubscription. The Equal Access Recovery Charge is billed on a competitively-neutral
basis to all intraLATA toll providers.

End User Customer Charge Discrepanc

When a discrepancy is determined regarding an end user Customer’s designation of a
preferred intralLATA toll Carrier, the following rules will apply, depending upon the
situation described:

- A signed letter of authorization takes precedence over any order other than
subscquent, direct customer contact with the Company.

- If an end user Customer denies requesting a change in intraLATA  toll
presubsceription as submitted by an ITP, and the ITP is unable to producce a Ietter
of authorization signed by the end user Customer, the ITP will be assessed all
applicable change charges tariffed hercin. The ITP will also be assessed the
intraLATA toll presubscription change charge as specified herein, which was
previously bilied to the end user.

Verification of Orders

Neither the I'TP nor the Company shall submit a PIC change order gencrated by outbound
telemarketing or other sales practices unlcss and until the order has {irst been confirmed
in accordance with the F.C.C."s current anti-slamming practices and procedurcs.

Per Charge: $5.00
(after initial free sclection)
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SECTION 9 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES

9.1 Operator Services
9.1.1  Description

Operator Handled Calling Services are provided to Customers and Uscers of Company-
provided Exchange Access Services, and to Customers and Users of exchange access
lines.

9.1.2  Definitions

Person--Person:  Calls completed with the assistance of a Company operator to a
particular person, station, department, or PBX cxtension specified by the calling party.
Charges may be billed to the Customer's commercial credit card and/or LEC calling card,
calling station, called station, or a designated third-party station. Calls may be dialed
with or without the assistance of a Company operator.

Station-to-Station: Refers to calls other than person-to-person calls billed 1o either the
end user's commercial credit card and/or nonproprictary calling card. Calls may be dialed
with or without the assistance of a Company operator. Collect calls to coin telephones
and transfers of charges to third telephones which are coin telephones will not be
accepted.

Operator Dialed Charge: The end user places the call without dialing the destination
number, although the capability to do it himself exists. The end user will dial "0" for
local calls and "00" for long distance calls and then request the operator to dial the called
station.

Billed to Non-Proprietary Calling Card: Refers to calls that are dialed by the customer in
accordance with standard dialing instructions and billed to a non-proprictary calling card
issued by another carrier.
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KMC DATA, LLC

SECTION 9 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES (Cont’d)

9.1 Operator Services (Cont’d)

9.1.3  Rales

Local cxchange and IntraLATA calls may be placed on an Opcrator Assisted basis.
Usage charges for Operator Assisted calls are-the same as those sct forth in Section 7,
preceding.  For Operator Assisted calls to Busy Linc Verification and Interrupt, or
Dircctory Assistance, the surcharges specified in Section 9.2.3 and Section 9.1.3 will
apply in addition to any applicable Operator charges.

In addition to the usage charges identified above, the following operator-assisted charges
will apply:

Per Call Charges

Person-to-Person (Customer Dialed) $3.00
Station-to-Station {Customer Dialed) $2.00
Opcrator Dialed Charge $2.00

(applics in addition to other
operator charges)

Billed to Non-Proprictary Calling Card $0.60
(additional surcharge)

Partially Automated Surcharge

(applies in addition to other N/A
operator charges)

Dircclory Assistance $0.40%*

Dircctlory Assistance Call Completion Service $0.30

* This charge will be assessed after the two free Directory Assistance calls per
month have bee exhausied by the Customer.
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SECTION 9 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES (Cont’d)

9.2 Busv Line Verifv and Line Interrupt Service

9.2.1  Descriplion
Upon request of a calling party the Company will verify a busy condition on a called line.

92.1.1 The operator will determine if the line is clear or in use and report to the
calling party.

9212 The operator will interrupt the call on the called line only if the calling party
indicates an emergency and requests interruption,

9.2.2 Regulations
9.2.2.1 A charge will apply when:
92.2.1.1  The operator verifics that the line is busy with a call in progress.
9.2.2.1.2  The operator verifics that the line is avatlable for incoming calls.
9.2.2.1.3  The operator verifies that the called number is busy with a call in
progress and the customer requests inlerruption.  The operator
will then interrupt the call, advising the called party the name of

the calling party. One charge will apply for both verification and
interruption.
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SECTION 9 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES (Cont’d)

9.2 Busy Line Verify and Line Interrupt Service (Cont’d)

9.2.2  Regulations (Cont’d)

9222

9223

9224

923 Rates

No charge will apply:

9.2.2.2.1  When the calling party adviscs that the call is to or [rom an
official public emergency agency.

92222 Under conditions other than those specified in 10.2.2.1
preceding.

Busy Verification and Interrupt Service is furnished where and to the extent
that facilities permit.

The Customer shall identify and hold the Company harmless against all
claims that may arise from cither party to the interrupted call or any person.

Busy Line¢ Verify Service $2.00
{each request)

Busy Linc Verify and Busy Line $2.00
Interrupt Service (cach request)
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93 Service Implementation

9.3.1 Description

Abscnt a promotional offering, service implementation charges will apply to new scrvice
orders or to orders to change existing service.

9.3.2 Rates

Resold On-Net
Non-Recurring Non-Recurring
) per service order N/A $30.00

94 Restoration of Service

94.1 Descriplion

A restoration ‘charge applics to the re-establishment of service and facilities suspended
because of nonpayment of bills and is payable at the time that the re-cstablishment of the
scrvice and facilitics suspended is arranged for. The restoration charge does not apply
when, after disconncction of service, service is later re-cstablished.

9.4.2 Rates

Resold On-Net
Non-Recurring Non-Recurring
per occasion N/A $24.00
Issucd: July 19, 2001 Effective: August 20, 2001
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9.5 Charges for Connceting or Changing Service
Resold On-Net
Non-Recurring Non-Recurring
Line Connection Charge
Applics per exchange aceess line or trunk,
First Line N/A $35.00
Additional Line (each) N/A $35.00
Line Change Charge
Applies per exchange aceess line or trunk
FirstELinc N/A £25.20
Additional Line (each) N/A $25.20
Sccondary Service Charge
Applics per customer request
Each, RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

|
Premises Work Charge
IFirst [5-minute increment or [raction thercol

Per increment N/C

Each Additional |5-minute incremtent or fraction thercof
|
Per inérement N/C

Issued: July 19, 2001 Effective; August 20, 2001
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9.6 Custom Calling Service

[RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE]

9.7 Caller Identification B]ucking_ — Per Call

9.7.1  Description

Permits a Custoimer, on a per Call basis, to control the disclosure of their name and/or
telephone number to a Called Station that subscribes to a Caller [dentification service.
The Customer may activate this service by dialing *67 from a touch-tone telephonc
before cach Calll The dialing of this code temporarily changes the status indicator of the
telephone number from public to private, thus preventing delivery of the Customer’s
name and/or Ic!ebhonc number. This action must be repeated each time a Call is made to
prevent the disclosure of a Calling Party’s telephone number and/or name. If the Called
Party has a display device, a privacy indication will appear instead of the Calling Party’s
telephone number. Per Call Blocking will be provided on a universal basis to all eligible
Customers, and will be available free of charge. Because this is a Customer-controlled
feature, the Company cannot guarantee that this service will be successful.

972 Rales ,

Per Call: $0.00
Per Line:
I* instance: $0.00
Recurring mmlnhly charge: $0.00
Issued: July 19, 2001 Effective: Aupust 20, 2001
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9.8 Lifeline Service

9.8.1 Description

Lifeline Service, is a Residential offering for low income customers who qualify for this
service in accordance with the following Regulations. NOTLE: Customers who qualify
for Lileline Scrv'lcc may also qualily for Link Up America Service,

]

9.8.2 Regulations

b

9.8.2.1 Where the Company provides Residential service, Lifcline Service is
available to qualified Residential customers and is provided via a Residential
individual Dial Tone Line. Lifeline Service is imited to only one Service
per qualified Custonier or houschold. A potential Lifeline Customer who has
an outstanding final bill for telephone service which is less than four (4)
years old must pay the entirc balance of any Basic Service final bili before
being eligible for Lifeline Service.

9.8.22 Residential Lifeline Service consists of the following tariffed standard
features and optional Customer clected services at the applicable rates,
charges and regulations for each feature and service provided:

1. 'One-Party Residential Unlimited Service and Local Measured Serviee,
if available;

:One Directory Listing (standard only);

Non-Published or Non-Listed Telephone Number Scrvice;

‘Access to Dircctory Assistance Scrvice;

Touch Tone Calling Service;

Access to Message Toll Telephone Scrvice and Optional Dial Station-
i'o-Slalion Calling Plan Services. However, the Residential Lifeline
Dial Tone Linc will be blocked from dial station access to 976/556/900
and any other type of Audiotex Scrvice,

Access to Operator Services;

Voluntary Toll Restriction Option;

Link Up America (if cligible);

0. Access to 800/888 Scrvices;

A

= 0 00

Issucd: July 19, 2001 Effective: August 20, 2001
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9.10  Lifeline Service (Cont’d)

0.10.2 Regulations (C(%nl’d)
9.1022  (Cont’d)

11., Access to Call Trace;

12, Access to Alerting and Reporting Systems (911 dialing);

13.| Access to the Pennsylvania Telecommunications Relay Service;

14. -+ Cailer ID Per-Call and Per-Line Blocking;

15.  One optional vertical service (when a Lifeline Customer subscribes to
the Company’s or a private vendor’s voice mail service as the optional

+ vertical service, a second vertical service may be added if nccessary 1o

, make the voice mail service function).

9823 An Applicant for Lifeline Service must be a current participant in one of the
following Pennsylvania Department of Public Welfare (“DPW™) programs,
federal public housing, and be able 1o provide proof of income which is at or
bclow 150% of the annual United States Census Bureau Poverty Level
Guidelines For All States (Except Alaska and Hawaii) and the District ol
Columbia. Recertification of Lifeline Scrvice participants may be conducted
bicnnlial]y by the Company.

Pennsylvania Department of Public Wellare Lifeline Service Programs:

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (“TANI)
IGeneral Assistance (“GA")

ISupplemental Security Income (*SSI”)

Medicaid

food Stamps

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (“LIHEAP™)

A o

The DI’W Programs listed above must be certified by DPW. Such
cemhcatlon by DPW will be provided only when a DPW client requests
Lifeline Scrvice based on the client’s status as a participant in any of the
above 1 cligibility programs. Certification by DPW will be limited to
confirmation of the clicnt’s program status (i.c., participation or non-
participation). Participation by DPW is subject 1o cxecution of an agreecment
with DPW and the Company.

Issucd: July 19, 2001 Effective: August 20, 2001
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9,10  Lifeline Service (Cont’d)

9.10.2 Regulations (Cont’d)

9824

9.8.2.5

9.8.2.6

9.8.2.7

Liteline Service will be provided 1o a Customer only so long as such
Customer continues to mect the participation and certification guidelines
above, Al the time of initial establishment of Lifeline Scrvice, the Customer
agrecs to have his or her cligibility recertitied as determined by the
Company When the Company is notified by the Customer or determines
through recertification that the Lifeline Service Customer no longer is a
participant in the DPW programs above or otherwise low income eligible, the
Customer will be notified (by telcphone or letter) that the Lifeline Service
rate no longer is available. Within the stated Cuslomer notification period
(ten ‘(10) working days from the datc of the notification), the Customer can
contact the Company to negotiatc new Dial Tone Scrvice arrangements at
appllcablc tariff rates (no connection charges will apply for exisling services
or options retained). If the Customer does not contact the Company by the
end 'of the notification period, the Lifeline Service will be changed to
appllcablc Exchange Area Dial Tone Line service at cxisting tariff rates (no
(,onnchtmn charges will apply to existing services or options retained). Upon
contacting the Company, the Customer will have ten (10) working days to
complctc the low income certification or recertification process in order to
retain Lifeline Service,

A Lifeline Service Customer may not subscribe to any other type of
Residential Local Exchange Service at the same or other premises. Lifeline
Service will not be provided via Foreign Exchange or Foreign Central Office
Servi'ge arrangements.

Only services listed in 7.1.1 above will be provided to Lifeline Customers.
All other premium services offered by the Company will not be available.

Lifeline Service Customers are requircd to apply for the Link Up Amcrica
benefit when applicable.

Issued: July 19, 2001
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9.10  Lifeline Service (Cont’d)

0.10.2 Repulations (C(')nt’d)

98238

9.8.29

9.8.2.10

9.8.2.11

9.8.2.12

9.8.2.13

98214

9.8.2.15

9.8.2.10

Customer requested temporary suspension of Lifeline Service is not
permitted.

Lifcline Service does not apply 1o applicants who are full time students living
in university or college controlled housing.

The| Applicant must not be a dependent for Federal Income Tax purposcs,
unless he or she is 60 years ol age or older.

Lifeline Customers are subject to all Residential scrvice regulations in this
and pther tarifis of the Company.

Ilcsijciential Lifeline Service cannot be resold by the Lifcline Customer or the
Lifeline Customer’s agent(s}.

Resale of Lifeline Services are subject to wholesale rate obligations under
Scction 251(c)(4) of the Telccommunications Act of 1996.

|
All otutstanding charges, account balances and service restrictions apply to
existing Customers who qualify for Lifcline Scrvice. Service restrictions will
remain until the arrcarage(s) have been paid in full.

|
Any Lifeline Customer who has a past due balance of Toll Charges will be
treated with the appropriate Chapter 64 regulations. The Residential Toll
Restoral Charge applics to Lifeline Customers who are suspended for non-
paym"cnl and who subsequently pay their outstanding toll charges and request
toll restoral, If a Lifeline Customer is toll restricted for a sccond occurrence,
the company may, at its discretion, place the Lifeline Customer on permancent
toll restriction.
Toll-Blocking and Toll-Control services will be provided at no charge to
Lifclir‘{‘nc Service subscribers, to the extent that they are offered.
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9.9 Link Up America Service

9.9.1  Description

I
Link Up America is a program designed to promote universal scrvice by providing a
discount on scrvice connection charges for qualified low income Customers. NOTL:
Customers who' qualify for Link Up America Service also may qualify for Lifeline
Service.

9.9.2 Rcgulations

Where the Company provides Residential Service, Link Up America is available to
Residential Customers who meet the following cligibility criteria:

9921 The ‘App]lcant must not be a dependent for Federal Income Tax purposes,
unlcss he or she is sixty (60) years of age or older. The Applicant must self-
ccrtlfy this requirement.

|
99.22 An Applicant for Link Up America Service must be a current participant in
one of the following Pennsylvania DPW programs, federal public housing,
and be able to provide proof of income which is at or below 150% of the
annual United States Census Burcau Poverty Guidelines For All States
(Lxcepl Alaska and Hawaii) and the District of Columbia. Recertification of
Lifcline Service participants may be conducted bicnnially by the Company.

Pemnsylvania DPW Link Up America Service Programs:

1. Temporary Assistance for Necdy Families (“TANF™)
2. General Assistance (“GA™)
3. Supplemental Security Income (*SSI”)
4,  Medicaid
5. Food Stamps
6. lrow Income Home Encrgy Assistance Program (“LIHEAP™)
Issued: July 19, 2001 Etfective: August 20, 2001
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9.11  Link Up Amecrica Service {Cont’d)

9.11.2 Regulations

9.11.22 (Cont’d)
|
The DPW Programs listed above must be certified by DPW.  Such
ccx‘l?ﬁczlti011 will be provided only when a DPW client requests Link Up
America Service based on the client’s status as a participant in any of the
above eligibility programs. Certification by DPW will be limited to
confirmation of the client’s program status (i.c., participation or non-
participation). Participation by DPW is subject to ¢xecution of an agreement
with DPW and the Company.

9923 The'Link Up America discount is applicable to one access line (dial tone
line), when applied to the installation or rclocation of main service at a
Customer’s principal residence.

9924 Link: Up America applicants are not exempt from Teclephone Company
Deposit requirements,

9.9.2.5 Service will not be cstablished at discounted rates prior to receipt of
cerlifl"lcation. Service will be established at full service connection charges.
If certification is received within 60 days of original application, credit will
be applied to provide the Link Up America discount,
|

99206 The Link Up America discount docs not apply to Applicants who are full-
time students living in university or college-controlled housing.

Issued: July 19, 2001 | Effective: August 20, 2001
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9,10  Pennsvlvania Relay Services

3

9.10.1 Description
|

Pennsylvania Télecommunications Relay Service (*TRS”) cnables dcaf, hard-of-hcaring
or specech-impaired persons in the Statc of Pennsylvania who use a Text Telephone
(“T'T™) or similar device to communicate frecly with the hearing population not using
TTs and visa vérsa. The Company will provide access to TRS through arrangements
with other lelccémmunicalions carriers to enable Customers to access the TRS provider
to complete TRS Calls, The Company will impose a surcharge 1o all Customers at a level
to be determined, by the Commission.

6.10.2 Rates
Recurring montlﬂy surcharge:
Business Customers: $0.12

Residential Customers: $0.006

9.11 911 Emergency Services

9.11.1 Description

Emergency Tclcp'honc Service (911) allows Customers to reach emergency services,
including: policc,l fire and hospital medical services. Enhanced 911 Service has the
ability to selectively route an emergency Call to the primary 911 provider so that it
reaches the corrc%ct emergency service locatcd closest to the Caller. In addition,
Enhanced 911 (fE9117) Service cnables the Customer’s address and telephone

information to be displayed to the person handling the 911 Call.
1

The Company wil;1 provide access to 911 and E911 services on a toll-frec basis, to all
Customers in Pennsylvania, ecither dircctly or through arrangements with other

telecommunications carricrs.
\

0.11.2 General principles

The Company will 1comply with county/municipality 911 protocols.
)
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9.11 911 Emergency Serviccs (Cont’d)

9.11.3 Confidentiality

E911 information, which consists of the names, addresses and telephonce numbers of all
ielephone Custdmers is confidential, to the extent possible. The Company will relcase
such mformahon o the PSAP or Public Safety Agency, on a Call-by-Call basis, only
after an E911 Call has been received and for the sole purpose of responding to an
cmergeney Call in progress.

By dialing 911, the 911 Calling Party waives the privacy afforded by non-listed and non-
published scrvu.e 1o the extent that the telephone number and address associated with the
originating slatlon location are furnished to the PSAP on a Call-by-Call basis, once a 911
Call has been placcd The Company assumes no liability for any iniringement or
invasion of any right of privacy of any person or persons caused, or claimed to be caused,
directly or indirectly, by the installation, operation or failure to operate, maintenance,
removal, presence, condition, occasion or usc of 911 Telecommunications Service and
the features associated therewith, inciuding, but not limited to, the identification of the
lclephom numbc'r address or name associated with the telephone used by the party(ics)
accessing the 911 Telccommunications Service. The Customer must agree to releasc,
indemnify, deiend and hold harmless the Company for any such claims of infringement
or invasion of the' right of privacy.
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9.11 911 Emergency Services (Cont’d)

]
9.11.4 Liability and Indemnification

The offering of 911 Telecommunications Service is limited to the provision and usc of
the digits 9-1-1 as the Universal Emergency Telephone Number (Code). 911
Telecommunications Service is a one-way service only. The Company shall not incur
any liability, direct or indirect, 1o any person who dials, or attempts to dial 911, or to any
other person who may be affected by the dialing of the digits 911. The Company’s entire
liability arising c:)ut of the provision of 911 Telecommunications Service under this tarifT
shall be limited as sct forth in this Section and in Section 2.3 of this tarifT.

The Company does not undertake to answer and forward 911 Calls to responding
agencies, but only furnishes the usc of its facilitics to enable the Customer to access the
PSAP for his’her region and to enable emergency personnel to respond to 911 Calls on
the Customer’s premiscs. The Company shall have no responsibility or liability to either
the Customer or'the PSAP for responding to E911 or other emergency referral Calls.
That responsibility and any relating liability rests solely with the PSAP or Public Safety
Agency. |

911 Telccommunications Service is provided solely for the bencfit of the Customer. The
provision of 911 Telecommunications Service by the Company shall not be interpreted,
construed, or regarded as being for the beneflt of, or creating any Company obligation
toward, any third person or Iegal entity other than the Customer.

Each Customer agrees to relcase, indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Company
from any and all loss, claims, demands, suits, or liability whatsoever, whether suffered,
made, instituted, or asserted by the customer or by any other party or person, for any loss,
damage, or destruction of any property or personal injury, whether belonging to the
Customer or others, as a rcsult of the Customer’s use of 911 Telecommunications
Service.
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!
911 Emergency Scrvices (Cont’d)

9.13.4 Liability and Indemnification (Cont’d)

9.11.5

The Customer also agrees to release, indennify, and hold harmless the Company [or any
infringement or invasion of the right of privacy of any person, or persons caused or
claimed to havé been caused, directly or indirectly, by the installation, operation, failure
1o opcrate, maintenance, removal, presence, condition, occasion, or use of the 911
Telecommunications Service and the equipment associated therewith, including, but not
limited to, the identification of the telephone number used by the party or partics
accessing 911 Telecommunications Scrvice hercunder, and which arise out of the
negligenee or other wrongful act of the Company, the Customer, its user, agencies or
municipalitics, or the cmployees or agents of any onc of them.

By calling the Qll Telecommunications Service, the Calling Party gives the Company
consent to provide 911 information, consisting of the name, address, and telephone
number of the |Customer at the location from which the Call was made, to law
enforcement agchcics and other emergency service providers, on a Call-by-Call basis, (o
cnable thosc agencies and service providers to respond to emergency Calls for assistance.

Notwithstanding|any provision to the contrary, the Company is not liable for any special,
incidental, consequential, exemplary or punitive damages of any nature whatsocver.

The Company shall not have any liability or responsibility for any losses, costs, cxpenses,
claims, liabilities' or damages resulting from the Customer’s failure to comply with the
Company’s requircments regarding 911 Scrvice. The Company shall be indemnified by
the Customer i"rom any losses, costs, expenses, claims, liabilities or damages, including,
but not limited to; third party claims resulting from the Customer’s failure to comply with
the 911 Service réquirements set forth in this tariff.

Insurance

The Company shall, at its sole cost and expense, procure and maintain in full lorce and
effect, the types and minimum limits of insurance specified below. All insurance shall be
procurcd from reputable insurers authorized to do business in the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania. All insurance required herein shall be written on an “occurrence™ basis
and not a “claimsimadc™ basis. The insurance shall provide for at least thirty (30) days
prior writlen notice to be given in the event coverage is materially changed, canceled or
non-renewed. :
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SECTION 9 - MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES (Cont’d)

9.11 911 Emergency Services (Cont’d)

9.11.6 General Liability Insurance

9.11.6.1 Lin;it of Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit for
bodily injury (including death) and property damage liability; $1,000,000
personal and advertising injury; $2,000,000 general aggregate and
$1,000,000 aggregate for products and complcted operations.

9.11.6.2 Cov:cragc: Premises operations; blanket contractual liability; personal injury
liability (cmployee exclusion deleted); products and completed operations;
ind¢pendent contractors; cmployees and volunteers as additional insureds;
cross liability; and broad form property damage (including completed
operations).

0.11.7 Service Interruptions

|
The Company will give 911 service interruptions a priority one classification,

In the event of a'failure of all trunks to the 911 tandem, or in the event of a failure of the
911 tandem itself, the following procedure will be uscd:

A local default PSAP 10 digit emergency telephone number, provided by the local 911
agency, will be }routc index assigned and translated for forwarding 911 Calls to the
default PSAP. [fthe local PSAP does not make available a 10 digit emergency telephone
number, then the _Company will arrange with the ILEC to purchase a 10 digit number that
will directly connect the Company’s OMC to such local PSAP’s 911 operators in the
cvent of a tandeni or trunking failure. Upon notification of a tandem or trunking failure,
the OMC wili redirect the 911 Calls from the route index of the 911 trunks to the route
index of the Iocal default PSAP 10 digit ecmergency telephone number. This procedure
will allow the re- rouled 91! Calls to be competed over the PSTN.

9.11.8 911 Emeregency Sérvices Charge

Customers will be assessed a recurring monthly line item fee to compensate the Public
Safely Answering'agency (“PSAA™) for the provision of E911 Service. This fec may
vary, depending on the locality in which the Customer is located. The Company will
remit this fee, on almonthly basis, to the PSAA.
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SECTION 10 - SPECIAL ARRANGEMENTS

10.1 Special Construction

10.1.1 Basis for Charges

Where the Company furnishes a facility or service for which a rate or charge is not
specilied in the Company's tariffs, charges will be based on the costs incurred by the
Company and may include:

10.1.1.1  non:trecurring type charges;

10.1,1.2 rccu!rring type charges;

10.E.1.3  termination liabilitics; or

10.1.1.4  combinations thereof.
10.1.2 Termination Liability

To the extent that there is no other requirement for use by the Company, a termination
liability may apply for {acilitics specially constructed at the request of the customer.

10.1.2.1  The termination liability period is the estimated service life of the facilities
provided.

10.1.2.2  The amount of the maximum termination hability is equal to the cstimated
amounts for:
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SECTION 16 - SPECTAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

10.1  Special Construction (Cont’d)

10.1.2 Termunation Liability (Cont’d)

10.1.2.2  (Cont’d)

10.1.2.2.1 Cost installed of the facilities provided including cstimated costs
for rcarrangements of existing facilities and/or construction of
new facilitics as appropriate, less net salvage. Cost installed
includes the cost of:

(A) cquipment and materials provided or used,

(B) engincering, labor and supervision,

(C) transportation, and

(D) rights-of-way;
10.1.2.2.2 license preparation, processing, and rclated fees;
10.1.2.2.3 tariff preparation, processing, and related fecs;
10.1.2.2.4 cost of removal and restoration, where appropriate; and

10.1.2.2.5 any other identifiable costs related to the specially constructed or
rearranged facilities.

10.1.2.3  The applicable termination liability mcthod for calculating the unpaid
balance of a term obligation. The amount of such charge is obtained by
multiplying the sum of the amounts determined as sect forth in Section
10.1.2.2 preceding by a factor related to the unexpired period of liability and
ihe discount rate for return and contingencies. The amount determined in
scction 10.1.2.2 preceding shall be adjusted to reflect the redetermined
cstimate net salvage, including any reuse of the facilitics provided. This
product is adjusted to reflect applicable taxes.
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SECTION 10 - SPECIAL ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

10.2  Individual Case Basis (1CB) Arrangements

Arrangements will be developed on a case-by-case basis in response to a bona fide request from a
Customer or prospective Customer to develop a competitive bid for a scrvice offered under this
tariff. Rates quoted in response to such competitive requests may be different than those
specificd for such services in this tariff. ICR rates will be offered to the Customer in writing and

on a non-discriminatory basis.

10.3  Temporary Promotional Programs

The Company may establish temporary promotional programs whercin it may waive or reduce
non-recwiTing or recurring charges, to introduce present or potential Customers 1o a service not

previously reccived by the Customers.

Issued: July 19, 2001 Effective: August 20, 2001
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SECTION 11 - SERVICE TERRITORY MAPS

11.1  Service Territory Maps

Company intends to provide its telecommunications services in thosc areas sct forth in the maps
included in the tarilfs of Verizon — Pennsylvania, Inc., Verizon — North Inc., and United
Telephone Co. of Pennsylvania on file with the Commission.
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KMC DATA, LLC

1545 Route 2006
Suite 300
Bedminster, New Jersey 07921

INTEREXCHANGE RESELLER TOLL TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES TARIFF

This Tariff contains the description, regulations and rates for the furnishing of interexchange
reseller toll telecommunications services provided by KMC Data, LL.C, throughout the State of
Pennsylvania. The principal offices of KMC are located at: 1545 Route 206, Suite 300, Bedminster,
New Jersey 07921. This Tariff applies for service furnished within the Commeonwealth of
Pennsylvania, in the Philadelphia service territories of Bell Atlantic-PA, Zones 1, 2, 3 4, 14, 25, 26,
28, 30, 31, 33, 34; and in the Pittsburgh service territorics of Bell Atlantic-PA, Zones 1, 2,3, 4,6, 7,
8, 14, 22. This Tariff is on file with Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission, located at North
Office Building, Harrisburg, PA 17120 (717) 787-1740. Copies may be inspected, during normal
business hours, at the Company’s principal place of business in Bedminster, New Jersey. The
Company’s Tariff is in concurrence with all applicablé State and Federal Laws {including but not
limited to, 52 Pa. Code, 66 Pa. C.S., the Telecommunications Act of 1996}, and with the
Commissions applicable Rules and Regulations and Orders. Any provisions contained in this
Tariff that are inconsistent with the foregoing mentioned will be deemed inoperative and
superseded.

Issued: July 19, 2001 Effective: August 20, 2001

By: Tricia Breckenridge
Executive Vice President of Business Development
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1755 North Brown Road
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CHECK SHEET

The sheets listed below, which are inclusive of this tariff, are effective as of the date shown at the bottom
of the respective sheet(s). Original and revised sheets as named below comprise all changes from the
original tariff and are currently in effect as of the date indicated below.

Sheet Revision Sheet Revision
1 Original 31 Original
2 Qriginal 32 Original
3 Original 33 Original
4 Original 34 Original
5 Original 35 Original
6 Original 36 Original
7 Original 37 Original
g Original 38 Original
9 Original 39 Original
10 Original 40 Original
11 Original 41 Original
12 Original 42 Original
13 Original 43 Original
14 Original 44 Original
15 Original
16 Original
17 Original
18 Original
19 Original
20 Original
21 Original
22 Original
23 Original
24 Original
25 Original
26 Original
27 Original
28 Original
29 Original
30 Original

* New or revised

Issued: July 19, 2001 Effective: August 20, 2001

By: Tricia Breckenridge
Executive Vice President of Business Development
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SYMBOLS
The following are the only symbols used for the purposes indicated below:

(©) All other Changes
(D) Decrcased Rates
(D Increased Rates

Issucd: July 19, 2001 Effcetive: August 20, 2001

By: Tricia Breckenridge
Executive Vice President of Business Development
KMC Data, LLC
1755 North Brown Road
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D.

TARIFF FORMAT

Sheet Numbering - Sheet numbers appear in the upper right corner of the page. Sheets are
numbered sequentially. However, new sheets arc occasionally added to the Tarifl. When a new
sheet is added between sheets already in effect, a decimal is added. For example, a new shect
added between sheets 14 and 15 would be 14.1.

Sheet Revision Numbers - Revision numbers also appear in the upper right comer of cach page.
These numbers are used to determine the most current sheet version on file with the Commission.
For cxample, the 4th revised Sheet 14 cancels the 3rd revised Sheet 14, Because of various
suspension periods, deferrals, ete., the Commission follows in their Tarilf approval process, the -
most current sheet number on file with the Commission is not always the Tarifl page in cifect.

Paragraph Numbering Sequence - There are nine levels of paragraph coding. Each level of
coding is subservient to its next higher level:

2.1.1ALL
2.1.1.A.1.(a).
2.1.1AL(a).l.
2.1.1.A.1.(a).LGi).
2.1.1.A.1.(2).LG)(1).

Check Sheets - When a Tarilf filing is made with the Commission, an updated check sheet
accompanies the Tariff filing. The check sheet lists the sheets contained in the Tariff, with a
cross reference to the current revision number. When new pages are added, the check sheet is
changed to reflect the revision. All revisions made in a given filing are designated by an asterisk
(*). There will be no other symbols used on the check sheet if these are the only changes made to
it (i.e., the format, etc., remains the same, just revised revision levels on some pages). The Tarifl
user should refer to the latest check sheet 1o find out if a particular shecet is the most current on
file with the Conmumission.

Issued: July 19,2001 Effective: August 20, 2001

By: Tricia Breckenridge

Executive Vice President of Business Development
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Lawrenceville, GA 30043
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KMC DATA, LLC

APPLICATION OF TARIFF

This tarift sets forth the service offerings, rates and terms and conditions of service applicable 1o the
furnishing of interexchange reseller toll teleccommunications services by KMC Data, LLC ("KMC” or
“Company”) to business Customers within the state of Pennsylvania.

Issued: July 19, 2001 Effective: August 20, 2001
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SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

1.1 Definitions
Certain terms used generally throughout this tariff are defined below:
Call: A complcted connection between the Calling and Called parties
Calling Station: The telephonc number from which a Call originatcs.
Called Station: The telephone called.
Company or KMC: KMC Data, LLC, the issuer of this tarift.
Commission: The Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission.
Commonwealth: Pennsylvania.
Customer: A person, association, firm, corporation, partnership, governmental agency or other
entity, including affiliates or divisions of the Customer, in whose name the telephone number of
the Calling Station is registered with the underlying local exchange company. The Customer is
responsible for payment of charges to the Company and compliance with all terms and conditions
of this tariff.
Dedicated Access Service: An arrangement whereby a Customer or other common carrier uses a
dedicated private line facility to access the Company’s network.
Rate: Money, charge, fec or other recurring asscssment billed to Customers for services or
cquipment.
User or End User: A Customer, Joint User, or any other person authorized by a Customer to use
service provided under this tariff.

1.2 Abbreviations
Hz: Herlz.
Mbps: Megabits per second, denotes millions of bits per second.
PBX: Private Branch Exchange.
POP: Point of Presence.

Issucd: July 19, 2001 Effective: August 20, 2001

By: Tricia Breckenridge
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS

2.1 Undertaking of the Company

2.1.1  Scope

2.1.1.1

2.1.1.2

2,113

The services of the Company consist of the furnishing of onc-way and/or two
way information transmission services throughout the State of Pennsylvania
pursuant to this general tariff offering of service to the general public.

The Company’s local service territory mirrors certain of the local cxchanges
of the incumbent carrier, Bell Atlantic-PA. As stated on the Title page to this
tariff, initially the Company will serve Philadelphia Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, 14, 25,
26, 28, 30, 31, 33 and 34, and Pittsburgh Zones 1, 2, 3,4, 6, 7, §, 14 and 22,
as sct forth in Sections 5 and 6 of this tariff. The Company will not originate
interexchange telecommunications services outside of these areas, but
interexchange Calls made by the Company’s Customers may be transported
and terminated elsewhere in the State of Pennsylvania.

The services offered herein may be used for any lawful purpose, including
residential, business, governmental or other use. There are no restrictions on
sharing or resale of the Company’s scrvices. However, the Customer
remains liable for all obligations under this tariff notwithstanding such
sharing or resale and regardless of the Company’s knowledge of same. The
Company shall have no liability to any person or enlity other than the
Customer. [f service is jointly ordered by more than one Customer, cach is
jointly and severally liable for all obligations herein.

Issued: July 19,2001
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

2.1 Undertaking of the Company (Cont’d)

2.1.1 Scope (Cont’d)

2114 Company services may be connected to the services or facilitics of other
communications carriers only when authorized by, and in accordance with,
the terms and conditions of any lariffs of such other communications carricrs
which arc applicable 1o such connections.

2.1.2  Shortage ol Equipment or facilitics

2.1.2.1 The Company reserves the right to limit or to allocale the use of its existing
and future facilitics when nccessary because of a lack of facilities or due to
any cause beyond the Company’s control including but not limited to acts of
God, fire, flood, explosion or other catastrophes; any law, order, regulation,
dircetion, action or request of the United States government, or of any other
government, including state and local governments having or claiming
jurisdiction over the Company, or of any department, agency, commission-,
burcau, corporation, or other instrumentalily of any one or more of these
federal, state or local governments, or of any civil or military authority;
national emergencies; insurrections, riots, wars; unavailability of rights-of-
way or materials; or strikes, lock-outs, work stoppages, or other labor
difficultics.

2122 The furnishing of service under this tariff is subject to the availability on a
continuing basis of all facilities necessary to provide the service. Services
will be provided using the Company’s fiber optic facilities, as well as, from
time to time and at the sole discretion ol the Company, facilities the
Company may obtain from other carriers.

Issued: July 19, 2001 Effcetive: August 20, 2001
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2.1

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

Undertaking of the Company (Cont’d)

2.1.3

Ownership of Facilitics

Title to all facilitics and equipment, and rclated plans and proposals, provided by
Company in fumishing service in accordance with this tariff remains in the Company, its
agents or contractors. Customer shall not have, nor shall it assert, any right, title or
interest in the fiber optic or other facilitics and associated cquipment, plans or proposals
provided by the Company. Such facilities and equipment, plans and proposals shall be
returned to the Company by the Customer whenever requested, within a recasonable
period (but in any event not more than fifteen (15) days following the request, in as good
condition as rcasonable wear will permit.

Governmental Authorizations

The provision of the Company’s scrvices is subject to and contingent upon the Company
obtaining and retaining all governmental authorizations that may be required or be
deemed necessary by Company. Such authorizations may include but are not limited to
governmental approvals, consents, licenses, franchises, and permits. Company shall use
reasonable ¢fforts 1o obtain and keep in effect all such governmental authorizations.
Company shall be entitled to take, and shall have no liability whatsoever for, any action
nceessary to bring its facilities and/or services into conformance with any requirement or
request of the Federal Commumications Commission or other federal, state or local
governing entily or agency. Customer shall fully cooperate in and take any action as may
be requested by Company 10 comply with such governmental requirement.

Issued: July 19, 2001 Etfective: August 20, 2001
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

2.1 Undertaking of the Company (Cont’d)

2.1.5 Rights-ol-Way

Where cconomically {easible (in the sole opinion of the Company), Company shall use
reasonable efforts 1o obtain and maintain, directly or through third parties, rights-of-way
necessary for installation of the facilities used to provide Company’s scrvices Lo
Customer’s property line, building entrance, or other service point as agreed to by
Company. Customers use of such rights-of-way shall in all respects be subject to the
between the Company and such third parties relating thereto, and shall not regulation or
restriction.

2.1.6 Term of Service
The minimum term of service under this tariff is one month. Service is provided 24-
hours per day, 7-days per week. FFor purposes of this tariff, a month is considered to have

30 days.

2.1.7 Customer Service

The Company’s customer service representatives for billing and service inquirics may be
reached, toll free at (888) KMC-THET / (888) 562-8431. Customers wishing to
communicate with the Company in writing may send correspondence to 1545 Route 2006,
Suite 300, Bedminster, New Jersey 07921

Issued: July 19, 2001 Etfective: August 20, 2001
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

2.2 Limitations of Scrvice

2.2.1

Service is offered subject to the availability of facilities and provisions of this tariff.

2.2.2  Service is furnished to the User for any lawful purpose. Service shall not be used for any
untawful purpose, nor uscd in such a manner as to interfere unrcasonably with the use of
service by any other Users.

2.2.3  The use of the Company’s services without payment for service or attempting to avoid
payment for service by fraudulent means or devices, false or invalid numbers, or false
calling or credit cards is prohibited.

224 The Company’s services may be denied for noncompliance with any of the
Commission’s regulations, or for other violations of the terms and conditions sct forth in
this tariff.

225 The usc of the Company’s scrvices to make calls which might reasonably be expecied to
frighten, abuse, torment, or harass another is prohibited.

2.2.6  Scrvice temporarily may be refused or limited because of system capacity limitations.

2.2.7 Service is subject to transmission limitations caused by natural (including atmospheric,
geographic or topographic) or artificial conditions adversely affecting transmission.

2.2.8 Service to any or all Customers may be temporarily interrupted or curtailed due to
cquipment modifications, upgrades, relocations, repairs and similar activities necessary
for proper or improved operations.

2.2.9 The Company reserves the right to discontinue furnishing service where the Customer is
using the service in violation of the law or the provisions of this tariff.

Issued: July 19, 2001 Effective: August 20, 2001
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

2.3 Liahility of the Company

231

232

The liability of the Company for damages arising out of the furnishing of its services,
including but not limited to mistakes, outages, omissions interruptions, delays, crrors, or
other defects, representations, failures arising out of the usc of these services or failure to
furnish scrvice, whether caused by act, omission or negligence, shall be limited to the
cxtension of allowances as set forth in scction 2.4 of this tariff captioned: *“*Allowancces
for Interruptions in Service.” The extension of such allowances for interruption shall be
the sole remedy of the Customer, and the sole liability of the Company. The Company
will not be liable for any direct, indirect, incidental, special, consequential, exemplary or
punitive damages to Customer as a result of any Company service, equipment or
facilitics, or the acts or omissions or negligence of the Company’s employecs or agents.

The Company shall not be liable for any delay or failure of performance of cquipment
duc to causes beyond its control, including but not limited to: acts of God, fire, flood,
cxplosion or other catastrophes; any law, order, regulation, dircetion, action or request of
the United States government having or claiming jurisdiction over the Company, or of
any department, agency, commission, burcau, corporation, or other instrumentality of any
onc or more of these federal, state or local governments, or of any civil or military
authority; national emergencics; insurrcctions, riots; wars; unavailability of rights-of-way
or materials; or strikes, lock-outs, work stoppages, or other labor difficultics.

The Company shall not be liable for any act, omission or defect of any entity furnishing
to the Company or to the Customer facilitics or cquipment used for or with the
Company’s services; or for the acts or omissions of common carriers or warehousemen.

Issued: July 19, 2001 Effective: August 20, 2001
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

23 Liability of the Company (Cont’d)

234

236

The Company shall not be liable for any damages or losses duc to the fault or negligence
of the Customer or duc to the failure or malfunction of Customer-provided equipment or
facilities.

The Company does not guarantec nor make any warranty with respect to installations it
provides for usc in an explosive atmosphere. The Customer indemnifics and holds the
Company harmless from any liability whatsoever, and for any damages caused or
claimed 1o have been caused in any way, directly or indircctly, as a result of any such
installation.

The Company is not liable for any defacement of or damage to Customer’s premises
resulting from the furnishing of services or equipment or the installation or removal
thercof, unless such defacement or damage is caused by the willful misconduct of the
Company’s employces or agents.

The Company shall be indemnified, defended and held harmless by the Customer against
any claim, loss or damage arising from Customer’s use of scrvices, involving claims for
libel, slander, invasion of privacy, or infringement of copyright arising from the
Customer’s use of the Company’s facilitics.

The Company’s entirc liability, if any, for any claim, loss, damagc or expense from any
cause whatsoever shall in no event exceed sums actually paid Company by Customer for
the specific services giving rise o the claim. Any claim, action or proceeding against the
Company which is not filed or commenced within one (1) ycar after the carlier of: (a) the
rendcering of the service, or (b) the occurrence of the event with respect to which such
claim arose, shall be deemed waived if not brought within such one year period.
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2.3

SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

Liability of the Company (Cont’d)

239

2.3.10

2311

With respeet to the furnishing of Company’s services to public safety answering points or
municipal emergency service providers, the Company’s liability, if any, will be limited to
the lesser of: (a) the actual monetary damages incurred and proved by the Customer as
the direct result of the Company’s action, or failure to act, in providing the service, or (b)
the sum of $1,000.00.

In the event partics other than Customer, inciuding but not limited to joint uscrs and
Customer’s customers, shall have use of the Company’s service directly or indirectly
through Customer, then Customer agrees to forever indemnify and hold the Company
harmless from and against any and all claims, demands, suits, actions, losses, damages,
assessments or payments which may be asserted by said parties arising out of or relating
to the Company’s furnishing of service.

THE COMPANY MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS, EXPRESS
OR IMPLIED, EITHER IN FACT OR BY OPERATION OF LAW, STATUTORY OR
OTHERWISE, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS
FOR A PARTICULAR USE, EXCEPT THOSE EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN.
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2.4 Allowances for Interruptions in Service

24.1  General

24.1.1 A service is interrupted when it becomes unusable to the User, e.g., the User
is unable to transmit or receive communications due to the failure ol a
component furnished by the Company under this tarifl,

24.1.2 An interruption period beging when the User reports a service, facility or
circuil to be inoperative and releases it for lesting and repair. An interruption
period ends when the service, facility or circuit is operative.

2413 I the User reports a service, facility or circuit to be inoperative but declines
to release it for testing and repair, the service, facility or circuit is considered
to be impaired but not interrupted. No credit allowances will be made for a
service facility or circuit considered by the Company to be impaired.

2.4.2  Application of Credits for Interrupted Scrvices

2.4.2.1 At the Customer’s request, a credit allowance for a continuous interruption of
service for more than twenty-four (24) hours will be made in an amount to be
determined by the Company on a case-by-case basis. Credit allowances shall
be applied in conformity with the requirements of 52 PA. ADMIN. CODE
§ 64.52, unless otherwise agreed by Company or required by law.

24272 Any such interruption will be measured from the time it is reported to or
detected by the Company, whichever occurs first.

2423 In the event the User is affected by such interruption for a period of less than
twenty-four (24} hours, no adjustment will be made. No adjustments will be
earned by accumulating non-continuous periods of interruption.
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24 Allowances for Interruptions in Service (Cont’d)

2.43 Limitations on Allowances

2431 No credit allowance will be made for any interruption of service:

2.4.3.1.1  due to the negligence of, or noncompliance with the provisions
of this tariff by, any person or cntity other than thc Company,
including but not limited to the Customer or other entities or
carriers connected to the service of the Company;

243.1.2 due to the failure of power, equipment, systems or services nol
provided by the Company;

2.4.3.1.3 due, to circumstances or causes beyond the control of the
Company;

2.4.3.1.4 during any period in which the Company is not given full and
free access to the Customer’s or Company’s facilitics and
equipment for the purpose of investigating and correcting the
inlerruption;

2.43.1.5 during any peried in which the User continues to usc the service
on an impaired basis;
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SECTION 2 - RULES AND REGULATIONS (Cont’d)

24 Allowances for Interruptions in Service (Cont’d)

243  Limitations on Allowances (Cont’d)

2.4.3.1.6  during any period in which the Customer has rcleased service to
the Company for maintenance purposes or for implementation of
a Customer order for a change in service arrangements;

2.43.1.7 ihat occurs or continues due to the Customer’s failure to
authorize replacement of any clement of special construction;
and

2.4.3.1.8 that was not reported to the Company within thirty (30) days of
the date that service was affected.

2.5 Obligations of the Customer

2.5.1 Scope
The obligations of the Customer shall include the following:

2511 Customer shall be responsible for any damage to or loss of the Company’s
facilities or cquipment caused by the acts or omissions of the Customer, or its
cmployces, agents, contractors or suppliers, by Customer’s noncompliance
with this tariff, by malfunction or failure of any equipment or facility
provided by Customer or its agents, employecs or supplicrs, or by fire, theft
or other casualty on the Customer’s premiscs, unless caused by the gross
negligence or willful misconduct of Company’s employecs or agents.
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2.5 Obligations of the Customer (Cont’d)

2.5.1  Scope (Cont’d)

2.5.1.2

25.1.3

Customer shall provide at no cost to, and, as specified from time to time by
the Company, any personncl, cquipment, space, power, heating and air
conditioning needed to operate, and maintain a proper operating cnvironment
lor, Company facilitics and equipment installed on the Customer’s premises.
Customer shall cooperate with Company in choosing the location, size and
characteristics of the Company’s equipment space on Customer’s premiscs,
which shall define the point of termination ol Company’s service. Customer
may be rcquired to pay, in the solc discretion of the Company, additional
non-recurring charges for any additional points of termination within
Customer’s premises.

Customer shall obtain, maintain, and otherwise have {ull responsibility for all
rights-of-way and conduit necessary for installation of Company facilities
from the building entrance or property line to the location of Company’s
equipment space on the Customer’s premiscs. Any costs associated with
oblaining and maintaining the rights-of-way described herein, including any
necessary building modification costs, shall be borne entirely by the
Customer. Customer shall also be responsible [or complying with all
applicable laws, and obtaining all required permits or other approvals related
to the location and installation of Company facilities and equipment in the
Customer’s premises or within the rights-of-way for which the Customer ts
responsible. The Customer and the Company may mutually agree to enter
into a contract under which Company will provide some or all such non-
regulated services and facilities.
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